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1 1 807 KAR 5:001 Section 10(1Xa)1 | A statement of the reason the adjustment is required. Mr. Bellar
1 2 807 KAR 5:001 Section 10(1)(@)2 | A statement that the utility’s annual reports, including the annual report for the most | Mr. Bellar

recent calendar year, are on file with the Commission in accordance with 807 KAR
5:006, Section 3(1).

1 3 807 KAR 5:001 Section 10(1)(@)3 | If the utility is incorporated, a certified copy of the utility's articles of incorporation | Mr. Bellar
and all amendments thereto or all out-of-state documents of similar import. If the
utility’s articles of incorporation and amendments have already been filed with the
commission in a prior proceeding, the application may state this fact making
reference to the style and case number of the prior proceeding.

1 4 807 KAR 5:001 Section 10(1)(@)4 | If the utility is a limited partnership, a certified copy of the limited partnership Mr. Bellar
agreement and all amendments thereto or all out-of-state documents of similar
import. If the utility’s limited partnership agreement and amendments have already
been filed with the commission in a prior proceeding, the application may state this
fact making reference to the style and case number of the prior proceeding.

1 5 807 KAR 5:001 Section 10(1)(@)5 | If the wtility is incorporated or a is a limited partnership, a certificate of good Mr. Bellar
standing or certificate of authorization dated within sixty (60) days of the date the
application is filed.

1 6 807 KAR 5:001 Section 10(1)(a)6 | A certified copy of a certificate of assumed name as required by KRS 365.015 or a Mr. Bellar

statement that such a certificate is not necessary.

1 7 807 KAR 5:001 Section 10(1)(@)7 | The proposed tariff in a form which complies with 807 KAR 5:011 with an effective Mr. Bellar
date not less than thirty (30) days from the date the application is filed.

1 8 807 KAR 5:001 Section 10(1)(@)8 | The utility's proposed tariff changes, identified in compliance with 807 KAR 5:011, Mr. Bellar
shown either by: (aj Providing the present and proposed tariffs in comparative form
on the same sheet side by side; or, (b) Providing a copy of the present tariff
indicating proposed additions by italicized inserts or underscoring and striking over
proposed deletions.

1 9 807 KAR 5:001 Section 10(1)(@)9 | A statement that customer notice has been given in compliance with subsections (3) Mr. Bellar
and (4) of this section with a copy of the notice.
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1 10 807 KAR 5:001 Section 10(2) Notice of Intent. Ulilities with gross annual revenues greater than 31,000,000 shall | Mr. Bellar
file with the commission a written notice of intent to file a rate application at least
four (4) weeks prior to filing their application. The notice of intent shall state
whether the rate application shall be supported by a historical test period or a fully
Jforecasted test period. This notice shall be served upon the Attorney General, Utility
Intervention and Rate Division.
1 11 807 KAR 5:001 Section 10(3) Form of notice to customers. Every utility filing an application pursuant to this Mr. Bellar

section shall notify all affected customers in the manner prescribed herein. The
notice shall include the following information: (a) The amount of the change
requested in both dollar amounts and percentage change for each customer
classification to which the proposed rate change will apply; (b) The present rates
and the proposed rates for each customer class to which the proposed rates would
apply; (c) Electric, gas, water and sewer utilities shall include the effect upon the
average bill for each customer class to which the proposed rate change will apply;
(d) Local exchange companies shall include the effect upon the average bill for each
customer class for the proposed rate change in basic local service; (e) A statement
that the rates contained in this notice are the rates proposed by (name of utility);
however, the Public Service Commission may order rates to be charged that differ
Jrom the proposed rates contained in this notice; (f) A statement that any
corporation, association, or person with a substantial interest in the matter may, by
written request, within thirty (30) days after publication or mailing of this notice of
the proposed rate changes request to intervene; intervention may be granted beyond
the thirty (30) day period for good cause shown; (g} A statement that any person who
has been granted intervention by the commission may obtain copies of the rate
application and any other filings made by the utility by contacting the utility through
a name and address and phone number stated in this notice; (h) A statement that any
person may examine the rate application and any other filings made by the utility at
the main office of the utility or at the commission's office indicating the addresses
and telephone numbers of both the utility and the commission; and (i} The
commission may grant a utility with annual gross revenues greater than §1,000,000,
upon written request, permission to use an abbreviated form of published notice of
the proposed rates provided the notice includes a coupon which may be used to
obtain all of the information required herein.
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12 807 KAR 5:001 Section 10(4)(a) Manner of notification. Sewer utilities shall give the required typewritten notice by
mail to all of their customers pursuant to KRS 278.185.

Mr. Bellar

13 807 KAR 5:001 Section 10(4)(b) Manner of notification. Applicants with twenty (20) or fewer customers affected by
the proposed general rate adjustment shall mail the required typewritten notice to
each customer no later than the date the application is filed with the commission.

Mr. Bellar

14 807 KAR 5:001 Section 10(4)(c) Manner of notification. Except for sewer utilities, applicants with more than twenty
(20) customers affected by the proposed general rate adjustment shall give the
required notice by one (1) of the following methods: 1. A typewritten notice mailed to
all customers no later than the date the application is filed with the commission; 2.
Publishing the notice in a trade publication or newsletter which is mailed to all
customers no later than the date on which the application is filed with the
commission; or 3. Publishing the notice once a week for three (3) consecutive weeks
in a prominent manner in a newspaper of general circulation in the utility’s service
area, the first publication to be made within seven (7) days of the filing of the
application with the commission.

Mr. Bellar

15 807 KAR 5:001 Section 10(4)(d) Manner of notification. If the notice is published, an affidavit from the publisher
verifying the notice was published, including the dates of the publication with an
attached copy of the published notice, shall be filed with the commission no later
than forty-five (45) days of the filed date of the application. '

Mr. Bellar

16 | 807 KAR 5:001 Section 10(4)(e) Manner of notification. If the notice is mailed, a written statement signed by the
utility's chief officer in charge of Kentucky operations verifying the notice was
mailed shall be filed with the commission no later than thirty (30) days of the filed
date of the application.

Mr. Bellar

17 807 KAR 5:001 Section 10(4)(f) Manner of notification. All utilities, in addition to the above notification, shall post a
sample copy of the required notification at their place of business no later than the
date on which the application is filed which shall remain posted until the commission
has finally determined the utility's rates.

Mr. Bellar

18 807 KAR 5:001 Section 10(4)(g) Manner of notification. Compliance with this subsection shall constitute compliance
with 807 KAR 5:051, Section 2.

Mr. Bellar

19 807 KAR 5:001 Section 10(5) Notice of hearing scheduled by the commission upon application by a utility for a
general adjustment in rates shall be advertised by the utility by newspaper
publication in the areas that will be affected in compliance with KRS 424.300

Mr. Bellar
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1 20 807 KAR 5:001 Section 10(6)(a) A complete description and quantified explanation for all proposed adjustments, with | Mr. Rives
proper support for any proposed changes in price or activity levels, and any other
factors which may affect the adjustment.

i 21 807 KAR 5:001 Section 10(6)(b) | Ifthe utility has gross annual revenues greater than $1,000,000, the prepared Mr. Bellar
testimony of each witness the utility proposes to use to support its application.

1 22 807 KAR 5:001 Section 10(6)(c) If the utility has gross annual revenues less than 31,000,000, the prepared testimony | Mr. Rives
of each witness the utility proposes to use to support its application or a statement
that the utility does not plan to submit any prepared testimony.

1 23 807 KAR 5:001 Section 10(6)(d) A statement estimating the effect that the new rates will have upon the revenues of Mr. Conroy
the utility including, at minimum, the total amount of revenues resulting from the

. increase or decrease and the percentage of the increase or decrease.

1 24 807 KAR 5:001 Section 10(6)(e) If the utility provides electric, gas, water, or sewer service the effect upon the Mr. Conroy
average bill for each Customer classification to which the proposed rate change will
apply.

1 25 807 KAR 5:001 Section 10(6)(f) If the utility is a local exchange company, the effect upon the average bill for each Mr. Bellar
customer class for the proposed rate change in basic local service.

1 26 807 KAR 5:001 Section 10(6)(g) An analysis of customers’ bills in such detail that revenues from the present and Mr. Conroy
proposed rates can be readily determined for each customer class.

1 27 807 KAR 5:001 Section 10(6)(h) A summary of the utility’s determination of its revenue requirements based on return | Mr. Rives
on net investment rate base, return on capitalization, interest coverage, debt service
coverage, or operating ratio, with supporting schedules.

1 28 807 KAR 5:001 Section 10(6)(i) A reconciliation of the rate base and capital used to determine its revenue Mr. Rives
requirement.

1 29 807 KAR 5:001 Section 10(6)(i) A current chart of accounts if more detailed that the Uniform System of Accounts Ms. Charnas
prescribed by the commission.

1 30 807 KAR 5:001 Section 10(6)(k) The independent auditor 's annual opinion report, with any written communication Mr. Rives
from the independent auditor to the utility which indicates the existence of a material
weakness in the utility's internal controls.

2 31 807 KAR 5:001 Section 10(6)(I) The most recent Federal Energy Regulatory Commission or Federal Communication | Ms. Scott
Commission audit reports.

Page 4 of 8



Kentucky Utilities Company
Case No. 2009-00548
Historical Test Period Filing Requirements

Table of Contents
Vol Tab Sponsoring
No. No. | Filing Requirement Description Witness
2 32 807 KAR 5:001 Section 10(6)(m) | The most recent Federal Energy Regulatory Commission Form 1 (electric), Federal | Ms. Scott

Energy Regulatory Commission Form 2 (gas). or Automated Reporting Management
Information System Report (telephone) and Public Service Commission Form T
(telephone);

2 33 807 KAR 5:001 Section 10(6)(n) A summary of the utility's latest depreciation study with schedules by major plant Ms. Charnas
accounts, except that telecommunications utilities that have adopted the
commission’s average depreciation rates shall provide a schedule that identifies the
current and test period depreciation rates used by major plant accounts. If the
required information has been filed in another commission case a reference to that
case's number and style will be sufficient.

2 34 807 KAR 5:001 Section 10(6)(0) | A4 list of all commercially available or in-house developed computer sofiware, Ms. Scott
programs, and models used in the development of the schedules and work papers
associated with the filing of the utility's application. This list shall include each
software, program, or model; what the software, program, or model was used for;
identify the supplier of each software, program, or model; a brief description of the
software, program, or model; the specifications for the computer hardware and the
operating system required to run the program.

2 35 807 KAR 5:001 Section 10(6)(p) Prospectuses of the most recent stock or bond offerings. Mr. Rives

2 36 | 807 KAR 5:001 Section 10(6)(q) | Annual report to shareholders, or members, and statistical supplements covering the | Mr. Rives
two (2) most recent years from the utility's application filing date.

3 37 807 KAR 5:001 Section 10(6)(r) The monthly managerial reports providing financial results of operations for the Ms. Scott
twelve (12) months in the test period.

3 38 807 KAR 5:001 Section 10(6)(s) Securities and Exchange Commission’s annual report for the most recent two (2) Mr. Rives
years, Form 10-Ks and any Form 8-Ks issued within the past two (2) years. and
Form 10-Qs issued during the past six (6) quarters updated as current information
becomes available.
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39

807 KAR 5:001 Section 10(6)(t)

If the utility had any amounts charged or allocated to it by an affiliate or general or
home office or paid any monies to an affiliate or general or home office during the
test period or during the previous three (3) calendar years, the utility shall file: 1. A
detailed description of the method and amounts allocated or charged to the utility by
the affiliate or general or home office for each charge allocation or payment; 2. An
explanation of how the allocator for the test period was determined; and 3. All facts
relied upon, including other regulatory approval, to demonstrate that each amount
charged, allocated or paid during the test period was reasonable;

Ms. Scott

40

807 KAR 5:001 Section 10(6)(u)

If the utility provides gas, electric or water utility service and has annual gross
revenues greater than 35,000,000, a cost of service study based on a methodology
generally accepted within the industry and based on current and reliable data from a
single time period.

Mr. Seelye

41

807 KAR 5:001 Section 10(6)(v)

Local exchange carriers with fewer than 50,000 access lines shall not be required to
file cost of service studies, except as specifically directed by the commission. Local
exchange carriers with more than 50,000 access lines shall file: 1. A jurisdictional
separations study consistent with Part 36 of the Federal Communications
Commission's rules and regulations; and 2. Service specific cost studies to support
the pricing of all services that generate annual revenue greater than 31,000,000,
except local exchange access: a. Based on current and reliable data from a single
time period; and b. Using generally recognized fully allocated, embedded, or
incremental cost principles.

Mr. Bellar

42

807 KAR 5:001 Section 10(7)(a)

Upon good cause shown, a utility may request pro forma adjustments for known and
measurable changes to ensure fair, just and reasonable rates based on the historical
test period. The following information shall be filed with applications requesting pro
forma adjustments or a statement explaining why the required information does not
exist and is not applicable to the utility's application: (a) A detailed income
statement and balance sheet reflecting the impact of all proposed adjustments:

Ms. Scott

Page 6 of 8



Kentucky Utilities Company
Case No. 2009-00548
Historical Test Period Filing Requirements
Table of Contents

Vol.
No.

Tab
No. | Filing Requirement Description

Sponsoring
Witness

43 807 KAR 5:001 Section 10(7)(b) Upon good cause shown, a utility may request pro forma adjustments for known and
measurable changes to ensure fair, just and reasonable rates based on the historical
test period. The following information shall be filed with applications requesting pro
forma adjustments or a statement explaining why the required information does not
exist and is not applicable to the utility's application: (b) The most recent capital
construction budget containing at least the period of time as proposed for any pro
forma adjustment for plant additions.

Ms. Charnas

44 807 KAR 5:001 Section 10(7)(c) Upon good cause shown, a utility may request pro forma adjustments for known and
measurable changes to ensure fair, just and reasonable rates based on the historical
test period, The following information shall be filed with applications requesting pro
forma adjustments or a statement explaining why the required information does not
exist and is not applicable to the utility's application: (c) For each proposed pro
forma adjustment reflecting plant additions provide the following information: 1.
The starting date of the construction of each major component of plant; 2. The
proposed in-service date; 3. The total estimated cost of construction at completion;
4. The amount contained in construction work-in progress at the end of the test
period: 5. A schedule containing a complete description of actual plant retirements
and anticipated plant retirements related to the pro forma plant additions including
the actual or anticipated date of retirement; 6. The original cost, cost of removal and
salvage for each component of plant to be retired during the period of the proposed
pro forma adjustment for plant additions; 7. An explanation of any differences in the
amounts contained in the capital construction budget and the amounts of capital
construction cast contained in the pro forma adjustment period, and 8. The impact
on depreciation expense of all proposed pro forma adjustments for plant additions
and retirements;

Ms. Charnas

45 807 KAR 5:001 Section 10(7)(d) Upon good cause shown, a utility may request pro forma adjustments for known and
measurable changes to ensure fair, just and reasonable rates based on the historical
test period. The following information shall be filed with applications requesting pro
forma adjustments or a statement explaining why the required information does not
exist and is not applicable to the utility's application: (d) The operating budget for
each period encompassing the pro forma adjustments.

Ms. Scott
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3 46 807 KAR 5:001 Section 10(7)(e) Upon good cause shown, a utility may request pro forma adjustments for known and | Mr. Seelye

measurable changes to ensure fair, just and reasonable rates based on the historical

forma adjustments or a statement explaining why the required information does not
exist and is not applicable to the utility's application: (e) The number of customers to
be added to the test period-end level of customers and the related revenue
requirements impact for all pro forma adjustments with complete details and
supporting work papers.

test period. The following information shall be filed with applications requesting pro
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Kentucky Utilities Company
Case No. 2009-00548
Historical Test Period Filing Requirements

Filing Requirement
807 KAR 5:001 Section 10(6)(1)
Sponsoring Witness: Valerie L. Scott

Description of Filing Requirement:

The most recent Federal Energy Regulatory Commission or Federal Communication
Commission audit reports.

Response:

The most recent Federal Energy Regulatory Commission audit report relating to KU’s
electric business is attached. The Federal Communication Commission does not audit KU
and, therefore, no such audit reports exist.



FERC Audit Report — July 17, 2006



FEDERAL ENERGY REGULATORY COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20426

In Reply Refer To:
Office of Enforcement
Docket No. PA05-9-000
July 17, 2006

Michael S. Beer

Vice President, Federal Regulation and Policy
LG&E Energy Services, Inc.

220 West Main Street

Louisville, KY 40202

Dear Mr. Beer:

1. The Division of Audits within the Office of Enforcement (OE) has completed the
audit of LG&E Energy LLC (LG&E) for the period from January 1, 2003 to December
31, 2005. The enclosed audit report explains our audit findings and recommendations.

2. On June 29, 2006, you notified us that LG&E agreed with our audit findings and
recommendations. I hereby approve and direct the recommended corrective actions. A
copy of your response is included as an Appendix to this audit report.

3. LG&E should file an implementation plan within 30 days of the date of this letter
order and submit quarterly filings describing LG&E’s progress completing each
corrective action, including dates it has completed each corrective action. The filings
should be made no later than 30 days after the end of each calendar quarter, beginning
with the first quarter after this audit report is issued, and continuing unti] all the
corrective actions are completed.

4. The Commission delegated the authority to act on this matter to the Director of OE
under 18 C.F.R. § 375.314 (2006). This letter order constitutes final agency action. Your
Company may file a request for rehearing with the Commission within 30 days of the
date of this order under 18 C.F.R. § 385.713 (2006).

5. This letter order is without prejudice to the Commission's right to require hereafter
any adjustments it may consider proper from additional information that may come to its
attention.



6. I appreciate the courtesies extended to the auditors. If you have any questions,
please contact Mr. Bryan K. Craig, Director, Division of Audits at (202) 502-8741.

Sincer

Susan J.
Director
Office of Enforcement

Enclosure



FEDERAL ENERGY REGULATORY COMMISSION

Audit Period: January 1, 2003 through December 31, 2005

Audit of Code of Conduct, Standards of Conduct,
Market-Based Rate Tariff, and MISO’s Open Access
Transmission Tariff at LG&E Energy LL.C

Audit Report

OFFICE OF ENFORCEMENT
DIVISION OF AUDITS

Docket No. PA05-9-000 Date: July 17, 2006
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Docket No. PA05-9-000

[. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

A. Overview

The Office of Enforcement (OE)' has completed an audit of the operations of
LG&E Energy LLC (LG&E).? For purposes of the audit, the relevant parts of LG&E’s
corporate structure included:

o The two utilities (Louisville Gas & Electric Company and Kentucky Utilities
Company), each of which operates a system control center,

e LG&E’s service company (L.G&E Energy Services, Inc.), and

e LG&E’s Marketing and Energy Affiliates, including LG&E’s wholesale merchant
function (WMF) and its affiliated power marketers  LG&E’s principal affiliated
power marketer during the audit period was LG&E Energy Marketing, Inc. (LEM).

The audit covered the period from January 1, 2003 through December 31, 2005,
and focused on LG&E’s compliance with:

¢ LG&E’s Code of Conduct, which requires the physical, operational, and functional
separation of LG&E’s WMF and its affiliated power marketers,

e The Commission’s Standards of Conduct under Order No. 2004 and 18 C.F.R. Part
358 (2005), which requires the transmission function to operate independently from
LG&E’s energy marketing operations,

o LG&E’s market-based rate tariff, and

' On April 16, 2006, the Office of Market Oversight and Investigations changed its
name to the Office of Enforcement.

2 On December 1, 2005, LG&E Energy LLC announced it changed its name to
E.ON US.

3 LG&E Power Mhkeg., Inc., 68 FERC ¥ 61,247 (1994); modified on other grounds,
69 FERC 4 61,153 (1994). LG&E Power Mktg.’s name was changed to LG&E Energy
Marketing Inc. (LEM). See Notice of Name Change, Docket No. ER97-3418-000 (filed
June 24, 1997).
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e Midwest ISO (MISO) Open Access Transmission Tariff (OATT) §28.6 Restrictions
on Use of Service; §30.1 Designation of Network Resources; §30.4 Operation of
Network Resources; and §30.7 Limitation on Designation of Network Resources.

B. Summary of Compliance Findings

Our audit findings are based on materials provided by LG&E in response to data
requests, interviews with LG&E staff members, site visits, and a review of publicly
available documents. LG&E has been very cooperative throughout the audit.

Based on our examination of the Code of Conduct, Standards of Conduct, Market-
Based Rate Tariff, and MISO’s OATT at LG&E, we identified nine areas of non-

compliance.

Code of Conduct Compliance

e Functional, Physical, and Operational Separation of LG&E’s WMF and Affiliated
Power Marketer: LG&E’s WMF and its principal affiliated power marketer (LEM)
were not functionally, physically, and operationally separate to the maximum extent
practical, as required by LG&E’s Code of Conduct. Both WMF and LEM
functionally reported to the same company officer and LEM shared physical facilities
with WMF traders and with mid-office and back-office functions for the WMF.
WMF and LEM operationally shared a telephone recording system to capture trading
and dispatch conversations.

o Sharing of Market Information: LG&E’s WMF shared market information with its
principal affiliated power marketer (LEM) through presentations at joint staff
meetings, in violation of LG&E’s Code of Conduct. Also, the password access
controls to the shared Energy Management System (EMS) were inconsistent with
LG&E’s password security policy.

e Posting of Information on Sales to Affiliates at Market-Based Rates: LG&E was
required to post on an electronic bulletin board (EBB) information on energy sales at
market-based rates from its WMF to its affiliated power marketer (LEM). LG&E’s
Code of Conduct required the price of such sales to be no lower than the rate charged
to non-affiliates, and required simultaneous postings on an EBB of WMF’s offers to
sell to LEM and WMEF’s actual sales to LEM. Our review of LG&E’s archived EBB
postings disclosed that LG&E’s EBB was not accessible to non-affiliated market
participants for a period of time, and the information that LG&E posted on the EBB
was not consistent with the requirements in LG&E’s Code of Conduct.
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Standards of Conduct Compliance

Disclosures of Transmission and Customer Information: LG&E transmission
employees improperly disclosed non-public transmission and customer information to
employees of its WMF that was not contemporaneously available to the public, and
failed to post in a timely manner the information disclosure on OASIS: (1) on at least
three occasions, LG&E transmission employees disclosed real-time transmission
system status information to LG&E Energy and Marketing affiliate employees during
telephone calls concerning generation re-dispatch; (2) on at least one occasion, LG&E
made transmission expansion planning information available to marketing employees;
and (3) on a monthly basis through February 2005, a transmission employee sent e~
mails to a marketing employee containing load data of third-party customers.
Standards of Conduct Training: The scope of LG&E’s Standards of Conduct training
program was inconsistent with Commission regulations and with LG&E’s training
implementation plans. More than one year after the effective date of Order No. 2004,
L.G&E had failed to provide Standards of Conduct training for several hundred of the
employees LG&E was required to train.

Controls Used to Limit Access to System Control Centers: LG&E did not follow its
posted implementation procedures to control and track access by the employees of its
Marketing and Energy Affiliates to LG&E’s two system control centers, including the
requirement that LG&E marketing employees obtain permission from the Chief
Compliance Officer (CCO) before visiting the system control centers.

Organizational Charts: The organizational chart postings failed to include or
accurately show: detailed organizational charts for business units engaged in the sales
function; the position of LG&E’s Marketing and Energy Affiliates within the
corporate structure; and all of the business units that are part of LG&E’s service
company.

Shared Facilities: LG&E did not post a list of the facilities shared by the
Transmission Provider and LG&E’s Marketing and Energy Affiliates as required by
18 C.F.R. § 358.4(b)(2) (2005).

Market-Based Rate Tariff Compliance

o Electric Quarterly Report Inaccuracies: LG&E’s Electric Quarterly Report (EQR)

filing for the first quarter of 2005 contained inaccurate information. LG&E
inaccurately reported several sales transactions from its WMF to its affiliated power
marketer (LEM) and reported invalid Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS)
numbers for several other customers.
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C. Summary of Recommendations

Detailed recommendations are included in Sections III, IV, and V of this Audit
Report that describe the compliance findings. Following is a brief summary of those
recommendations. We recommend that LG&E:

e Implement its planned actions to ensure that WMF and LEM employees are
functionally, physically, and operationally separate to the maximum extent practical.

e Create and implement policies and procedures to ensure that there is no exchange of
market information inconsistent with LG&E’s Code of Conduct, and to conduct an
independent review after implementation of a new EMS system to ensure that market
information (and transmission information) is not accessible to employees who should
not have access to such information.

e Develop written policies and procedures regarding the use of its EBB, and develop a
plan for making the EBB more accessible to non-affiliated market participants.

e Post OASIS notices for all identified disclosures of non-public transmission
information. Specific recommendations include creating controls to prevent
disclosure of non-public transmission and customer information as part of
transmission operations, during meetings attended by transmission and marketing
employees, and through e-mail exchanges of information.

e Strengthen the implementation of its training program, specifically, to develop written
policies and procedures to ensure that new employees receive training, and conduct
periodic reviews to ensure that all of the employees that require training are scheduled
for, receive training, and are certified.

e Review and strengthen its system control center access procedures to ensure that
LG&E marketing employees do not have access that differs in any way from the
access available to other transmission customers.

e Revise its posted organizational charts to show the business units engaged in sales
functions, the position of all Marketing and Energy Affiliates within its corporate
structure, and sufficient detail to indicate that LG&E’s service company is the
employment mechanism for the Marketing and Energy Affiliates and the
Transmission Provider.

e Revise its shared facilities postings to identify all facilities that LG&E’s Marketing
and Energy Affiliates share with service employees who have access to non-public
transmission or customer information.
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e Strengthen its written procedures to ensure that EQR filings are in compliance with
Commission regulations, and to refile inaccurate EQR data identified in this Audit
Report.

D. Actions Already Taken by LG&E

LG&E has already taken a number of corrective actions in response to our
compliance findings to come into compliance with the Standards of Conduct and
LG&E’s Code of Conduct. These actions are enumerated in detail in Sections III, IV,
and V of this Audit Report that describe the compliance findings.

As part of the audit scope, audit staff examined LG&E’s use of network
integration transmission service (NITS) for the audit period prior to April 1, 2005, the
beginning of the MISO Day 2 market. After working with audit staff to perform the
review of LG&E’s use of NITS, LG&E committed to enhancing its “Before the Purchase
System” (BPS) by creating detailed control processes to ensure its compliance with the
OATT and the proper use of NITS. LG&E’s BPS is a software product that determines
when a bi-lateral power purchase can be reasonably expected to serve native load and can
be imported using network integration transmission service. LG&E’s BPS system
provides traders a systematic process for determining if a purchase should be imported
using NITS before purchases are made and scheduled. The BPS helps ensure LG&E’s
compliance with the Commission’s approved uses for NITS.

E. Implementation Plan

We recommended that LG&E submit an implementation plan to the audit staff for
our approval detailing LG&E’s plans to comply fully with the findings and
recommendations in this Audit Report. The implementation plan should describe the
actions LG&E has already taken, and will take, that are consistent with and

complementary to any future structural and organizational changes that LG&E may
undertake.

The implementation plan should be submitted within 30 days of issuance of a
Final Audit Report in this docket. In addition, LG&E shall make quarterly filings
updating the audit staff of its progress on implementing the plan. The filings shall be
made no later than 30 days after the end of each calendar quarter, beginning with the first
quarter after this audit report is issued, and continuing until all the corrective actions are
completed.
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II. INTRODUCTION

A.  Objectives

The overall audit objectives were to determine compliance with:

o LG&E’s Code of Conduct, which requires the physical, operational, and functional
separation of the utilities> WMF and its affiliated power marketers.

e The Commission’s Standards of Conduct under Order No. 2004 (and prior to
September 22, 2004, under Order No. 889‘), which requires a Transmission
Provider’s employees engaged in transmission system operations to function
independently from employees of its Marketing and Energy Affiliates.® Standards of
Conduct compliance was also evaluated against LG&E’s own implementation
procedures.®

4 Open-Access Same-Time Information System (formerly Real-Time Information
Networks) and Standards of Conduct, Order No. 889, 61 FR 21737 (May 10, 1996),
FERC Stats. & Regs., Regulations Preambles § 31,035 (Apr. 24, 1996); order on reh’g,
Order No. 889-A FR 12484 (March 14, 1997), FERC Stats. & Regs., Regulations
Preambles 9 31,049 (March 4, 1997).

® Standards of Conduct for Transmission Providers, Order No. 2004, 68 FR 69134
(Dec. 11, 2003), FERC Stats. & Regs., Regulations Preambles § 31,155 (Nov. 25, 2003),
order on reh’g, Order No. 2004-A, 69 FR 23562 (Apr. 29, 2004), FERC Stats. & Regs.,
Regulations Preambles § 31,161 (April 16, 2004), order on reh’g, Order No. 2004-B, 69
FR 48371(Aug. 10, 2004), FERC Stats. & Regs., Regulations Preambles § 31,166 (Aug.
2,2004), order on reh’g, Order No. 2004-C, 70 FR 284 (Jan. 4, 2005), FERC Stats. &
Regs., Regulations Preambles § 31,172 (Dec. 21, 2004), order on reh’g, Order No. 2004-
D, 110 FERC 9] 61,320 (2005), appeal pending, (D.C. Circuit Docket Nos. 04-1178, et
al.)

6 “Joint Written Procedures Implementing Standards of Conduct for Transmission
Providers as Adopted by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission in Order No. 2004,
Effective September 22, 2004” (hereinafter referred to as LG&E’s posted implementation
procedures). We found this document on April 5, 2005, posted on

http://lgeenergy.com/regulatory/lgeku_compliance_procedures.pdf.
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e LG&E’s market-based rate tariff.’
e The provisions of the MISO OATT.®

For purposes of evaluating compliance with the Standards of Conduct, this audit
focuses primarily on the period from September 22, 2004, the effective date of Order No.
2004, to December 31, 2005. For purposes of evaluating compliance with Code of
Conduct, market-based rate tariff and MISO’s OATT requirements, this audit focuses
primarily on the period from January 1, 2003 to December 31, 2005.

B.  Scope and Methodology

The OE has completed an audit of the operations of LG&E. As part of the audit,
OE conducted selective tests on data to determine LG&E's compliance with the
Standards of Conduct, Code of Conduct, market-based rate tariff, and MISO’s OATT
requirements. Selective tests included those necessary to verify the accuracy of required
informational postings on LG&E's OASIS, the effectiveness of written procedures and
internal controls related to the Standards of Conduct, and compliance with all the
provisions of the Standards of Conduct, LG&E’s Code of Conduct, LG&E’s market-
based rate tariff, and the MISO OATT.

" Additionally, we reviewed physical and electronic security over transmission
operations and information. We discussed with LG&E personnel matters related to the
corporate structure, Energy and Marketing Affiliates, local and wide area networks,
shared functions, and the Standards of Conduct training received. We reviewed e-mail
records and recorded conversations between LG&E’s transmission operations and its
Energy and Marketing Affiliates.

? Louisville Gas & Elec. Co., 85 FERC 1 61,125 (1998) (accepting for filing joint
market-based rate tariff of LG&E and KU, FERC Electric Tariff, Original Volume No.
2); LG&E Operating Cos. Docket No. ER99-1623-000. Letter Order, Jun. 4, 1999
(accepting revised tariff sheets to Original Volume No. 2 permitting limited sales to
certain affiliates); Louisville Gas & Elec. Co., Letter Order, Docket No. ER02-1077-000,
Apr. 16, 2002 (accepting “short form” market-based rate tariff as Original Volume No.3).

8 Midwest Independent Transmission System Operator, Inc., et al., 84 FERC 9
61,231 (1998); order on reconsideration, 85 FERC § 61,250 (1998); order on reh’g, 85
FERC Y 61,372 (1998); order on compliance filing, 87 FERC § 61,085 (1999).
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III. CODE OF CONDUCT FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

1. Functional, Physical and Operational Separation of LG&E’s WMF and
Affiliated Power Marketer

LG&E’s WMF and its principal affiliated power marketer (LEM) were not
functionally, physically and operationally separate to the maximum extent practical, as
required by LG&E’s Code of Conduct. The WMF and LEM were functionally within the
same LG&E business unit, and reported to the same company officer; the WMF and
LEM shared physical facilities without strong controls to prevent information sharing;
and the WMF and LEM shared a telephone recording system that provided LEM
employees access to operational information such as WMF trading activities.

Pertinent Guidance

Section 3 of LG&E’s Code of Conduct states that “(t)o the maximum extent
practical, employees of the Utilities [i.e., LG&E’s WMF] who operate the Utilities’
systems or engage in power purchasing or selling on behalf of the Utilities will be
physically, operationally, and functionally separate from employees of the Marketers
performing power marketing activities.”

Discussion
Collectively, the lack of functional, physical, and operational separation between
WMF and LEM precluded LG&E from operating these entities as separate business units

to the maximum extent practical as required in Section 3 of LG&E’s Code of Conduct.

Functional Separation Between WMF and LEM

LG&E’s WMF and its primary affiliated power marketer (LEM) were not
functionally separate to the maximum extent practical since they functionally reported to
the same company officer, i.e., the Senior Vice President (SVP) of Energy Marketing.
The employees of the two trading operations attended periodic meetings together,
convened by the SVP of Energy Marketing. As described in the compliance finding
“Sharing of Market Information” which follows next in this Audit Report, general market

® LG&E Power Mktg., Inc., 68 FERC Y 61,247 (1994); modified on other grounds,
69 FERC 961,153 (1994). LG&E Power Mktg.’s name was changed to LG&E Energy
Marketing Inc. (LEM). See Notice of Name Change, Docket No. ER97-3418-000
(filed June 24, 1997).



Docket No. PA05-9-000

information, as well as specific market information about WMF and LEM trading
operations was discussed at these meetings.

According to the job description of the SVP Energy Marketing, the occupant of
the position was responsible for establishing the strategic direction and management of
the energy marketing, fuel procurement and trading activities for the WMF and also
directs the optimization of the corporation's energy-related integrated gross margin. This
job description indicates that the SVP Energy Marketing is expected to coordinate WMF
and LEM activities to provide a greater return for the LG&E corporate family. This lack

of functional separation between WMF and LEM was inconsistent with LG&E’s Code of
Conduct.

Physical Separation Between WMF and LEM

LG&E lacked sufficient physical barriers to ensure that the WMF’s non-public
market information was not shared with LEM. WMF operations and LEM operations
were both located on the seventh floor of LG&E’s headquarters building. Sharing a floor
is not a violation of the Code of Conduct, as long as there are sufficient controls to ensure
the physical separation of employees and operations. The physical space occupied by
WMF operations were secured by a card key access system. However, LEM’s operations
were not secured by a card key access system, and the workspace of LEM employees
(with the exception of the Director of LEM) was arranged in open carrels. WMF
employees passed by LEM’s workspace on their way to and from a conference room
shared by the two trading operations, and the employees shared common facilities such as
kitchen and restrooms. WMF and LEM employees frequently held discussions on the
LEM trading floor, but LG&E asserted and the employees we interviewed confirmed that
the information exchanged between WMF and LEM traders was not prohibited
information—it was limited to public information regarding the market and market
information about LEM.

The seventh floor also contained LG&E’s risk management and energy accounting
functions, both of which have access to WMF information. The risk management and

energy accounting offices were not protected, e.g., through card key access, against entry
by LEM personnel.

Operational Separation with Respect to Recorded Phone Calls

LG&E recorded phone calls of its traders and dispatchers for both the WMF and
LEM functions on two RACAL digital tape recorder machines. Each machine recorded
calls made by employees of both organizations on digital tapes. Each digital tape
contained approximately 60,000 to 75,000 calls or about 21-28 days worth of recorded
calls containing conversations made by both WMF employees and LEM employees.
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Each call was identified by date, time, and channel number which corresponded to a
person or workstation. A recorded call varied in length from a few seconds to several
minutes.

The two RACAL recorder machines and tapes were located on the seventh floor of
LG&E’s headquarters building in a locked room with access controlled by a LEM
administrative employee. The LEM administrative employee provided access to specific
tapes when WMF or LEM employees requested access to the tapes. The LEM
administrative employee initially set up the machine to a channel, date and time, then
instructed the WMF and LEM employees how to operate the machine to find other calls.
The listening process involved searching and listening to the tape on a trial and error
basis until the call was identified. The LEM administrative person did not remain in the
room at all times while the WMF or LEM employees listened to the tapes, and these
employees had the opportunity to access the entire contents of a tape containing both
WMF and LEM recordings.

Recommendations
We recommend that LG&E:

1. Take all appropriate actions necessary to ensure that WMF employees and
LEM employees are functionally and physically separate to the maximum
extent practical, as required under LG&E’s Code of Conduct.

2. Implement procedures to ensure that authorized access to the tape
recordings are properly documented.

3. Implement procedures to separate tape recordings for WMF and LEM
channels.

4. Implement controls to provide access to only one tape recording machine
when WMF or LEM personnel are authorized to listen to tapes and
implement controls to prevent unauthorized access to channels of historical
tapes which contain recorded conversations of both WMF and LEM
channels.

5. LG&E shall submit all procedures and controls to OE for approval within
30 days of issuance of a Final Audit Report in this docket.

10
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Actions Already Taken by LG&E

After we discussed our concerns with the lack of physical separation between
LEM and WMF, LEM physically moved from the seventh floor to the fourth floor of the

LG&E building and LEM employees no longer have access to the seventh floor as of
March 31, 2006.

LG&E also began maintaining a written log of all access to tapes and revamped its
recording system so that now WMF and LEM employee conversations are recorded on
separate tapes and machines. We verified that this change had been made during our site
visit in October 2005. However, LG&E must still implement access controls to the tapes
when WMF or LEM employees listen to tapes containing recorded conversations of both
WMF and LEM channels. Also, LG&E must implement physical access controls to the
recording machines if WMF or LEM employees are provided access to the secure room
to listen to tapes.

The corrective actions do not solve the functional separation problem between
WMF and LEM. LG&E will submit a plan to functionally separate WMF and LEM.

11
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2. Sharing of Market Information

LG&E’s WMF shared market information with LEM through presentations at
joint staff meetings, in violation of LG&E’s Code of Conduct. Also, password access
controls to the shared Energy Management System (EMS) were insufficient and
inconsistent with LG&E’s password security policy.

Pertinent Guidance

Section 4 of LG&E’s Code of Conduct states that “(n)o employee of the Utilities
will share market information with any employee of the Marketers unless all such
information is simultaneously made available to the public. The policy will not apply to
market information known to be publicly available, or to market information disclosed to
employees of the Marketers or the Utilities who are engaged in support functions,
including human resources, information resources, data processing, finance, legal,
accounting and other support personnel who do not participate in directing, organizing
and executing the day-to-day business decisions of the wholesale merchant or generation
functions of the Ultilities or the Marketers, provided that such employees are prohibited
from acting as conduits to pass market information obtained from the Utilities to the
Marketers.”"® (emphasis in original.)

LG&E’s password security policy requires a password for each employee
accessing LG&E’s Local Area Networks (LAN) and Wide Area Networks (WAN).

Discussion

Joint Staff Meetings Between WMF and LEM

LG&E’s WMF shared non-public market information with LEM through
presentations at joint staff meetings, in violation of LG&E’s Code of Conduct. The
monthly trading meetings normally took place during the last week of each calendar
month. In addition to the SVP of Energy Marketing, the managers of WMF and LEM
attended, as well as staff from WMF and LEM, plus staff from the Market Analysis,
Trading Controls, Operations Analysis and Fuels Management sections.

During the months of August, 2004 through May, 2005, the agendas of the
Trading Meetings remained unchanged. The first item on the agenda was a presentation
by the Manager of the WMF on the results of Regulated Off-System Sales (OSS) for the
month, and how the results compared with the amount budgeted for that item. This

10714

12
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information included reforecast graphs for the calendar year-to-date, the results for the
current month-to-date, the factors leading to the results (including such items as purchase
power costs and transmission expenses), and a review of the profit-at-risk graph.
Following this presentation by the WMF, LEM presented a report on its sales operations
for the previous month and its forecasts and plans for the future."' Following LEM’s
presentation, the SVP of Energy Marketing dismissed the LEM employees from the
meeting after which the WMF made additional reports about its operations and forecasts.

.G&E’s Code of Conduct states that no employee of the WMF will share market
information with any affiliated power marketer employee unless all such information is
simultaneously made available to the public. Based on review of the agendas, and
interviews with WMF personnel, we concluded that the WMF Off-System Sales’
information presented at the beginning of the monthly meetings by the Manager of the
WMF was WMF market information. This information was disclosed to LEM personnel
present at the beginning of these meetings, a violation of LG&E’s Code of Conduct.

Password Access to EMS Information

LG&E’s WMF and LEM both use a shared EMS, partitioned into WMF
generation data, LEM generation data, and LG&E transmission data. Password access
controls to the shared EMS were insufficient and inconsistent with LG&E’s password
security policy. Prior to February 2004, LG&E permitted WMF and LEM users to access
the EMS using separate group accounts and passwords, rather than using unique user
accounts and passwords. The failure to require unique password access was contrary to
LG&E’s password security policy and increased the risk of inappropriate information
access via the EMS. Specifically, group passwords are easier to disseminate and it is not
possible to track the identity of individuals that use a group account to ensure that only
those with appropriate clearance have accessed the EMS. Because WMF employees and
LEM employees used group accounts and passwords, it was not possible to track
individual access to specific account information.

" The information related to Western Kentucky Electric (WKE), LEM’s sole
remaining customer. In past years the information also related to LEM’s contract with
Oglethorpe Power Corporation (OPC).

13
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Recommendations
We recommend that LG&E:

6. Create controls consistent with LG&E’s Code of Conduct to ensure that
there is no exchange of market information stemming from joint trading
meetings for WMF and affiliated power marketing personnel.

7. Conduct an independent review by the internal audit department or an
outside auditing firm when the new EMS is implemented in 2006 to ensure
that there is no improper or unauthorized EMS screen access.

8. LG&E shall submit all controls to OE for approval within 30 days of
issuance of a Final Audit Report in this docket. Also, LG&E shall submit
the results of the independent review of the EMS to OE within 30 days after
implementing its new EMS or issuance of a Final Audit Report in this
docket, whichever is later.

Actions Already Taken by LG&E

After we discussed our concerns with LG&E about joint trading meetings between
WMF and LEM, LG&E changed the agenda of the monthly trading meetings starting in
June 2005. The agenda was altered so that the presentation about WMF’s OSS is not
made until later in the meeting, after LEM employees have left the meeting. In addition,
beginning in December 2005, LG&E adopted certain process changes, including the
requirement that the CCO or his designee attend all joint WMF and LEM meetings, and
maintain a high-level agenda and/or minutes of each meeting.

I.G&E implemented unique user accounts and passwords for its current GE/Harris

EMS in February 2004. LG&E is currently developing, installing and testing a new EMS
that should be operational in 2006.

14
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3. Posting of Information on Sales to Affiliates at Market-Based Rates

LG&E’s EBB was inaccessible to non-affiliated market participants, and the
information on the EBB was not consistent with Commission requirements. The EBB
would have been difficult for non-affiliate market participants to find, given that for some
period of time it was located on a website of an LG&E affiliate that was not a party to
affiliate sales. In addition, for some period of time it may not have been accessible over
the internet. Moreover, the information and timing on offers to sell and actual sales to
affiliates were not consistent with the specific requirements in LG&E’s Code of Conduct.

Pertinent Guidance

On January 29, 1999, LG&E petitioned the Commission for blanket authority to
authorize the Utilities, i.e., LG&E’s WMF, to sell energy at market-based rates to their
power marketing affiliates. Acknowledging the Commission’s concern about protecting
captive ratepayers from subsidizing affiliate marketing operations, LG&E committed to
adopt the safeguards the Commission approved in Detroit Edison Company. '

To implement these safeguards, LG&E amended its Code of Conduct to add the
following requirements: “The Utilities will sell power to the Marketers at a rate that is no
lower than the rate the Utilities charge to nonaffiliates; simultaneously with making an
offer to sell power to the Marketers, the Utilities will make the same offer to nonaffiliates
through a posting on their electronic bulletin board (“EBB”); and simultaneously with the
striking of a power sales transaction with the Marketers, the Utilities will post the actual
price paid on their EBB.""

Discussion

Accessibility of EBB Information to Market Participants

We sought to create a timeline for LG&E’s EBB. LG&E’s WMF made energy
sales at market-based rates to LEM from 1999 through the Spring of 2005, but we could
not confirm that the information posted on such sales was accessible to market
participants. Based on the documentation provided to us by LG&E:

e From 1999 through December 2003, the sales information was posted on an EBB
website for LG&E Power, one of LG&E’s affiliated power marketers.

12 80 FERC 9 61,348 (1997).

13 Docket No. ER99-1623-000, Compliance Filing of Louisville Gas and Electric
Company and Kentucky Utilities Company, filed March 4, 1999, at 2.

15
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e In December 2003, the EBB containing the sales information migrated from the
LG&E Power website to the LG&E Energy website.

e In April 2005, LG&E provided us the website address for the EBB,
http://apps.lgeenergy.com/fercgen/gensales.asp. When we tried to access the EBB
at this address, the page would not display. We subsequently asked LG&E how to
access the EBB. On May 4, 2005, the internet address on LG&E Energy’s website
worked. We asked LG&E when this link to the EBB was made operational;
LG&E informed us that it was made operational on May 1, 2005.

LG&E stated that other than LG&E’s filing made in 1999 revising its Code of
Conduct to post affiliate transactions on an EBB, it could not recall any occasions where
it publicized the existence of the EBB. LG&E, however, could not recall a single
instance when a market participant had inquired about any posting on the EBB.

Posted Offers to Sell on the EBB

LG&E’s Code of Conduct required LG&E to make a simultaneous offer on the
EBB to sell to non-affiliates the same product it was offering to sell to its affiliate. We
concluded that the posting of offers to sell on the EBB were not consistent with the
requirements of LG&E’s Code of Conduct.

We reviewed archived EBB data for the audit period. Typically, each month on
the first of the month, LG&E’s WMF would post on the EBB an offer to sell a block of
energy on an hourly basis. This monthly posting was at an asking price of $12/MWh for
virtually every month that a monthly offer was posted. LG&E stated that the asking price
was set at $12/MWh in order to induce counterparties to enter negotiations to purchase
from LG&E’s WMF.

We reviewed LG&E’s variable costs on a generator-by-generator basis. Although
prices of coal and other inputs changed over the course of the period that LG&E posted
offers on the EBB, we concluded that had LG&E sold energy at $12/MWh during any
hour during which it posted an asking price of $12/MWh, it would have been selling
energy at a price less than its incremental cost. Moreover, our review of the EBB shows
that WMF never sold energy to LEM at a price of $12/MWh or less. LG&E’s strategy of
posting an asking price of $12/MWh did not satisfy the Code of Conduct requirements to
simultaneously offer hourly energy to non-affiliated market participants at the same price
that it would offer such energy to its affiliate.

16
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Prices of Affiliate Sales

We evaluated whether the prices at which WMF sold energy to LEM were
consistent with the requirements of LG&E’s Code of Conduct, i.e., at a rate that is no
lower than the rate that WMF sold to non-affiliated buyers. LG&E had no written
procedures or other controls for its WMF traders to follow to determine an appropriate
market price at which the WMF would sell to LEM. LG&E’s WMF traders established
the market price through telephone queries and broker quotes prior to negotiating a next-
hour energy sale to LEM. We listened to recorded phone calls during hours in which
WMF traders sold energy to LEM. We found no evidence that WMF traders sold energy
to LEM at prices less than the market price in accordance with LG&E’s Code of
Conduct. However, when we reviewed the recorded phone calls, we found that WMF
traders did not generally employ strong controls to establish the market price.

EBB Postings in 2001

We had specific concerns whether LG&E was properly using the EBB to post
offers and sales from WMF to LEM to support a long-term sales obligation LEM had
with Morgan Stanley, specifically affiliate sales in 2001. Based on the data provided to
us by LG&E, we found the following EBB posting errors:

e WMF sold to LEM 50 MWh of energy during each off-peak hour during the
month of May 2001 without posting offers or transactions on the EBB. We
estimated these energy sales in May 2001 to total nearly 20,000 MWh, and to
have generated revenues of approximately $500,000.

¢ LG&E failed to post on the EBB offers or transactions when WMF sold energy to
LEM to support LEM’s sales to Morgan Stanley for an additional 10 days during
calendar year 2001.

Recommendations

We recommend that LG&E:

9. Develop written procedures regarding the use of its EBB. Specifically, the
written procedures should address how LG&E will ensure that the price at
which it sells energy to its affiliate is no lower than the price at which it
sells to non-affiliates, and how LG&E will post offers and sales on the EBB
to make the information available to other market participants to
demonstrate that its affiliate sales are at non-preferential prices.

17
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10.  Develop a plan to ensure that the EBB is fully accessible, and that market
participants know where to find the EBB on the LG&E website.

11.  LG&E shall submit all procedures and plans to OE for approval within 30
days of issuance of a Final Audit Report in this docket.

Actions Already Taken by LG&E

We had numerous discussions with LG&E about the accessibility and
effectiveness of its EBB postings. As of January 2006, LG&E had a link from its
corporate website to the EBB. In addition, LG&E presented us plans for making the
information posted on the EBB consistent with LG&E’s Code of Conduct. LG&E has
agreed to finalize these plans and to develop written procedures to guide trading staff on
the use of the EBB within 30 days of the issuance of a Final Audit Report in this docket.

138
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IV. STANDARDS OF CONDUCT FINDINGS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

4. Disclosures of Transmission and Customer Information
LG&E transmission employees improperly disclosed transmission and customer
information to employees of its WMF that was not contemporaneously available to the

public, and failed to post the information disclosure on OASIS.

Pertinent Guidance'*

A Transmission Provider must ensure that any employee of the Marketing or
Energy Affiliate is prohibited from obtaining information about the Transmission
Provider‘s transmission system through access to information not posted on the OASIS or
Internet website or that is not otherwise also available to the general public without
restriction.'®

An employee of the Transmission Provider may not disclose to its Marketing or
Energy Affiliates any information concerning the transmission system of the
Transmission Provider or the transmission system of another through non-public
communications conducted off the OASIS or Internet website, through access to
information not posted on the OASIS or Internet website that is not contemporaneously
available to the public, or through information on the OASIS or Internet website that is
not at the same time publicly available.'®

A Transmission Provider may not share any information, acquired from non-
affiliated transmission customers or potential non-affiliated transmission customers, or
developed in the course of responding to requests for transmission or ancillary service on
the OASIS or Internet website, with employees of its Marketing or Energy Affiliates,

' Some of the incidents supporting this finding occurred under the former Order
No. 889 Standards of Conduct requirements, i.e., Part 37 requirements pre-September 22,
2004, Part 358 requirements thereafter. There are no significant differences in the
specific requirements of Part 37 and Part 358 that bear upon the finding that LG&E
improperly disclosed transmission and customer load information.

1518 C.F.R. § 358.5(a)(2) (2005).

1618 C.F.R. § 358.5(b)(1) (2005).
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except to the limited extent information is required to be posted on the OASIS or Internet
website in response to a request for transmission service or ancillary services."’

If an employee of the Transmission Provider discloses information in a manner
contrary to the requirements of sections 358.5(b)(1) and (2), the Transmission Provider
must immediately post such information on the OASIS or Internet Web site.'®

Also, LG&E’s posted implementation procedures provided that “any person
with knowledge or concerns regarding activities that may have resulted, or could result,
in a violation of the Standards of Conduct and/or Standards of Conduct Written
Procedures is strongly encouraged, expected, and required to report them to the CCO
without delay.”

Discussion

Disclosures of Transmission Information by Telephone

On at least three occasions, once in May, 2004 and twice in November, 2004
LG&E transmission employees disclosed transmission line loading and operating status
information to LG&E generation dispatchers during the course of generation re-dispatch
events. LG&E’s generation dispatch function is organizationally and functionally within
its marketing business unit; therefore generation dispatch personnel are Energy and
Marketing Affiliate employees.”® In each instance, the transmission information was
disclosed through non-public communication.

LG&E identified three calls involving the disclosure of non-public transmission
information relating to the loading of, line operational status, or redispatch or switching
relief options for the 345 kV line Smith — Hardin County; 138 kV line Paddys Run —
Paddys West; and 138 kV line Cane Run 6 — Cane Run Switching. LG&E acknowledged
that the disclosed transmission information was not otherwise available to market
participants through OASIS or other sources at the time that it was disclosed. We

1718 C.F.R. § 358.5(b)(2) (2005).
1818 C.F.R. § 358.5(b)(3) (2005).

1 The manager of generation dispatch reports to the Director of Trading who
reports to the Senior Vice President for Energy Marketing. The generation dispatch desk
is on the trading floor, located next to the workstation used by LG&E’s real-time traders.
Moreover, on occasion, LG&E’s generation dispatchers talked to potential energy buyers
and sellers on the phone and made trades if no one else on the trading floor was available
to do so.
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reviewed the disclosed information and determined that its disclosure to generation
dispatch personnel was not necessary to ensure reliability and hence is not exempt under
18 C.F.R. § 358.5(b)(6) (2005). LG&E confirmed that the transmission information
disclosed was not shared with traders, and there were no trades made by generation
dispatchers in the hours subsequent to the disclosure of transmission information.

LG&E’s generation dispatchers received Standards of Conduct training, and had
available to them LG&E’s Standards of Conduct implementation procedures, which
required that improper disclosures of non-public transmission information be reported to
the CCO. The generation dispatch employee did not disclose the incidents to anyone,
including the CCO, so the disclosures were not posted on LG&E’s OASIS after they
occurred.

Disclosure of Transmission Information at a Meeting Attended by Transmission
and Marketing Employees

During the audit period, we identified one meeting in which transmission
personnel and marketing personnel were present at which LG&E transmission personnel
disclosed non-public information regarding the status of two transmission projects.
LG&E did not subsequently post the disclosures on its OASIS. At a Long Term Planning
meeting that the SVP of Energy Marketing attended, the Director of Transmission
discussed two transmission projects, providing information that was not publicly
available in the Midwest ISO Transmission Expansion Plans (“MTEP”). These Projects
were a 138/69kV transformer at VA City — Clinch River, which was a new
interconnection tie-line between LG&E and American Electric Power Company, Inc.,
and a 138/69kV transformer at Paris substation, which was a reinforcement of the
existing tie-line between LG&E and East Kentucky Power Cooperative. Each of the
- above two proposed projects would increase the transmission capacity between LG&E
and the adjacent control area. LG&E did not post in a timely manner the disclosure on
the OASIS after it occurred. We found no evidence that LG&E’s Energy or Marketing
Affiliates traded on this information.

Disclosure of Customer Load Data by E-Mail

On the first of the month, on a monthly basis through February 2005, a
transmission employee e-mailed a marketing employee specific, non-public customer
load information and failed to post in a timely manner the disclosures on OASIS.? Prior

® In Allegheny Power Service Corporation et al, (Allegheny) the Commission
stated that the WMF may have access to control area load and not the specific load of
third-party transmission customers within the same control area. See Allegheny, 84
FERC § 61,131 at 61,729 (1998).

21



Docket No. PA05-9-000

to August 1, 2003, the e-mails identified the date, time and LG&E’s control area peak
load, and load for the same date and time for LG&E, Hoosier Energy, Owensboro
Municipal Utilities, Tennessee Valley Authority, and East Kentucky Power Cooperative.
Beginning August 1, 2003 and continuing through February 1, 2005, the e-mails added
the customer’s monthly energy usage, peak load and load factor.”’ LG&E acknowledged
that this information was not publicly available. Knowledge of specific third-party load
information could have been used to the advantage of LG&E’s traders, although we
found no evidence that this occurred.

Recommendations

We recommend that LG&E:

12.

13.

14.

15.

Post OASIS notices for all of the disclosures of non-public transmission
information by LG&E’s transmission function employees identified in this
Audit Report. These postings should include the date, time, type of
information disclosed, and other pertinent information.

Create and implement controls to prevent prospectively the disclosure of
non-public transmission information to marketing employees performing
generation dispatch functions and controls to ensure that any subsequent
disclosure(s) are posted on OASIS consistent with Commission regulations.
Such controls need to emphasize LG&E’s policy that all concerns related to
the Standards of Conduct should be brought to the attention of the CCO.

Create and implement controls to prevent prospectively the disclosure of
non-public transmission information during meetings attended by both
transmission and marketing employees, and controls to ensure that any
subsequent disclosure(s) are posted on OASIS consistent with Commission
regulations. Such controls need to emphasize LG&E’s policy that all
concerns related to the Standards of Conduct should be brought to the
attention of the CCO.

Perform a review of all transmission and customer information shared
through e-mail distribution in order to ensure that such information is not
inappropriately shared with LG&E’s Marketing and Energy Affiliate
employees.

2 The load factor represents the ratio of the average load over a designated period
of time to the peak load occurring during that period.
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16. LG&E shall submit all controls and the results of its email distribution
review to OE for approval within 30 days of issuance of a Final Audit
Report in this docket.

Actions Already Taken by LG&E

We discussed our concerns about the disclosure of transmission and customer
information. LG&E informed us that it is developing process changes for addressing our
concerns on a prospective basis, and that ultimately the process changes would be
converted into formal written policies within 30 days of issuance of a Final Audit Report
in this docket.
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5. Standards of Conduct Training

LG&E’s Standards of Conduct training program was inconsistent with
Commission regulations and LG&E’s own training implementation plans—more than
one year after the effective date of Order No. 2004 (i.e., 9/22/04), LG&E had failed to
provide Standards of Conduct training for several hundred of the employees LG&E was
required to train.

Pertinent Guidance

Order No. 2004 codified the training requirement as follows: “Transmission
Providers shall train officers and directors as well as employees with access to
transmission information or information concerning gas or electric purchases, sales, or
marketing functions. The Transmission Provider shall require each employee to sign a
document or certify electronically signifying that s/he has participated in the training.” %
Moreover, training was to be completed by the implementation date of Order No. 2004:

“Each Transmission Provider must be in full compliance with the standards of conduct by
September 22, 2004.”%

Order No. 2004 required a Transmission Provider to post its implementation
procedures on its OASIS or website, specifically requiring that Transmission Providers
“must explain...whether employees have been offered training on the standards of
conduct, and whether employees are required to read and sign acknowledgement
forms.”** LG&E’s posted implementation procedures have limited detail on its training
program. LG&E directed us to an internal company training plan, which states (in part):

o All affected Company Personnel as well as employees of Energy and Marketing
Affiliates (i.e....except clerical, maintenance and field personnel) shall receive

Standards of Conduct training prior to the September 22, 2004 implementation
date.

e The initial Standards of Conduct training shall be conducted through interactive
training programs developed and prepared by the Edison Electric Institute.?

22 18 C.F.R. § 358.4(e)(5) (2005).
2 18 C.F.R. § 358.4(e)(2) (2005).
M FERC Stats. & Regs, Regulations Preambles 9 31,155 at P 136.

25 “FERC Standards of Conduct, Order Nos. 2004, 2004-A, 2004-B, Training plan,
August 19, 2004, Overview.”
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Discussion

We reviewed LG&E’s training program and compared it to the requirements in
Order No. 2004, as well as LG&E’s training plan. We concluded that LG&E did not
provide training to all employees requiring training. As of November 2005, more than
one year after the September 22, 2004 implementation date of Order No. 2004, LG&E
had not provided training to all employees that fall under the definition of employees who
needed to be trained, i.e., “employees with access to transmission information or
information concerning gas or electric purchases, sales, or marketing functions.”2¢

We could not determine the exact number of employees that required, but had not
received, training. Employees that required Standards of Conduct training but did not
receive training included:

e A handful of employees of the service company, e.g., in business units such as
Audit Services and Legal;

e Approximately 100 shared service employees, in business units such as Planning
& Control;

e As many as 2,000 employees at LG&E-owned transmission and generation
facilities, who had no training other than notification that new Standards of
Conduct were in effect.”

We discussed with LG&E the need to determine whether the employees in these
business units have access to information concerning gas or electric purchases, sales or
marketing functions that would trigger a training requirement under 18 C.F.R. §
358.4(e)(5) (2005), and when they do, to ensure that they have Standards of Conduct

%6 18 C.F.R. § 358.4(e)(5) (2005).

77 LG&E designated these employees as field and maintenance personnel and as
such did not provide training to them. But the training requirement in Order No. 2004
does not hinge on whether employees are designated as field and maintenance personnel,
but rather whether an employee has access to non-public transmission information or
information concerning gas or electric purchases, sales or marketing functions. LG&E
told us it did not make this determination with respect to its field and maintenance
personnel. As such, we could not determine how many of these employees should have
received training. LG&E did not assert that these employees did not have access to non-
public transmission information or information concerning gas or electric purchases,
sales or marketing functions.

25



Docket No. PA05-9-000

training. LG&E agreed to review its training program, specifically to identify the
additional employees that should have received training.

Recommendations

We recommend that LG&E:

17. Strengthen the implementation of its training program to ensure that on a
going-forward basis, its training program is consistent with Commission
requirements and its internal training plans.

18.  Develop written procedures to ensure that new employees, and transferring
employees that require training, receive training.

19. Conduct a review to ensure that all of the employees that have “access to
transmission information or information concerning gas or electric
purchases, sales, or marketing functions...” are scheduled for training, have
received training, and are certified.

20. LG&E shall submit all changes to the implementation of its training
program and procedures developed to OE for approval within 30 days of
issuance of a Final Audit Report in this docket. Also, LG&E shall submit
the results of its review of employee access to information within 30 days
after issuance of a Final Audit Report in this docket.

Actions Already Taken by LG&E

We discussed LG&E’s training program with the CCO, and other LG&E officials.
On November 10, 2005, LG&E submitted a letter to us outlining an enhanced training
program. We reviewed LG&E’s plan and found it to be consistent with the requirements
of Order No. 2004, the audit findings, and our recommended remedies.

LG&E proposed to require training for all LG&E employees who fall within the
definition in 18 C.F.R. § 358.4(e)(5) (2005). LG&E proposed to use the EEI computer-
based Training Program, including the certification of training completion. For
employees without internet access, a paper version of the training program will be used
for the training. LG&E informed us on January 11, 2006, that as of that date, it had
increased the number of LG&E employees who had received training by 80%, from
approximately 600 employees to approximately 1100 employees.
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6. Controls Used to Limit Access to System Control Centers

LG&E did not follow its posted implementation procedures to control and track
access of its marketing employees to LG&E’s two system control centers, including the
requirement that LG&E marketing employees obtain permission from the CCO before
visiting the system control centers.

Pertinent Guidance

Order No. 2004 requires that a Transmission Provider’s employees engaged in
transmission system operations “must function independent from employees of its
Marketing and Energy Affiliates.”®® Specifically, a Transmission Provider is prohibited
from permitting the employees of its Marketing or Energy Affiliates from “having access
to the system control center or similar facilities used for transmission operations or
reliability functions that differs in any way from the access available to other
transmission customers.”*

LG&E’s posted implementation procedures provide that LG&E marketing
employees must obtain permission from the CCO before visiting the system control
centers: “The Chief Compliance Officer shall maintain a written record of each such
decision for inspection upon request by the Commission.”*

LG&E’s posted implementation procedures also prescribe access control to the
system control centers.

The Companies shall maintain a written log book at each Transmission System
Operating Center for purposes of documenting the instances in which a
transmission customer, whether an employee(s) of an Energy and/or Marketing
Affiliate or a representative(s) of an unaffiliated third-party, visited these facilities.
The written log book should contain the: (1) name of the transmission customer;
(2) the date and time of the visit; and (3) the Transmission Function Employee(s)

% 18 C.F.R. § 358.2(a) (2005).
2 18 C.F.R. § 358.4(a)(3)(ii) (2005).
3 «Joint Written Procedures Implementing Standards of Conduct for Transmission

Providers as Adopted by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission in Order No. 2004,
Effective September 22, 2004” Section IV.A.2.b.

27



Docket No. PA05-9-000

or other Company Personnel hosting the transmission customer; (4) whether the
transmission customer is an affiliate; and (5) purpose for the visit.*'

Discussion

LG&E operates two separate system control centers. One control center, called
Waterside, is located in Louisville, KY, in a building approximately two blocks from the
LG&E corporate headquarters. The other control center, called Dix Dam, is located in
Burgin, K, at the site of the Dix Dam generating facility.

LG&E used card key access to restrict direct access to its system control centers.
However, we found a number of problems with the controls employed to track access of

visitors (including LG&E marketing employees) to LG&E’s system control centers.

CCO Permission to Visit the System Control Centers

LG&E’s posted impiementation procedures provide that LG&E marketing
employees should submit a written request to the CCO prior to visiting either one of the
system control centers. Based on our review of the Waterside log sheets, on at least five
occasions, two LG&E employees with marketing or marketing-related responsibilities
visited the Waterside facility after September 22, 2004.** The CCO told us that there was
no record that marketing employees had sought permission to enter the control centers,
and no record of CCO approval of such requests.

Controls on Visitors Entering the System Control Centers

The written log books controlling visitors to the system control centers were
inconsistent with LG&E’s posted implementation procedures. The logs did not collect
some pertinent information that LG&E’s implementation procedures required. Many of
the entries on the log sheets were unintelligible to us, and some of these entries were
unintelligible to LG&E personnel as well. As a result, we could not determine the full
extent to which LG&E marketing employees (and non-affiliated transmission custome:s)
had access to the system control centers and could not determine whether LG&E

N d

32 One of the employees was the manager of the generation dispatch function,
which staff established was part of the marketing function. The other was the manager of
market policy—the position description for this individual said his department was
responsible for monitoring and analyzing emerging electric markets and educating
Energy Marketing staff on the implications of new market operations.
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marketing employees had access in any way that differed from the access provided to
non-affiliated transmission customers.

Access to Transmission Information Once Inside the System Control Centers

At both the Waterside and Dix facilities, a visitor standing at the door to the
control centers had a line of sight into the control room, and was able to see transmission
status information. This concern is heightened because of the relatively large number of
LG&E marketing employees that visited a system control center. For example, our
review of log sheets indicated that in the two year period prior to implementation of
Order No. 2004, LG&E marketing employees may have made as many as 50 separate
visits to the Waterside facility.

Recommendations

We recommend that LG&E:

21.  Review and strengthen its system control center access procedures to
ensure that its control procedures: (a) adhere to its own posted
implementation procedures as it relates to CCO permission to visit control
centers and maintenance of log books; (b) are followed by LG&E
employees including the CCO and CCO designees; and (c) are certified in
compliance with Order No. 2004 and LG&E’s posted implementation
procedures. LG&E shall submit all procedures to OE for approval within
30 days of issuance of a Final Audit Report in this docket.

22.  Ensure that the entrances into the Waterside control room and Dix Dam
control room are such that a visitor that enters the Waterside and Dix Dam
facilities does not have a line of sight into the control rooms or to any
workstations displaying data on transmission status.

Actions Already Taken by LG&E

LG&E informed us that on January 10, 2006, it revised its website to notify LG&E
marketing employees that require access to the system control centers to seek written
permission before each visit from the CCO. In addition, LG&E indicated that no later
than January 13, 2006, the log books would be updated to conform to LG&E’s posted
implementation procedures, and temporary covers would be installed on all windows and
doors that allow a line of sight into the system control centers.
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7. Organizational Charts

LG&E’s posted corporate and functional organizational charts (as of April 2005)
failed to include or accurately show: detailed organizational charts for business units
engaged in the sales function; the position of its Marketing and Energy Affiliates within
the corporate structure; and sufficient detail to indicate that LG&E’s service company is
the employment mechanism for the Marketing and Energy Affiliates and the
Transmission Provider.

Pertinent Guidance
The Order No. 2004 requirements for posting organizational charts provide that:

(3) A Transmission Provider must post comprehensive organizational charts
showing:

(i) The organizational structure of the parent corporation with the relative
position in the corporate structure of the Transmission Provider,
Marketing and Energy Affiliates;

(ii))  For the Transmission Provider, the business units, job titles and
descriptions, and chain of command for all positions, including officers
and directors, with the exception of clerical, maintenance, and field
positions. The job titles and descriptions must include the employee’s
title, the employee’s duties, whether the employee is involved in
transmission or sales, and the name of the supervisory employees who
manage non-clerical employees involved in transmission or sales.

Further, Order Nos. 2004-A and 2004-B requires:

If a corporation uses a service company as the employment mechanism for the
Transmission Provider and its Marketing or Energy Affiliates, the organizational
charts should clearly specify those circumstances. Similarly, if a corporation uses
both functional and structural organizational charts for its management, the
organizational charts must accurately reflect its operations... 3

With respect to whether a detailed organizational chart is also required for a
service company, the answer depends on the functions that the service company is

33 FERC Stats. & Regs, Regulations Preambles § 31,161 at P 163.
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performing. If the service company is performing transmission functions,
additional detail is required.**

Discussion

LG&E’s posted several organizational charts on its website at
hitp:/Igeenergy.com/regulatory/soc.asp™ which showed a high-level organizational
structure, including the holding company which owns LG&E Energy L1.C, and the legal
entities under LG&E Energy LLC, including notably: the operating companies (Kentucky
Utilities Company and Louisville Gas and Electric Company); the service company
(LG&E Energy Services, Inc.); and an LG&E marketing affiliate (LG&E Energy
Marketing Inc., or LEM).

Additional posted organizational charts showed some -—but not all— of the
business units of the service company. The organizational charts showed a Senior Vice
President (SVP) for Energy Services, with the following direct reports: Director of
Transmission; SVP for Energy Marketing; VP for Regulated Generation; and VP Power
Operations for Western Kentucky Energy.

However, the only business unit for which detailed organizational charts, job titles,
chains of command, and job descriptions were posted was the Director of Transmission.
Such detailed information was not posted for the sales functions, i.e., the SVP for Energy
Marketing, VP for Regulated Generation, and VP Power Operations for Western
Kentucky Energy. The sales functions under the SVP for Energy Marketing included the
following business units: Director of Trading; Director of Market Analysis & Valuation;
Director of Non-Utility Marketing; Manager of Operations Analysis and System
Implementation; Director of Corporate Fuels & By-Products; and Director of Business
Information.

In addition, the posted organizational charts did not show the relative position in
the corporate structure of all of LG&E’s Marketing and Energy affiliates and did not
clearly indicate that LG&E’s service company is the employment mechanism for its
Marketing and Energy Affiliates and Transmission Provider. For example:

e LG&E’s postings showed one of LG&E’s Marketing and Energy Affiliates, i.e.,
LG&E Energy Marketing Inc. (LEM), as a separate corporate entity, but did not
clearly indicate that LEM employees are in the service company along with
transmission function employees; and

3 FERC Stats. & Regs, Regulations Preambles § 31,166 at »P 79.

% We reviewed the organization charts on April 5, 2005.
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o LG&E’s postings failed to show what position another Marketing and Energy
Affiliate, LG&E Power Services LLC, occupied within the corporate structure.

Recommendations
We recommend that LG&E:

23.  Post organizational charts and employee information showing the required
information for all of the business units engaged in the sales function.

24.  Revise its organizational chart postings to show the position of all Energy
and Marketing Affiliates within the corporate structure.

25.  Revise its organizational chart posting to clearly show that LG&E uses its
service company as the employment mechanism for the Transmission
Provider and its Energy and Marketing Affiliates. All postings shall be
made within 7 business days of the issuance of a Final Audit Report in this
docket, consistent with 18 C.F.R. § 358.4(b)(3)(iv) (2005).

Actions Already Taken by LG&E

After discussions with us, LG&E updated its posted organizational charts. We
reviewed LG&E’s organizational charts in January 2006, and found the revised
organizational charts included more, but not all, of the information required under 18
C.F.R. § 358.4(b)(3) (2005).
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8. Shared Facilities

LG&E did not post a list of the facilities shared by the Transmission Provider and
LG&E’s Marketing and Energy Affiliates as required by 18 C.F.R. § 358.4(b)(2) (2005).

Pertinent Guidance

The Commission’s regulations state: “A Transmission Provider must post on its
OASIS or Internet website, as applicable, a complete list of the facilities shared by the
Transmission Provider and its Marketing and Energy Affiliates, including the types of
facilities shared and their addresses.”*® This requires that when a Transmission
Provider’s Marketing and Energy Affiliates share facilities with any function of the

Transmission Provider whose employees have access to transmission information, those
shared facilities must be posted.”’

Discussion

LG&E’s Order No. 2004 information posted on its internet website in April 2005

stated: “At this time, no facilities are shared between the Transmission Provider and its
Marketing and Energy Affiliates”.

LG&E believed that it was required to post a list of shared facilities only if its
transmission function shares facilities with its Marketing and Energy Affiliates. Since
LG&E’s transmission function is housed in two buildings (the Waterside control center
and the Dix Dam control center) that otherwise do not house other LG&E business units,

LG&E informed us that it did not believe it had any shared facilities that required
posting.

% 18 C.F.R. § 358.4(b)(2) (2005).

37 Transmission Provider is defined as follows in 18 C.F.R. § 358.3 (2005):

(a) Transmission Provider means:

(1) Any public utility that owns, operates or controls facilities used for the
transmission of electric energy in interstate commerce; or

(2) Any interstate natural gas pipeline that transports gas for others pursuant to
subpart A of part 157 or subparts B or G of part 284 of this chapter.

(3) A Transmission Provider does not include a natural gas storage provider
authorized to charge market-based rates that is not interconnected with the jurisdictional
facilities of any affiliated interstate natural gas pipeline, has no exclusive franchise area,
no captive rate payers and no market power.
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Virtually all of LG&E's shared service employees (many of whom have access to
transmission information) occupied the same building as LG&E’s two primary Marketing
and Energy Affiliates, i.e., LG&E’s WMF, and LG&E’s principal affiliated power
marketer (LEM). When we pointed out to LG&E that shared service employees with
access to transmission information and the Marketing and Energy affiliate employees
share facilities which trigger a posting requirement, LG&E agreed to revise its posting to
ensure that it is consistent with 18 C.F.R. § 358.4(b)(2) (2005).

Recommendation
We recommend that LG&E:

26.  Revise its shared facilities posting to include all facilities that LG&E’s
Marketing and Energy Affiliates share with service employees who have
access to non-public transmission information.

Actions Already Taken by LG&E

After discussions with us, LG&E revised its posting with respect to shared
facilities on December 13, 2005. We reviewed the revised posting in January 2006 and
found that the revised posting is not consistent with the Commission’s requirements.
Specifically, LG&E has not identified the facilities its Marketing and Energy Affiliates
share with other LG&E functions that have access to non-public transmission
information.
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V. MARKET-BASED RATE TARIFF FINDING AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

9. Electric Quarterly Report Inaccuracies

LG&E’s Electric Quarterly Report (EQR) filing for the first quarter of 2005
contained inaccurate information for its market-based rate sales. LG&E inaccurately
reported several sales transactions from its WMF to its affiliated power marketer (LEM)
and reported invalid Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS) numbers for several
other customers.

Pertinent Guidance

Order No. 2001 *® provided field names for the specified information required to
be filed for the EQR: transaction begin date and transaction end date fields are provided
for reporting the date and hour the transaction began and ended, increment peaking name

field for reporting full period (FP), Peak (P), and Off-peak (OP), and class name field for
~ reporting non-firm (NF) and firm (FP) power sales. Order No. 2001 also required the
reporting of DUNS numbers for all customers in the EQR, making the power sale and the
transmission reporting requirements consistent and reducing possible confusion among
similarly named, but different, providers of service.

Discussion

We reviewed a sample of LG&E’s EQR filing specifically for the first quarter of
2005. We found that LG&E inaccurately reported sales transactions to LEM and

reported invalid Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS) numbers for several other
customers.

LG&E reported two “around the clock” sales to LEM on February 24, 2005
(transaction_unique_identifier 2005003000) and February 25, 2005
(transaction_unique_identifier 2005003080). LG&E sold 52 megawatts to LEM in each
hour in Transaction 2005003000 for $47.00 during the peak period and $31.00 during the
off-peak period. LG&E sold 104 megawatts to LEM in each hour in Transaction

% Revised Public Utility Filing Requirements, Order No. 2001, FERC Stats. &
Regs., Regulations Preambles, § 31,127 (2002), order on reh’g, Order No. 2001-A, 100
FERC 4 61,074 (2002), order on reconsideration and clarification, Order No. 2001-B,
100 FERC 9 61,342 (2002); Order No. 2001-C, 101 FERC § 61,314 (2002); Order No.
2001-D, 102 FERC 9 61,334 (2003); Order No. 2001-E, 105 FERC 4 61,352 (2003);
Order No. 2001-F, 106 FERC ¥ 61,060 (2004).
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2005003080 for $51.50 during the peak period and $31.50 during the off-peak period.
LG&E reported the off-peak period of both transactions as beginning at 12:00 AM and
ending at 11:59 PM and assigned the increment peaking name as “FP” or full period
rather than “OP” or off-peak. LG&E reported the peak period of these transactions as
beginning at 7:00 AM and ending at 10:59 PM and assigned the increment peaking name
as “FP” or full period rather than “P” or peak.

LG&E’s EQR filing included 34 unique transaction identifiers where it sold
energy to LEM and reported the class name of the energy sold as “NF” or non-firm.
LG&E’s Code of Conduct also required these sales to LEM to be posted on an EBB
where LG&E reported these same sales transactions as system firm sales. When we

asked LG&E to explain the discrepancy, it explained that the EQR data showing the sales
as non-firm was incorrect.

LG&E reported 10 invalid DUNS numbers in its EQR for the 1st quarter 2005 for
the following customers: Barbourville Water & Electric, Bardstown Municipal Light &
Water, Bardwell City Utilities, Benham Electric System, City of Madisonville, City of
Paris Cémbines Utilities, El Paso Merchant Energy L.P., El Paso Merchant Energy, LP,
Owensboro Municipal Utilities, and Rainbow Energy Marketing Corp..

Recommendations

We recommend that LG&E:

27.  Strengthen its written procedures to ensure all data reported in future EQR
filings are in compliance with Commission regulations and reflect the
correction of the errors and inconsistencies identified in this Audit Report.

28.  Implement procedures to validate all customer DUNS numbers.

29. Refile all EQR reports from inception to correct the increment peaking
name and the class name of power it sold to LEM.

30. LG&E shall submit all procedures to OE for approval within 30 days of
issuance of a Final Audit Report in this docket.

Actions Already Taken by LG&E

LG&E advised us that it would be making corrections to its EQR filings, and that
such corrections were made on January 31, 2006. We expect that the revised written

procedures on EQR filings will be addressed by LG&E in its implementation plan in
response to this Audit Report.

36



Docket No. PA05-9-000

VI. IMPLEMENTATION PLAN

We recommended that LG&E submit an implementation plan to the audit staff for
our approval detailing LG&E’s plans to comply fully with the findings and
recommendations in this Audit Report. The implementation plan should describe the
actions LG&E has already taken, and will take, that are consistent with and
complementary to any future structural and organizational changes that LG&E may
undertake.

The implementation plan should be submitted within 30 days of issuance of a
Final Audit Report in this docket. In addition, LG&E shall make quarterly filings
updating the audit staff of its progress on implementing the plan. The filings shall be
made no later than 30 days after the end of each calendar quarter, beginning with the first
quarter after this audit report is issued, and continuing until all the corrective actions are
completed.
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June 29, 2006

Mr. Bryan Craig, Director

Division of Audits

Office of Enforcement

Federal Energy Regulatory Commission
888 First Street, NE

Washington, DC 20426

RE:  Louisville Gas and Electric Company, Kentucky Utilities Company
Docket No. PA05-9-000

Dear Mr. Craig:

This letter sets forth the response of Louisville Gas and Electric Company (“LG&E”) and
Kentucky Utilities Company (“KU”) (collectively, the “Companies™) to the draft audit report issued by
the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission’s (“FERC” or the “Commission”), Office of Enforcement,
Division of Audits (“FERC Audit Staff’) on June 14, 2006, in the above referenced docket (“Draft Audit
Report”). As requested, this response addresses: (1) whether the Companies agree or disagree with each
finding and recommendation set forth in the Draft Audit Report; and (2) the corrective actions planned,
or taken, and target completion dates.

L INTRODUCTION.

The Companies agree with the findings and recommendations set forth in the Draft Audit Report.
Further, the Companies appreciate the opportunity to respond to the Draft Audit Report. Encouraging,
facilitating, and maintaining on-going compliance with Commission’s regulatory initiatives and
requirements is of the highest prionty to the Companies and consistent with the core values and
behaviors of E.ON U.S. LLC and its parent, E.ON AG. The operational audit of the Companies’
compliance with the Standards of Conduct, the Companies’ Market-Based Rate Tariffs, Market-Based
Rate Tariff Code of Conduct (“LG&E Code of Conduct”), and the Open Access Transmission Tariff of
the Midwest Independent Transmission System Operator, Inc. (collectively, “Audit Items™) has been
beneficial for the Companies as the audit process revealed several areas in which the Companies could
improve their existing processes and methods.

During the course of the audit, and as discussed here, the Companies have taken and will
continue to take substantial steps to improve their compliance. The Companies are committed to
implementing and maintaining a comprehensive internal FERC compliance program as suggested in the



recent Policy Statement on Enforcement.!"! One of the core behaviors that defines the global E.ON
corporate family is the “drive for excellence.” In this regard, the Companies are committed to driving for
excellence in the area of FERC regulatory compliance by implementing, monitoring, and periodically
evaluating the effectiveness and efficiency of existing measures designed to ensure for full compliance.

In this regard and to clearly demonstrate the Companies’ commitment to compliance, the
Chairman, President, and Chief Executive Officer of the Companies has expanded the responsibilities of
the Standards of Conduct Chief Compliance Officer (“CCO” ) to include the LG&E Code of Conduct
and the Market-Based Rate Tariffs under which the Companies and any affiliates may be operating. The
CCO has been further directed to prepare and implement a detailed, comprehensive compliance program
that encompasses the full range of FERC regulatory obligations, and to develop and implement a strategy
for enhanced training, monitoring, and auditing the effectiveness of the overall internal FERC
compliance process. The Companies’ ongoing commitment to compliance has the full support of the
entire senior management team of E.ON U.S. LLC, as well as their commitment to support the
development and the implementation of the broader FERC compliance program.

As noted in thé’ Policy Statement on Enforcement, a thorough commitment to compliance must be
ingrained in corporate culture. Such a commitment is established at the senior most levels of any
organization and must flow down from management to front-office employces engaged in day-to-day
operations. As noted above, E.ON U.S. LLC senior management is strongly committed to ensuring
compliance with all applicable FERC regulatory obligations. The Companies believe that the
establishment of a detailed and comprehensive internal FERC compliance program will demonstrate this
commitment throughout the E.ON U.S. LLC corporate family and also to the Commission. Simply put,
compliance with the letter and spirit of applicable FERC regulatory obligations is encouraged, expected,
and required at all levels of our organization. Therefore, as the audit process concludes, E.ON U.S. LLC
reiterates our commitment to strengthening and maintaining an effective and open culture of compliance.
This commitment is an integral part of our corporate identity and reflects our core values and behaviors.

(m Enforcement of Statues, Orders, Rules and Regulations, 113 FERC 9 61,068 (2005) (“Policy Statement an
Enforcement™).



I1. RESPONSE TO PROPOSED FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS.

The Companies sincerely appreciate FERC Audit Staff’s willingness to work with our employees
and, where possible, provide guidance to help strengthen our overall compliance with the Audit Items.
Prior to addressing specific comments on the proposed findings and recommendations, the Companies
would like to highlight their cooperation with FERC Audit Staff as the audit progressed. We believe that
the spirit in which the revised procedures for the Before-the-Purchase System were developed, as well as
the guidance regarding Standards of Conduct training and for strengthening compliance with the Code of
Conduct Electronic Bulletin Board (“EBB”) posting requirements, are positive examples of how the
operational audit process can work. The Companies look forward to working with FERC Audit Staff to
finalize and implement post operational audit compliance plans in accordance with the process described
in the Draft Audit Report.

As noted in Section I, above, the Companies agree with the findings and recommendations set
forth in the Draft Audit Report. As discussed in Section I, above, the Companies and their parent, E.ON
U.S. LLC, are committed to ensuring on-going compliance with the Audit Items, as well as other
applicable FERC regulatory initiatives and requirements. The Companies were frankly unsettled by the
number of non-compliance findings identified by FERC Audit Staff. We trust that our willingness to act
without delay to address the identified non-compliance issues and take the necessary steps to strengthen
and broaden their overall compliance program is, in fact, evidence of the priority the Companies give to
compliance. These priorities will not change following the conclusion of the audit. Finally, the
Companies would like to emphasize the importance of the absence of findings of intent to violate
applicable rules or tariffs regarding the identified areas of non-compliance.

I11. UPDATE OF CORRECTIVE ACTIONS TAKEN OR PLANNED AND TARGET COMPLETION DATES.

The Companies agree to submit an implementation plan within 30 days of the issuance of the
final audit report. The implementation plan will set forth the distinct steps that the Companies have
taken, and will take, to fully comply with the findings and recommendations set forth in the final audit
report. In the interim, the Companies provide the following status report on the steps that they have
taken during the course of the audit to comply with the findings and recommendations of FERC Audit
Staff.

.

A. CoODE OF CONDUCT FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS.

l. Functional, Physical, and Operational Separation of LG&E’s Wholesale Merchant
Function and Affiliated Power Marketer.

The Draft Audit Report directs the Companies to take all appropriate actions necessary to ensure
that wholesale merchant function employees (“WMF”) are functionally, physically, and operationally
separated to the maximum extent practical, as required under the LG&E Code of Conduct, from their
affiliated power marketer, LG&E Energy Marketing Inc. (*LEM”). Draft Audit Report at 8-11. As
discussed below, the Companies have already implemented, or propose to implement, corrective
measures designed to satisfy these requirements. While the final details of the steps taken by the
Companies to achieve the appropriate degree of functional, physical and operational separation required



by the LG&E Code of Conduct will be set forth in their implementation plan, the Companies provide the
following update.

a. Functional Separation Concerns.

The Draft Audit Report states that the functional separation between WMF and LEM is not
consistent with the LG&E Code of Conduct. Draft Audit Report at 8-9. The Draft Audit Report cites
two examples of the lack of appropriate functional separation between WMF and LEM. /d. at 8-9. The
first example concerns meetings jointly attended by WMF and LEM personnel and the Senior Vice
President, Energy Marketing (“SVP Energy Marketing”) at which certain market information about
WMF and LEM trading operations was discussed. /d. The second example addresses certain aspects of
the job description for the SVP Energy Marketing’s indicating “that the SVP Energy Marketing is
expected to coordinate WMF and LEM activities to provide a greater return for the LG&E corporate
family.” Id. at 9. The Companies agree with the findings made in the Draft Audit Report regarding the
functional separation between WMF and LEM and agree to implement post-audit corrective measures to
improve their compliance with the LG&E Code of Conduct functional separation requirements.

In order to ensure clear and full compliance with the functional separation requirements of the
LG&E Code of Conduct, the Companies propose to implement the following corrective measures. First,
the Companies propose to revise the job description of the SVP Energy Marketing. All language in the
current job description indicating that SVP Energy Marketing is expected to “coordinate WMF and LEM
activities to provide a greater return for the LG&E corporate family” will be deleted. As revised, the job
description will require the SVP Energy Marketing to exercise his corporate oversight and management
responsibilities for WMF and LEM in a manner that ensures that WMF and LEM: (1) are treated as
separate and distinct businesses in accordance with the functional separation requirements of the LG&E
Code of Conduct; and (2) will produce the greatest return for the E.ON U.S. corporate family on an
independent and stand-alone basis. Further, the revised job description will acknowledge the SVP
Energy Marketing’s obligation to comply with the No Conduit Rule set forth in the LG&E Code of
Conduct.

Second, as discussed in Section [II.A.1.b, below, the SVP Energy Marketing has discontinued
holding monthly trading meetings that are jointly attended by WMF and LEM staff. Concurrent with the
physical relocation of LEM to an enclosed work space on the Fourth (4™) Floor West section of the
E.ON U.S. LLC Building located at 220 W. Main Street in Louisville, Kentucky (“E.ON Center”), the
SVP Energy Marketing has implemented a process change and now meets with WMF and LEM
separately on a monthly basis to discuss relevant business issues. Further, as noted in Section I11.A.2.a,
below, the Companies have implemented a process change that requires the CCO or his designee to
attend any business meetings where both WMF and LEM staff are present. This process change squarely
covers any meeting where the SVP Energy Marketing also may be present with both WMF and LEM
staff.

Third, per prior discussions with FERC Audit Staff on or about February 6, 2006, the Companies
commit to adhere to the chain of command for WMF and LEM in order to maintain separation between
the SVP Energy Marketing and the execution of day-to-day WMF and LEM activities consistent with the
SVP Energy Marketing’s status as one of most senior executives in the E.ON U.S. LLC corporate family
and the Companies’ existing delegations of corporate authoritics.



Together with the corrective measures designed to ensure proper physical and operational
separation discussed in Sections II1.A.1.b and c, below, the Companies respectfully submit that, given
the relatively small size of E.ON U.S. LLC regulated and unregulated trading operations, these corrective
measures will provide the functional separation required by the LG&E Code of Conduct (from both a
substantive and optical perspective). The Companies will submit the specific measures for ensuring full
compliance with the LG&E Code of Conduct functional separation requirements as part of their post-
audit implementation plan.

b. Physical Separation Concermns.

The Draft Audit Report states that the physical separation between WMF and LEM is not
consistent with the LG&E Code of Conduct. Draft Audit Report at 9. The Companies agree with the
findings regarding physical separation concemns and, as discussed below, have implemented a number of
corrective measures that assure that the physical separation of WMF and LLEM is consistent with the
LG&E Code of Conduct.

As a follow-up to the discussion regarding the physical proximity of WMF and LEM in their
letter to FERC Audit Staff dated January 11, 2006 (“January 11 Letter”), the Companies hereby confirm
that as of March 31, 2006, LEM has been physically relocated to an enclosed work space on the 4" Floor
West section of E.ON Center. The enclosed LEM work space on the 4" Floor West section of the E.ON
Center is secured by a card-key reader that only permits access to LEM personnel and a limited group of
support personnel that may be shared consistent with requirements of the LG&E Code of Conduct, such
as the CCQ and designees, internal legal counsel, Energy Marketing Accounting, Trading Controls, and
Operations Analysis/System Implementation.

Neither the 4™ Floor of the E.ON Center nor the enclosed LEM workspace located thereon can be
accessed by WMF personnel. Conversely, neither the 7" Floor of the E.ON Center nor the enclosed
WMF workspace located thereon can be accessed by LEM personnel.

A full description of the specifics regarding the key card access restrictions to the enclosed LEM
work space on the 4™ Floor West section, and to the WMF work space on the 7" Floor North section, of
the E.ON Center will be provided in the Companies’ post-audit implementation plan. Further, written
procedures governing the access to the WMF and LEM workspaces for authorized E.ON U.S. LLC
employees and other permitted persons will be adopted by the Companies as part of comprehensive Code
of Conduct compliance program.

c. Operational Separation Concerns with Respect to Recorded Phone Calls.

The Draft Audit Report states that the operational separation between WMF and LEM with
respect to recorded phone calls on two (2) RACAL digital tape recorders is not consistent with the
LG&E Code of Conduct. Draft Audit Report at 9-10. The Companies agree with these findings as set
forth in the Draft Audit Report and have already undertaken measures to ensure compliance with the
operational separation requirements of the LG&E Code of Conduct as it relates to recorded phone
conversations. Further, as discussed below, the Companies propose to implement additional measures to
ensure compliance with this aspect of the operational separation requirement.



In their January 11 Letter, the Companies proposed to implement certain internal controls to
ensure appropriate operational separation under the LG&E Code of Conduct with respect to WMF and
LEM trader telephone conversations using RACAL digital tape recorders. January 11 Letter at 5. The
Companies continue to pursue the implementation of the corrective measures outlined in the January 11
Letter. However, the Companies hereby inform FERC Audit Staff that, on or about December 14, 2005,
the RACAL digital tape recorders were replaced by two (2) NiceCall Focus III voice recording systems
that contain technology that permit the “desktop review” of previously recorded conversations. One
NiceCall Focus III machine is dedicated exclusively for use by LEM. The second machine is dedicated
for use exclusively by WMF. The Companies believe that their investment in separate voice recording
machines for LEM and WMF that contain “desktop review” technology is a substantial step towards
achieving the operational separation required by the LG&E Code of Conduct with respect to recorded
calls.

Distinct from the RACAL recorders, the NiceCall Focus III voice recording systems are operated
on a stand-alone basis and are not interconnected in any way, physically or operationally. As noted
above, these machines contain technology that allows traders to engage in desktop review of prior
recorded calls. As discussed in greater detail in the Companies’ post-audit implementation plan, traders
for WMF and LEM are assigned specific channels on the NiceCall Focus III machine assigned to their
business unit and are only permitted access to those channels.” In order to provide appropriate risk
management and corporate oversight of trading activities, supervisory personnel within LEM and WMF
are also permitted to access the recorded conversations of traders assigned to their business unit P!
Limited access to recorded conversations is permitted by certain “shared support” personnel that are
subject to the No Conduit Rule under the LG&E Code of Conduct, such as internal legal counsel,
Trading Controls, Energy Accounting, Contract Administration, and the CCO and his designees.

In two distinct respects, the Companies believe that the use of the separate NiceCall Focus II1
machines with “desktop review” technology will help ensure on-going compliance with the operational
separation requirements of the LG&E Code of Conduct. First, “desktop review” technology eliminates
the need for WMF and LEM personnel to have physical access to the work space where these machines
are currently stored. Second, because different NiceCall Focus 111 machines are used by WMF and
LEM, taken together with the fact that WMF and LEM have been physically separated as described in
Section II1.A.1.b, above, there is no risk of personnel from one operation gaining indirect, remote access
to non-public market information on the other operation’s recorded lines.

As discussed in greater detail in their post audit implementation plan, the Companies propose to
adopt a comprehensive set of written procedures designed to facilitate on-going compliance with LG&E
Code of Conduct operational separation requirements as applied to recorded calls for both the new
NiceCall Focus I1I machines and for historic conversations recorded on the RACAL tapes. The
Companies will adopt these written procedures as part of comprehensive Code of Conduct compliance

4 Because separate NiceCall Focus 1} machines are used by LEM and WMF, traders for LEM may only access
assigned channels on the NiceCall Focus Il machine that is dedicated for use exclusively by LEM. Similarly, WMF traders
may only access assigned channels on the NiceCall Focus [1] that is dedicated for use exclusively by WMF.

) LEM supervisory personnel may only access voice recordings on the NiceCall Focus 11l machine dedicated for use
exclusively by LEM. Similarly, WMF supervisory personnel may only access voice recordings on the NiceCall Focus I1I
machine dedicated exclusively for use by WMF.



program. With regard to historic conversations recorded on the RACAL tapes, the Companies propose
to implement internal controls consistent with those outlined in their January 11 Letter.

In that regard, the January 11 Letter proposed to implement a policy or set of procedures designed
to ensure that: (1) trading personnel of one operation (whether WMF or LEM) will not have access to
RACAL tapes of recorded conversations of the other; and (2) that anyone requesting access to RACAL
tapes of recorded conversations must listen to such tapes in a location that does not permit access to
phone conversations of the other group (i.e., in their assigned work spaces). Specifically, the Companies
proposed to develop a log book or another form of written record to document requests for access to
historic conversations recorded on the RACAL tapes that requires the following information:

e The name of the person(s) seeking access to the RACAL tapes containing the recorded phone
conversations;

e The name of their business unit (e.g., WMF, LEM, legal or regulatory);

» A brief description of the recorded conversations on the RACAL tapes for which access to the
tapes is sought;

e A brief description of the reasons for reviewing the recorded conversations on the RACAL
tapes (e.g., contract dispute, incorrect trade confirmation.

Finally, the Companies propose to include written procedures to provide for the periodic review by the
CCO or his designee of the RACAL tape log book or other written record. These written procedures will
be adopted as part of a comprehensive Code of Conduct compliance program

2. Sharing of Market Information.

a. Joint Staff Meetings Between WMF and LEM.

The Draft Audit Report states that the WMF shared marketing information through presentations
at joint staff meetings in violation of the LG&E Code of Conduct. Draft Audit Report at 12-13. The
Companies agree with these findings regarding joint staff meetings between WMF and LEM as set forth
in the Draft Audit Report. As discussed below, the Companies have already undertaken significant
measures to ensure compliance with the information sharing restrictions in the LG&E Code of Conduct
and propose to formalize these measures in their post-audit implementation plan.

In June 2005, the Companies revised the agenda of the monthly trading meetings jointly attended
by WMF and LEM personnel, as wcll as the SVP Energy Marketing and staff from Market Analysis,
Trading Controls, Operations Analysis, and Fuels Management to address concerns raised by FERC
Audit Staff regarding the sharing of WMF historical off-system sales (“OSS”) summary information
during these meetings. See Draft Audit Report at 14. From the period June 2005 through March 31,
2006, the Companies altered the agenda so that the presentation regarding WMF’s OSS was not made
until LEM employees were dismissed from the meeting. Since December 2005, the Companies have
adopted certain process changes, including the requirement to have the CCO or his designee attend all



business meetings jointly attended by WMF and LEM personnel. The CCO or his designee maintains a
high-level agenda and/or minutes of such joint meetings.

Please note that beginning on or about April 1, 2006, the SVP Energy Marketing discontinued
scheduling and holding monthly trading meetings that are jointly attended by WMF and LEM staff. The
monthly trading meetings are now held by the SVP Energy Marketing with WMF and LEM staff
separately. These separate meetings are also attended by staff from Market Analysis, Trading Controls,
Operations Analysis, and Fuels Management, who are shared support staff under the LG&E Code of
Conduct and subject to the No Conduit Rule. In accordance with the No Conduit Rule, non-public WMF
or LEM market information discussed during meeting with one business unit (i.e., WMF) is not shared in
meetings with the other business unit (i.e., LEM) and vice versa.

As discussed in greater detail in their post-audit implementation plan, the Companies propose to
adopt the process changes as part of a comprehensive Code of Conduct compliance program. In
addition, the Companies propose to memorialize as part of a comprehensive Code of Conduct
compliance program that monthly trading meetings discussed in the Draft Audit Report are held
separately with WMF and LLEM staff.

b. Password Access to EMS Information.

The Draft Audit Report states that Companies password access controls to the shared Energy
Management System (“EMS”) were insufficient and inconsistent with the Companies’ password security
policy. Draft Audit Report at 13. Prior to February 2004, the Companies permitted WMF and LEM
users to access the EMS using separate group accounts and passwords, rather than using unique user
accounts and passwords. /d. As a consequence, the Draft Audit Report states that failure to require
unique password access was contrary to the Companies” password security policy and increased the risk
of inappropriate information access via the EMS. Id. The Companies agree with the findings regarding
password access to EMS information as set forth in the Draft Audit Report and have already taken
corrective measures to address these concerns.

As noted in the Draft Audit Report, in February 2004, the Companies have implemented
individual user-ids and passwords for its current GE/Harris EMS. As required by GE/Harris vendor
support requirements, a common user-id still exists solely and exclusively for maintenance purposes.
However, the WMF and LEM EMS users do not have access to the vendor required common user-id and
may only access the EMS through their own unique user-id and password.

The Companies are in the process of installing a new Open Systems International (“OSI”) EMS.
It is anticipated that the OS] EMS will become fully operational on or about December 31, 2006. As part
of their post-audit operational plan, the Companies will provide an update on the status of the installation
of the new OSI EMS and on a quarterly basis thereafter until the OSI EMS becomes fully operational. In
addition, the Companies agree to conduct an independent review by their internal audit department or an
outside audit firm when the OSI EMS is implemented to ensure that there is no unauthorized EMS screen
access by WMF and LEM staff. Finally, a requirement mandating the periodic review of EMS access
requirements will be adopted as part of the Companies’ existing Standards of Conduct compliance
program and the proposed comprehensive Code of Conduct compliance program.



3 Posting Information on Sales to Affiliates at Market-Based Rates.

a. Accessibility of EBB Information to Market Participants.

The Draft Audit Report raised a number of concerns regarding the accessibility of the Companies
EBB to market participants. Draft Audit Report at 15-16. The Companies agree with the findings
regarding the accessibility of EBB information to market participants.

As noted in the Companies’ January 11 Letter, as of January 2006, a link to the EBB, entitled
“LEM Transactions” was posted on the left-hand column of regulatory page of the EEON U.S. LLC
Internet site. January 11 Letter at 6 n.2. The regulatory page of the E.ON U.S. LLC Internet site can be
accessed at the following web address: http://www.con-us.com/regulatory.asp. Subsequently, to ensure
the easiest possible ratepayer and market participant access to the EBB, the Companies posted an
additional EBB link, entitled “LEM Transactions EBB,” on the lower right-hand comer of the homepage
of E.ON U.S. LLC Internet site. The homepage of the E.ON U.S. LLC Internet site can be accessed at
the following web address: http://www.eon-us.com/home.asp. Accordingly, as of the date hereof, there
are two (2) separate and easily accessible links on the E.ON U.S. LLC Internet site for interested parties
to view the EBB.

A copy of the regulatory page and the home page of the E.ON U.S. LLC Internet site containing
the existing links to the Companies’ EBB on are appended hereto as Attachment A.

b. Posted Offers to Sell on the EBB.

The Draft Audit Report states that Companies’ efforts to post offers to sell to LEM on the EBB
were not consistent with posting requirements set forth in Paragraphs 7 and 8 of the LG&E Code of
Conduct. Draft Audit Report at 16-17. The Companies agree with the findings regarding posted offers
to sell on the EBB as set forth in the Draft Audit Report. As noted in their January 11 Letter, the
Companies proposed to develop process changes to facilitate significantly stronger compliance with the
posting requirements set forth Paragraphs 7 and 9' of the LG&E Code of Conduct.

A presentation generally outlining the proposed process changes was made and submitted to
FERC Audit Staff on December 16, 2005. The process changes proposed in the presentation and
described below are based on the Companies’ understanding of existing Commission precedent
addressing the need for implementing the EBB requirement when regulated utilities engage in market-
based sales with unregulated affiliates. Specifically, Commission precedent is clear that when traditional
public utilities engage in power sales to an affiliated power marketer, public utilities may have an
incentive to favor their affiliated marketer to the detriment of captive ratepayers.'! Such behavior can
take place when a public utility and its affiliated power marketer transact in ways that result in a

ol The paragraphs in the currently effective LG&E Code of Conduct originally accepted for filing by the Commission
in Docket No. ER99-1623 were incorrectly numbered. There are a total of nine (9) paragraphs. The eighth and ninth
paragraph of the LG&E Code of Conduct are incorrectly labeled paragraphs 9 and 10.

ol See Detroit Edison Co., et al., 80 FERC 9 61,348 at 62,198 (1997); see also Aquila, Inc., 101 FERC§ 61,331 at P 8
(2002); FirstEnergy Corp. et al., 94 FERC 61,182 at 61,630 (2001); Alliant Services Co., 85 FERC ¥ 61,344 at 62,335
(1998).
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diversion of benefits from the public utility (and its captive ratepayers) to the affiliated power marketer
(and its shareholders)ﬁm

To avoid the diversion of benefits from captive ratepayers to shareholders, the Commission
requires that utilities engaging in power sales to affiliated marketers must price such transactions at a ratc
no lower than the rate the utilities charge to non-affiliates.”® The requirement to “‘simultaneously” post
offers to, and executed sales with, an affiliate marketer on an EBB is intended to provide transparency to
this affiliate sales process. The purpose for providing such transparency is to allow interested third-
parties (i.e., ratepayers and market participants), as well as the Commission itself, to independently
verify whether such affiliate transactions were priced in accordance with this standard.

As a practical business and operational matter, it is extremely difficult, if at all possible, to
comply with the literal language set forth in Paragraphs 7 and 9 of the LG&E Code of Conduct, i.e.,
mandating the simultaneous posting of: (1) offers to LEM; and (2) executed affiliate power sales
transactions. Due to the pace of modern trading operations, transactions are negotiated and executed
within minutes. Traders in the WMF cannot in such a short period of time: (1) survey the market and
develop a credible picture of the prevailing market price for a given product; (2) negotiate with several
counterparties to obtain the best sales price possible; (3) execute trades; and (4) post offers to, and
executed sales with, LEM at the same time they take place.

The proposed EBB posting process changes discussed with FERC Audit Staff are intended to
reflect the practical realities of engaging in real-time trading activities within a small organization. More
importantly, the Companies believe that the process changes discussed with FERC Audit Staff are
consistent with both the intent and spirit of the Commission’s existing precedent and policies designed to
prevent affiliate abuse and self-dealing described above.

The Companies believe that addressing these operational realities in a practical manner must have
been considered by the Commission when it established the simultaneous posting requirements codified
in Paragraphs 7 and 9 of the LG&E Code of Conduct. Further, the Companies believe that these
operational realties must have been intended when Paragraphs 7 and 9 were written. As proposed to .
FERC Audit Staff, the EBB posting process changes will provide ratepayers, market participants, and the
Commission with a workable, easily accessible, and transparent mechanism for monitoring on a real-time
basis whether sales by the Companies to LEM may result in an improper diversion of benefits from
ratepayers due to the failure to price such transactions in a manner that complies with the LG&E Code of
Conduct.

The Companies recognize the complexities of this particular issue and look forward to working
with FERC Audit Staff to finalize these process changes as part of their post-audit implementation plan.
The final process changes for posting offers to sell on the EBB will be adopted as part of a
comprehensive Code of Conduct compliance program. As discussed in greater detail in the Companies’
post-audit implementation plan, E.ON U.S. LLC senior management will supervise the formal roll-out
sessions for implementing the final EBB posting process changes. Specifically, the roll out and
subsequent training sessions will not only discuss the purpose and application of the EBB posting

# Id.
1 Id.
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process, they will also emphasize the importance of this process and the need to vigilantly assure
compliance therewith. After the initial roll out, the Companies propose to conduct periodic internal
reviews and follow-up training to ensure on-going compliance.

c. Prices of Affiliate Sales.

The Draft Audit Report states that the Companies did not have any written procedures or other
controls for WMF traders to determining whether sales to LEM were consistent with the affiliate pricing
provisions set forth in Paragraph 6 of the LG&E Code of Conduct. Draft Audit Report at 17. The Draft
Audit Report notes that the WMF traders established the market price for next-hour energy sales to LEM
through telephone queries with potential counterparties and through broker quotes. /d. The Draft Audit
Report further states that, although no evidence that WMF traders transacted with LEM at less than
market price, WMF traders did not generally employ strong controls to establish the market prices. /d.
The Companies agree with the findings relating to the pricing of affiliate sales as set forth in the Draft
Audit Report.

The process changes for posting offers to sell on the EBB discussed in Section 1I11.A.3.b, above,
were addressed in the presentation presented to FERC Audit Staff on December 16, 2005. In relevant
part, the process changes outline the steps by which WMF traders must determine whether posted offers
to sell to LEM hourly or daily energy are priced no lower than prevailing market prices for each product.
These procedures provide for a specific period after an offer to sell to LEM is posted on the EBB during
which WMF traders must exercise commercially reasonable efforts (i.e., due diligence) to survey the
market and determine whether non-affiliates have any interest in pursuing an opportunity equivalent to
that being offered to LEM. The WMF traders may ot transact with LEM until after the specified
posting period has expired. If, at the expiration of such period, an offer to sell to LEM posted on the
EBB is the best and highest price available (i.e., no lower than the price offered or sold to non-affiliates),
the Companies may execute the sale to LEM.

As discussed in greater detail in the Companies’ post-audit implementation plan, these procedures
will be adopted as part of a comprehensive Code of Conduct compliance program.

d. EBB Postings in 2001.

The Draft Audit Report identifies certain concerns that took place in 2001 relating to whether, for
a period of time, the EBB was properly used to post offers and sales from WMF to LEM to support a
long-term sales obligation that LEM had with Morgan Stanley. Draft Audit Report at 17. The
Companies agree with the findings regarding the EBB postings in 2001 as set forth in the Draft Audit
Report. E.ON U.S. LLC senior management is deeply committed to ensuring that the Companies use the
EBB to properly post offers and sales to LEM in accordance with the LG&E Code of Conduct
requirements.

E.ON U.S. LLC has and will continue to commit the time and resources necessary to internal
compliance measures designed to facilitate an enhanced understanding of, and compliance with, the EBB
posting requirements set forth in the LG&E Code of Conduct. As discussed with FERC Staff at length
and proposed in the Companies’ December 16, 2005 presentation, E.ON U.S. LLC management believes
that significantly enhanced compliance with the EBB posting requirements may be achieved through:

11



¢ Implementing a revised user friendly EBB offer matrix that contains key deal parameters and
clearly articulates appropriate definitions and user guidelines;

e Providing formal employee training regarding the purpose, application and importance of the
EBB posting process (including potential ramifications for non-compliance -- both internally and
externally);

e Implementing additional internal controls designed to ensure that, when offers to LEM are made
and sales are executed, all required EBB postings are timely made and consistent with the LG&E
Code of Conduct; and

e Providing periodic follow-up training and reviewing the revised EBB posting process
periodically to ensure that it is operating correctly.

As will be discussed in greater detail in the Companies post-audit implementation plan, because a
true culture of compliance flows down from the top of corporate organizations, the Companies propose
that the process changes for the EBB posting process will be formally rolled out by current E.ON U.S.
LLC management. Senior management will ensure proper oversight of employee training sessions
regarding the scope, application and importance of the EBB posting process. In addition, management
will ensure that appropriate resources are dedicated to conduct periodic internal reviews and follow-up
training to ensure on-going compliance with the EBB posting requirements.

B. STANDARDS OF CONDUCT FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS.

As discussed in Section [ above, as part of their post-audit implementation plan, the Companies
propose to undertake a comprehensive review of their Standards of Conduct Written Procedures
(“SCWP™) posted on the E.ON U.S. LLC Internet site, and revise and update the SCWP as necessary.
The comments below respond to the specific findings and recommendations set forth in the Draft Audit
Report.

1. Disclosure of Transmission and Customer Information.

a. Disclosure of Transmission Information by Telephone.

The Draft Audit Report identifies three instances where transmission function employees of the
Companies disclosed non-public transmission information to regulated generation dispatchers during the
course of reliability-rclated Transmission Line Loading Relief/generation redispatch events (“Generation
Redispatch Events™). Draft Audit Report at 20-21. Because the Companies regulated generation
dispatchers are organizationally and functionally housed in the WMF business unit (an Energy Affiliate),
the identified transmission information was disclosed through non-public communications. /d. at 17.
The Companies agree with the factual findings regarding the disclosure of transmission information by
telephone as set forth in the Draft Audit Report, subject to the following factual clarification. The
identified disclosures of transmission information occurring by telephone during Generation Dispatch
Events were posted on the Standards of Conduct Page of the E.ON U.S. LLC Internet site on January 13,
2006. The posting can be found at: http://www.eon-us.com/regulatory/disclosure_of_information.pdf.



http://www.eon-us.com/reg;ulatow/disclosure

In their January 11 Letter, the Companies proposed to develop certain process changes to ensure
that any information disclosed by transmission function employees or by a third-party Transmission
Provider are promptly reported to the CCO for evaluation and, where necessary, posted on the OASIS or
the E.ON U.S. LLC Internet site. January 11 Letter at 8-9. In the intervening period, the process
changes outlined below have been implemented by the Companies. These process changes govern the
behavior of both transmission function employees and regulated generation dispatchers during
Generation Redispatch Events and include the following concepts:

e During Generation Redispatch Events, transmission function employees are only to provide
specific redispatch instructions.

* Absent emergency circumstances affecting system reliability, transmission function
employees may not provide regulated generation dispatchers with information regarding the
cause of the Generation Redispatch Event.

e Transmission function employees and regulated generation dispatchers are required to
document and provide prompt notice to the CCO or his designee of any instance in which
non-public transmission information is disclosed to regulated generation dispatchers, whether
by transmission function employees or any other third party (including, but not limited to, a
security coordinator or reliability authority, or another Transmission Provider).

¢ In the event of any disclosures of non-public transmission information by a third-party
(including, but not limited to, a security coordinator or reliability authority, or another
Transmission Provider), apart from notifying the CCO, transmission function employees and
regulated generation dispatchers will comply with the No Conduit Rule.

e Regulated generation dispatchers should not trade on any non-public transmission
information improperly disclosed to them.

As will be described in greater detail in the Companies’ post-audit compliance plans, the process
changes outlined above will be converted into written procedures and incorporated into the Companies’ -
existing SCWPs and future Standards of Conduct training programs sponsored by the Companies.

b. Disclosure of Transmission Information at a Meeting Attended by
Transmission and Marketing Employees.

The Draft Audit Report identifies one meeting in which transmission personnel and marketing
personnel were present at which the Companies’ transmission personnel disclosed non-pubic information
regarding the status of two transmission projects. Draft Audit Report at 21. The Draft Audit Report
notes that the disclosure was not posted on the OASIS in a timely manner. /d. As noted in the Draft
Audit Report, no evidence was found that Companies’ Energy or Marketing Affiliates traded on this
information. /d. The Companies agree with the findings regarding the disclosure of transmission
information at a meeting attended by transmission and marketing employees as set forth in the Draft
Audit Report.
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The Companies posted the non-public transmission information disclosed in the meeting
identified in the Draft Audit Report on the E.ON U.S. LLC Internet site at: http://www.eon-
us.conV/regulatory/disclosure_of information.pdf on March 31, 2006. Further, beginning in April 2005,
the Companies adopted certain process changes in response to concerns raised by FERC Audit Staff that
cross-functional business meetings between transmission function employees and employees of Energy
or Marketing Affihates (“C/F Meetings™) create the potential for the sharing of non-public transmission
information. Since Apri] 2005, the CCO or his designee has attended all identified C/F Meetings. The
CCO or his designee maintains a high-level agenda and/or minutes for each meeting. The C/F Meetings
include not only senior level staff meetings but also meetings attended by line level Transmission
Function Employees and employees of Energy Affiliates.

In addition, the Companies propose to continue to conduct periodic “function specific” training
sessions, including those with E.ON U.S. LLC senior management, to ensure that employees at all levels
of the E.ON U.S. LLC organization fully understand the scope and application of the Standards of
Conduct restrictions on-the sharing of non-public transmission information, including the requirements to
post disclosures of non-public transmission information. As discussed in greater detail in their post-audit
implementation plan, the Companies propose to: (1) adopt procedures detailing the need for the CCO or
his designee to be present at al} C/F Meetings as described above and incorporate such procedures into its
SCWPs; and (2) will provide additional information about the “function specific” training sessions.

C. Disclosure of Customer Load Data by E-Mail.

The Draft Audit Report states that a transmission function employee e-mailed a marketing
employee specific, non-pubic customer load information on a monthly basis through February 2005.
Draft Audit Report at 21. The Draft Audit Report notes that the Companies failed to post these
disclosures on the OASIS in a timely manner. /d. The Companies agree with the findings regarding the
disclosure of customer load data by e-mail as set forth in the Draft Audit Report.

As noted in the posted disclosure, the customer information at issue involved after-the-fact,
monthly historic peak transmission load information. This information is used by the Midwest ISO to
invoice the Companies for their Schedule 10 charges under the Midwest ISO’s Open Access
Transmission Tariff (or Module B of the Day 2 TEMT). The WMEF is responsible for budgeting,
approving and paying the Midwest ISO invoice. The non-public customer load data disclosed via e-mail
to marketing employee identified in the Draft Audit Report was posted on the E.ON U.S. LLC Internet
site on March 31, 2006 at: http://www.eon-us.com/regulatory/disclosure_of_information.pdf.

Since February 2005, the Companies have implemented process changes to ensure that
transmission function employees no longer provide non-public customer load information to Energy or
Marketing Affiliate employees. As will be discussed in greater detail in their post-audit compliance plan,
these process changes will be memorialized and incorporated into the Companies’ SCWPs. In addition,
the Companies agree to perform a review of all transmission and customer information shared through e-
mail distribution in order to ensure that such information is not inappropriately shared with Energy or
Marketing Affiliate employees. The Companies further propose to implement new written procedures
that require the periodic review of such e-mail distributions to ensure ongoing compliance with the
Standards of Conduct.


http://www.eon-us.com/reaulatorv/disclosure

2. Standards of Conduct Training.

The Draft Audit Report states that the Companies’ Standards of Conduct training program was
inconsistent with the Commission’s regulations and the Companies’ SCWP and implementation plans.
Draft Audit Report at 24. During the audit, FERC Audit Staff discussed the Companies’ training with
the CCO, his designees and other E.ON U.S. LLC officials. Subsequently, on November 10, 2005, the
Companies submitted a letter outlining an enhanced Standards of Conduct training program. /d. FERC
Audit Staff found the proposed compliarice plan to be consistent with Order No. 2004 and proposed
findings and recommendations. /d. The Companies accept the findings regarding Standards of Conduct
training as set forth in the Draft Audit Report.

The 2005 edition of the Companies’ Standards of Conduct training took place from November
17, 2005 through December 31, 2005. The 2005 training program required the participation of all
employees in the E.ON U.S. LLC corporate family at the manager level and above, as well as employees
with the words or phrases “supervisor,” “team leader,” or “group leader” in their job title.!”! In addition,
the Companies trained all employees in the following lines of busincss: (1) the Companies’ Transmission
Function; (2) All Energy Marketing Personnel (regulated and unregulated); (3) Information Technology;
(4) Accounting and Finance; (5) Corporate Communications; (6) Legal; and (7) Regulatory. These
functional areas of responsibility were selected because employees in such areas have or may have
access 10 non-public transmission information through the Companies’ financial books of account,
records or contracts or real-time, day-to-day operations.

As noted in the Draft Audit Report, in 2005, the Companies significantly increased the number of
employees who have received the Edison Electric Institute (“EEI”)-developed, electronic Standards of
Conduct training program by eighty percent (80%), from approximately 610 to approximately 1,100.

The Companies are committed to further strengthening their training program to ensure that on a going-
forward basis it remains consistent with Commission requirements and internal training plans. As part of
this process, the Companies will memorialize new process changes for ensuring that new employees and
transfers receive the appropriate Standards of Conduct training. The Companies’ future Standards of
Conduct training plans will be discussed in greater detail in their post-audit implementation plan.

i Included within the group of employees described abovce are certain field personnel in the Companies’ distribution

function, such as managers and supervisors of substation construction crews which respond to outages that can affect the

Companics integrated transmission and distribution systems. In addition, this group of employees included all managers,
supervisors or above higher ranking personnel that are employed by Energy Affiliates that operate generation facilities on
behalf of other investor-owned utilities
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3. Controls Used to Limil Access to the Systeny. Control Centers.

a. CCO Permission to Visit the System Control Centers.

The Draft Audit Report states the Companies did not follow Section [V.A.2.b of their posted
SCWP to control and track access of its marketing employees to their Waterside and Dix Dam system
control centers. Draft Audit Report at 27. The Companies agree with the findings regarding CCO
permission to visit the system control centers as set forth in the Draft Audit Report. Below the

Companies discuss certain corrective measures that have already been undertaken to address concemns
identified by FERC Audit Staff.

As noted in the Draft Audit Report, on January 10, 2005, the Companies revised the Standards of
Conduct page of the E.ON U.S. LLC website to include a link titled, “Request for Access to
Transnussion Control Center.” The link can be found at: http://www.eon-
us.com/regulatorvisoc_request_access.asp. The link provides instructions for the submission of written,
electronic requests by employees of Energy and Marketing seeking access to the Transmission Control
Centers. Consistent with Section IV.A.2.b of the Companies’ SCWP, the link directs Energy or
Marketing Affiliate employees to submit the following information to the CCO as part of a request for
access to the to the Transmission Control Centers:

e The proposed time and date that access to the Transmission Control Centers is required; and
e A verifiable and legitimate business purpose for seeking access to such facilities.

Consistent with Section IV.A.2.b of SCWP, the link states that the CCO shall: (1) review such requests
and approve or deny them; and (2) maintain electronic copies of all forms submitted and his decision to
approve or deny such requests for a period of three (3) years.

Subsequently, on February 2, 2006, the Companies posted an announcement on the E.ON U.S.
LLC Intranet site prominently announcing the new “Request for Access to Transmission Control Center
link on the Standards of Conduct section of Regulatory page of the ECON U.S. LLC Internet site. The
announcement of the “Request for Access to Transmission Control Center” link was made available to
all E.ON U.S. LLC employees as part of the daily "News Transmission" published on the E.ON U.S.
LLC Intranet site. In addition, an e-mail blast was distributed to all employees highlighting the “Request
for Access to Transmission Control Center” link as a headline story in the “News Transmission” items
for February 2, 2006.

9y

As will be discussed in greater detail in their post-audit implementation plan, the Companies will
further review and strengthen its system control center access procedures as directed in the Draft Audit
Report. Further, the Companies commit to internally announce on a periodic basis the “Request for
Access to Transmission Control Center” link on the Standards of Conduct section of Regulatory page of
the E.ON U.S. LLC Intemnet site.

b. Controls on Visitors Entering the System Contro] Centers.
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The Draft Audit Report states that the written log books documenting visitors’ access to the
Waterside and Dix Dam system control centers were inconsistent with Companies’ SCWPs. Draft Audit
Report at 28. Specifically, the written log books did not collect some pertinent information that was
required in Section [V.A.2.b of the SCWPs. /d. The Companies accept the findings regarding controls
on visitors entering the system control centers as set forth in the Draft Audit Report

The Companies confirm that by January 13. 2006, the log books located at the Waterside and Dix
Dam system control centers were in place and updated to contain the same fields of inquiry set forth in
Section IV.A.2.b of the SCWP, which include the following:

¢ The name of the transmission customer;
e Date and time of the visit;

¢ The name of the Transmission Function Employee or other Company Personnel (as that term
is defined in the SCWP) hosting the transmission customer:;

e Whether the transmission customer is an affiliate; and
o The purpose of the visit.

The update of the logbooks to include these fields of inquiry ensures consistency with the
Companies’ existing SCWP procedures and creates an audit trail that allows for independent verification
regarding whether the Companies’ Energy and Marketing Aftfiliate employees had accecs to system
contro] centers in any way that differed from non-affiliate transmission customers. The Companies agree
to the recommendations set forth in the Draft Audit Report and will provide greater detail regarding
additional corrective measures (if any are required) in their post-audit implementation plan.

C. Access to Transmission Information Once Inside the System Control
Center.

The Draft Audit Report raises concerns that non-transmission function employee visitors to
Waterside and Dix Dam system control centers could gain access through a direct, external line of sight
to certain non-public transmission information posted on monitors and boards within these facilities
actual transmission system control rooms. Draft Audit Report at 29. The Companies agree with the
findings regarding access to transmission information once inside the system control centers as set forth
in the Draft Audit Report.

In their January 11 Letter, the Companies committed to install by January 13, 2006 certain
temporary, but effective, covers on all windows on doors, or windows that serve as partitions or walls for
purposes of impeding a direct view into the control rooms at Waterside and Dix Dam. The Companies
hereby confirm that such temporary covers were in fact installed by January 13, 2006. Further, the
Companies committed to implement a permanent solution through the use of frosted glass or another
similar technique by the end of the first quarter of 2006. By this letter, the Companies hereby confirm
that, prior to the end of the first quarter of 2006, permanent window frosting treatment covers were
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installed all windows on doors, or windows that serve as partitions or walls for purposes of impeding a
direct view into the control rooms at Waterside and Dix Dam.

4, Organizational Charts.

The Draft Audit Report states that Companies have not properly posted certain organizational
charts showing: (1) employee information required for all business units in the sales function; (2) the
position of all Energy and Marketing Affiliates with the E.ON U.S. LLC family corporate structure; and
(3) that the Companies use a service company as an employment mechanism for the Transmission
Provider and for its Energy and Marketing Affiliates. Draft Audit Report at 30-32. The Companies
agree with the findings regarding the posting of organizational charts as set forth in the Draft Audit
Report.

On Friday, June 16, 2006, the Companies and FERC Audit Staff held a conference call for
purposes of ensuring that the Companies fully satisfied the organizational chart posting requirements and
concems articulated in the Draft Audit Report. The Companies appreciate FERC Audit Staff’s
cooperation and help in this process. As will be discussed in greater detail in their post-audit
implementation plan, the Companies will post revised organizational charts in accordance with the
directives and guidance provided by FERC Audit Staff on the June 16" call.

5. Shared Facilities.

The Draft Audit Report states that the Companies did not post a list of facilities Shared by the
Transmission Provider and the Companies’ Energy and Marketing Affiliates. Draft Audit Report at 33.
Further, the Draft Audit Report notes that virtually all of the Companies shared service Employees
occupied the same building as their two primary Marketing and Energy Affiliates -- WMF and LEM. /d.
at 34. When FERC Audit Staff pointed out that the shared services employees with access to
transmission information and the Marketing and Energy Affiliate shared facilities which trigger a posting
requirement, the Companies agreed to revise its posting to ensure that it is consistent with 18 C.F.R. §
358.4(b)(2) (2005). The Companies agree with the findings regarding shared facilities as set forth in the
Draft Audit Report and corrected the posting.

C. MARKET-BASED RATE TARIFF FINDING AND RECOMMENDATIONS.

The Draft Audit Report states that, for the first quarter of 2005, the Companies’ Electric
Quarterly Reports (“EQRs”) contained inaccurate information for its sales made pursuant to their joint
market-based rate tariff. Draft Audit Report at 35. Specifically, the Companies inaccurately reported
several sales transactions from its WMF to LEM and reported invalid Data Universal Numbering System
(“DUNS”) numbers for several other customers. The Companies accept the findings regarding EQRs as
set forth in the Draft Audit Report.

As noted in the Draft Audit Report, on January 31, 2006, the Companies made certain corrections
to its EQR filings. The Companies agree to implement the proposed recommendations set forth in the
Draft Audit Letter regarding: (1) strengthening the Companies’ written procedures to ensure that all data
reported in future EQR filings are in compliance with Commission regulations and reflect the correction
of errors and inconsistencies identified in the Draft Audit Report; (2) implementing procedures to
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validate all customer DUNS numbers; and (3) refiling all EQR reports from inception to correct the
incremental peaking name and class name of power sold to LEM. The refiling referenced in subsection
(3) above has been completed.

The proposed corrective measures designed ensure the accuracy and sufficiency of the

Companies’ EQR reports and ensure compliance with their joint market-based rate tariff will be
submitted with the Companies’ post-audit implementation plan.
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1v. CONCILUSION.

On behalf of E.ON U.S. LLC, I would like to thank the FERC Audit Staft for their time, effort
and commitment to ensuring that the Companies are in full compliance with the Audit Items. I would
like to again affirm E.ON U.S. LLC’s commitment to meeting its obligations under the Standards of
Conduct, the Code of Conduct, its Market-Based Rate Tariff and all other applicable FERC imposed
regulatory obligations.

Sincerely,

i %

Michael S. Beer

Vice President, Federal Regulation and Policy and
Standards of Conduct Chief Compliance Officer
EONUS.LLC

on behalif of
Louisville Gas and Elcctric Company &
Kentucky Utilities Company

ce: Carl Coscia
Lyle Hanagami
Eliot Wessler
FERC, Office of Enforcement, Division of Audits

Steven D. Phillips
E.ONUS.LLC

R. Michael Sweeney, Jr.
Hunton & Williams LLP
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LG&E Coal Ash Recycled; Land G&E
to be used for Green Space

After more than three successful years
as part of the E.ON family, LG&E
Energy, the parent company of
Louisville Gas and Electric Company,
Kentucky Utilities Company and
Western Kentucky Energy, is now E.ON
u.s.

For the Home
For the Business
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E.ON U.S. Capital Corp. For the Home
Announces Pricing Of Tender .
Offer and Consent Solicitation For the Business

LG&E, KU, and WKE — the companies
that customers are most familiar with
— will continue to operate under their
current identities. more

06.20.2006
LG&E Announces Regular
Dividends On Preferred Stock
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Chairman's Message
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LG&E/KU Code of Ethics

LEM Transactions

SEC Filings - LG&E Energy
SEC Filings - LG&E

SEC Filings - KU

LG&E Electric Rates
LG&E Gas Rates

KU Electric Rates
Community

LG&E/KU Standards of Conduct

Effective September 22, 2004, E.ON U.S. and othcr U.S. energy companies must comply with new Federal Energy Regulatory Commission ("FERC")
orders requiring organizational separation between transmission and energy and marketing affiliates.

Collectively, the new orders are referred to as the Standards of Conduct and are fundamentally based on two guiding principles. First, a Transmission
Provider's employees engaged in transmission system operations must function independent from the employees of its Marketing and Energy Affiliates.
Secondly, a Transmission Provider must treat all transmission customers, affiliated and non-affiliated, on a non-discriminatory basis and must not operate

httin/Napenerov ram/reonlatorv/soc.asn 7/] 1/200(’



FE.ON U.S. - Regulatory - LG&E/KU Standards of Conduct

its transmission system to preferentially benefit its marketing or energy affiliates. The Final Rule requircs organizational separation of all energy and

marketing affiliates, including natural gas marketing affiliates, from the electric transmission function.

age 2ot 3

The Standards of Conduct require that a Transmission Provider must post certain information on its corporate website or its OASIS. Links to all of the
requisite information, whether residing here or on the LG&E/KU page of the MISO OASIS, are provided below. Please contact the Chief Compliance
Officer if you have any questions.

® & o & © © & ¢ ¢ & & » 0 * & * 4 O & o @ O O

How to Report a Potential Violation of the Standards of Conduct

Request for Access to Transmission Control Center

FERC Orders - Standard of Conduct Regulation (PDF)
FERC Orders - Order No. 2004 (PDF)

FERC Orders - Order No. 2004-A (PDF)

FERC Orders - Order No. 2004-B (PDF)

LG&E/KU Compliance Procedures (PDF)

LG&E/KU February 2004 Compliance Filing (PDF)
Chief Compliance Officer

Marketing & Energy Affiliate Listing (PDF)

Shared Facilities Listing

Notices of Employec Transfers (PDF)

Organizational Charts - Overall Corporate Structure (PDF)
Organizational Charts - Chain of Command (PDF)
Organizational Charts - Transmission Cham of Command
Organizational Charts - Energy Marketing Chain of Command
Organizational Charts - Job Titles & Descriptions (PDF)
Potential Merger Partners as Affiliates (none at this time)
Disclosure of Information (PDF)

Voluntary Consent to Disclose Information (none at this time)
Log of Tarift Administration Matters and Discounts
MISO OASIS

LG&E/KU page of MISO OASIS

hun-//lweencreov.cam/repulatorv/soc.asp
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Download PDF (103K)

© E.ON U.S. 2006 Terms of Use Contractor Health and Safety Site  Wellness Site
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Kentucky Utilities Company
Case No. 2009-00548
Historical Test Period Filing Requirements

Filing Requirement
807 KAR 5:001 Section 10(6)(m)
Sponsoring Witness: Valerie L. Scott

Description of Filing Requirement:

The most recent Federal Energy Regulatory Commission Form 1 (electric),
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission Form 2 (gas), or Automated
Reporting Management Information System Report (telephone) and Public
Service Commission Form T (telephone);

Response:
KU’s most recent FERC Form 1 for the year ended December 31, 2008, is attached.



KU FERC Form 1 — December 31, 2008



THISFILING IS

Form 1 Approved
OMB No. 1802-0021

ltem 1: ] An Initiat (Original) OR [] Resubmission No.

Submission

(Expires 7/31/2008)
Form 1-F Approved
OMB No. 1902-0029

(Expires 6/30/2007)
Form 3-Q Approved
OMB No. 1802-0205
(Expires 6/30/2007)

FERC FINANCIAL REPORT
FERC FORM No. 1: Annual Report of

Major Electric Utilities, Licensees

and Others and Supplemental
Form 3-Q: Quarterly Financial Report

State Corporation Commission

of the

Commonwealth of Virginia

These reparts are mandatory under the Federal Power Act, Sections 3, 4{a), 304 and 309, and
18 GFR 141.1 and 141.400. Failure to report may result in criminal fines, civit penalties and
other sanctions as provided by law. The Federal Energy Regulatory Gommission does not
consider these reparts to be of confidential nature

Exact Legal Name =f Respondent {Company)

Kentucky Utilities Cornpany

Year/Period of Report

End of 2008/Q4

FERC FORM No.1/3-Q (REV. 02-04)




Virginia State Corporation Commission Supplemental List of Schedules

Title of Schedule Relerence Page No. Remarks

Production Fuel and Oil Stocks VASCC C Kentucky Utilities Company
Particulars Concerning Certain other Income Accounts VASCC L. Kentucky Utilities Company
Construction Work in Progress and Completed Construction - Not Classifed - Electric VASCC O-0-9 Kentucky Utilities Company
Sales to Railroads and Railways and Interdepartmental Sales VASCC P Kentucky Utilities Company
Rent from Electric Property and Interdepartmental Rents VASCC P Kentucky Utilities Company
Sales of Water and Water Power VASCC Q Kentucky Utilities Company
Miscellaneous Service Revenues and Other Electric Revenues VASCC Q Kentucky Utilities Company
Electric Plant in Service VASCC 204 - 207 Virginia Only

Electric Operating Revenues Commonwealth of Virginia VASCC 300 - 301 Virginia Only

Electric Operating Revenues - Virginia State Corporation Commission Jurisdiction Only VAJUR 300 - 301 VASCC Juris Only
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PRODUCTION FUEL AND OIL STOCKS (Included in Account 151)

Report below the information called for conceming 3.

production fuel and oil stocks.

Each kimd of coal or ot should be

shown separately.

of such fuel so obtatned, the quantily used
and quantity on hand, and cost of the fuel
classified as to the nature of the costs and

Faapucdeay JO Swuny

2. Show quantities in tons of 2000 Ib. Barrels (42 gals.}, 4. [f the respondent obtained any of its fuel expenses incurred with appropriate g
or Mcf., whichever unit of quantity is applicable. from its own coal mines or oil or gas adjustment for the inventories at beginning
lands or leases or from affiliated and end of year.
companies, a statement should be Q
submitted showing the quantity g
KINDS OF FUEL AND OIL Z
OIL GAS
Line Total o8
No. ftem Cost Quantity Cost Quantity Cost Quantity Cost & E
(a) (b) (c) (d) (e} 1&4] (g) (h} l ‘N ’
! {On hand beginning of year ................ 41,770,628 797,804 38,196,560 42,878 3,474,914 12,011 99,154 !
2 {Received during year ............ccoooeenuns 536,627,800 8,417,765 481,973,824 91,974 11,052,182 3,668,004 43,601,794 > ¥
3 TOTAL i 578,398,428 9,213,569 520,170,384 134,852 14,527,056 3,680,013 43,700,948 9
4 |Used during year (specify departments) -
5 | Electric 505,690,393 8,137,283 453,526,506 70,068 8,558,412 3,667,605 43,605,475 E -
6 ,
7 ,
8 8
9
10
11 |Sold or transferred
12| TOTALDISPOSED OF ............. §
13 BALANCE END OF YEAR ......... 72,708,035 1,078,286 66,643,878 64,784 5,968,684 12,410 95,473 2 §
Total KINDS OF FUEL AND OIL - Continued o %
Coal High Sulfur Low Sulfur Total High Sulfur Low Sulfur ?
Line Item Cost Cost Cost Quantity Quantity Quantity ”
No. (i) @ (k) ) (m) m (0) 5
14 |On hand beginning of year ................. 38,196,560 13,659,349 24,537,211 797,804 376,656 421,148
15 |Received during year ................ 481,973,824 206,647,702 275,326,122 8,417,765 4,349,863 4,067,902
16 | TOTAL 520,170,384 220,307,051 299,863,333 9,215,569 4,726,519 4,489,050
17 |Used during year (specify departments)
18 | Electric 453,526,506 184,364,787 269,161,719 8,137,283 4,062,478 4,074,805
19
20
21
22 g
23 ;
24 {Sold or transferred 4
25 TOTAL DISPOSED OF ..............
26 BALANCE END OF YEAR ......... 66,643,878 35,942,264 30,701,614 1,078,286 664,041 414,245 w
[
b
g
®




Name of Respondent This report is: Date of Report | Year of Report
(1) _X_ An Original (Mo, Da, Y1)
KENTUCKY UTILITIES COMPANY (2) __ A Resubmission December 31, 2008

PARTICULARS CONCERNING CERTAIN OTHER INCOME ACCOUNTS

Report in this schedule the information specified in the instructions
below for the respective other income accounts. Provide a
conspicuous subheading for each account and show a total for the
account. Additional columns may be added for any account if
deemed necessary.

Merchandising, jobbing and Contract Work (Accounts 415-416)-
Describe the general nature of merchandising, jobbing and contract
activities. Show revenues by class of activity, operating expenses
classified as to operation, maintenance, depreciation, rents, and net
income before taxes. Give the bases of any allocations of expenses
between utility and merchandising, jobbing and contract work
activities.

Nonutility Operations (Accounts 417 and 417.1)-Describe each
nonutility operation and show revenues, operating expenses
classified as to operation, maintenance, depreciation, rents,
amortization and net income before taxes, from the operation. Give
the bases of any allocations of expenses between utility and
nonutility operations. The book cost of property classified as
nonutility operations should be included in Account 121.
Nonoperating Rental Income (Account 418)-For each major item of
miscellaneous property included in Account 121, Nonutility
Property, which is not used in operations for which income is
included in Account 417, but which is leased or rented to

3.

others, give name of lessee, brief description of property,
effective date and expiration date of lease, amount of rent
revenues, operating expenses classified as to operation,
maintenances, depreciation, rents, amortization, and net income
before taxes, from the rentals, If the property is fcased on a
basis other than that of a fixed annual rental, state the method of
determining the rental. Minor items may be grouped by classes,
but the number of items so grouped should be shown. Designate
any leases which are associated companies.

Interest and Dividend Income (Account 419)-Report interest and
dividend income, before taxes, identified as to the asset account
or group of accounts in which are included the assets from which
the interest of dividend income was derived. Income derived
from Investments, Accounts 123, 124, and 136 may be shown in
total. Income from sinking and other funds should be identified
with the related special funds. Should also expenses, included in
Account 419 as required by the uniform system of accounts
Miscellaneous Nonoperating Income (Account 421)-Give the
nature and source of each miscellaneous nonoperating income,
and expense and the amount thereof for the year. Minor items
may be grouped by classes.

Line Item Amounts
No. (a) (b)

i

2 |Account 416 - Cost and Expenses of Merchandising, Job. & Contract Work

3 Total Account 416 -
4

5 |Account 417.0 - Revenues from Nonutility Operations

6 Revenues from nonutility operations 1,355,192
7 Total Account 417.0 1,355,192
8

9 |Account 418 - Nonoperating Rental Income

10 Total Rent Revenues 25
11 |Operating Expenses -
12 Operation -
13 Maintenance -
14 Depreciation -
15 Total -
16 Net Income Before Taxes 25
17

18 Total Account 418 25
19
20 |Account 419 - Interest and Dividend Income
21 Interest from Associated Companies 362,147
22 Interest from State Tax Refunds 300,000
23 Interest from Financial Holdings 7,385
24 Interest from Special Funds 561,372
25 Dividends - Non Associated Company 137,500
26 Interest from Other Loans & Receivables 114,737
27 Total Account 419 1,483,141
28
29 |Account 421 - Misc. Nonoperating Income
30 Misc Nonoperating Income {29,543)
31 Mark-to-Market Income - Nonhedging 833,146
32 Total Account 421 803,603
33

34

35

36

VASCCL
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KENTUCKY UTILITIES COMPANY

Name of Respondent This report is:
(1) _X_ An Original
(2) ____ A Resubmission

Date of Report Year of Report
(Mo, Da, Yn)
December 31, 2008

CONSTRUCTION WORK IN PROGRESS AND COMPLETED CONSTRUCTION NOT
CLASSIFIED -ELECTRIC (Accounts 107 and 106)

Report below descriplions and balances ot end of year of projects in
process of construction and pleted ¢ ion not classificd for
projects actually in service. For any substantial amounts of
compleled constniction not classified for plant actually in service
explain the circumstances which have prevented final classification of

such 107 ibed primary for plant in service.

Completed construction Not Classified-Electric, shall be
furnished even though this account is included in the
schedule, Electric Plant in Service, pages 401-403, according
to a tentative classification by primary accounts.

3. Show items relating to "rescarch and development” projects
last under a caption Research and Development: (See account
107, Uniform System of Accounts)

2. The information specificd by this schedule for Account 106,
4. Minor projects may be grouped.
Completed Con- Estimated
Line Description of Project Construction Work struction Not Additional
No. in Progress-Electric | Classified-Electric Cost of
(Account 107) {Account 106) Project
(a) ®) (c) @)

1 STEAM PRODUCTION
2 TC2-KU 5 396,423,467 $ 66,576,533
3 BROWN 1, 2, 3 FGD by 233,726,240 $ 117,939,417
4 TC2 AQCS KU g 152,293,728 3 32,706,272
5 Kt) SOX PROGRAM - GHENT 2 FGD SYSTEM $ 140,838,104
6 BROWN ASH POND EXPANSION, PHASE 1 S 18,186,020 3 33,331,899
7 GH3 FGD $ 6,453,203
8 GHENT | CONTROLS MODERNIZATION M 5,186,779
9 GHENT 4 CONTROLS MODERNIZATION $ 4,960,348 $ 172,652
10 GH2 CT CELL REBUILD $ 3,511,494 5 571,506
11 BR2 REHEAT INLET & OUTLET HEADER 3 3,170,091 3 2,645,949
12 GHENT 2 CONTROLS MODERNIZATION $ 3,141,868 3 1,733,132
13 SO3 SORBENT INJECTION 3 2,565,236 | 8 7,426,033 | § 9,292,730
14 GHENT SO2 COMMON 3 1,872,738 | § 131,804,746 | $ 350,126
15 GHENT SPCC COMPLIANCE MODIFICATIONS N 1,445,319 3 1,032,309
16 GH4 FGD $ 1,223,066 | $ 159,937,989
17 GH3 CATALYST LAYER PURCHASE & INSTALLATION S 1,142,172 5 1,804,828
18 E.W. BROWN UNIT 3 SCR CONCEPTUAL ENGINEERING $ 1,009,718 h 1,990,282
19 GHENT ASH POND/LANDFILL $ 1,008,465 3 991,535
20 FUEL SUPPLY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 5 942,509 3 843,491
21 MERCURY MONITORING KU s 941,211 3 308,753
22 TRIMBLE COUNTY ASH/GYPSUM PONDS $ 921,539 b3 458,461
23 BR3 COOLING TOWER STORM DAMAGE REPAIRS S 813,369 S 21,761
24 BRI AIR HEATER BASKET REPLACEMENT 3 623,093 s 14,173
25 DEVELOPMENT TY OIL CONTAINMENT SPCC N 527,081
26 GH4 ASH PIPE REPLACEMENT 5 436,131 5 21,869
27 GHI1 CT CELL 1-1 REBUILD 5 426,823 3 177
28 REVISED BR2 TURBINE BLADES 3 424,297 N 205,829
29 GH4 CT CELL 4-5 REBUILD 3 417,311 $ 9,689
30 GH3 CT CELL 3-6 REBUILD 3 416,234 $ 10,766
31 GH3 CT CELL 3-5 REBUILD 3 410,849 $ 16,151
32 BR1-] SBAC REPLACEMENT S 387,553 5 13,283
33 GH DOWNRIVER FLOATING WORK BARGE S 359,455 3 537,545
34 GH MOORING CELL C-4 s 322,819 5 1,181
35 COAL BARGE UNLOADER BUCKET & CHAIN REPLACEMENT 5 299,837 3 91,161
36 DEVELOPMENT HF OIL CONTAINMENT SPCC s 284,598
37 GHENT CONVEYOR BELT REPLACEMENT $ 273,117 S 16,883
38 BR2 PRECIPITATOR PLATE REPLACEMENT 3 271,161 8 1,164,634
39 GHI ID FAN TRANSFORMER 3 235,675 S 14,325
40 TY 480V SWITCHGEAR REPLACEMENT 3 210,875 s 60,125
41 MAXIMO LICENSES S 186,734

TOTAL S 1,176,440,172 | S 437,171,600 | S 368,133,046

VASCCO
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Name of Respondent This report is: Date of Report Year of Report
(1) _X_ AnOriginal (Mo, Da, Yr)
KENTUCKY UTILITIES COMPANY (2) A Resubmission December 31, 2008

CONSTRUCTION WORK IN PROGRESS AND COMPLETED CONSTRUCTION NOT
CLASSIFIED -ELECTRIC (Accounts 107 and 106)

Report below descriptions and balances at end of year of projects in
process of construction and completed construction not classified for
projects actuafly in service. For any substantial amounts of
completed construction not classificd for plant actually in service
explain the cireumstances which have prevented final classification of
such amonnts to prescribed primary accounts for plant in scrvice.

Completed construction Not Classtfied-Electric, shall be
furnished even though this account is included in the
schedule, Electric Plant in Service, pages 401-403, according
to a tentative classification by primary accounts,

3. Show items relating to "research and development” projecis
last under a caption Research and Development: (See account

2. Theinformation specified by this schedule for Account 106, 107, Uniform System of Accounts).
4, Minor projects may be grouped.
Completed Con- Estimated
Line Description of Project Construction Work struction Not Additional
No. in Progress-Electric | Classified-Electric Costof
(Account 107) (Account 106) Project
(a) ® ©) d

] UMS GROUP INVESTMENT EVALUATION MODEL $ 173,243 $ 1,757
2 TY 5-4 EL MILL CONVERSION S 162,615 3 59,385
3 GH 4 4-2 CCW HEAT EXCHANGER § 152,237 M 26,763
4 GH4 GENERATOR REWEDGE S 147,129 $ 76,871
5 GH MISCELLANEQUS MOTORS $ 143,058 $ 106,942
6 BR1 LOWER DEAD AIR SPACE ABATEMENT S 135,699

7 GH2 CT CELL 2-6 REBUILD 5 129,688 5 327,813
8 GH2 CT CELL 2.5 REBUILD 3 129,688 3 327,813
9 BR3 CONTROL ROOM HVAC DEVELOPMENT s 129,654 3 257,346
10 TY3 5-1 EL CONVERSION $ 128,244 s 71,705
11 GR MAIN BUILDING ROOF 3 126,430 s 3,570
12 GR3 DISTRIBUTED CONTROL SYSTEM UPGRADE S 118,927

13 BR 1-2 SERVICE WATER PUMP REBUILD S 117,994 $ 995,099
14 GH2 AUXILIARY CONDENSATE 2-2 RETUBE $ 116,613 5 36,387
15 STEAM PRODUCTION - MINOR PROJECTS s 1,653,380 | S 8,662,096 | § 2,527,213
16

17 HYDRAULIC POWER

18 DX3 OVERHAUL 3 1,399,263 3 3,549,840
19 DEVELOPMENT DIX CRANE ACCESS ROAD 3 129,384 g 20,616
20 HYDRAULIC POWER - MINOR PROJECTS 3 64,994 | § 1,732 48 102,072
21
22 OTHER PRODUCTION
23 BR CT7 A/B CONVERSION - KU 3 6,391,713
24 BR CT9 MODIFICATIONS 3 686,722 3 16,181
25 BR CT UNDERGROUND PIPE SPCC 3 627,368 3 1,029,586
26 BR CT6 QUENCH NOZZLE REPLACEMENT $ 154,832 5 28,069
27 OTHER PRODUCTION - MINOR PROJECTS 3 193,616 | § 210,168 | § 77,859
28
29 TRANSMISSION
30 DEVELOPMENT FOR TRIMBLE CQUNTY UNIT # 2 M 42,479,239 $ 26,520,761
31 1.OUDON AVE TO LANSDOWN 69KV DOUBLE CIRCUIT S 4,691,177 $ 1,554,335
32 N. AMERICAN STAINLESS 345-138 KV450 MVA TRANSFORMER 3 4,470,709
33 BR ASH POND EXPANSION - TRANSMISSION LINE RELOCATION 5 4,195,754
34 PRIORITY REPLACEMENT TRANSMISSION LINES 3 3,065,416
35 SPCC MODIFICATIONS FOR KU 3 1,605,833
36 MISCELLANEOUS SUBSTATION PROJECTS - KU 3 1,433,143 | § 139,561
37 FAWKES 138-69KV, 150 MVA 3 1,354,957 s 31,150
38 NAS TAP 345KV LINE 3 1,275,880
39 PRIORITY TRANSMISSION LINE 3 1,262,028
40 STORM DAMAGE TRANSMISSION LINE s 1,056,537
4] GHENT-KENTON 138 KV LINE - P2 POLE REPLACEMENT $ 732,251 3 82,231

TOTAL S 1,176440,172 | S 437,171,600 | $ 368,133,046
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Name of Respondent This report is: Date of Report Year of Repon
(1) _X_ AnOriginal (Mo, Da, Yr)
KENTUCKY UTILITIES COMPANY (2) ____ A Resubmission December 31, 2008

CONSTRUCTION WORK IN PROGRESS AND COMPLETED CONSTRUCTION NOT
CLASSIFIED -ELECTRIC (Accounts 107 and 106)

1. Report below descriptions and balances at end of year of projects in
p of tion and leted construction not classificd for
projects actually in service. For any substantial amounts of
completed construction not classified for plant actually in service
explain the ci which have pr d final classification of
such amounts to prescribed primary accounts for plant in service,

2. The information specified by this schedule for Account 106,

Completed construction Not Classified-Electric, shall be
furnished even though this account is included in the
schedule, Electric Plant in Service, pages 401-403, according
to a tentative classification by primary accounts.

3. Show iteras relating to "research and development” projects
last under a caption Research and Development: (See account
107, Uniform System of Accounts).

4. Minor projects may be grouped.

Completed Con- Estimated
Line Description of Project Construction Work struction Not Additional
No. in Progress-Electric | Classified-Electric Cost of
(Account 107) (Account 106) Project
(a) (b) © (d)
1 GHENT 345KV BREAKER ADDITION 3 629,509 $ 148,131
2 PARAMETER UPGRADE TRANSMISSION LINE 3 430,973
3 LYNCH TO POCKET 69KV HOLMES MILL A 391,664 3 156,155
4 SHELBYVILLE-SIMPSONVILLE 69KV THERMAL UPGRADE 3 373,727 $ 616,494
5 CRITICAL SPARE 138/69 KV TRANSFORMER 3 367,705 g 582,030
6 KU TRANSMISSION BLANKET 3 310,012
7 K7 PARAMETER UPGRADES TRANSMISSION LINE 3 295,512
8 MISCELLANEOUS TRANSMISSION CAPITAL by 290,745
9 HIGHWAY 52 RELOCATION RICHMOND s 277,094
10 INNOVATION DRIVE SUBSTATION 138KV TAP 5 269,950 $ 599,277
il HORSECAVE TRANSFORMER SUB 799 RECONDUTOR TAP TO SUB 611 5 265,139 S 73,017
12 UK MEDICAL CENTER CONTROL HOUSE RELOCATION M 257,237
13 REPLACE FAILED HARLAN TRANSFORMER $ 242,556 s 93,701
14 LEBANON EAST SUBSTATION $ 232,036 3 126,016
15 NEW FACILITIES TRANSMISSION LINE $ 198,190
16 REPLACE UNDERRATED 69KV BREAKERS FAWKES SUBSTATION 3 194,998 g {8,809
17 TAYLOR CO TRANSFORMER 3 183,753
18 GARRARD COUNTY HIGH SCHOOL. g 179,919
19 BIGBY MILL UK MEDICAL CENTER SYSTEM PARAMETERS S 174,546 $ 394,004
20 DETROIT HARVESTER SECTION OF PARIS-LEXINGTON PLANT $ 173,262 $ 191,775
21 RECONDUCTOR PARKERS MILL TAP 69KV $ 167,597 3 98,361
22 LOUDEN AVENUE HAEFLING 138KV HIGHWAY RELOCATION $ 167,563 3 206,396
23 MILLERSBURG CONTROL HOUSE REPLACEMENT 3 164,141 S 135,639
24 NEW FACILITIES TRANSMISSION LINE 3 161,125
25 TRANSMISSION LINE RELOCATION K1) £ 133,243
26 OPEN SYSTEM INTERNATIONAL ENERGY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM $ 127,375 s 11,916
27 KU REMOTE TERMINAL UNIT PURCHASE b 121,012
28 PURCHASE SPARE TRANSMISSION CIRCUIT BREAKERS 3 113,776 b3 20,182
29 HARRODSBURG-ADD 69KV BREAKERS FOR CUSTOMER $ 112,379 $ 267,615
30 DELVINTA 824 CARRIER ADDITION $ 109,270 .
31 TRANSMISSION - MINOR PROJECTS $ 2,257,524 1 § 8,505,835 { % 24,221,213
32
33 DISTRIBUTION
34 PURCHASE PROPERTY FOR INNOVATION DR. SUB. #428-1 3 3,853,688
35 INSTALL LEBANON JUNCTION SUB 5 1,812,414
36 W360 LTC REBUILD 3 1,483,468 5 178,862
37 NEW BUSINESS SERVICE - U/G - SHELBYVILLE $ 1,401,943
38 PURCHASE OF METERS 3 1,384,274
39 STORM PROJECT $ 1,321,114
40 NEW ELECTRIC SERVICE - O/H - NORTON $ 1,304,846
4] ATR GAS SUBSTATION 3 1,287,203 3 987,797
TOTAL S 1,176,440,172 | S 437,171,600 1 § 368,133,046

VASCC 0-2
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process of construction and completed construction not classificd for
projects actually in scrvice. For any substantial amounts of
completed construction not classified for plant actually in service
cxplain the circumstances which have prevented final classification of
such antounts to prescribed primary accounts for plant in scrvice.

2. The information specified by this schedule for Account 106,

Name of Respondent This report is: Date of Report Year of Report
(1) _X_ AnOriginal (Mo, Da, Yr)
KENTUCKY UTILITIES COMPANY {2) A Resubmission December 31, 2008
CONSTRUCTION WORK IN PROGRESS AND COMPLETED CONSTRUCTION NOT
CLASSIFIED -ELECTRIC (Accounts 107 and 106)
1. Repont below descriptions and balances at end of year of projects in Completed construction Not Classified-Electric, shali be

furnished even though this account is included in the
schedule, Electric Plant in Service, pages 401-403, according
to a tentative classification by primary accounts.

3, Show items relating to “research and development” projects
last under a caption Research and Development: (See account
107, Uniform System of Accounts).

4. Minor projects may be grouped.
Completed Con- Estimated
Line Description of Project Construction Work struction Not Additional
No. in Progress-Electric | Classified-Electric Costof
{Account 107) (Account 106) Project
() () (©) (d)
1 NEW ELECTRIC SERVICE - O/H - PINEVILLE 3 1,190,212
2 PURCHASE TRANSFORMER 315 b 1,068,301
3 PUBLIC WORKS RELOCATION - O/H - LEXINGTON $ 1,003,728
4 BRYANT ROAD #3 SUBSTATION & TEMPORARY TRANSFORMER S 938,428 $ 539,537
S ADD TRANSFORMER HORSE CAVE INDUSTRIAL $ 930,561 5 60,639
6 STORMSFEBS &6 s 866,977
7 PURCHASE PROPERTY LEXINGTON EAST AREA SUBSTATION 3 788,353 3 38,977
8 KU GENERAL RELIABILITY 3 782,279 b 97,563
9 CONSTRUCT LEBANON EAST SUB s 772,008 % 204,932
10 SCM REPAIR/REPLACE FAILED TRANSFORMERS 3 760,977
11 CITY OF BARDSTOWN SUB 3 749,919 3 255,081
12 PURCHASE TRANSFORMERS 236 3 703,164
13 PURCHASE 161X69 SPARE TRANSFORMER 3 693,043
14 TROUBLE ORDERS O/H 246 $ 639,383
15 ADD TRANSFORMER UNION UNDERWEAR N 633,411 5 26,589
16 DISTRIBUTION RELIABILITY 156 s 631,501
17 REPLACE SHUN PIKE TRANSFORMER 3 575,715
18 STAMPING GROUND INSTALL 10 MVA TRANSFORMER $ 548,358 3 438,656
19 BELL COUNTY COAlL GARMEADA #2 3 495,746 3 445,211
20 TROUBLE ORDERS O/H 256 3 473,587
21 NEW BUSINESS RESIDENTIAL 216 3 470,092
22 REPLACE TRANSFORMER 7/14 WOODLAWN 3 461,610 3 101,190
23 REPLACE 69/34 TRANSFORMER DORCHESTER 3 438,507
24 SCM EARL GREEN RIVER PLANT TRANSFORMER $ 429,999 5 5,001
25 PUBLIC WORKS RELOCATION - O/H - ELIZABETHTOWN 3 428,645
26 NEW BUSINESS RESIDENTIAL - U/G - LEXINGTON $ 411271 | $ 2,021,518
27 ROGERS GAP DISTRIBUTION b 406,447
28 REPAIR/REPLACE DEFECTIVE STREET LIGHTS 366 § 386,397
29 WINTER STORM 2-11 3 374,402
30 DISTRIBUTION CAPACITORS KU 3 371,803 5 103,197
31 PURCHASE TRANSFORMERS 366 3 364,539
32 PURCHASE TRANSFORMERS 256 3 349,717
33 TROUBLE ORDERS 216 $ 337,618
34 REPAIR REPLACE DEFECTIVE STREET LIGHTS 256 s 332,114
35 PURCHASE TRANSFORMER 246 $ 326,048
36 PUBLIC WORKS RELOCATION - O/H - DANVILLE s 306,348
37 BROWN 1,2, 3 FGD $ 305,969
38 INSTALL NEW 795 CIRCUIT TO NESTLE PLAN 2 5 304,805
39 CONSTRUCT NEW CIRCUIT FROM BRYANT TEMPORARY SUB 5 294,965 S 26,359
40 SUBSTATION ABB TYPE TRANSFORMER REPLACEMENT $ 291,042
41 REPLACE TRANSFORMER AT KY STATE HOSPITAL SUB. #587 $ 274,679 $ 246,321
TOTAL 3 1,176,440,172 | § 437,171,600 | § 368,133,046
VASCC 0-3 Next Page is 0-4




Name of Respondent This report is:

KENTUCKY UTILITIES COMPANY

(1) _X_ AnOriginal
(2) A Resubmission

Date of Report Year of Report
(Mo, Da, Yr)
December 31, 2008

CONSTRUCTION WORK IN PROGRESS AND COMPLETED CONSTRUCTION NOT
CLASSIFIED -ELECTRIC (Accounts 107 and 106)

1. Report below descriptions and balances at end of year of projects in
process of construction and completed not classificd for
projects actually in service. For any substantial amounts of
completed construction not classificd for plant actually in service
explain the ci which have pr 1 fina) classification of
such amounts to prescribed primary accounts for plant in service.

2 The information specified by tiis schedule for Account 106,

Compieted construction Not Classilied-Electric, shall be
furnished even though this account is inciuded in the
schedule, Electric Plant in Service, pages 401-403, according
to a tentative classification by primary accounts.

3. Show items relating to “research and development® projects
last under a caption Research and Development: (See account
107, Uniform System of Accounts).

4. Minor projects may be grouped.
Completed Con- Estimated
Line Description of Project Construction Work struction Not Additional
No. in Progress-Electric | Classified-Electric Cost of
(Account 107) {Account 106) Project
(2) ® (c) (@
1 SCM EARLINGTON SUBSTATION REPLACEMENT (S&C FUSES) S 266,224 $ 25,476
2 WINCHESTER WATER WORKS 5 254,763 $ 13,737
3 NEW BUSINESS COMMERCIAL 426 $ 251,108
4 WINDSTREAM TELEPHONE COMPANY POLE REPLACEMENT 5 249,740
5 KU DISTRIBUTION POWER FACTOR CORRECTION $ 247,660 ) 167,340
6 NEW BUSINESS COMMERCIAL 216 $ 244,147
7 NEW BUS INDUSTRIAL - U/G - ELIZABETHTOWN 3 239,590
8 OUTAGE MANAGEMENT SYSTEM UPGRADE $ 238,661 $ 6,946
9 INNOVATION WEST CIRCUIT 5 237,062 $ 141,100
10 TATES CREEK RD HIGHWAY RELOCATION 3 235,520 $ 154,814
1 REPLACE DEFECTIVE EQUIPMENT - O/H - PINEVILLE 5 234,199
12 ELIZABETHTOWN - STORM RESTORATION 5 232,034
13 NEW BUSINESS RESIDENTIAL 426 5 230,581
14 SCM TRANSFORMER REWINDERS 3 229,670 3 73,268
15 LONDON-STORM RESTORATION 3 226,445
16 TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT 256 $ 218,137
17 KU MOBILE INFRASTUCTURE $ 214,118
18 TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT 315 N 211,362
19 NEW BUSINESS RESIDENTIAL - O/H - LEXINGTON $ 209,646 | $ 1,007,979
20 TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT 246 $ 207,294
21 STRATTON PIKE REBUILD 3 206,772
22 INNOVATION U/G EXIT CIRCUITS 3 194,510 5 39,361
23 UNION UNDERWEAR CIRCUIT WORK S 190,563 $ 11,339
24 HIGHWAY RELOCATION KY1577 S 189,564
25 BOGGS LANE $ 185,147 $ 4,853
26 PURCHASE TRANSFORMERS 766 5 178,199
27 LEXINGTON STORM RESTORATION 5 177,308
28 SYSTEM ENHANCEMENTS - EXISTING CUSTOMERS ~ LEXINGTON $ 176,958 | § 62,674
29 SHELBYVILLE STORM RESTORATION $ 176,242
30 PUBLIC WORKS RELOCATION - O/H - LONDON 3 169,772
31 PAYNES DEPOT RD (US 62) HIGHWAY 5 168,552 $ 66,093
32 NEW BUS RESIDENTIAL - O/H - LONDON s 167,027 | § 241,621
33 DISTRIBUTION RELIABILITY 246 $ 166,661
34 HORSE CAVE RECONDUCTORING 5 165,066
35 EARLINGTON STORM RESTORATION 5 164,483
36 KU PC & PRINTER INFRASTRUCTURE 3 164,430
37 HORSE CAVE INDUSTRIAL SUBSTATION DISTRIBUTION WORK 3 159,632
38 SCM REPLACE BREAKERS b 157,951
39 TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT 156 S 157,517
40 PURCHASE TRANSFORMERS 156 S 157,126
41 PUBLIC WORKS RELOCATION - O/H - MAYSVILLE 5 154,891
TOTAL S 1,176,440,172 1 § 437,171,600 | S 368,133,046
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Name of Respondent This report is: Date of Report Year of Report
(1) _X_. AnOriginal (Mo, Da, Yr)
KENTUCKY UTILITIES COMPANY (2) ___ A Resubmission December 31, 2008

CONSTRUCTION WORXK IN PROGRESS AND COMPLETED CONSTRUCTION NOT
CLASSIFIED -ELECTRIC (Accounts 107 and 106)

1. Report below descriptions and balances at end of year of projects in Completed construction Not Classified-Electric, shalf be
process of construction and completed construction not classified for furnished even though this account is included in the
projects actually in service. For any substantial amounts of schedule, Electric Plant in Service, pages 401-403, according
completed construction nat classificd for plant actually in service to a tentative classification by primary accounts.
explain the cir which have 1 final classiication of 3, Show itemns relating to "research and development” projects
such amounts to prescribed primary accounts for plant in service. fast under a caption Research and Development: (See account
2. The information specified by this schedule for Account 106, 107, Uniform System of Accounts).
4. Minor projects may be grouped.
Completed Con- Estimated
Line Description of Project Construction Work struction Not Additional
No. in Progress-Electric | Classified-Electric Cost of
(Account 107) (Account 106) Project
(@) ®) © @
| NEW BUSINESS RESIDENTIAL - O/H - NORTON 5 152,126 | $ 1,453,929
2 LONDON FAWN VALLEY ESTATES SUBDIVISION U/G SYSTEM $ 152,049 $ 47,282
3 ADD REGULATORS AT ANDOVER $ 148,703 S 23,297
4 PURCHASE TRANSFORMERS 3 148,156
5 NEW BUSINESS INDUSTRIAL $ 144,749
6 SYSTEM ENHANCEMENTS - NEW CUSTOMERS - RICHMOND $ 140,938 | $ 184,601
7 KU GENERAL RELIABILITY s 138,942
8 NEW DOUBLE CIRCUIT TO CITATION BLVD. S 135,394 $ 27,131
9 KU SUBS REMOTE TERMINAL UNIT INSTALLS FOR EKPC METERING $ 134,851
10 TROUBLE ORDERS 5 134,605
il NEW BUSINESS COMMERCIAL - O/H - LEXINGTON $ 134,295 1 § 581,748
12 BRYANT ROAD #3 EXIT CIRCUIT $ 133,402
13 FOURMILE RECONDUCTOR ELECTRIC $ 131,587 s 4,763
14 PUBLIC WORKS RELOCATION - O/H - RICHMOND 3 128,010
15 DISTRIBUTION RELIABILITY 3 124,344
16 PUBLIC WORKS RELOCATION - O/H - NORTON $ 119,676
17 KY 519 HIGHWAY RELOCATION $ 117,757 3 71,153
18 PUBLIC WORKS RELOCATION - O/H - SHELBYVILLE $ 116,073
19 KU STORM WORK $ 114,997
20 SCM CENTRAL SPARTA UPGRADE $ 114,592 3 66,709
21 NEW BUSINESS SUBDIVISION - U/G - PINEVILLE $ 113,275
22 LEXINGTON AREA IMPROVEMENTS $ 108,407 $ 11,524
23 NEW BUSINESS SERVICE - U/G - LEXINGTON 3 106938 | § 8,028,534
24 RELOCATIONS CUSTOMER REQUEST 3 104,197 | § 207,186
25 NEW BUSINESS RESIDENTIAL - O/H - EARLINGTON $ 102,022 | § 1,074,505
26 WISE CIRCUIT 3 101,773 $ 11,217
27 SYSTEM ENHANCEMENT - EXISTING CUSTOMERS EARLINGTON $ 100,763 | $ 498,467
28 PURCHASE TRANSFORMER 5 100,641
29 NEW BUSINESS RESIDENTIAL - O/H - PINEVILLE 3 100,634 | § 524,498
30 DISTRIBUTION - MINOR PROJECTS $ 4018932 }S 100,858,679 | § 10,896,513
31
32 GENERAL PLANT
33 SAP FOR CUSTOMER CARE SYSTEM - KU 3 22,356,920 $ 6,613,860
34 CUSTOMER CARE SYSTEM - TECHNOLOGY KU 3 5,957,824
35 CUSTOMER CARE SYSTEM - CUSTOMER SERVICE KU 3 4,211,193
36 LAND MOBILE RADIO SYSTEM BUILDOUT $ 3,239,664 $ 1,474,324
37 CUSTOMER CARE SYSTEM - DEVELOPMENT KU s 1,226,793
38 CUSTOMER CARE SYSTEM - KU BUSINESS INTELLIGENCE $ 716,216
39 EVA REPLACEMENT PROJECT 5 486,066
40 TIER C REPLACEMENT KU $ 384,335 $ 22,576
41 EXTEND FIBER TO GREEN RIVER $ 364,365 5 21,035
TOTAL S 1,176,440,172 | § 437,171,600 | $ 368,133,046
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Nawme of Respondent This report is: Date of Report Year of Report
' (1) _X_ AnOriginal (Mo, Da, Yr)
KENTUCKY UTILITIES COMPANY (2) A Resubmission December 31, 2008

CONSTRUCTION WORK IN PROGRESS AND COMPLETED CONSTRUCTION NOT
CLASSIFIED -ELECTRIC (Accounts 107 and 106)

1. Report below deseriptions and balances at end of year of projects in
process of construction and completed construction not classified for
projects actually in service, For any substantial amounts of
completed construction niot classificd for plant actually in service
explain the circumstances which have p 1 final classification of
such amounts to prescribed primary accounts for plant in service,

Completed construction Not Classified-Electric, shall be
furnished even though this account is included in the
schedule, Electric Plant in Service, pages 401403, according
1o a tentative classification by primary accounts.

3. Show items relating to “research and development” projects
last under a caption Research and Development: (See account

2. The information specified by this schedule for A 1106, 107, Uniform System of Accounts).
4. Minor projects may be grouped.
Completed Con- Estimated
Line Description of Project Construction Work struction Not Additional
Ne. in Progress-Electric | Classified-Electric Costof
(Account 107) (Account 106) Project
() (b) ©) @
| NORTH KY BACKBONE RENOVATION 5 340,494 $ 900,131
2 COMPUTER TELEPHONE INTEGRATION REPLACEMENT KU $ 267,260 $ 38,368
3 CUSTOMER CARE SYSTEM - CHANGE MANAGEMENT KU 5 241,834
4 ORACLE FINANCIAL/MATERIAL APPLICATIONS 11.5.10.2 UPGRADE $ 204,880
5 ORACLE ISUPPORT PORTAL 5 177,579 3 9,246
6 MISCELLANEQUS KU BUSINESS OFFICE $ 150,395
7 AVAYA UPGRADES REMOTE KU SYSTEMS $ 149,553 3 447
8 DEVELOP KU CAMPUS NETWORK 3 148,382 $ 1,618
9 KU CARPET AND TiLE REPLACEMENT s 145,397
10 ACCESS SWITCH ROTATION 3 144,707 S 1,933
11 SERVER HARDWARE REFRESH by 142,649
12 LEXINGTON PURCHASE E-Z HAULER. S 132,373
13 BACKUP STRATEGY EXPANSION PROJECT 5 128,632
14 KU INTERNAL REQUESTS $ 122,366
15 ELIZABETHTOWN STOREROOM PAVING $ 108,052
16 NAS NETWORK ATTACHED STORAGE 5 103,333
17 SHELBYVILLE STOREROOM PAVING by 102,508
18 GENERAL PLANT - MINOR PROJECTS 5 3,496,230 | § 3,721,501 | § 2,688,156
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
3]
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
4]
TOTAL S 1,176,440,172 | 8 437,171,600 | S 368,133,046
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Name of Respondent This report is: Date of Report Year of Report
(1) _X_ An Original (Mo, Da, Y1)
KENTUCKY UTILITIES COMPANY [(2) A Resubmission December 31, 2008

SALES TO RAILROADS AND RAILWAYS AND INTERNATIONAL SALES

1. Report particulars concemning sales included in Accounts 446 and

448

2. For Sales to Railroads and Railways, Account 446, give name of
railroad or railway in addition to other required information. If
contract covers several points of delivery and small amounts of
electricity are delivered at each point, such sales may be grouped.

3.

For Interdepartmental Sales, Account 448, give name of other
department and basis of charge to other department in addition

to other required information
Designate associated Companies.

Provide subheading and total for each account.

Line

No. lte

(a)

m Point of Delivery
(b)

Revenue

(d)

Kilowatt-hours

(c)

Revenue
Per KWH
(e)

NONE

P N L N S

Y— et el
e N -

—
W

RENT FROM ELECTRIC PROPERTY AND INTERDEPARTMENTAL RENTS (Accounts 454, 455)

1. Report particulars concerning rents received included in

Accounts 454 and 4
2. Minor rents may be

55.
grouped by classes.

3. Ifrents are included which were arrived at under an
arrangement for apportioning expenses of a joint facility,
whereby the amount included in this account represents

>

profit or return on property, depreciation, and taxes,
give particulars and the basis of apportionment of such

charges to Account 454 or 455.

Designate if lessee is an associated company.
Provide a subheading and total for each account.

Amount of revenue

Ling Name of Lessee or Department Description of Property for year
No. (a) (b) (c)

16 |Account 454:

17 | Cingular Pole Attachments 55,236
18 | Comcast Cable Co Pole Attachments 72,654
19 { Frontier Vision Operating Partners Pole Attachments 46,567
20| Insight Communications Pole Attachments 103,549
21| Kentucky Data Link Pole Attachments 57,425
22 | New Wave Communications Pole Attachments 81,339
23 | Time Warner Pole Attachments 59,661
24 | Minor [tems (58 items less than 5% each) Pole Attachments 172,302
25

26

27

28

29

30

31| Aisin Automotive Cast Inc Facility Charges 41,144
32| Coming Inc Facility Charges 169,000
33 | Daramic Inc Facility Charges 41,407
34 | EIf Atochem Facility Charges 42,722
351 Plant Corporation Facility Charges 49,588
36| UVAW Facility Charges 88,894
37 | Minor ltems (64 items less than 5% each) Facility Charges 1,092,153
38

39 |Total Account 454 2.173,641

VASCC P
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Name of Respondent This report is: Date of Report Year of Report
(1) _X_ An Original (Mo, Da, ¥Yr)
KENTUCKY UTILITIES COMPANY (2) A Resubmission December 31, 2008

SALES OF WATER AND WATER POWER (Account 453)

1.

Report below the information callcd for conceming revenues derived
during the year from sales 1o others of water or water power.

2.

3. Designate associated companies.

In column ( c) shiow the name of the power development of the
respondent supplying the water or water power sold.

and other electric revenues derived from electric utility
operations during year. Report separately in this schedule the
total revenues from operation of fish and wildlife and
recreation facilities, regardless of whether such facilities are
operated by company or by contract concessionaires.

ventures, see account 456,
Designate associated companies.
Minor items may be grouped by classes.

2.
3.

Line Power plant development Amount of revenue
No. Name of purchaser Purpose for which water was used | supplying water or water for year
power
(a) (b) (c) (d)
1
2 | NONE 0
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10 TOTAL 0
MISCELLANEOUS SERVICE REVENUES AND OTHER ELECTRIC REVENUES (Accounts 451, 456)
1. Report particulars concerning miscellancous service revenues Provide a subheading and total for each account. For account 456,

list first revenues realized through Research and Development

Name of company and description of service Amount of revenue for year
@) (b)
11
12 jAccount 451
13 | Miscellaneous Service Revenues
14 Fees for Changing, Connecting, and Disconnecting
15 Services 1,358,829
16 [TOTAL 1,358,829
17
18 jAccount 456
19 | Other Electric Revenues
20 | Power Transmission Charges 8,888,020
21 Revenue Sufficiency Guarantee Make Whole Payment (MISO) 0
22 | MISO Schedule 10 Offset (3,931,171
23 Forfeiture of Refundable Cash Advance for Construction 237,463
24 Sales Tax Collection Fee 18,193
25 Sales of Material and Supplies 543,214
27 |TOTAL 5,755,719
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
LTOTAL ......... 7,114,548

S\VA Fasm 1120084
2008 VASCCQ.xis
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Name of Respondent This report is: Date of Report Year of Report
(1) _X_ AnOriginal (Mo, Da, Yr)
KENTUCKY UTILITIES COMPANY* (2) ___ A Resubmission December 31, 2008

ELECTRIC PLANT IN SERVICE (ACCOUNTS 101, 102, 103, AND 106)

1. Report below the original cost of electric plant in service according to the prescribed accounts.

2. In addition to the Account 101, Electric Plant in Service (Classified), this page and the next include Account 102, Electric Plant
Purchased or Sold; Account 103, Experimental Electric Plant Unclassified; and Account 106, Completed Construction Not Classified -
Electric. 3. Include in column ( c) or (d), as appropriate, corrections of additions and retirements for the current or proceeding year.

4. Enclose in parentheses credit adjustments or plant accounts to indicate the negative effect of such accounts. 5. Classify Account 106
according to prescribed accounts, on an estimated basis if necessary, and include the entries in column ( c). Also to be included in column

( ¢) are entries for reversals of tentative distributions of prior year reported in column (b). Likewise, if the respondent has a significant
amount of plant retirements which have not been classified to primary accounts at the end of the year, include in column (d) a tentative
distribution of such retirements, on an estimated basis, with appropriate contra entries to the account for accumulated depreciation provision.
Include also in column (d) reversals of tentative distribution of prior year classified retirements. Attach supplemental statements showing the
account distributions of these tentative classifications in columns ( ¢) and (d), including the reversals of the prior year's

Line Account Balance at
No. Beginning of Year Additions
(a) (b) (c)
1. INTANGIBLE PLANT
(301) Organization 5,339

(302) Franchises and Consents -
(303) Miscellaneous Intangible Plant -
TOTAL Intangible Plant (Enter total
of lines 2, 3, and 4) 5,339
2. PRODUCTION PLANT

A. Steam Production Plant

(310) Land and Land Rights -
(311) Structures and Improvements -
{312) Boiler Plant Equipment -
(313) Engines and Engine-Driven Generators -
(314) Turbogenerator Units -
(315) Accessory Electric Equipment -
(316) Misc. Power Plant Equipment -
TOTAL Steam Production Plant (Enter
Total of lines 9 thru 16) -
B. Nuclear Production Plant

(320) Land and Land Rights -
(321) Structures and Improvements -
(322) Reactor Plant Equipment -
(323) Turbogenerator Units -
(324) Accessory Electric Equipment -
(325) Misc. Power Plant Equipment -
TOTAL Nuclear Production Plant (Enter
Total of lines 19 thru 24) -
C. Hydraulic Production Plant

(330) Land and Land Rights -
(331) Structures and Improvements -
(332) Reservoirs, Dams, and Waterways -
(333) Water Wheels, Turbines, & Generators -
(334) Accessory Electric Equipment -
(335) Misc. Power Plant Equipment -
(336) Roads, Railroads, and Bridges -
TOTAL Hydraulic Production Plant (Enter
Total of lines 28 and 34) -
D. Other Production Plant

(340) Land and Land Rights -
(341) Structures and Improvements -
(342) Fuel Holders, Products and Accessories -
(343) Prime Movers -
(344) Generators -
(345) Accessory Electric Equipment -

SO SO OO O FCRE SN PSR FA IR FL IR SU IR PE AR US DR USRE PR I 6 I (S T NG T 6 6 I (S N S I S LS B B e el el e e el e
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Name of Respondent This report is: Date of Report Year of Report
(1) _X_ An Original (Mo, Da, Y1)
KENTUCKY UTILITIES COMPANY* (2) ___ A Resubmission December 31, 2008
ELETRIC PLANT IN SERVICE (ACCOUNTS 101, 102, 103, AND 106)
tentative account distributions of these amounts. Careful observance of the above instructions and the texts of Accounts 101 and 106 will
avoid serious omissions of the reported amount of respondent's plant actually in service at end of year. 6. Show in column (f)
reclassifications or transfers within utility plant accounts. Include also in column (f) the additions or reductions of primary account
classifications arising from distribution of amounts intially recorded in Account 102. In showing the clearance of Account 102, include in
column (e) the amounts with respect to accumulated provision for depreciation, acquisition adjustments, etc., and show in column (f) only
the offset to the debits or credits distributed in column (f) to primary account classifications. 7. For Account 399, state the nature and use
of plant included in this account and, if substantial in amount, submit a supplementary statement showing subaccount classification of such
plant conforming to the requirements of these pages. 8. For each amount comprising the reported balance and changes in Account 102,
state journal entries have been filed with the Commission as required by the Uniform System of Accounts. Give also date of such filing,
Balance at
Retirements Adjustments Transfers End of Year Line
(d) (e) ® (g) No.
1
- 5,339 (301) 2
- . (302) 3
- - (303) 4
5
- 5,339 6
7
8
- - (310) 9
- - 311) 10
- - (312) 11
- - (313) 12
- - (314) 13
- - (315) 14
- - (316) 15
16
- - 17
18
- . (320) 19
- - @2 20
- - (322) 21
- - (323) 22
- - (324)] 23
- - (325) 24
25
- - 26
27
- - (330) 28
- - (331) 29
- (332) 30
- - (333) 31
- - (334) 32
- - (335) 33
- - (336) 34
35
- - 36
37
- - (340)] 38
- . (341) 39
. . (342)} 40
- - (343) 41
. - (344)| 42
- - (345)] 43
* AMOUNTS ARE VIRGINIA ONLY
FERC FORM NO.1 (ED. 12-88) VASCC 205 Next Page is VASCC 206




Name of Respondent

KENTUCKY UTILITIES COMPANY*

This report is:
(1) _X_ An Original

(2) A Resubmission

Date of Report
(Mo, Da, Y1)

Year of Report

December 31, 2008

ELECTRIC PLANT IN SERVICE (ACCOUNTS 101, 102, 103, AND 106) (Continued)

Line Account Balance at
No. Beginning of Year Additions
(@) (b) ©)

44 [(346) Misc Power Plant Equipment - -
45 TOTAL Other Production Plant (Enter

46 Total of lines 38 thru 44) - -
47 | TOTAL Production Plant (Enter Total

48 of lines 17, 26, 36, and 46) - -
49 3. TRANSMISSION PLANT

50 |(350) Land and Land Rights 1,850,199 -
51 {(352) Structures and Improvements 1,050,163 -
52 1(353) Station Equipment 14,450,889 2,383,549
53 |(354) Towers and Fixtures 6,714,334 -
54 |(355) Poles and Fixtures 6,765,552 68,579
55 |(356) Overhead Conductors and Devices 12,942,897 4,861
56 |(357) Underground Conduit - -
57 |(358) Underground Conductors and Devices - -
58 [(359) Roads and Trails - -
59 TOTAL Transmission Plant (Enter Total

60 of lines 50 thru 58) 43,774,034 2,456,989
61 4. DISTRIBUTION PLANT

62 1(360) Land and Land Rights 162,404 -
63 1(361) Structures and Improvements 379,828 -
64 1(362) Station Equipment 6,315,253 80,606
65 |(363) Storage Battery Equipment - -
66 |(364) Poles, Towers, and Fixtures 14,555,512 5,056,731
67 1(365) Overhead Conductors and Devices 13,663,125 5,396,491
68 1(366) Underground Conductors and Devices - -
69 {(367) Underground Conductors and Devices 669,002 1,036,902
70 |(368) Line Transformers 12,522,631 -
71 {(369) Services 5,091,007 894,795
72 |(370) Meters 3,616,919 -
73 |(371) Installations on Customer Premises 868,638

74 {(372) Leased Property on Customer Prernises - -
75 |(373) Street Lighting and Signal Systems 1,315,608 734,135
76 | TOTAL Distribution Plant (Enter Total

77 of lines 62 thru 75) 59,159,927 13,199,660
78 5. GENERAL PLANT

79 {(389) Land and Land Rights 80,602

80 {(390) Structures and Improvements 596,264 -
81 {(391) Office Furniture and Equipment 7,397 -
82 |(392) Transportation Equipment 984,507 -
83 |(393) Stores Equipment 8,103 -
84 1(394) Tools, Shop and Garage Equipment 282,593 -
85 |(395) Laboratory Equipment 34,640 -
86 1(396) Power Operated Equipment - -
87 {(397) Communication Equipment 550,541

88 {(398) Miscellaneous Equipment 9,128 -
89 | SUBTOTAL (Enter Total of lines

90 79 thru 88) 2,553,775 -
91 |(399) Other Tangible Property - -
92 | TOTAL General Plant (Enter Total

93 of lines 90 and 91) 2,553,775 -
94 TOTAL (Accounts 101 and 106) 105,493,075 15,656,649
95 |(102) Elec Plant Purchased (See Instr. 8) - -
96 |(Less) (102) Elec Plant Sold (See Instr. 8) - -
97 1(103) Experimental Plant Unclassified - -
98 TOTAL Electric Plant in Service 105,493,075 15,656,649

* AMOUNTS ARE VIRGINIA ONLY
FERC FORM NO.1 (ED. 12-88)
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This report is:

(1) _X  An Original

Date of Report
{Mo, Da, ¥Yr)

Year of Report

KENTUCKY UTILITIES COMPANY* (2) ___ A Resubmission December 31, 2008
ELETRIC PLANT IN SERVICE (ACCOUNTS 101, 102, 103, AND 106) (Continued)
Balance at
Retirements Transfers End of Year Line
{d) (f (8) No.
- - - (346) 44
45
- - 46
47
- - - 48
49
- (30,847) 1,819,352 (350) 50
- - 1,050,163 (352) 51
- - 16,834,438 (353) 52
- - 6,714,334 (354) 53
- (933,604) 5,800,527 (355) 54
- {990,118) 11,957,640 (356) 55
- - - (357 56
- - - (358) 57
- - - (359) 58
59
- (1,954,569) 44,276,454 60
61
- 30,847 193,251 360) 62
- 379,828 (361) 63
170 (22,911) 6,372,778 (362) 64
- - - (363) 65
- 769,581 20,381,824 (364) 66
- 990,822 20,050,438 (365) 67
- - - (366) 68
- - 1,705,904 367 69
13,200 - 12,509,431 (368) 70
- - 5,985,802 (369) 71
- - 3,616,919 (370) 72
- - 868,638 3711 73
- - - (372) 74
- - 2,049,743 (373) 75
76
13,370 1,768,339 74,114,556 77
78
- - 80,602 (389) 79
- - 596,264 (390) 80
. - 7,397 (391) 81
- - 984,507 (392) 82
- 8,103 (393) 33
- - 282,593 (394) 84
- 34,640 (395) 85
- - - (396) 86
- - 550,541 (397) 87
- 9,128 (398) 38
89
- - 2,553,775 90
- - - (399) 91
92
- - 2,553,775 93
13,370 (186,230) 120,950,124 94
- - - (102) 95
- - - 96
- - - (103) 97
13,370 (186,230) 120,950,124 98
* AMOUNTS ARE VIRGINIA ONLY
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Name of Respondent

KENTUCKY UTILITIES COMPANY*

This report is:
(1) _X_ AnOriginal

(2) ___ A Resubmission

Date of Report
(Mo, Da, Y1)

Year of Report

December 31, 2008

ELECTRIC OPERATING REVENUES (Account 400)

1.
2,

Report below operating revenues for each prescribed account, and manufactured gas revenues in total,

Report number of customers, columns (£) and (g), on the basis of meters, in addition to the number of flat rate accounts; except that
where separate meter readings are added for billing purposes, one customer should be counted for each group of meters added. The average
number of customers means the average of twelve figures at the close of each month. 3. If increases or decreases from previous year

(columns ( c), (¢), and (g)), are not derived from previously reported figures, explain any inconsistencies in a footnote.

VIRGINIA
OPERATING REVENUES
Line Title of Account Amount for Amount for
No. year Previous Year
(2) (b) (c)
1 Sales of Electricity
2 |(440) Residential Sales 26,739,734 25,973,321
3 |(442) Commercial and Industrial Sales w
4 |Small (or Comm.) (See Instr. 4)® 12,807,985 12,565,714
5 {Large (or Ind.) (See Instr. 4) ® 11,971,638 11,858,956
6 |(444) Public Street and Highway Lighting 276,493 250,996
7 {(445) Other Sales to Public Authorities 5,060,646 4,729,314
8 |(446) Sales o Railroads and Railways - .
9  |(448) Interdepartmental Sales - -
10 TOTAL Sales to Ultimate Consumers 56,856,496 55,378,301
11 |(447) Sales for Resale o -
12 TOTAL Sales of Electricity 56,856,496 55,378,301
13 |(Less) (449.1) Provision for Rate Refunds
14 TOTAL Revenues Net of Prov. For Refunds 56,856,496 55,378,301
15 |Other Operating Revenues
16 }(450) Forfeited Discounts - -
17 |(451) Miscellaneous Service Revenues 38,531 33,625
18 {(453) Sales of Water and Water Power - -
19 }(454) Rent from Electric Property 151,783 169,408
20 }(455) Interdepartmental Rents - -
21 |(456) Other Electric Revenues - 781
22
23
24
25
26 |TOTAL Other Operating Revenues 190,314 203.814
27 |TOTAL Electric Operating Revenues 57,046,810 55,582,115

@ Small Category includes Commercial Lighting and Power Accounts. Large category includes Industrial Lighting

o)

and Power and Mine Power Accounts. This is the same basis used for the previous year FERC Form No. 1.

Includes $594,509 unbilled revenues.

* AMOUNTS ARE VIRGINIA ONLY
FERC FORM NO.1 (ED. 12-90)
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Name of Respondent This report is: Date of Report Year of Report
(1) _X_ AnOriginal (Mo, Da, Yr)
KENTUCKY UTILITIES COMPANY* (2) A Resubmission December 31, 2008

ELECTRIC OPERATING REVENUES (Account 400) (Continued)

4. Commercial and Industrial Sales, Account 442, may be classified according to the basis of classification (Small or Commercial, and
Large or Industrial) regularly used by the respondent if such basis of classification is not generally greater than 1000 Kw of demand. (See
Account 442 of the Uniform System of Accounts. Explain basis of classification in a footnote.) 5. See page 108, Important Changes
During Year, for important new territory added and important rate increases or decreases. 6. For lines 2, 4, 5, and 6, see page 304 for
amounts relating to unbilled revenue by accounts. 7. Include unmetered sales. Provide details of such sales in a footnote.

VIRGINIA VIRGINIA
MEGAWATT HOURS SOLD AVG. NO. CUSTOMERS PER MONTH
Amount for Amount for Number for Number for Line
Year Previous Year Year Previous Year No.
(d) (e) () &
1
418,645 414,751 25,342 25,321 2
3
193,735 197,085 3,720 3,688 4
217,717 223,658 84 91 5
1,718 1,703 43 43 6
84,393 82,260 828 813 7
- - - - 8
- - - - 9
916,208 919,457 30,017 29,956 10
- - - - 11
916,208 | 919,457 30,017 20956 | 12
- - - - 13
916,208 919,457 30,017 29,956 14
 Includes (1,916) MWH relating to unbilled revenues.
* AMOUNTS ARE VIRGINIA ONLY
FERC FORM NO.1 (ED. 12-89) VASCC 301 Next Page is VATUR 300




This report is:
(1) _X_ An Original
(2) ____ A Resubmission

Name of Respondent

KENTUCKY UTILITIES COMPANY*

Date of Report
(Mo, Da, Yr)

Year of Report

December 31, 2008

ELECTRIC OPERATING REVENUES (Account 400)

1.  Report below operating revenues for each prescribed account, and manufactured gas revenues in total.

2. Report number of customers, columns (f) and (g), on the basis of meters, in addition to the number of flat rate accounts; except that
where separate meter readings are added for billing purposes, one customer should be counted for each group of meters added. The average

number of customers means the average of twelve figures at the close of each month. 3. If increases or decreases from previous year
(columns (c), {€), and (g)), are not derived from previously reported figures, explain any inconsistencies in a footnote.

VIRGINIA JURISDICTIONAL
OPERATING REVENUES
Line Title of Account Amount for Amount for
No. year Previous Year
(a) (b) (c)
1 Sales of Electricity
2 |(440) Residential Sales 26,739,734 25,973,321
3 |(442) Commercial and Industrial Sales *
4 |Small (or Comm.) (See Instr. 4)® 12,807,985 12,565,714
5 [Large (or Ind.) (See Instr. 4) @ 11,971,638 11,858,956
6  |(444) Public Street and Highway Lighting 5,030 5,085
7  1(445) Other Sales to Public Authorities 3,882,077 3,604,259
8  |(446) Sales to Railroads and Railways - -
9  [(448) Interdepartmental Sales - -
10 TOTAL Sales to Ultimate Consumers 55,406,464 54,007,335
11 |(447) Sales for Resale - -
12 TOTAL Sales of Electricity 55,406,4647] 54,007,335
13 |(Less) (449.1) Provision for Rate Refunds - -
14 TOTAL Revenues Net of Prov. For Refunds 55,406,464 54,007,335
15 |[Other Operating Revenues
16 |(450) Forfeited Discounts - -
17 |(451) Miscellaneous Service Revenues 38,199 33,339
18 |(453) Sales of Water and Water Power - -
19 [(454) Rent from Electric Property 62,130 91,492
20  |(455) Interdepartmental Rents - -
21 |(456) Other Electric Revemies - 752
22
23
24
25
26 TOTAL Other Operating Revenues 100,329 125,583
27 TOTAL Electric Operating Revenues 55,506,793 54,132,918

® Small Category includes Commercial Lighting and Power Accounts. Large category includes Industrial Lighting and Power

and Mine Power Accounts. This is the same basis used for the previous year FERC Form No. 1.
® Includes $ (2,577,151) unbilled revenues.

* AMOUNTS ARE VIRGINIA JURISDICTION ONLY

ERC FORM NO.1 (ED. 12-90)
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Name of Respondent This report is: Date of Report Year of Report
(1) _X_ AnOriginal (Mo, Da, Yr)
KENTUCKY UTILITIES COMPANY* (2) ____ A Resubmission December 31, 2008

ELECTRIC OPERATING REVENUES (Account 400) (Continued)

4. Commercial and Industrial Sales, Account 442, may be classified according to the basis of classification (Small or Commercial, and
Large or Industrial) regularly used by the respondent if such basis of classification is not generally greater than 1000 Kw of demand. (See
Account 442 of the Uniform System of Accounts. Explain basis of classification in a footnote.) 5. See page 108, Important Changes
During Year, for important new territory added and important rate increases of decreases. 6. For lines 2, 4, 5, and 6, see page 304 for
amounts relating to unbilled revenue by accounts. 7. Include unmetered sales. Provide details of such sales in a footnote.

VIRGINIA JURISDICTIONAL VIRGINIA JURISDICTIONAL
MEGAWATT HOURS SOLD AVG. NO. CUSTOMERS PER MONTH
Amount for Amount for Number for Number for Line
Year Previous Year Year Previous Year No.
{d) (e) () (2)
1
418,644 414,751 25,342 25,321 2
3
193,735 197,085 3,720 3,688 4
217,717 223,658 84 91 5
58 57 7 8 6
60,404 57,7717 665 654 7
- - - - 8
- - - - 9
890,558 893,328 29,818 29,762 10
) - - - 11
890,558 803,328 29,818 29,762 12
- - - - 13
890,558 893,328 29,818 29,762 14
 Includes 2,329 MWH relating to unbilled revenues.
* AMOUNTS ARE VIRGINIA JURISDICTION ONLY
FERC FORM NQ.1 (ED. 12-89) VAJUR 301 Next Page is Blank
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THIS FILING IS Form 1 Approved
OMB No. 1902-0021
ltemn 1:[X] An Initial (Original) OR [[] Resubmission No. (Expires 2/29/2009)
Submission Form 1-F Approved
OMB No. 1802-0028

(Expires 2/28/2009)
Form 3-Q Approved
OMB No. 1902-0205
(Expires 2/28/2009)

FERC FINANCIAL REPORT
FERC FORM No. 1: Annual Report of
Major Electric Utilities, Licensees
and Others and Supplemental
Form 3-Q: Quarterly Financial Report

These reports are mandatory under the Federal Power Act, Sections 3, 4(a), 304 and 309, and
18 CFR 141.1 and 141.400. Failure to report may result in criminal fines, civil penalties and
other sanctions as provided by law. The Federal Energy Regulatory Commission does not
consider these reports to be of confidential nature

Exact l.egal Name =f Respondent (Company) Year/Period of Report
Kentucky Utilities Cunpany End of 2008/Q4

FERC FORM No.1/3-Q (REV. 02-04)



PRICEAATERHOUSE( QOPERS

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
500 West Main Street

Suite 1800

Louisville KY 40202-4264
Telephone (502) 583 6100
Facsimile (502) 585 7875

Report of Independent Auditors

To the Board of Directors and Management of Kentucky Utilities Company:

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Kentucky Utilities Company (the "Company") as of
December 31, 2008 and 2007 and the related statements of income, retained earnings and cash flows for
the years then ended, included on pages 110 through 123.44 of the accompanying Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission Form 1. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstaternent. An audit includes examining, on
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

As described in Note 1, these financial statements were prepared in accordance with the accounting
requirements of the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission as set forth in its applicable Uniform System
of Accounts and published accounting releases, which is a comprehensive basis of accounting other than
generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America.

{n our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Kentucky Utilities Company as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with the accounting requirements of
the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission as set forth in its applicable Uniform System of Accounts and
published accounting releases.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the board of directors and management of
Kentucky Utilities Company and for filing with the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission and should not
be used for any other purpose.

@%Mom@,‘w L

March 24, 2009






INSTRUCTIONS FOR FILING FERC FORM NOS. 1 and 3-Q
GENERAL INFORMATION
I Purpose

FERC Form No. 1 (FERC Form 1) is an annual regulatory requirement for Major electric utilities, licensees and others
(18 C.F.R. § 141.1). FERC Form No. 3-Q { FERC Form 3-Q)is a quarterly regulatory requirement which supplements the
annual financial reporiing requirement (18 C.F.R. § 141.400). These reports are designed to collect financial and
operational information from electric utilities, licensees and others subject to the jurisdiction of the Federal Energy

Regulatory Commission. These reports are also considered to be non-confidential public use forms.
Il. Who Must Submit

Each Major electric utility, licensee, or other, as classified in the Commission’s Uniform System of Accounts
Prescribed for Public Utilities and Licensees Subject To the Provisions of The Federal Power Act (18 C.F.R. Part 101),
must submit FERC Form 1 (18 C.F.R. § 141.1), and FERC Form 3-Q (18 C.F.R. § 141.400).

Note: Major means having, in each of the three previous calendar years, sales or transmission service that
exceeds one of the following:

(1) one million megawatt hours of total annual sales,

(2) 100 megawait hours of annual sales for resale,

(3) 500 megawatt hours of annual power exchanges delivered, or

(4) 500 megawatt hours of annual wheeling for others (deliveries plus losses).

1. What and Where to Submit

(a) Submit FERC Forms 1 and 3-Q electronically through the forms submission software. Retain one copy of each report
for your files. Any electronic submission must be created by using the forms submission software provided free by the

Commission at its web site: http://www.ferc.gov/docs-filing/eforms/form-1/elec-subm-soft.asp. The software is
used to submit the electronic filing to the Commission via the Internet.

(b) The Corporate Officer Certification must be submitted elecironically as part of the FERC Forms 1 and 3-Q filings.

(¢) Submit immediately upon publication, by either eFiling or mail, two (2) copies to the Secretary of the Commission, the
latest Annual Report to Stockholders. Unless eFiling the Annual Report to Stockholders, mail the stockholders report to
the Secretary of the Commission at:

Secretary

Federal Energy Regulatory Commission
888 First Street, NE

Washington, DC 20426

(d) For the CPA Certification Statement, submit within 30 days after filing the FERC Form 1, a letter or report (not

applicable to filers classified as Class C or Class D prior to January 1, 1984). The CPA Certification Statement can be
either efiled or mailed to the Secretary of the Commission at the address above.

FERC FORM 1 & 3-Q (ED. 03-07) i
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The CPA Certification Statement should:

a) Attest to the conformity, in all material aspects, of the below listed (schedules and pages) with the
Commission's applicable Uniform System of Accounts (including applicable notes relating thereto and the
Chief Accountant's published accounting releases), and

b) Be signed by independent certified public accountants or an independent licensed public accountant
certified or licensed by a regulatory authority of a State or other political subdivision of the U. S. (See 18

C.F.R. §§ 41.10-41.12 for specific qualifications.)

Reference Schedules Pages
Comparative Balance Sheet 110-113
Statement of Income 114-117
Statement of Retained Earnings 118-119
Statement of Cash Flows 120-121
Notes to Financial Statements 122-123

e) The following format must be used for the CPA Certification Statement unless unusual circumstances or conditions,
explained in the letter or report, demand that it be varied. Insert parenthetical phrases only when exceptions are
reported.

“In connection with our regular examination of the financial statemenis of
reported separately underdateof ___________, we have also reviewed schedules
of FERC Form No. 1 for the year filed with the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, for
conformity in all material respects with the requirements of the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission as set forth in its
applicable Uniform Systemn of Accounts and published accounting releases. Our review for this purpose included such
tests of the accounting records and such other auditing procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

for the year ended on which we have

Based on our review, in our opinion the accomparnying schedules identified in the preceding paragraph
(except as noted below) conform in all material respects with the accounting requirements of the Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission as set forth in its applicable Uniform System of Accounts and published accounting releases.”

The letter or report must state which, if any, of the pages above do not conform to the Commission’s requirements.
Describe the discrepancies that exist.

(f) Fillers are encouraged to file their Annual Report to Stockholders, and the CPA Certification Statement using eFiling.
To further that effort, new selections, “Annual Report to Stockholders,” and "CPA Certification Statement” have been
added to the dropdown “pick list” from which companies must choose when eFiling. Further instructions are found on the

Commission’s website at hitp://www.ferc.gov/help/how-to.asp.

)] Federal, State and Local Governments and other authorized users may obtain additional blank copies of
FERC Form 1 and 3-Q free of charge from hitp://www.ferc.gov/docs-filing/eforms/form-1/form-1.pdf and
hitp://www.ferc.gov/docs-filing/eforms.asp#3Q-gas .

V. When to Submit:

FERC Forms 1 and 3-Q must be filed by the following schedule:

FERC FORM 1 & 3-Q (ED. 03-07) ji
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a) FERC Form 1 for each year ending December 31 must be filed by April 18t of the following year (18 CFR § 141.1), and

b) FERC Form 3-Q for each calendar quarter must be filed within 60 days after the reporting quarter (18 C.F.R. §
141.400).

V. Where to Send Comments on Public Reporting Burden.

The public reporting burden for the FERC Form 1 collection of information is estimated to average 1,144
hours per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and
maintaining the data-needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. The public reporting burden for
the FERC Form 3-Q collection of information is estimated to average 150 hours per response.

Send comments regarding these burden estimates or any aspect of these collections of information, including
suggestions for reducing burden, to the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, 888 First Street NE, Washington, DC
20426 (Attention: Information Clearance Officer); and to the Office of Information and Regulatory Affairs, Office of
Management and Budget, Washington, DC 20503 (Attention: Desk Officer for the Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission). No person shall be subject to any penalty if any collection of information does not display a valid control
number (44 U.S.C. § 3512 (a)).

FERC FORM 1 & 3-Q (ED. 03-07) il



GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS

L Prepare this report in conformity with the Uniform System of Accounts (18 CFR Part 101) (USofA). Interpret
all accounting words and phrases in accordance with the USofA.

il Enter in whole numbers (dollars or MWH) only, except where otherwise noted. (Enter cents for averages and
figures per unit where cents are important. The truncating of cents is allowed except on the four basic financial statements
where rounding is required.) The amounts shown on all supporting pages must agree with the amounts entered on the
statements that they support. When applying thresholds to determine significance for reporting purposes, use for balance
sheet accounts the balances at the end of the current reporting period, and use for statement of income accounts the
current year's year to date amounts.

Il Complete each question fully and accurately, even if it has been answered in a previous report. Enter the
word "None" where it truly and completely states the fact.

V. For any page(s) that is not applicable to the respondent, omit the page(s) and enter “NA,” "NONE,” or "Not
Applicable" in column (d) on the List of Schedules, pages 2 and 3.

V. Enter the month, day, and year for all dates. Use customary abbreviations. The "Date of Report” included in the
header of each page is to be completed only for resubmissions (see VII. below).

Vi. Generally, except for certain schedules, all numbers, whether they are expected o be debits or credits, must
be reported as positive. Numbers having a sign that is different from the expected sign must be reported by enclosing the
numbers in parentheses.

Vil For any resubmissions, submit the electronic filing using the form submission software only. Please explain
the reason for the resubmission in a footnote to the data field.

ViIL Do not make references to reports of previous periods/years or to other reports in lieu of required entries,
except as specifically authorized.

IX. Wherever (schedule) pages refer to figures from a previous period/year, the figures reported must be based
upon those shown by the report of the previous period/year, or an appropriate explanation given as to why the different
figures were used.

Definitions for statistical classifications used for completing schedules for transmission system reporting are as follows:

FNS - Firm Network Transmission Service for Self. "Firm" means service that can not be interrupted for economic reasons
and is intended fo remain reliable even under adverse conditions. "Network Service" is Network Transmission Service as
described in Order No. 888 and the Open Access Transmission Tariff. "Self" means the respondent.

FNO - Firm Network Service for Others. "Firm" means that service cannot be interrupted for economic reasons and is
intended to remain reliable even under adverse conditions. "Network Service" is Network Transmission Service as
described in Order No. 888 and the Open Access Transmission Tariff.

LFP - for Long-Term Firm Point-to-Point Transmission Reservations. "Long-Term" means one year or longer and” firm"
means that service cannot be interrupted for economic reasons and is infended to remain reliable even under adverse
conditions. "Point-to-Point Transmission Reservations” are described in Order No. 888 and the Open Access
Transmission Tariff. For all transactions identified as LFP, provide in a footnote the

FERC FORM 1 & 3-Q (ED. 03-07) iv



termination date of the contract defined as the earliest date either buyer or seller can unilaterally cancel the contract.

OLF - Other Long-Term Firm Transmission Service. Report service provided under contracts which do not conform to the
terms of the Open Access Transmission Tariff. "Long-Term" means one year or longer and “firm” means that service
cannot be interrupted for economic reasons and is intended to remain reliable even under adverse conditions. For all
transactions identified as OLF, provide in a footnote the termination date of the contract defined as the earliest date either
buyer or seller can unilaterally get out of the contract.

SFP - Short-Term Firm Point-to-Point Transmission Reservations. Use this classification for all firm point-to-point
transmission reservations, where the duration of each period of reservation is less than one-year.

NF - Non-Firm Transmission Service, where firm means that service cannot be interrupted for economic reasons and is
intended to remain reliable even under adverse conditions.

OS - Other Transmission Service. Use this classification only for those services which can not be placed in the
above-mentioned classifications, such as all other service regardless of the length of the contract and service FERC Form.
Describe the type of service in a footnote for each entry.

AD - Out-of-Period Adjustments. Use this code for any accounting adjustments or "true-ups” for service provided in prior
reporting periods. Provide an explanation in a footnote for each adjustment.

EFINITIONS
f Commission Authorization (Comm. Auth.) -- The authorization of the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, or any
other Commission. Name the commission whose authorization was obtained and give date of the authorization.

Il. Respondent -- The person, corporation, licensee, agency, authority, or other Legal entity or instrumentality in whose
ehalf the report is made. .

FERC FORM 1 & 3-Q (ED. 03-07) v



EXCERPTS FROM THE LAW
Federal Power Act, 16 U.S.C. § 791a-825r
Sec. 3. The words defined in this section shall have the following meanings for purposes of this Act, to with:

(3) "Corporation’ means any corporation, joint-stock company, partnership, association, business trust,
organized group of persons, whether incorporated or not, or a receiver or receivers, trustee or trustees of any of the
foregoing. it shall not include ‘'municipalities, as hereinafter defined;

(4) 'Person’ means an individual or a corporation,;

(5) 'Licensee, means any person, State, or municipality Licensed under the provisions of section 4 of this Act,
and any assignee or successor in interest thereof;

{7) 'municipality means a city, county, irrigation district, drainage district, or other political subdivision or
agency of a State competent under the Laws thereof to carry and the business of developing, transmitting, unitizing, or
distributing power; ......

(11) "project’ means. a complete unit of improvement or development, consisting of a power house, all water
conduits, all dams and appurtenant works and structures (including navigation structures) which are a part of said unit, and
all storage, diverting, or fore bay reservoirs directly connected therewith, the primary line or lines transmitting power there
from to the point of junction with the distribution system or with the interconnected primary transmission system, all
miscellaneous structures used and useful in connection with said unit or any part thereof, and all water rights,
rights-of-way, ditches, dams, reservoirs, Lands, or interest in Lands the use and occupancy of which are necessary or
appropriate in the maintenance and operation of such unit;

"Sec. 4. The Commission is hereby authorized and empowered

(a) To make investigations and to collect and record data concerning the utilization of the water 'resources of any region to
be developed, the water-power industry and its relation to other industries and to interstate or foreign commerce, and
concerning the location, capacity, development -costs, and relation to markets of power sites; ... to the extent the
Commission may deem necessary or useful for the purposes of this Act.”

"Sec. 304. (a) Every Licensee and every public utility shall file with the Commission such annual and other periodic or
special* reports as the Commission may be rules and regulations or other prescribe as necessary or appropriate fo assist
the Commission in the -proper administration of this Act. The Commission may prescribe the manner and FERC Form in
which such reports salt be made, and require from such persons specific answers to all questions upon which the
Commission may need information. The Commission may require that such reports shall include, among other things, full
information as to assets and Liabilities, capitalization, net investment, and reduction thereof, gross receipts, interest due
and paid, depreciation, and other reserves, cost of project and other facilities, cost of maintenance and operation of the
project and other facilities, cost of renewals and replacement of the project works and other facilities, depreciation,
generation, transmission, distribution, delivery, use, and sale of electric energy. The Commission may require any such
person to make adequate provision for currently determining such costs and other facts. Such reports shall be made under
oath unless the Commission otherwise specifies*.10

FERC FORM 1 & 3-Q (ED. 03-07) vi



"Sec. 309. The Commission shall have power to perform any and all acts, and to prescribe, issue, make, and rescind such
orders, rules and regulations as it may find necessary or appropriate to carry out the provisions of this Act. Among other
things, such rules and regulations may define accounting, technical, and trade terms used in this Act; and may prescribe
the FERC Form or FERC Forms of all statements, declarations, applications, and reports to be filed with the Commission,
the information which they shall contain, and the time within which they shali be field...”

General Penalties

The Commission may assess up to $1 million per day per violation of its rules and regulations. See
FPA § 316(a) (2005), 16 U.S.C. § 8250(a).
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FERC FORM NO. 1/3-Q:
REPORT OF MAJOR ELECTRIC UTILITIES, LICENSEES AND OTHER

IDENTIFICATION

01 Exact Legal Name of Respondent 02 Year/Period of Report

Kentucky Utilities Company End of 2008/Q4
03 Previous Name and Date of Change (if name changed during year)

i

04 Address of Principal Office at End of Period (Sireet, City, State, Zip Code)

220 West Main Street, P.O. Box 32010, Louisville, KY 40232
05 Name of Contact Person 06 Title of Contact Person

Mimi Kelly Magr - Regulatory Acct & Reprt
07 Address of Contact Person (Streel, City, State, Zip Code)

P.O. Box 32010, Louisville, KY 40232
08 Telephone of Contact Person,/ncluding] 09 This Report Is 10 Date of Report
Area Code (1)[X] An Original  (2) [] A Resubmission (Mo, Da, Yr)

(502) 627-2482 i

ANNUAL CORPORATE OFFICER CERTIFICATION

The undersigned officer certifies that:

| have examined this report and 1o the best of my knowledge, information, and belief all statements of fact contained in this report are correct statements
of the business affairs of the respondent and the financial statements, and other financial information contained in this report, conform in all material
respects to the Uniform System of Accounts.

01 Name _ 03 Signature 04 Date Signed
S, Bradford Rives (MO, Da, Yr)
02 Tille .
Chief Financial Officer S. Bradford Rives | 03r2412009

Title 18, U.5.C. 1001 makes it a crime for any person lo knowingly and willingly to make to any Agency or Department of the United States any

FERC FORM No.1/3-Q (REV. 02-04) Page 1



Name of Respondent This Report Is: Date of Report Year/Period of Report
(1) An Original (Mo, Da, Yr) End of 2008/Q4

Kentucky Utilities Company @ A Resubrmission Iy

LIST OF SCHEDULES (Electric Utility)

Enter in column (c) the terms "none,” "not applicable,” or "NA," as appropriate, where no information or amounts have been reported for
certain pages. Omit pages where the respondents are "none,"” "not applicable,” or "NA".

Line Title of Schedule Reference Remarks
No. Page No.
(a) (b} (c)
1] General Information 101
2| Controt Over Respondent 102
3| Corporations Confrolled by Respondent 103 None
4 | Officers 104
51 Directors 105
6 | Important Changes During the Year 108-109
7 | Comparative Balance Sheet 110-113
8 | Staternent of Income for the Year 114-117
9| Statement of Retained Eamings for the Year 118-119
10| Statement of Cash Flows 120-121
11| Notes to Financial Statements 122123
12| Statement of Accum Comp Income, Comp Income, and Hedging Activities 122(a)(b) None
13| Summary of Utility Plant & Accumulated Provisians for Dep, Amort & Dep 200-201
14 | Nuclear Fuel Materials 202-203 None
15| Electric Plant in Service 204-207
16| Electric Plant Leased to Others _ 213 None
17 | Electric Plant Held for Future Use ) 214
18 | Construction Woark in Progress-Eleclric 216
19 | Accumulated Provision for Depreciation of Electric Utility Plant 219
20 | investment of Subsidiary Companies 224.225 None
21 | Materials and Supplies 227
22| Alfowances 228-229
23 | Extraordinary Property Losses 230 None
24 | Unrecovered Plant and Regulatory Study Costs 230 None
25 Transmission Service and Generation Interconnection Study Costs 231 None
26 | Other Regulatory Assets 232
27 | Miscellaneous Deferred Debils 233
281 Accumulated Deferred Income Taxes 234
29 | Capital Stock 250-251
30| Other Paid-in Capital 253
31| Capital Stock Expense 254
32| Long-Term Debt 256-257
33 | Reconciliation of Reported Net Income with Taxable Inc for Fed Inc Tax 261
34 | Taxes Accrued, Prepaid and Charged During the Year 262-263
35 { Accumulated Deferred Investment Tax Credits 266-267
36 | Other Deferred Credits 269

FERGC FORM NO. 1 (ED. 12-96) Page 2



Name of Respondent 1:‘his Rey %rt l(s) ol
Kentucky Utilities Company gz; AnReQS;JT\ission

Date of Report
{Mo, Da, Y1)

l/

Year/Period of Report

End of

2008/Q4

LIST OF SCHEDULES (Electric Utility) (continued)

Enter in column (c) the terms "none,

"y

certain pages. Omit pages where the respondents are “none," "not applicable,” or "NA".

not applicable,” or "NA," as appropriate, where no information or amounts have been reported for

Line Title of Schedule Reference Remarks
No. Page No,
(a) (b) (c)
37 | Accumulated Deferred Income Taxes-Accelerated Amortization Property 272-273 None
38 | Accumulated Deferred Income Taxes-Other Property 274-275
39 | Accumulated Deferred Income Taxes-Other 276-277
40| Other Regulatory Liabilities 278
41| Electric Operating Revenues 300-301
42| Sales of Electricity by Rate Schedules 304
43| Sales for Resale 310-311
44 | Electric Operation and Maintenance Expenses 320-323
45 | Purchased Power 326-327
46 | Transmission of Electricity for Others 328-330
47 | Transmission of Electricity by ISO/RTOs 331 None
48 | Transmission of Electricity by Others 332
49| Miscellaneous General Expenses-Eiectric 335
50 | Depreciation and Amortization of Electric Plant 336-337
51| Regulatory Commission Expenses 350-351
52 | Research, Development and Demonstration Activities 352-353
53 | Distribution of Salaries and Wages 354-355
54 | Cornmon Utility Plant and Expenses 356 None
55 | Amounts included in ISO/RTO Settlement Statements 397
56 | Purchase and Sale of Ancillary Services 398
57 | Monthly Transmission System Peak Load 400
58 | Monthly ISO/RTO Transmission System Peak Load 400a None
59| Electric Energy Account 401
60 | Monthly Peaks and Output 401
61} Steamn Electric Generating Plant Statistics 402-403
62 | Hydroelectric Generating Plant Statistics 406-407
63 | Pumped Storage Generating Plant Statistics 408-409 None
64 | Generaling Plant Stafistics Pages 410-411 None
65 | Transmission Line Statistics Pages 422-423
66 | Transmission Lines Added During the Year 424-425

FERG FORM NO. 1 (ED. 12-96)
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Name of Respondent '(I:‘h)is Re| %rt '8 nal R?te Bf Rsp)ort Year/Period of Report
pree n Ongina o, La, Yr 2008/Q4
Kentucky Ulilities Company @ B A Resubmission ] Endof _ __ &7WoWA
LIST OF SCHEDULES (Electric Ulility) (coniinued)
Enter in column (c) the terms "none,” "not applicable,” or "NA," as appropriate, where no information or amounts have been reported for

certain pages. Omit pages where the respondents are "none,” "not applicable,” or "NA".

Line Title of Schedule Reference Remarks
No. Page No.
(a) (b} (©)
67 | Substations 426-427
450

68 | Footnote Data

Stockholders' Reports Check appropriate box:
[] Four copies will be submitted

No annual report to stockholders is prepared

FERC FORM NO. 1 (ED. 12-96) Page 4



Name of Respondent This Report Is: Date of Report Year/Period of Report

Kentucky Utilities Company (1) An Original (Mo, Da, Yr)
(2) O A Resubmission Iy, End of __2008/Q4

GENERAL INFORMATION

1. Provide name and title of officer having custody of the general corporate books of account and address of
office where the general corporate books are kept, and address of office where any other corporate books of account
are kept, if different from that where the general corporate books are kept.

S. Bradford Rives, Chief Financial Officer
220 West Main Street
Louisville, KY 40202

2. Provide the name of the State under the laws of which respondent is incorporated, and date of incorporation.
If incorporated under a special law, give reference to such law. If not incorporated, state that fact and give the type
of organization and the date organized.

Rentucky August 17, 1912
Virginia December 1, 1991

3. If at any time during the year the property of respondent was held by a receiver or trustee, give (a) name of
receiver or trustee, (b) date such receiver or irustee took possession, {c) the authority by which the receivership or
trusteeship was created, and (d) date when possession by receiver or frustee ceased.

Not Applicable

4. State the classes or utility and other services furnished by respondent during the year in each State in which
the respondent operated.

Respondent furnishes electric services in Rentucky, Tennessee, and Virginia.

5. Have you engaged as the principal accountant to audit your financial statements an accountant who is not
the principal accountant for your previous year's certified financial statements?

(1) [J VYes...Enter the date when such independent accountant was initially engaged:

(2) & No

FERC FORM No.1 (ED. 12-87) PAGE 101



Name of Respondent This Report Is: Date of Report Year/Period of Report
Kentucky Utilities Company ) An Original (Mo, Da, Yr)
(2) [0 A Resubmission Iy End of 2008/Q4

CONTROL OVER RESPONDENT

1. If any corporation, business trust, or similar organization or a combination of such organizations jointly held
control over the repondent at the end of the year, state name of controlling corporation or organization, manner in
which control was held, and extent of control. If control was in a holding company organization, show the chain
of ownership or control to the main parent company or organization. If control was held by a trustee(s), state
name of trustee(s), name of heneficiary or beneficiearies for whom trust was maintained, and purpose of the trust.

Kentucky Utilities Company (KU) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of E.ON U.S. LLC. E.ON U.S. LLC. is an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of E.ON AG, a German corporation, making KU an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of E.ON AG.

FERC FORM NO. 1 (ED. 12-96) Page 102
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Name of Respondent E{lh)is Re %rt 18 il Dﬁte Sf Ryeport Year/Period of Report
L YT
Kentucky Utiliies Company o & R on (Mo, Da. Y1 Endof __ 2008104
OFFICERS

1. Report below the name, title and salary for each executive officer whose salary is $50,000 or more. An "executive officer” of a
respondent includes its president, secretary, treasurer, and vice president in charge of a principal business unit, division or function

(such as sales, administration or finance), and any other person who performs similar policy making functions.

2. If a change was made during the year in the incumbent of any position, show name and total remuneration of the previous
incumbent, and the date the change in incumbency was made.

Line Title Name of Officer Salary
No. (@) (b) o
1 |CURRENT OFFICERS AT DECEMBER 31, 2008
2 |Chairman of the Board, President and
3 Chief Executive Officer Victor A. Staffieri
4 [Executive Vice President, General Counsel,
5 Corporate Secretary and Chief Compliance Officer John R. McCall
6 | Chief Financial Officer S. Bradford Rives
7 | Senior Vice President - Energy Delivery Chris Hermann
8 | Senlor Vice President - Human Resources Paula H. Pottinger
9 | Senior Vice President - Energy Services Paut W. Thompson
10 | Senior Vice President - information Technology Wendy C. Welsh
11 |Vice President - Federal Regulation and Policy Michael S. Beer
12 |Vice President - State Regulation and Rates Lonnie E. Bellar
13 |Vice President - Corporate Planning and Development Kent W. Blake
14 |Vice President - Pawer Production | ph
15 |Vice President - Corporate Responsiblity
16 and Community Affairs Laura G. Douglas
17 |Vice President - Communications R. W. Chip Keeling
18 |Vice President - Energy Delivery - Retail Business John P, Malloy
19 |Vice President and Deputy General Counsef - Legal
20 and Environmental Affairs Dorothy E. O'Brien
21 | Vice President - External Affairs George R. Siemens
22 }Vice President - Energy Marketing H 5t
23 |Vice President - Energy Delivery - Distribution
24 Operations P. Greg Thomas
25 |Vice President - Transmission and Generation Services £
26 |Treasurer Daniel K. Arbough
27 |Controller Valerie L. Scott
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
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Name of Respondent This Report is: Date of Report | Year/Period of Report
(1) X An Original (Mo, Da, Yr)
Kentucky Utilities Company (2) _ A Resubmission /1 2008/Q4
FOOTNOTE DATA

ISchedule Page: 104 Line No.: 1 Column: ¢

Salary information for all officers is on file in the office of the respondent.

ISchedule Page: 104 Line No.: 14 _ Column: b

Effective June 16, 2008, D. Ralph Bowling was appointed Vice President — Power Production.

[Schedule Page: 104 _ Line No.: 22 Column: b

Effective January 31, 2008, David S. Sinclair was appointed Vice President — Energy Marketing.

[Schedule Page: 104 _Line No.: 25 _Column: b

Effective June 16, 2008, John N. Voyles, Jr. was appointed Vice President — Transmission and Generation Services.
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Name of Respondent This Report Is:
(1) An Original

Kentucky Utilities Company @ D A Resubmission

Date of Report
{Mo, Da, Y1)

11

Year/Pericd of Report
End of 2008/Q4

DIRECTORS

titles of the directors who are officers of the respondent.

1. Report below the information called for concerning each director of the respondent who held office at any time during the year. Include in column (a), abbreviated

2. Designate members of the Executive Committee by a triple aslerisk and the Chairman of the Executive Commiitee by a double asterisk.

rine Name (and title) ot Director
N (a)

Principal Bu(ssi{:ess Address

CURRENT BOARD OF DIRECTORS AT DECEMBER 31, 2008

Victor A, Staffieri, Chairman of the Board, President

220 West Main Street, Louisville, KY 40202

and Chief Executive Officer

John R. McCall, EVP General Counsel, Corporate

220 West Main Street, Louisville, KY 40202

Secretary and Chief Compliance Officer

S. Bradford Rives, Chief Financial Officer

220 West Main Street, Louisville, KY 40202

Chris Hermann, SVP Energy Delivery

220 West Main Street, Louisville, KY 40202

Paul W. Thompson, SVP Energy Services

220 West Main Street, Louisville, KY 40202
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Name of Respondent This Report Is: Date of Report Year/Period of Report

Kentucky Utilities Company (1) [X] An Original ' End of 2008/Q4
(2} O A Resubmission 1 [

IMPORTANT CHANGES DURING THE QUARTER/YEAR

Give particulars (details) concerning the matters indicated below. Make the statements explicit and precise, and number them in
accordance with the inquiries. Each inquiry should be answered. Enter "none," "not applicable,” or "NA" where applicable. If
information which answers an inquiry is given elsewhere in the report, make a reference to the schedule in which it appears.

1. Changes in and important additions to franchise rights: Describe the actual consideration given therefore and state from whom the
franchise rights were acquired. If acquired without the payment of consideration, state that fact.

2. Acquisition of ownership in other companies by reorganization, merger, or consolidation with other companies: Give names of
companies involved, particulars concerning the transactions, name of the Commission authorizing the transaction, and reference to
Commission authorization,

3. Purchase or sale of an operating unit or system: Give a brief description of the property, and of the transactions relating thereto,
and reference to Commission authorization, if any was required. Give date journal entries called for by the Uniform System of Accounts
were submitted to the Commission.

4. Important leaseholds (other than leaseholds for natural gas lands) that have been acquired or given, assigned or surrendered: Give
effective dates, lengths of terms, names of parties, rents, and other condition. State name of Commission authorizing lease and give
reference to such authorization.

5. important extension or reduction of transmission or distribution system: State territory added or relinquished and date operations
began or ceased and give reference to Commission authorization, if any was required. State also the approximate number of
customers added or lost and approximate annual revenues of each class of service. Each natural gas company must also state major
new continuing sources of gas made available to it from purchases, development, purchase contract or otherwise, giving location and
approximate total gas volumes available, period of contracts, and other parties to any such arrangements, etc.

6. Obligations incurred as a result of issuance of securilies or assumption of liabilities or guarantees including issuance of short-term
debt and commercial paper having a maturity of one year or less. Give reference to FERC or State Commission authorization, as
appropriate, and the amount of obligation or guarantee.

7. Changes in articles of incorporation or amendments to charter: Explain the nature and purpose of such changes or amendments.
8. State the estimated annual effect and nature of any important wage scale changes during the year.

9. State briefly the status of any materially important legal proceedings pending at the end of the year, and the results of any such
proceedings culminated during the year.

10. Describe briefly any materially important transactions of the respondent not disclosed elsewhere in this report in which an officer,
director, security holder reported on Page 108, voting trustee, associated company or known associate of any of these persons was a
party or in which any such person had a material interest.

11. (Reserved.)

12. If the important changes during the year relating to the respondent company appearing in the annual report to stockholders are
applicable in every respect and furnish the data required by Instructions 1 to 11 above, such notes may be included on this page.

13. Describe fully any changes in officers, directors, major security holders and voting powers of the respondent that may have
occurred during the reporting period.

14. in the event that the respondent participates in a cash management program{(s} and its proprietary capital ratio is less than 30
percent please describe the significant events or transactions causing the proprietary capital ratio to be less than 30 percent, and the
extent to which the respondent has amounts loaned or money advanced to its parent, subsidiary, or affiliated companies through a
cash management program(s). Additionally, please describe plans, if any to regain at least a 30 percent proprietary ratio.

PAGE 108 INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
SEE PAGE 109 FOR REQUIRED INFORMATION.
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Name of Respondent This Report is: Date of Report |Year/Period of Report

(1) X An Original (Mo, Da, Yr)

Kenlucky Utilities Company (2) __ A Resubmission /! 2008/Q4

IMPORTANT CHANGES DURING THE QUARTER/YEAR (Conlinued)

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

None.
None.
None.
None of a material nature.
None of a material nature.

The Company had obtained authorization from the SEC under the Public Utility Holding Company Act of 1935
(PUHCA 1935) SEC File No. 70-10282 for the issuance of short-term debt up to $400 million through May 31,
2008. The Federal Power Act contained an exemption from FERC approval for securities issuances approved by
the SEC under PUHCA 2005. In connection with the repeal of the PUHCA of 1935, the Company also received
FERC authorization under the FPA Docket No. ES07-60-000 for up to $400 million in short-term debt through
November 30, 2009. The Company's money pool balance decreased from $116 million at September 30, 2008 to
$16 million at December 31, 2008. During the fourth quarter of 2008, the Company entered into a new long-term
joan agreement with an affiliate for $75 million which matures in 2018, as authorized by the Kentucky Public
Service Commission in its February 13, 2008 Order in Case No. 2007-00548, the Commonwealth of Virginia State
Corporation Commission in its January 16, 2008 Order in Case No. PUE-2007-00118, and the Tennessee
Regulatory Authority in its February 22, 2008 Order in Case No. 08-00009. In addition, the Company issued new
bonds totaling $78 million with a maturity date of February 1, 2032 as authorized by the Kentucky Public Service
Commission in its orders dated September 16, 2008 in Case No. 2008-00309 and June 17, 2008 in Case No.
2008-00132, the Commonwealth of Virginia State Corporation Commission in its orders dated August 29, 2008 in
Case No. PUE-2008-00077 and June 19, 2008 in Case No. PUE 2008-00034, and the Tennessee Regulatory
Authority in its orders dated September 15, 2008 in Case No. 08-00144 and July 15, 2008 in Case No. 08-00070.
This transaction involved the refinancing of $60 million of previously issued bonds and $18 million of new funding.

None.

During the year, routine wage increases became effective for union employees in accordance with a collective
bargaining agreement. Non-union employees received routine wage increases in accordance with annual salary
reviews and job rotations.

See Notes 2 and 7 of Notes to Financial Statements.

None.

N/A

N/A

Martyn Gallus, formerly Senior Vice President, Energy Marketing, is serving in a position with an international
affiliate, effective January 2008. Effective during January 2008, David S. Sinclair was appointed Vice President —
Energy Marketing. Effective during June 2008, John N. Voyles, Jr. was appointed Vice President — Transmission
and Generation Services. Additionally, during June 2008, D. Ralph Bowling was appointed Vice President —

Power Production.

The Company is a participant in a cash pooling arrangement, but its proprietary capital ratio is above 30 percent.
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Name of Respondent

This Report Is:

Date of Report

Year/Period of Report

Kentucky Utilities Gompany (1) XI An Original (Mo, Da, Y1)
(2) [J A Resubmission 11 End of ~2008/Q4
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET (ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS)
Line Current Year Prior Year
No. . Ref. End of Quarier/Year End Balance
Title of Account Page No. Balance 12/31
(a) (p) (c) G)]
1 UTILITY PLANT
2 | Utility Plant (101-106, 114) 200-201 4,446,017,779 3,867,960,512
3 | Construction Work in Progress (107) 200-201 1,176,440,172 1,071,388,626
4 | TOTAL Utility Plant (Enter Total of lines 2 and 3) 5.622,457,951 4,939,349,138
5 | (Less) Accum. Prov. for Depr. Amort. Depl. (108, 110, 111, 115) 200-201 2,052,492,161 1,931,454,524
6 | Net Utility Piant (Enter Total of line 4 less 5) 3,569,865,790 3,007,894,614
7 | Nuclear Fuel in Process of Ref., Conv.,Enrich., and Fab. (120.1) 202-203 0 0
8 | Nuclear Fuel Materials and Assemblies-Stock Account (120.2) 0 0
9 | Nuclear Fuel Assemblies in Reactor (120.3) 0 0
10 | Spent Nuclear Fuel (120.4) 0 0
11 | Nuclear Fuel Under Capital Leases (120.6) 0 0
12 | (Less) Accum. Prov. for Amort. of Nucl. Fuel Assemblies (120.5) 202-203 0 0
13 | Net Nuclear Fuel (Enter Total of lines 7-11 less 12) 0 0
14 | Net Utility Plant (Enter Total of lines 6 and 13) 3,569,965,790 3,007,894,614
15 | Utility Plant Adjustments (116) 122 0 0
16 | Gas Stored Underground - Noncurrent (117) 0 4]
17 OTHER PROPERTY AND INVESTMENTS ; b
18 | Nonutility Property (121) 179,121 180,29
19 |(Less) Accum. Prov. for Depr. and Amort. (122) 0 0
20 |Investments in Associated Companies (123) 22,051,387 22,502,868
21 | Investment in Subsidiary Companies (123.1) 224-225 0 0
22 | (For Cost of Account 123.1, See Footnote Page 224, line 42) :
23 | Noncurrent Portion of Allowances 228-229 0 0
24 | Other Investments (124) 661,140 661,140
25 [ Sinking Funds (125) 0 0
26 | Depreciation Fund (126) 0 0
27 | Amortization Fund - Federal (127) 0 0
28 | Other Special Funds (128) 5,897,831 5,915,884
29 | Special Funds (Non Major Only) (129) 0 0
30 |Long-Term Portion of Derivative Assels (175) 0 0
31 |Long-Term Portion of Derivative Assets — Hedges (176) 0 0
32 | TOTAL Other Property and Investments (Lines 18-21 and 23-31) 28,889,479 29,260,188
33 CURRENT AND ACCRUED ASSETS G S Z
34 | Cash and Working Funds (Non-major Only) (130) 0 0
35 |Cash (131) 2,413,346 321,021
36 | Special Deposits (132-134) 9,510,009 10,985,556
37 | Working Fund (135) 32,367, 38,680
38 | Temporary Cash Investments (136) 13 17,490
39 | Notes Receivable (141) 0 g
40 | Customer Accounts Receivable (142) 94,911,406 93,443,216
41 { Other Accounts Receivable (143) 12,623,606 21,261,831
42 | (Less) Accum. Prov. for Uncollectible Acct.-Credit (144) 2,878,505 1,939,209
43 | Notes Receivable from Associated Companies (145) 0 0
44 | Accounts Receivable from Assoc. Companies (146) 12,376,152 16,983,062
45 | Fuel Stock (151) 227 72,708,035 41,770,628
46 | Fuel Stock Expenses Undistributed (152) 227 0 0
47 |Residuals (Elec) and Extracted Products (153) 227 0 0
48 | Plant Malerials and Operating Supplies (154) 227 29,561,688 27,370,026
49 | Merchandise (155) 227 0 1]
50 | Other Materials and Supplies (156) 227 0 0
51 | Nuclear Materials Held for Sale (157) 202-2031227 0] 0
52 | Allowances (158.1 and 158.2) 228-229 74,419 382,894
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Name of Respondent

Kentucky Utilities Company

This Report Is:
(1) X An Original

(2) ] A Resubmission

Date of Report
(Mo, Da, Yr)
11!

Year/Period of Report

End of

2008/Q4

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET (ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITSjConlinued)

Line Current Year Prior Year
No. Ref. End of Quarter/Year End Balance
) Title of Account Page No. Balance 12/31
(2) {b) (c) (d)
53 |{Less) Noncurrent Portion of Allowances 0| 0
54 | Stores Expense Undistributed (163) 227 6,202,308 6,454,808
55 | Gas Stored Underground - Current (164.1) 0 0
56 | Liquefied Natural Gas Stored and Held for Processing (164.2-164.3) 0 0
57 | Prepayments (165) 5,833,903 5,293,879
58 | Advances for Gas (166-167) 0 0
59 |Interest and Dividends Receivable (171) 140,086 95,727
60 | Rents Receivable (172) 0 0
61 | Accrued Utility Revenues (173) 60,007,000 58,867,000
62 | Miscelianeous Current and Accrued Assets (174) 0 16,145
63 | Derivative Instrument Assets (175) 1,261,246 537,979
64 | (Less) Long-Term Portion of Derivative Instrument Assels (175) 0 0
65 | Derivative Instrument Assets - Hedges (176) 0 0
66 |(Less) Long-Term Portion of Derivalive Instrument Assels -~ Hedges (176 0 0
67 | Total Current and Accrued Assets (Lines 34 through 66) 304,777,080, 281,900,733
68 DEFERRED DEBITS ; A
69 | Unamortized Debt Expenses (181)
70 | Extraordinary Property Losses (182.1) 230
71 {Unrecovered Plant and Regulatory Study Costs (182.2) 230 0 0
72 | Other Regulatory Assets (182.3) 232 189,030,419 82,165,251
73 | Prelim. Survey and Investigation Charges (Electric) (183) 4,492,923 1,667,653
74 | Preliminary Natural Gas Survey and Investigation Charges 183.1)
75 | Other Preliminary Survey and Investigation Charges (183.2)
76 | Clearing Accounts (184)
77 | Temporary Facilities (185)
78 | Miscellaneous Deferred Debilts (186) 233 72,026,830 67,276,079
79 | Def. Losses from Disposition of Utility Pit. (187) 0 0
80 |Research, Devel. and Demonstration Expend. (188) 352-353 0 ]
81 | Unamortized Loss on Reaquired Debt (189) 13,356,279 10,173,667
82 | Accumulated Deferred Income Taxes (190) 234 50,686,900 50,753,516
83 | Unrecovered Purchased Gas Costs (191) 0 0
84 | Total Deferred Debits (lines 69 through 83) 334,886,216 216,948,864
85 |TOTAL ASSETS (lines 14-16, 32, 67, and 84) 4,238,518,565 3,536,004,399
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Name of Respondent This Report is: Date of Report |Year/Period of Report
(1) X An Original (Mo, Da, YI)
Kentucky Utilities Company {2) __ A Resubmission /1 2008/Q4
FOOTNOTE DATA

ISchedule Page: 110 Line No.: 76 __Column:

The negative balance resulted from a higher level of capital additions in 2007.

[FERC FORM NO. 1 (ED. 12-87)

Page 450.1




Name of Respondent This Report is: Date of Report Year/Period of Report
Kentucky Utilities Company () An Original (mo, da, yr)
(2) [0 A Rresubmission 1 end of 2008/Q4
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET (LIABILITIES AND OTHER CREDITS)
Line Current Year Prior Year
No. 4 Ref. End of Quarter/Year End Balance
Title of Account Page No. Balance 12/31
(@) (b} (c) {d)

1 PROPRIETARY CAPITAL
2 | Common Stock Issued (201) 250-251 308,139,978 308,139,978
3 Preferred Stock Issued (204) 250-251 0 0
4 | Capital Stock Subscribed (202, 205) 252 0 0
5 | Stock Liability for Conversion (203, 206) 252 0 0
6 | Premium on Capital Stock (207) 252 0 0
7 | Other Paid-in Capital (208-211) 253 240,711,597 90,000,000
8 Instaliments Received on Capital Stock (212) 252 0, 0
9 |(Less) Discount on Capilal Stock (213) 254 0 0
10 | (Less) Capital Stock Expense (214) 254 321,289 321,289
41 | Retained Eamings (215, 215.1, 216) 118-119 1,174,207,030 1,016,489,982
12 | Unappropriated Undistributed Subsidiary Earnings (216.1) 118-119 20,755,687 21,207,068
13 |(Less) Reaquired Capital Stock {217) 250-251 g 0
14 Noncorporate Proprietorship (Non-major only) (218) 0 0
15 | Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (219) 122(a)(b) 0 0
16 | Total Proprietary Capital (lines 2 through 15) 1,743,492,903] 1,435,515,739
17 |LONG-TERM DEBT
18 |{Bonds (221) 256-257 350,779,405 332,753,140
19 | (Less) Reaquired Bonds (222) 256-257 0 0
20 | Advances from Associated Companies {223) 256-257 1,181,000,000 931,000,000
21 | Other Long-Term Debt (224) 256-257 0 0
22 | Unamortized Premium on Long-Term Debt (225) 0 0
23 | (Less) Unamortized Discount on Long-Term Debt-Debit (226) 0 0
24 | Total Long-Term Debt (lines 18 through 23) 1,531,779,405 1,263,753,140
25 | OTHER NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
26 | Obligations Under Capital Leases - Noncurrent (227) 0 0
27 | Accumulated Provision for Property Insurance (228.1) 0 0
28 | Accumuiated Provision for Injuries and Damages (228.2) 2,592,340 3,098,518
29 | Accumulated Provision for Pensions and Benefits (228.3) 192,048,802 87,925,008
30 | Accumulated Miscellaneous Operating Provisions (228.4) 0 0
31 {Accumulated Provision for Rate Refunds (229) 0 0
32 |Long-Term Portion of Derivative Instrument Liabilities 0l 0
33 |Long-Term Portion of Derivative Instrument Liabilities - Hedges 0] 0
34 | Asset Retirement Obligations (230) 32,566,110, 30,315,059
35 | Total Other Noncurrent Liabilities (lines 26 through 34) 227,207,252 121,338,586
36 | CURRENT AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES
37 | Notes Payable (231) 0 0
38 |Accounts Payable (232) 162,946,460 161,858,433
39 | Notes Payable to Associated Companies (233) 16,247,454 23,219,454
40 | Accounts Payable to Associated Companies (234) 38,142,962 48,442,227
41 | Customer Deposits (235) 21,057,049 19,573,318
42 | Taxes Accrued (236) 262-263 8,558,560 4,089,209
43 |interest Accrued (237) 1,223,212 1,532,755
44 | Dividends Declared (238) 0 0
45 | Matured Long-Term Debt (238) 0 0
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Name of Respondent This Report is: Date of Report Year/Period of Report
Kentucky Utilities Company (1) An Original (mo, da, yr)
(2) [] A Rresubmission 1 end of 2008/Q4
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET (LIABILITIES AND OTHER CREDIT@)ntinued)
Line Current Year Prior Year
No, Ref. End of Quarter/Year End Balance
Title of Account Page No. Balance 12/31
(@) (b) (c) )]

46 | Matured Interest (240) 0 0
47 | Tax Collections Payable (241) 3,824,617, 3,515,457
48 | Miscellaneous Current and Accrued Liabilities {242) 12,215,206 10,756,715
49 | Obiigations Under Capital Leases-Current (243) 0 0
50 | Derivative Instrument Liabilities (244) 43,078 162,956
51 | (Less) Long-Term Portion of Derivative Instrument Liabilities 0) 0
52 | Derivative instrument Liabilities - Hedges (245) 0 0
53 | (Less) Long-Term Portion of Derivative Instrument Liabilities-Hedges 0 0
54 | Total Current and Accrued Liabilities (lines 37 through 53) 264,258,598 273,140,524
55 | DEFERRED CREDITS
86 | Customer Advances for Construction (252) 2,430,316 2,803,337
57 | Accumulated Deferred Investment Tax Credits (255) 266-267 79,951,702 54,999,112
58 | Deferred Gains fram Disposition of Utility Plant (256) 0 0
59 | Other Deferred Credits (253) 269 21,709,079 13,436,144
60 | Other Regulatory Liabilities (254) 278 40,483,283 37,721,036
61 | Unamoriized Gain on Reaquired Debt (257) 0 0
62 | Accum. Deferred Income Taxes-Accel. Amort.(281) 272-277 0 0
63 | Accum. Deferred Income Taxes-Other Property (282) 283,819,495 281,507,115
64 | Accum. Deferred Income Taxes-Other (283) 43,386,532 41,789,666
65 | Total Deferred Credits (lines 56 through 64) 471,780,407 442,256,410
66 | TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDER EQUITY (lines 16, 24, 35, 54 and 65) 4,238,518,565| 3,536,004,399
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Name of Respondent T1his Re| g\rg 'é - l’ﬁle gf Rsport Year/Period of Report
0, Lia T
Kentucky Utilities Company :2; EiA Re;'gg:issim ( e ) End of 2008/Q4

STATEMENT OF INCOME

Quarterly

1. Enter in column (d) the balance for the reporting quarter and in column (e} the balance for the same three month pericd for the prior year,

2. Report in column {f) the quarter fo date amounts for electric utility function; In column (h) the quarter to date amounts for gas utility, and in {j) the
quarter to date amounts for other utility function for the current year quarter.

3. Report in column (g) the quarter to date amounts for electric utility function; in column (i) the quarter to date amounts for gas utility, and in (k) the
quarter to date amounts for other utility function for the prior year quarter.

4. I additional columns are needed place them in a footnote.

Annual or Quarterly if applicable

5. Do not report fourth quarter data in columns (e) and (f)

6. Report amounts for accounts 412 and 413, Revenues and Expenses from Utility Plant Leased to Others, in another utility columnin a similar manner to
a utility department. Spread the amount(s) over lines 2 thru 26 as appropriate. Include these amounts in calumns {(c) and (d) totals.

7. Report amounts in account 414, Other Utility Operating Income, in the same manner as accounts 412 and 413 above.

8. Report data for lines 8, 10 and 11 for Natural Gas companies using accounts 404.1, 404.2, 404.3, 407.1 and 407.2.

Line Total Total Current 3 Months |  Prior 3 Months
No. Current Year to Prior Yearto Ended Ended
{Ref.) Dale Balance for | Date Balance for | Quartery Only Quarlerly Only
Title of Account Page No. | Quarter/Year Quarter/Year No 4th Quarter No 4th Quarter
(@) {b) (c) {d)
1 UTILITY OPERATING INCOME
2| Operating Revenues (400) 300-301
3| Operating Expenses
4 | Operation Expenses {401) 320-323 900 488 467 781 485 127
5 | Maintenance Expenses {402) 320-323 88,778,792 85,242,194
6 { Depreciation Expense (403) 336-337 130,780,795 115,064,736
7 | Depreciation Expense for Asset Retirement Costs (403.1) 336-337 334,214 199,429
81 Amort. & Depl. of Utility Plant {404-405) 336-337 5,229,656 5,420,545
9| Amort. of Utility Plant Acg. Adj. (406) 336-337

=y
o

Amort. Property Losses, Unrecov Plant and Regulatory Study Costs (407)

11 Amort. of Conversion Expenses {407)

12 | Regulatory Debits {407.3)

13| {Less) Requlatory Credits {407.4) 2,276,549 2,101,203
14 { Taxes Other Than Income Taxes (408.1) 262-263 20,661,004 18,439,077
15| Income Taxes - Federal (409.1) 262-263 43,184,629 27,762,416
16 - Other (409.1) 262-263 10,053,734 13,060,218
17 | Provision for Deferred Income Taxes (410.1) 234, 272-217 48,036,598 40,957,117
18 {Less) Provision for Deferred Income Taxes-Cr. (411.1) 234, 272217 61,388,975 47,805,346
19| investment Tax Credit Adj. - Net (411.4) 266 25,266,898 42,566,647
20} (Less) Gains from Disp. of Utility Plant {411.6)

21| Losses from Disp. of Utlity Plant (411.7)

22 l{Less) Gains from Disposition of Allowances (411.8) 583,107 706,852
23 | Losses from Disposition of Allowances (411.9)

24| Accretion Expense (411.10) 1,981,576 1,861,363
25| TOTAL Utility Operating Expenses (Enter Total of fines 4 thru 24) 1,210,547,822 1,081,445,468
26 | Net Util Oper Inc {Enter Tot line 2 less 25) Carry to Pg117,fine 27 193,494,231 191,103,431
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ri . Da,
Kentucky Ulilities Company @) A Resgtlar::ission { / 3 3, Y1) End of 2008/Q4

STATEMENT OF INCOME FOR THE YEAR (Continued)
9. Use page 122 for important notes regarding the statement of income for any account thereof.
10. Give concise explanations conceming unsettied rate proceedings where a contingency exists such that refunds of a material amount may need to be
made to the utility's customers or which may result in material refund to the utility with respect to power or gas purchases. State for each year effected
the gross revenues or costs to which the contingency relates and the tax effects together with an explanation of the major factors which affect the rights
of the ulility to retain such revenues or recover amounts paid with respect to power or gas purchases,
11 Give concise explanations conceming significant amounts of any refunds made or received during the year resulting from settiement of any rate
proceeding affecting revenues received or costs incurred for power or gas purches, and a summary of the adjustments made to balance sheet, income,

and expense accounts.

12. If any noles appearing in the report to stokholders are applicable to the Statement of Income, such notes may be included at page 122,
13. Enter on page 122 a conclse explanation of only those changes in accounting methods made during the year which had an effect on net income,
including the basis of allocations and apportionments from those used in the preceding year. Also, give the appropriate dollar effect of such changes.
14. Explain in a footnote if the previous year's/quarter's figures are different from that reported in prior reports.
15. If the columns are insufficient for reporting additional utility depariments, supply the appropriate account titles report the information in a fooinote to

this schedule.
ELECTRIC UTILITY GAS UTILITY OTHER UTILITY
Current Year to Date | Previous Year to Date Current Year to Date | Previous Year to Date | Ciment YeartoDale | Previous Year o Date | L-ine
(in dollars) (in dollars) (in dollars) (in dollars) (in dollars) {in dollars) No.
(q) (h}) 0] 0 k) 0

R 1
O asomos| tenswees] | | | [
; L s ‘ ‘;az : ; : ' i 4 m e SEETR L : R '.A o : i 3

900,488,467 781,485,127 4
88,778,792 85,242,194 5
130,780,795 115,064,736 6
334,214 199,429 7
5,229,656 5,420,545 8

9

10

11

12

2,276,549 2,101,203 13
20,661,094 18,439,077 14
43,184,629 27,762,416 15
10,053,734 13,060,218 16
48,036,598 40,857,117 17
61,388,975 47,805,346 18
25,266,898 42,566,647 19
20

21

583,107 706,852 22

23

1,981,576 1,861,363 24
1,210,547 822 1,081,445,468 25
193,494,231 191,103,431 26
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Name of Respondent This ReportIs: Date of Report Year/Period of Report
Kentucky Ulilities Company {3 ] ﬁnR(Z;ISt')r:i'ssion “\,'k; Da. ¥ Endof ___ 2008/Q4
STATEMENT OF INCOME FOR THE YEAR (continued)
Line TOTAL Cument 3 Months Prior 3 Months
No. - Ended Ended
(Ref.) Quarterly Only Quartery Only
Title of Account Page No. | Current Year | Previous Year| Nodih Quarler No 4th Quarter
(2) 9] (c) {d) le) (0
27 | Net Utllity Operating Income (Carried forward from page 114) 193,494,231 191,103,431
28| Other Income and Deductions Vel Bl Fas g B
29| Other Income
30 | Nonutilty Operating Income
31 | Revenues From Merchandising, Jobbing and Contract Work (415)
32| (Less) Costs and Exp. of Merchandising, Job. & Contract Work {416)
33 | Revenues From Nonutility Operations {417) 1,355,192 1,542,843
34 | (Less) Expenses of Nonutility Operations (417.1)
35| Nonoperating Rental Income (418) 25 6,560
36| Equity in Eamings of Subsidiary Companies (418.1) 119 29,548,519 26,358,781
37 | Inferest and Dividend Income {419) 1,483,141 2,954,429
38| Allowance for Other Funds Used During Construction (419.1) 6,040,969 3,327,105
39| Miscellaneous Nonoperating Income (421) 803,603 3,121,445
40| Gain on Disposition of Property (421.1) 3,206 1,156,882
41| TOTAL Other income (Enter Total of lines 31 thns 40) 39,234,655 38,468,645
42| Other Income Deductions
43| Loss on Disposilion of Propedy {421.2)
44 { Miscellaneous Amortizafion {425) 340
45} Donations (426.1) 340 478,457
46| Life Insurance (426.2) 707,185
47| Penalties {426.3) 2 2,004,094
48| Exp. for Certain Civic, Political & Relaled Activifies (426.4) 769,559 965,125
49] Other Deductions {426.5) 1,976,917 1,208,224
50| TOTAL Other income Deductions (Total of lines 43 thru 49) 1,014,930 5,843,321
51| Taxes Applic. to Other Income and Deductions ‘ A : &
52 | Taxes Other Than income Taxes (408.2) 262-263 9,625 11,004
53 |Income Taxes-Federal (409.2) 262-263 2,295,770 88,667
54 | Income Taxes-Other {409.2) 262-263 224,373 -183,585
55| Provision for Deferred inc. Taxes (410.2) 234, 272277 1,116,548 2,026,463
56 | (Less) Provision for Deferred Income Taxes-Cr. (411.2) 234, 272-277 534,443 504,303
57 | Investment Tax Credit Adj.-Net (411.5)
58 | (Less) Investment Tax Credits (420) 314,308 591,310
59| TOTAL Taxes on Other income and Deductions (Total of lines 52-58) 2,797,566 846,936
60 | Net Other Income and Deductions (Total of lines 41, 50, 59) 35,422,159 31,778,388
61| Interest Charges
62 ] Interest on Long-Term Debt {427} 12,778,173 13,677,837
63 | Amort, of Debt Disc. and Expense (428) 250,311 334,935
64 | Amortization of Loss on Reaquired Debt (428.1) 493,259 518,566
65| (Less) Amort. of Premium on Debt-Credit (429)
66 | (Less) Amortization of Gain on Reaquired Deb-Credit (429.1)
67 }Interest on Debt to Assoc. Companies {430) 340 57,859,639 41,244,367
68 | Other interest Expense (431) 340 2,317,908 1,089,347
69/ {Less) Allowance for Borowed Funds Used During Construction-Cr. (432) 2,048,468 955,807
70§ Net interest Charges (Total of lines 62 thru 63) 71,650,823 55,919,245
71 | Income Before Extraordinary ltems (Total of lines 27, 60 and 70) 157,265,567 166,962,574
72| Extraordinary items
73 | Extraordinary Income (434)
74 | {Less) Exiraordinary Deduclions {435)
75 | Net Exiraordinary ltems (Total of line 73 less line 74)
76| Income Taxes-Federal and Other {409.3) 262-263
77 | Extraordinary ltems After Taxes {line 75 less line 76)
78] Net Income (Total of line 71 and 77) 157,265,567 166,962,574
FERC FORM NO. 1/3-Q (REV. 02-04) Page 117



Name of Respondent This Report is: Date of Report |Year/Period of Report
' (1) X An Original (Mo, Da, Yr)
Kentucky Utilities Company (2) __ A Resubmission /! 2008/Q4
FOOTNOTE DATA

ISchedule Page: 114 Line No.: 46 Column: c

The 2008 balance represents the annual premium net of amortization of the cash value of

the policy. The 2007 balance represents only the annual premium.

In 2007, the

amortization of the cash value of the policy was recorded to account 421003.

\Schedule Page: 114 _ Line No.: 47 Column: ¢

The balance is a credit due to an adjustment of ($600,000) in 2008 to reduce a 2007

estimated penalty liability to actual.
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Name of Respondent
Kentucky Utilities Company

This Report Is:
(1) An Original

(2) C]A Resubmission

Date of Report
(Mo, Da, YT)

11

Year/Period of Report
Endof __ 2008/Q4

STATEMENT OF RETAINED EARNINGS

1. Do not report Lines 49-53 on the quarterly version.

2. Report all changes in appropriated retained earnings, unappropriated retained earnings, year to date, and unappropriated

undistributed subsidiary eamings for the year.

3. Each credit and debit during the year should be identified as to the retained earnings account in which recorded (Accounts 433, 436
- 439 inclusive). Show the contra primary account affected in column (b)

4. State the purpose and amount of each reservation or appropriation of retained earnings.

5. List first account 439, Adjustments to Retained Earnings, reflecting adjustments to the opening balance of retained earnings. Follow

by credit, then debit items in that order.

6. Show dividends for each class and series of capital stock.

7. Show separately the State and Federal income tax effect of items shown in account 439, Adjustments to Retained Earnings.

8. Explain in a footnote the basis for determining the amount reserved or appropriated. If such reservation or appropriation is to be
recurrent, state the number and annual amounts to be reserved or appropriated as well as the totals eventually to be accumulated.
9. If any notes appearing in the report to stockholiders are applicable to this statement, include them on pages 122-123.

Current Previous
Quarter/Year Quarter/Year
Contra Primary Year to Date Year to Date
Line item Account Affected Balance Balance
No. (a) (d)
UNAPPROPRIATED RETAINED EARNINGS (Account 216) : : i han
1] Balance-Beginning of Period 1,016,489,982 854,131,028
2| Changes ; X
3| Adjustments to Retained Earnings (Account 438)
4] FIN 48 Adjustment 355,161
5
6
7
8
9] TOTAL Credits to Retained Eamnings (Acct. 439) 355,161
10
11
12
13
14
15| TOTAL Debits to Retained Earnings (Accl. 439)
16} Balance Transferred from income {(Account 433 less Account 418.1) 127,717,048 140,603,793
17| Appropriations of Retained Earnings (Acct. 436) =
18
19
20
21
221 TOTAL Apprapriations of Retained Eamings (Acct, 436)
23| Dividends Declared-Preferred Stock (Account 437)
24
25
26
27
28
29] TOTAL Dividends Declared-Preferred Stock (Acct. 437)
30| Dividends Declared-Common Stock (Account 438) &
31
32
33
34
35
36| TOTAL Dividends Declared-Common Stock (Acct. 438)
37| Transfers from Acct 216.1, Unapprop. Undistrib. Subsidiary Earnings 30,000,000 21,400,000
38| Balance - End of Period (Total 1,9,15,16,22,29,36,37) 1,174,207,030 1,016,489,982
APPROPRIATED RETAINED EARNINGS (Account 215) R e =
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Name of Respandent '(1'1h)is Re (/)\rrtx IS inal D@te Bf Rsport Year/Period of Report
r
Kentucky Utiliies Company @ Re;’fg::ission ( o a, Yn) Engof ___ 2008/Q4

STATEMENT OF RETAINED EARNINGS

1. Do not report Lines 49-53 on the quarterly version.

2. Report all changes in appropriated retained earnings, unappropriated retained earnings, year to date, and unappropriated
undistributed subsidiary eamings for the year.

3. Each credit and debit during the year should be identified as to the retained earnings account in which recorded {Accounts 433, 436
- 439 inclusive). Show the contra primary account affected in column (b)

4. State the purpose and amount of each reservation or appropriation of retained earnings.

5. List first account 439, Adjustments to Retained Earnings, reflecting adjustments to the opening balance of retained earnings. Follow
by credit, then debit items in that order.

6. Show dividends for each class and series of capital stock.

7. Show separately the State and Federal income tax effect of items shown in account 439, Adjustments to Retained Eamings.

8. Explain in a footnote the basis for determining the amount reserved or appropriated. If such reservation or appropriation is to be
recurrent, state the number and annual amounts to be reserved or appropriated as well as the totals eventually to be accumulated.

9. If any notes appearing in the report to stockholders are applicable to this statement, include them on pages 122-123.

Current Previous
Quarter/Year Quarter/Year
Contra Primary Year fo Date Year to Date
Line Iltem Account Affected Balance Balance
No. (2) {b) {c) ()
39
40
41
42
43
44

45| TOTAL Appropriated Retained Earnings (Account 215)

APPROP. RETAINED EARNINGS - AMORT. Reserve, Federal (Account 215.1)
48] TOTAL Approp. Relained Earnings-Amort. Reserve, Federal (Acct. 215.1)
47| TOTAL Approp. Retained Earnings {Acct. 215, 215.1) (Total 45,46)

48| TOTAL Retained Eamings (Acct. 215, 215.1, 216) (Total 38, 47) (216.1)
UNAPPROPRIATED UNDISTRIBUTED SUBSIDIARY EARNINGS (Account
Report only on an Annual Basis, no Quarterly

1,016,488,982

49| Balance-Beginning of Year (Debit or Credit) 21,207,068 16,248,287

50} Equity in Earnings for Year (Credit) (Account 418.1) 29,548,519 26,358,781
51} (Less) Dividends Received (Debit) 30,000,000 21,400,000
52

53| Balance-End of Year (Total lines 48 thru 52) 20,755,587 21,207,068
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Name of Respondent
Kentucky Utilities Company

This Report Is:
1) 'ﬁAn Original
(2) M A Resubmission

Date of Report
(Mo, Da, Yr)

/1

Year/Period of Report
End of 2008/Q4

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(1) Codes to be used:(a) Net Proceeds or Payments;(b)Bonds, debentures and other long-term debt; (¢} Inciude commercial paper; and (d) Identify separately such items as

investments, fixed assets, intangibles, etc

(2) Information about noncash investing and financing aclivities must be provided In the Notes to the Financia! statements. Also provide a reconciliation between "Cash and Cash

Equivalents at End of Period" with related amounts on the Balance Sheet.

(3) Operating Aclivities - Other; Include gains and losses pertaining to operating activities only. Galns and losses pertaining (o Investing and financing aclivities should be reported

in those activities. Show in the Notes to the Financials the amounts of interest paid {(net of amount caplitalized) and income taxes paid.

{4) Investing Activilies: Include at Other {line 31) net cash outflow to acquire other companies. Provide a reconcitiation of assets acquired with liabilities assumed in the Notes to
the Financial Statements, Do notinclude on this statement the dollar amount of leases capitalized per the USofA General Instruction 20; instead provide a reconciliation of the

dollar amount of leases capitalized with the plant cost.

Line Description (See Instruction No. 1 for Explanation of Codes) Current Year to Date Previous Year to Date
No. Quarter/Year Quarter/Year
(a) () {c)
1 |Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities:
2 |Net income {Line 78(c) on page 117)
3 |Noncash Charges (Credits) to Income: ik i1
4 |Depreciation and Depletion 131,115,009 115,264,165
5 |Amortization of Plant 5,229,656 5,420,545
6
7
8 |Deferred Income Taxes (Net) -13,352,377 -1,604,551
9 Hnvestment Tax Credit Adjustment (Net) 25,266,898 41,975,337
10 {Net {Increase) Decrease In Receivables 11,538,195 -15,534,506
11 |Net (Increase) Decrease in Inventory -32,876,570 20,963,985
12 |Net (increase) Decrease in Allowances Inventory 308,475 1,287,644
13 |Net Increase (Decrease) in Payables and Accrued Expenses 16,490,658 |i= Tl ()-1
14 |Net (Increase) Decrease in Other Regulatory Assets -106,865,168 32,851,592
15 jNet Increase {Decrease) in Other Regulatory Liabilities 2,762,247 1,781,663
16 |(Less) Allowance for Other Funds Used During Construction 8,089,437 4,283,511
17 |{Less) Undistributed Eamings from Subsidiary Companies -451,481 4,958,781
18 |Other (provide details in footnote): 407140 3
19 |Change in Other Deferred Debits -4,750,751 -3,188,788
20 jChange in Other Deferred Credits 3,800,402 6,153,002
21
22 [Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities (Total 2 thru 21) 288,734,426 303,720,443
23
24 |Cash Flows from Investment Activities:
25 |Construction and Acquisition of Plant (including land):
26 |Gross Additions to Utility Plant (less nuclear fuel) -700,047,459
27 |Gross Additions to Nuclear Fuel
28 |Gross Additions to Common Utility Plant
289 |Gross Additions to Nonutility Plant
30 [{Less) Allowance for Other Funds Used During Construction -8,089,437
31 |Other {provide details in footnote):
32
33
34 {Cash Outfiows for Plant (Total of lines 26 thru 33) -691,958,022 -740,072,036
35
36 |Acquisition of Other Noncurrent Assets (d)
37 |Proceeds from Disposal of Noncurrent Assets (d)
38 |Loss from Disposal of Fixed Assets (d) -741,720
39 |Investments in and Advances o Assoc. and Subsidiary Companies
40 [Contributions and Advances from Assoc. and Subsidiary Companies
41 |Disposition of Investments in (and Advances 10) Lo e
42 |Associated and Subsidiary Companies
43
44 |Purchase of Investment Securities (a)
45 |Proceeds from Sales of Investment Securities (a)
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Name of Respondent T1his Rep%rt lcs): | tl)mate Bf R$port Year/Period of Report
n Origin o, Da, Yr
Kentucky Utilities Company 52; % A ResStl)r:ission ( /1 ) End of 2008/Q4
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(1) Codes lo be used:(a) Net Praceeds or Payments;(b)Bonds, debentures and ather long-term debt; (c) Include commercial paper; and (d) Identify separately such items as

investments, fixed assels, intangibles, etc.

{2) Information about noncash investing and financing activities must be provided in the Notes to the Financial statements, Alse provide a reconciliation between "Cash and Cash
Equivalents at End of Period” with related amounts on the Balance Sheet.
{3) Operating Activities - Other: Include gains and losses pertaining to operating aclivities only. Gains and losses periaining 1o invesling and financing activities should be reported

in those activities. Show in the Noles to the Financials the amounts of interest paid (net of amount capitalized) and income taxes paid

(4) Investing Activities: Include at Other (line 31) net cash outflow to acquire other companies. Provide a reconcifiation of assets acquired with liabilities assumed in the Notes to
the Financial Statements. Do not include on this statement the dolfar amount of leases capitalized per the USofA General Instruction 20; instead provide a reconcilialion of the

daollar amount of leases capitalized with the plant cost.

Line Description (See Instruction No. 1 for Explanation of Codes)

No. @

Current Year to Date
Quarter/Year
{b)

Previous Year to Date
Quarter/Year
(c)

46 |Loans Made or Purchased

47 |Collections on Loans

48 |Change in Long-Term Investments (d)

49 |Net {(Increase) Decrease in Receivables

50 [Net {Increase ) Decrease in Inventory

51 |Net (Increase) Decrease in Allowances Held for Speculation

52 |Net Increase {Decrease) in Payables and Accrued Expenses

53 |Other (provide detalis In footnote):

54 |Change in Restricted Cash

1,475,547

11,821,428

55 {Change in Long-Term Non-Hedging Derivative Liability

-833,145

56 {Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities

57 |Total of lines 34 thru 55)

58

59 [Cash Flows from Financing Activities:

60 [Proceeds from issuance of:

61 {Long-Term Debt (b)

691,397,567 -729,188,518

Sk LTl

526,750,683

62 |Preferred Stock

63 [Common Stock

64 |Other (provide details in footnote):

65 |Change in Derivative Liabilities

66 |Net increase in Short-Term Debt {(c)

67 |Other (provide details in footnote):

68 |Reissuance of Reacquired Long-Term Debt (b) 62,900,000
69 |Retirement of Reacquired Long-Term Debt (b} 16,693,620
70 |Cash Provided by Qutside Sources (Total 61 thru 69) 406,224,749 526,317,143

4!

72 |Payments for Retirement of:

73 |Long-term Debt (b) -59,821,140 -107,000,000
74 |Preferred Stock

75 jCommon Stock

76 |Other (provide details in footnote):

77 |Contributed Capital 145,000,000 75,000,000
78 |Net Decrease in Short-Term Debt (c) -6,972,000 -73,823,600
79 |Payments for Reacquisition of Long-Term Debt (b) -79,583,620

80 |Dividends on Preferred Stock

81 {Dividends on Common Stock

B2 [Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities

83 {(Total of lines 70 thru 81)

404,737,989

420,493,543

84

85 |Net Increase {Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

S

86 {(Total of lines 22,57 and 83)

87

88 |Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period

89

80 |Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of period

-4,974,532

T

Pl £ 3 e
5,313,043
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Name of Respondent This Report is: Date of Report |Year/Period of Report
(1) X An Original (Mo, Da, Yr)
Kentucky Utilities Company (2) __ A Resubmission /1 2008/Q4
FOOTNOTE DATA
ISchedule Page: 120 Line No.: 13 Column:
Restatement due to account reclassifications:
Previous Year to Date, as originally filed $ (78,888,022)
Plus: Adjustment to Capital Expenditure Accrual 1,261,862
Restated Previous Year to Date $ (77,626,160)
ISchedule Page: 120 Line No.: 18 Column: b
Other operating cash flows:
Depreciation charged to balance sheet accounts $ 726,899
Other changes in Net Utility Plant (7,706,861)
Amortization of Debt Expenses and Loss on Bonds 743,571
Net increase in Prepayments (540, 025)
Net decrease in Land Options 16,145
Net increase in Preliminary Survey (2,825,270)
Net increase in Clearing Accounts (2,990,074)
Net decrease in Customer Advances for Construction (373,020)
Net increase in Asset Retirement Obligations 2,251,051
Net increase in Provision for Postretirement Benefits 104,123,794
Deferred income taxes charged to balance sheet accounts 7,328,239
Investment tax credit charged to balance sheet accounts {(314,308)
Rounding {1)
Total S 100,440,140
\Schedule Page: 120 _Line No.: 18 Column:
Other operating cash flows:
Depreciation charged to balance sheet accounts $ 597,905
Other changes in Net Utility Plant (2,308,564)
Amortization of Debt Expenses and Loss on Bonds 798,930
Net decrease in Prepayments 584,608
Net decrease in Derivative Assets 341,503
Net increase in Preliminary Survey (1,373,637)
Net decrease in Clearing Accounts 5,121,080
Net increase in Customer Advances for Construction 830,470
Net increase in Asset Retirement Obligations 1,833,853
Net increase in Provision for Postretirement Benefits 11,474,924
Net adjustment to Retained Earnings (Effect of FIN 48) 355,161
Total s 18,256,233
ISchedule Page: 120 Line No.: 26 Column:
Restatement due to account reclassifications:
Previous Year to Date, as originally filed $ (743,093,685)
Less: Adjustment to Capital Expenditure Accrual (1,261,862)
Restated Previous Year to Date $ (744,355,547)
\Schedule Page: 120 _Line No.: 31 __Column: _
Restatement due to account reclassifications:
Previous Year to Date, as originally filed 5 (433,540)
Plus: Reclassification of Long-term Debt Mark-to-Market 433,540
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Name of Respondent This Report is: Date of Report |Year/Period of Report
(1) X An Original (Mo, Da, YT)
Kentucky Uthities Company (2) __ A Resubmission /! 2008/Q4
FOOTNOTE DATA
Restated Previous Year to Date 5 -
\Schedule Page: 120 Line No.: 48 Column: b
Other special funds
ISchedule Page: 120 _Line No.: 48 Column:
Change in Long-Term Investments:
Other Investments $ 15,000
Other Special Funds (211,190)
Total Change in Long-Term Investments $ (196,190)

ISchedule Page: 120 _ Line No.: 65 Column:
Restatement due to account reclassifications:

Previous Year to Date, as originally filed 5 -
Less: Reclassification of Long-term Debt Mark-to-Market {(433,540)
Restated Previous Year to Date $ (433,540)
Long-term Debt Mark-to-Market $ (433,540)

In 2007, $53,000,000 of bonds were extinguished. This amount represents the fair value
hedge adjustments on those bonds, as prescribed by SFAS No. 133, as amended.

[Schedule Page: 120  Line No.: 90 Column: b
Cash and cash equivalents is comprised of the following amounts:

cash (Acct 131) $ 2,413,346
Temporary Cash Investments (Acct 136) 13
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period s 2,413,359

ISchedule Page: 120 Line No.: 90 _ Column:
Cash and cash equivalents is comprised of the following amounts:

Cash (Acct 131) $ 321,021
Temporary Cash Investments (Acct 136) 17,490
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period S 338,511

[FERC FORM NO. 1 (ED. 12-87) Page 450.2




Name of Respondent This Report Is: Date of Report Year/Period of Report

Kentucky Utilities Company 8 [[Z(]] /}:\nROrigli)na! _ Iy Endof  2008/Q4
esubmission T —————

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Use the space below for important notes regarding the Balance Sheet, Statement of Income for the year, Statement of Retained
Earnings for the year, and Statement of Cash Flows, or any account thereof. Classify the notes according to each basic statement,
providing a subheading for each statement except where a note is applicable to more than one statement.

2. Fumish particulars (details) as to any significant contingent assets or liabilities existing at end of year, including a brief explanation of
any action initiated by the Internal Revenue Service involving possible assessment of additional income taxes of material amount, or of
a claim for refund of income taxes of a material amount initiated by the utility. Give also a brief explanation of any dividends in arrears
on cumuiative preferred stock.

3. For Account 116, Utility Plant Adjustments, explain the origin of such amount, debits and credits during the year, and plan of
disposition contemplated, giving references to Cormmission orders or other authorizations respecting classification of amounts as plant
adjustments and requirements as to disposition thereof.

4. Where Accounts 189, Unamortized Loss on Reacquired Debt, and 257, Unamortized Gain on Reacquired Debt, are not used, give
an explanation, providing the rate treatment given these items. See General Instruction 17 of the Uniform System of Accounts.

5. Give a concise explanation of any retained earnings restrictions and state the amount of retained earnings affected by such
restrictions.

6. If the notes to financial statements relating to the respondent company appearing in the annual report to the stockholders are
applicable and furnish the data required by instructions above and on pages 114-121, such notes may be included herein.

7. For the 3Q disclosures, respondent must provide in the notes sufficient disclosures so as to make the interim information not
misleading. Disclosures which would substantially duplicate the disclosures contained in the most recent FERC Annual Report may be
omitted.

8. Forthe 3Q disclosures, the disclosures shall be provided where events subsequent to the end of the most recent year have occurred
which have a material effect on the respondent. Respondent must include in the notes significant changes since the most recently
completed year in such items as: accounting principles and practices; estimates inherent in the preparation of the financial statements;
status of long-term contracts; capitalization including significant new borrowings or modifications of existing financing agreements; and
changes resulting from business combinations or dispositions. However were material contingencies exist, the disclosure of such
matters shall be provided even though a significant change since year end may not have occurred.

9. Finally, if the notes fo the financial statements relating to the respondent appearing in the annual report to the stockholders are
applicable and furnish the data required by the above instructions, such notes may be included herein.

PAGE 122 INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
SEE PAGE 123 FOR REQUIRED INFORMATION.
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Name of Respondent This Report is: Date of Report |Year/Period of Report
(1) X An Original {Mo, Da, Yr)
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AG

ARO
BART
CAIR
CAMR
CAVR
CCN

Clean Air Act
CMRG
Company
CT

DSM

ECR

EEI

E.ON
E.ONU.S.
E.ON U.S. Services
EPA

EPAct 2005
FAC

FASB
FERC

FGD
Fideha

FIN

GHG
IBEW
IMEA
MPA

IRP

IRS

KCCS
KDAQ
Kentucky Commission
KIUC

KU

Kwh
LG&E
LG&E Energy
MISO
MMBtu
Moody’s

INDEX OF ABBREVIATIONS

Attorney General of Kentucky

Asset Retirement Obligation

Best Available Retrofit Technology
Clean Air Interstate Rule

Clean Air Mercury Rule

Clean Air Visibility Rule

Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity
The Clean Air Act, as amended in 1990
Carbon Management Research Group
KU

Combustion Turbines

Demand Side Management
Environmental Cost Recovery

Electric Energy, Inc.

E.ON AG

E.ON U.S. LLC (formerly LG&E Energy LLC and LG&E Energy Corp.)
E.ON U.S. Services Inc. (formerly LG&E Energy Services Inc.)

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Energy Policy Act of 2005

Fuel Adjustment Clause

Financial Accounting Standards Board
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission
Flue Gas Desulfurization

Fidelia Corporation (an E.ON affiliate)
FASB Interpretation No.

Greenhouse Gas

International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers
Ilinois Municipal Electric Agency

Indiana Municipal Power Agency
Integrated Resource Plan

Internal Revenue Service

Kentucky Consortium for Carbon Storage
Kentucky Division for Air Quality
Kentucky Public Service Commission
Kentucky Industrial Utility Consumers, Inc.
Kentucky Utilities Company

Kilowatt hours

Louisville Gas and Electric Company
LG&E Energy LLC (now E.ON U.S. LLC)

Midwest Independent Transmission System Operator, Inc.

Million British thermal units
Moody’s Investor Services, Inc.
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Mw Megawatts

Mwh Megawatt hours

NAAQS National Ambient Air Quality Standards
NERC North American Electric Reliability Corporation
NOV Notice of Violation

NOx Nitrogen Oxide

oMU Owensboro Municipal Utilities

OVEC Ohio Valley Electric Corporation

PCB Polychlorinated Biphenyl

PUHCA 2005 Public Utility Holding Company Act of 2005
RRO Regional Reliability Organization

RSG Revenue Sufficiency Guarantee

S&P Standard & Poor’s Rating Services

SCR Selective Catalytic Reduction

SERC SERC Reliability Corporation

SFAS Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
SIP State Implementation Plan

SOg Sulfur Dioxide

TC2 Trimble County Unit 2

VDT Value Delivery Team Process

Virginia Commission Virginia State Corporation Commission

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

KU, incorporated in Kentucky in 1912 and in Virginia in 1991, is a regulated public utility engaged in the
generation, transmission, distribution and sale of electric energy in Kentucky, Virginia and Tennessee. KU
provides electric service to approximately 508,000 customers in 77 counties in central, southeastern and western
Kentucky, to approximately 30,000 customers in 5 counties in southwestern Virginia and 5 customers in
Tennessee. KU’s service area covers approximately 6,600 square miles. Approximately 99% of the electricity
generated by KU is produced by its coal-fired electric generating stations. The remainder is generated by a
hydroelectric power plant and natural gas and oil fueled CTs. In Virginia, KU operates under the name Old
Dominion Power Company. KU also sells wholesale electric energy to 12 municipalities.

KU is a wholly-owned subsidiary of E.ON U.S., an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of E.ON, a German
corporation. KU’s affiliate, LG&E, is a regulated public utility engaged in the generation, transmission,
distribution and sale of electric energy and the distribution and sale of natural gas in Kentucky.

Certain reclassification entries have been made to the previous years’ financial statements to conform to the
2008 presentation with no impact on net assets, liabilities and capitalization or previously reported net income
and net cash flows.

Presentation. The accompanying financial statements are prepared on the regulatory basis of accounting in
accordance with the requirements of the FERC, which is a comprehensive basis of accounting other than
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Generally Accepted Accounting Principles ("GAAP™). The significant differences between GAAP and FERC
reporting are as follows:

» Restricted cash is recorded in cash on the balance sheet for FERC reporting and presented as a separate line
item for GAAP statements;

e Certain costs of removal obligations are recorded in accumulated depreciation for FERC reporting and
recorded in regulatory liabilities for GAAP reporting;

e Long-term and short-term bonds are recorded in total in the long-term debt section for FERC reporting and
are presented separately in current liabilities for the short-term portion and in long-term debt for the
long-term portion for GAAP reporting; and

e Deferred taxes are shown gross for FERC reporting in the balance sheet (a deferred asset and a deferred
liability are recorded), for GAAP reporting the deferred taxes are netted together and recorded as a liability.

Regulatory Accounting. KU is subject to SFAS No. 71, under which regulatory assets are created based on
expected recovery from customers in future rates to defer costs that would otherwise be charged to expense.
Likewise, regulatory liabilities are created based on expected return to customers in future rates to defer credits
that would otherwise be reflected as income, or, in the case of costs of removal, are created to match long-term
future obligations arising from the current use of assets. The accounting for regulatory assets and liabilities is
based on specific ratemaking decisions or precedent for each item as prescribed by the FERC, the Kentucky
Commission or the Virginia Commission. See Note 2, Rates and Regulatory Matters, for additional detail
regarding regulatory assets and liabilities.

Cash and Cash Equivalents. KU considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three
months or less to be cash equivalents.

Restricted Cash. Proceeds from bond issuances for environmental equipment (primarily related to the
installation of FGDs) are held in trust pending expenditure for qualifying assets.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts. The allowance for doubtful accounts is based on the ratio of the amounts
charged-off during the last twelve months to the retail revenues billed over the same period multiplied by the
retail revenues billed over the last four months. Accounts with no payment activity are charged-off after four
months, although collection efforts continue thereafter.

Materials and Supplies. Fuel and other materials and supplies inventories are accounted for using the
average-cost method. Emission allowances are included in other materials and supplies and are not currently
traded by KU. At December 31, 2008 and 2007, the emission allowances inventory was less than $1 million.

Other Property and Investments. Other property and investments on the balance sheets consists of KU’s
investment in EEI, economic development loans provided to various communities in the service territory, KU’s
investment in OVEC, funds related to the long-term purchased power contract with OMU and non-utility plant.

Although KU holds investment interests in OVEC and EE], it is not the primary beneficiary, therefore, neither
are consolidated into the Company’s financial statements. KU and 11 other electric utilities are participating
owners of OVEC, located in Piketon, Ohio. OVEC owns and operates two coal-fired power plants, Kyger Creek
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Station in Ohio and Clifty Creek Station in Indiana. Pursuant to current contractual agreements, KU’s share of
OVEC’s output is 2.5%, approximately 55 Mw of generation capacity.

As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, KU’s investment in OVEC totaled less than $1 million and is accounted for
under the cost method of accounting. The direct exposure to loss as a result of its involvement with QVEC is
generally limited to the value of its investment. In the event of the inability of OVEC to fulfill its power
provision requirements, KU anticipates substituting such power supply with either owned generation or market
purchases and believes it would generally recover associated incremental costs through regulatory rate
mechanisms. See Note 9, Commitments and Contingencies, for further discussion of developments regarding
KU’s ownership interests and power purchase rights.

KU owns 20% of the common stock of EEI, which owns and operates a 1,162-Mw generating station in
southern Illinois. KU’s investment in EEI is accounted for under the equity method of accounting and, as of
December 31, 2008 and 2007, totaled $22 million and $23 million, respectively. KU’s direct exposure to loss as
a result of its involvement with EEI is generally limited to the value of its investment.

Utility Plant. Utility plant is stated at original cost, which includes payroll-related costs such as taxes, fringe
benefits and administrative and general costs. Construction work in progress has been included in the rate base
for determining retail customer rates in Kentucky. KU has not recorded a significant allowance for funds used
during construction.

The cost of plant retired or disposed of in the normal course of business is deducted from plant accounts and
such cost is charged to the reserve for depreciation. When complete operating units are disposed of, appropriate
adjustments are made to the reserve for depreciation and gains and losses, if any, are recognized.

Depreciation and Amortization. Depreciation is provided on the straight-line method over the estimated
service lives of depreciable plant. The amounts provided were approximately 3.0% in 2008 and 3.2% in 2007 of
average depreciable plant. Of the amount provided for depreciation at December 31, 2008 and 2007,
approximately 0.5% was related to the retirement, removal and disposal costs of long lived assets.

Unamortized Debt Expense. Debt expense is capitalized in deferred debits and amortized using the straight
line method, which approximates the effective interest method, over the lives of the related bond issues.

Income Taxes. Income taxes are accounted for under SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes and FIN 48,
Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an Interpretation of SFAS No. 109. In accordance with these
statements, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to
differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their
respective tax bases, as measured by enacted tax rates that are expected to be in effect in the periods when the
deferred tax assets and liabilities are expected to be settled or realized. Significant judgment is required in
determining the provision for income taxes, and there are transactions for which the ultimate tax outcome is
uncertain. FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement
recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. Uncertain tax
positions are analyzed periodically and adjustments are made when events occur to warrant a change. See Note
6, Income Taxes.
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Deferred Income Taxes. Deferred income taxes are recognized at currently enacted tax rates for all material
temporary differences between the financial reporting and income tax bases of assets and liabilities.

Investment Tax Credits. The EPAct 2005 added Section 48A to the Internal Revenue Code, which provides
for an investment tax credit to promote the commercialization of advanced coal technologies that will generate
electricity in an environmentally responsible manner. KU and LG&E received an investment tax credit related
to TC2. See Note 6, Income Taxes. Investment tax credits prior to 2006 resulted from provisions of the tax law
that permitted a reduction of KU’s tax liability based on credits for construction expenditures. Deferred
investment tax credits are being amortized to income over the estimated lives of the related property that gave
rise to the credits.

Revenue Recognition. Revenues are recorded based on service rendered to customers through month-end. KU
accrues an estimate for unbilled revenues from each meter reading date to the end of the accounting period
based on allocating the daily system net deliveries between billed volumes and unbilled volumes. The allocation
is based on a daily ratio of the number of meter reading cycles remaining in the month to the total number of
meter reading cycles in each month. Each day’s ratio is then multiplied by each day’s system net deliveries to
determine an estimated billed and unbilled volume for each day of the accounting period. The unbilled revenue
estimates included in accounts receivable were $60 million and $59 million at December 31, 2008 and 2007,
respectively.

Fuel Costs. The cost of fuel for generation is charged to expense as used.

Management’s Use of Estimates. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent items at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Accrued liabilities, including legal and
environmental, are recorded when they are probable and estimable. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements. The following are recent accounting pronouncements affecting KU:
SFAS No. 161

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities, an amendment of FASB Statement No. 133, which is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods
within those fiscal years, beginning on or after November 15, 2008. The objective of this statement is to
enhance the current disclosure framework in SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities, as amended. The adoption of SFAS No. 161 will have no impact on KU’s statements of
operations, financial position and cash flows, however, additional disclosures relating to derivatives will be
required beginning in the first quarter of 2009.
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SFAS No. 160

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial
Statements, which is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning on or
after December 15, 2008. The objective of this statement is to improve the relevance, comparability and
transparency of financial information in a reporting entity’s consolidated financial statements. The Company
expects the adoption of SFAS No. 160 to have no impact on its statements of operations, financial position and
cash flows.

SFAS No. 159

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities — Including an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 115. SFAS No. 159 permits entities to choose to
measure many financial instruments and certain other assets and liabilities at fair value on an
instrument-by-instrument basis (the fair value option). Unrealized gains and losses on items for which the fair
value option has been elected are to be recognized in earnings at each subsequent reporting date. SFAS No. 159
was adopted effective January 1, 2008 and the Company elected not to fair value its eligible financial assets and
liabilities.

SEFAS No. 157

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements, which, except as described
below, is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. This statement defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles and expands
disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 does not expand the application of fair value
accounting to new circumstances. In February 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position 157-2, Effective
Date of FASB Statement No. 157, which delays the effective date of SFAS No. 157 for all nonfinancial assets
and liabilities, except those that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a
recurring basis (at least annually), to fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2008, and interim periods within
those fiscal years. All other amendments related to SFAS No. 157 have been evaluated and have no impact on
the Company’s financial statements. SFAS No. 157 was adopted effective January 1, 2008, except as it applies
to those nonfinancial assets and liabilities, and had no impact on the statements of operations, financial position
and cash flows, however, additional disclosures relating to its financial derivatives and cash collateral on
derivatives, as required, are now provided. Per FASB Staff Position 157-2, fair value accounting for all

nonrecurring fair value measurements of nonfinancial assets and liabilities will be adopted effective January 1,
2009.

Note 2 - Rates and Regulatory Matters

The Company is subject to the jurisdiction of the Kentucky Commission, the Virginia Commission, the
Tennessee Regulatory Authority and the FERC in virtually all matters related to electric utility regulation, and as
such, its accounting is subject to SFAS No. 71. Given its position in the marketplace and the status of regulation
in Kentucky and Virginia, there are no plans or intentions to discontinue the application of SFAS No. 71.
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Kentucky Rate Case

In July 2008, KU filed an application with the Kentucky Commission requesting an increase in base electric
rates. In conjunction with the filing of the application for a change in base rates, based on previous Orders by
the Kentucky Commission approving settlement agreements among all interested parties, the VDT surcredit
terminated in August 2008. In January 2009, KU, the AG, KTUC and all other parties to the rate case filed a
settlement agreement with the Kentucky Commission, under which KU’s base electric rates will decrease by $9
million annually. An Order approving the settlement agreement was received in February 2009. The new rates
were implemented effective February 6, 2009, at which time the merger surcredit terminated.

The VDT surcredit originated in December 2001, when the Kentucky Commission issued an Order approving a
settlement agreement allowing KU to set up a regulatory asset of $54 million for workforce reduction costs and
begin amortizing it over a five-year period starting in April 2001. The Order also provided for a surcredit to be
included on customers’ bills representing 40% of the annual savings derived from this initiative. For periods
beginning January 1, 2006, the VDT surcredit had increased to $4 million per year.

In February 2006, KU and all parties to the proceeding reached a unanimous settlement agreement on the future
ratemaking treatment of the VDT surcredit. Under the terms of the settlement agreement, the VDT surcredit
continued at its current level until such time as KU filed for a change in base rates. The Kentucky Commission
issued an Order in March 2006, approving the settlement agreement. In accordance with the Order, the VDT
surcredit terminated in August 2008, the first billing month after the July 2008 filing for a change in base rates.

The merger surcredit originated as part of the LG&E Energy merger with KU Energy Corporation in 1998. It
was based on estimated non-fuel savings over a ten-year period following the merger. Costs to achieve these
savings were deferred and amortized over a five-year period pursuant to regulatory orders. In approving the
merger, the Kentucky Commission adopted KU’s proposal to reduce its retail customers’ bills based on one-half
of the estimated merger-related savings, net of deferred and amortized amounts, over a five-year period. These
savings were provided in the form of a surcredit mechanism on customers’ bills. In October 2003, the Kentucky
Commission issued an Order approving a unanimous settlement agreement reached with all parties to the case in
which the merger surcredit of $18 million per year would remain in place for another five-year term beginning
July 1, 2003, and KU would file a plan for the merger surcredit six months before its expiration.

In December 2007, KU submitted its plan to allow the merger surcredit to terminate as scheduled on June 30,
2008. In June 2008, the Kentucky Commuission issued an Order approving a unanimous settlement agreement
reached with all parties to the case which provided for a reduction in the merger surcredit to approximately $6
million for a 7-month period beginning July 2008, termination of the merger surcredit when new base rates went
into effect on or after January 31, 2009, and that the annual merger surcredit be continued at an annual rate of
$12 million thereafter should the Company not file for a change in base rates. In accordance with the Order, the
merger surcredit was terminated effective February 6, 2009, with the implementation of new base rates.

FERC Wholesale Rate Case

In September 2008, KU filed an application with the FERC for increases in base electric rates applicable to
wholesale power sales contracts or interchange agreements involving, collectively, twelve Kentucky
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municipalities. The application requests a shift from current, all-in stated unit charge rates to an unbundled and
formnula rate. The revised rates represent varying increases of 6% to 7% from current charges and include a
change from the all-in stated applicable return on equity of 11.8%. The proceeding involves data requests and
hearings before the FERC, as well as data requests and filings by intervenors. In November 2008, the FERC
issued an Order to suspend rates until May 1, 2009, at which time the applied for rates will become effective,
subject to potential refund or adjustment commencing in October 2009, based upon the outcome of the
proceedings. Concurrently with the progress of the FERC rate proceedings, KU and the municipal customers
have commenced structured settlement negotiations overseen by the FERC.

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities

The following regulatory assets and liabilities were included in the balance sheets as of December 31:

(in millions) 2008 2007
ARO $ 28 § 24
MISO exit 19 20
Unamortized loss on bonds 13 10
FAC 9 17
ECR 20 11
Hurricane Tke 2 -
Other 5 4
Subtotal 96 86
Pension and postretirement benefits 127 28
Total regulatory assets 5 223 $ 114
Deferred income taxes — net $ 16 $ 22
otker 20 10
Total regulatory liabilities $§ 36 $ 32

KU does not currently earn a rate of return on the FAC regulatory asset, which is a separate recovery mechanism
with recovery within twelve months. No return is earned on the pension and postretirement benefits regulatory
asset that represents the changes in funded status of the plans. KU will recover this asset through the pension
expense included in the calculation of base rates with the Kentucky Commission and will seek recovery of this
asset in future proceedings with the Virginia Commission. No return is currently earned on the ARO asset. This
regulatory asset will be offset against the associated regulatory liability, ARO asset and ARO liability at the time
the underlying asset is retired. The MISO exit amount represents the costs relating to the withdrawal from MISO
membership. Approval for the recovery of this asset was received from the Kentucky Commission as part of the
2008 base rate case and KU will seek recovery of this asset in future proceedings with the Virginia Commission.
KU currently earns a rate of return on remaining regulatory assets, including other regulatory assets comprised
of VDT costs (2007 only), merger surcredit and deferred storm costs. Other regulatory assets also include KCCS
funding (see CMRG and KCCS Contributions below), FERC jurisdictional pension expense and rate case
expenses. KU will seek recovery of the KCCS funding in the next base rate case and received approval for the
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recovery of the rate case expenses as part of the 2008 base rate case. Other regulatory liabilities include DSM
and MISO costs included in base rates that will be netted against costs of withdrawing from the MISO as part of
the settlement agreement in the 2008 base rate case.

ARO. A summary of KU’s net ARO assets, regulatory assets, ARO liabilities, regulatory liabilities and cost of
removal established under FIN 47, Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations, an Interpretation
of SFAS No. 143, and SFAS No. 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations, follows:

ARO Net ARO  Regulatory Regulatory Accumulated Cost of Removal
Assets  Liabilities  Assets Liabilities Cost of Removal Depreciation
As of December 31,2006 § 5 $ (28) § 22 $ @ § 2 $ 1
ARQ accretion - (2) 2 - - -
As of December 31, 2007 5 (30) 24 2) 2 1
ARO accretion - 2) 2 - - -
Removal cost reclass - - 2 _(2) - -
Asof December 31,2008 $§ 5 $ (32) $ 28 54 $ 2 $ 1

Pursuant to regulatory treatment prescribed under SFAS No. 71, an offsetting regulatory credit was recorded in
depreciation and amortization in the income statement of $2 million in 2008 and 2007 for the ARO accretion
and depreciation expense. KU AROs are primarily related to the final retirement of assets associated with
generating units. For assets associated with AROs, the removal cost accrued through depreciation under
regulatory accounting is established as a regulatory liability pursuant to regulatory treatment prescribed under
SFAS No. 71. There were no FIN 47 net asset additions during 2008 or 2007. For the years ended December 31,
2008 and 2007, KU recorded less than $1 million of depreciation expense related to the cost of removal of ARO
related assets. An offsetting regulatory liability was established pursuant to regulatory treatment prescribed
under SFAS No. 71.

KU transmission and distribution lines largely operate under perpetual property easement agreements which do
not generally require restoration upon removal of the property. Therefore, under SFAS No. 143, no material
asset retirement obligations are recorded for transmission and distribution assets.

MISO. Following receipt of applicable FERC, Kentucky Commission and other regulatory orders, KU
withdrew from the MISO effective September 1, 2006. Specific proceedings regarding the costs and benefits of
the MISO and exit matters had been underway since July 2003. Since the exit from the MISO, KU has been
operating under 2 FERC-approved open access-transmission tariff. KU now contracts with the Tennessee Valley
Authority to act as its transmission Reliability Coordinator and Southwest Power Pool, Inc. to function as its
Independent Transmission Organization, pursuant to FERC requirements.

KU and the MISO have agreed upon overall calculation methods for the contractual exit fee to be paid by the
Company following its withdrawal. In October 2006, the Company paid $20 million to the MISO pursuant to an
invoice regarding the exit fee and made related FERC compliance filings. The Company’s payment of this exit
fee amount was with reservation of its rights to contest the amount, or components thereof, following a
continuing review of its calculation and supporting documentation. KU and the MISO resolved their dispute
regarding the calculation of the exit fee and, in November 2007, filed an application with the FERC for approval
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of a recalculation agreement. In March 2008, the FERC approved the parties’ recalculation of the exit fee, and
the approved agreement provided KU with an immediate recovery of $1 million and an estimated $3 million
over the next seven years for credits realized from other payments the MISO will receive, plus interest. In
accordance with Kentucky Commission Orders approving the MISO exit, KU has established a regulatory asset
for the exit fee, subject to adjustment for possible future MISO credits, and a regulatory liability for certain
revenues associated with former MISO administrative charges, which continue to be collected via base rates.
The approved base rate case settlement provided for MISO Schedule 10 expenses collected through base rates
from May 1, 2008 to February 6, 2009, and any future adjustments to the MISO exit fee, to be established as a
regulatory liability until the amounts can be amortized in future base rate cases.

In November 2008, the FERC issued Orders in industry-wide proceedings relating to MISO RSG calculation
and resettlement procedures. RSG charges are amounts assessed to various participants active in the MISO
trading market which generally seek to compensate for uneconomic generation dispatch due to regional
transmission or power market operational considerations, with some customer classes eligible for payments,
while others may bear charges. The FERC Orders approved two requests for significantly altered formulas and
principles, each of which the FERC applied differently to calculate RSG charges for various historical and
future periods. KU and other parties have requested rehearing and a delay in any collection of RSG amounts.
During January and February 2009, the FERC issued a deficiency letter in the proceeding relating to one prior
Order, which delays collection of applicable RSG resettlements by the MISO pending further proceedings.
Further developments in the RSG proceeding are expected to occur during 2009. Due to the numerous
participants, complex principles at issue and changes from prior precedents, KU cannot predict the ultimate
outcome of this matter. Based upon the recent FERC Orders, KU established a reserve during the fourth quarter
of 2008, of less than $1 million relating to potential RSG resettlement costs for the period ended December 31,
2008.

Unamortized Loss on Bonds. The costs of early extinguishment of debt, including call premiums, legal and
other expenses, and any unamortized balance of debt expense are amortized using the straight line method,
which approximates the effective interest method, over the life of either the replacement debt (in the case of
refinancing) or the original life of the extinguished debt.

FAC. KU’s retail rates contain an FAC, whereby increases and decreases in the cost of fuel for generation are
reflected in the rates charged to retail customers. The FAC allows the Company to adjust customers’ accounts
for the difference between the fuel cost component of base rates and the actual fiel cost, including
transportation costs. Refunds to customers occur if the actual costs are below the embedded cost component.
Additional charges to customers occur if the actual costs exceed the embedded cost component. The amount of
the regulatory asset or liability is the amount that has been under- or over-recovered due to timing or
adjustments to the mechanism.

The Kentucky Commission requires public hearings at six-month intervals to examine past fuel adjustments,
and at two-year intervals to review past operations of the fuel clause and transfer of the then current fuel
adjustment charge or credit to the base charges.

In January 2009, the Kentucky Commission initiated a routine examination of KU’s FAC for the two-year
period November 1, 2006 through October 31, 2008. A public hearing is scheduled in March 2009. An order is
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anticipated in the second quarter of 2009.

In August 2008, the Kentucky Commission initiated a routine examination of KU’s FAC for the six-month
period November 1, 2007 through April 30, 2008. The Kentucky Commission issued an Order in January 2009,
approving the charges and credits billed through the FAC during the review period.

In January 2008, the Kentucky Commission initiated a routine examination of KU’s FAC for the six-month
period May 1, 2007 through October 31, 2007. The Kentucky Commission issued an Order in June 2008,
approving the charges and credits billed through the FAC during the review period.

In August 2007, the Kentucky Commission initiated a routine examination of KU’s FAC for the six-month
period of November 1, 2006 through April 30, 2007. The Kentucky Commission issued an Order in January
2008, approving the charges and credits billed through the FAC during the review period.

In December 2006, the Kentucky Commission initiated its periodic two-year review of KU’s past operations of
the fuel clause and transfer of fuel costs from the FAC to base rates for November 1, 2004 through October 31,
2006. In March 2007, the KIUC challenged KU's recovery of approximately $5 million in aggregate fuel costs
KU incurred during a period prior to its exit from the MISO and requested the Kentucky Commission disallow
this amount. A public hearing was held in May 2007. In October 2007, the Kentucky Commission issued its
Order approving the calculation and application of KU’s FAC charges and fuel procurement practices and
indicated that KUJ was in compliance with the provisions of Administrative Regulation 807 KAR 5:5056. The
Kentucky Commission further approved KU’s recommendation for the transfer of fuel cost from the FAC to
base rates. In November 2007, the KIUC filed a petition for rehearing, claiming the Kentucky Commission
misinterpreted the KIUC’s arguments in the proceeding. In the same month, the Kentucky Commission issued
an Order denying the KIUC’s request for rehearing. An appeal was not filed by the KIUC.

In January 2003, the Kentucky Commission reviewed KU’s FAC for the six-month period ended October 31,
2001. The Kentucky Commission ordered KU to reduce its fuel costs for purposes of calculating its FAC by less
than $1 million. At issue was the purchase of approximately 102,000 tons of coal from Western Kentucky
Energy Corp., 2 non-regulated affiliate, for use at KU’s Ghent facility. The Kentucky Commission further
ordered that an independent audit be conducted to examine operational and management aspects of both KU’s
and LG&E’s fuel procurement functions. The final report’s recommendations, issued in February 2004, related
to documentation and process improvements. Management Audit Action Plans were agreed upon by KU and the
Kentucky Commission Staff in the second quarter of 2004, and resulted in Audit Progress Reports being filed by
KU with the Kentucky Commission. In February 2007, the Kentucky Commission staff indicated that KU fully
complied with all audit recommendations and that no further reports are required.

KU also employs an FAC mechanism for Virginia customers using an average fuel cost factor based primarly
on projected fuel costs. The factor may be adjusted annually for over- or under-collections of fuel costs from the
prior year. In February 2008, KU filed an application with the Virginia Commission seeking approval of a
decrease in its fuel cost factor applicable during the billing period, April 2008 through March 2009. The
Virginia Commission allowed the new rates to be in effect for the April 2008 customer billings. In April 2008,
the Virginia Commission Staff recommended a change to the fuel factor KU filed in its application, to which
KU has agreed. Following a public hearing and an Order in May 2008, the recommended change became
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effective in June 2008, resulting in a decrease of 0.482 cents’kwh from the factor in effect for the April 2007
through March 2008 period.

ECR. Kentucky law permits KU to recover the costs of complying with the Federal Clean Air Act, including a
return of operating expenses, and a return of and on capital invested, through the ECR mechanism. The amount
of the regulatory asset or liability is the amount that has been under- or over-recovered due to timing or
adjustments to the mechanism.

In February 2009, the Kentucky Commission approved a settlement agreement in the rate case which provides
for an authorized return on equity applicable to the ECR mechanism of 10.63% effective with the March 2009
expense month filing, which represents a slight increase over the current 10.50%.

In January 2009, the Kentucky Commission initiated a six-month review for the period ending October 31,
2008, of KU’s environmental surcharge. An order is anticipated in the second quarter of 2009.

In June 2008, the Kentucky Commission initiated two six-month reviews for periods ending October 31, 2007
and April 30, 2008, of KU’s environmental surcharge. The Kentucky Commission issued an Order in August
2008, approving the charges and credits billed through the ECR during the review period and the rate of return
on capital.

In October 2007, KU met with the Kentucky Commission and other interested parties to discuss the status of the
Ghent Unit 2 SCR construction. KU informed the Kentucky Commission that construction of the Ghent Unit 2
SCR was not going to commence before the CCN expired in December 2007, due to a change in the economics
for the project. The CCN expired in December 2007, and KU has delayed construction of the Ghent Unit 2
SCR.

In September 2007, the Kentucky Commission initiated six-month and two-year reviews for periods ending
October 31, 2006 and April 30, 2007, respectively, of KU’s environmental surcharge. The Kentucky
Commission issued a final Order in March 2008, approving the charges and credits billed through the ECR
during the review periods, as well as approving billing adjustments, roll-in adjustments to base rates, revisions
to the monthly surcharge filing and the rates of return on capital.

Hurricane Ike. In September 2008, high winds from the remnants of Hurricane Ike passed through the service
territory causing significant outages and system damage. In October 2008, KU filed an application with the
Kentucky Commission requesting approval to establish a regulatory asset, and defer for future recovery,
approximately $3 million of expenses related to the storm restoration. In December 2008, the Kentucky
Commission issued an Order allowing the Company to establish a regulatory asset of up to $3 million based on
its actual costs for storm damages and service restoration due to Hurricane Ike.

FERC Jurisdictional Pension Costs. Pension costs of $3 million incurred by the Company allocated to its
FERC jurisdictional ratepayers. The Company will seek recovery of this asset in the next FERC rate proceeding.

Rate Case Expenses. KU incurred $1 million in expenses related to the development and support of the 2008
Kentucky base rate case. The Kentucky Commission approved the establishment of a regulatory asset for these
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expenses and authorized amortization over three years beginning in March 2009.

CMRG and KCCS Contributions. In July 2008, KU and LG&E, along with Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc. and
Kentucky Power Company, filed an application with the Kentucky Commission requesting approval to establish
regulatory assets related to contributions to the CMRG for the development of technologies for reducing carbon
dioxide emissions and the KCCS to study the feasibility of geologic storage of carbon dioxide. The filing
companies proposed that these contributions be treated as regulatory assets to be deferred until recovery is
provided in the next base rate case of each company, at which time the regulatory assets will be amortized over
the life of each project: four years with respect to the KCCS and ten years with respect to the CMRG. KU and
LG&E jointly agreed to provide less than $2 million over two years to the KCCS and up to $2 million over ten
years to the CMRG. In October 2008, an Order approving the establishment of the requested regulatory assets
was received and KU will seek rate recovery in the Company’s next base rate case.

Deferred Storm Costs. Based on an Order from the Kentucky Commission in June 2004, KU reclassified from
maintenance expense to a regulatory asset, $4 million related to costs not reimbursed from the 2003 ice storm.
These costs will be amortized through June 2009. KU eamns a return of these amortized costs, which are
included in jurisdictional operating expenses.

Pension and Postretirement Benefits. KU adopted SFAS No. 158, Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit
Pension and Other Postretirement Plans, in 2006. This statement requires employers to recognize the
over-funded or under-funded status of a defined benefit pension and postretirement plan as an asset or liability
in the balance sheet and to recognize through other comprehensive income the changes in the funded status in
the year in which the changes occur. Under SFAS No. 71, KU can defer recoverable costs that would otherwise
be charged to expense or equity by non-regulated entities. Current rate recovery in Kentucky and Virginia is
based on SFAS No. 87, Employers’ Accounting for Pensions, and SFAS No. 106, Employers’ Accounting for
Postretirement Benefits Other than Pensions, both of which were amended by SFAS No. 158. Regulators have
been clear and consistent with their historical treatment of such rate recovery, therefore, the Company has
recorded a regulatory asset representing the change in funded status of the pension and postretirement plans that
is expected to be recovered. The regulatory asset will be adjusted annually as prior service cost and actuarial
gains and losses are recognized in net periodic benefit cost.

Deferred Income Taxes — Net. These regulatory assets and liabilities represent the future revenue impact from
the reversal of deferred income taxes required for nnamortized investment tax credits, the allowance for funds
used during construction and deferred taxes provided at rates in excess of currently enacted rates.

DSM. KU’s rates contain a DSM provision. The provision includes a rate mechanism that provides for
concurrent recovery of DSM costs and provides an incentive for implementing DSM programs. The provision
allows KU to recover revenues from lost sales associated with the DSM programs based on program plan
engineering estimates and post-implementation evaluations.

In July 2007, KU and LG&E filed an application with the Kentucky Commission requesting an order approving
enhanced versions of the existing DSM programs along with the addition of several new cost effective
programs. The total annual budget for these programs is approximately $26 million, an increase over the
previous annual costs of approximately $10 million. In March 2008, the Kentucky Commission issued an Order
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approving the application, with minor modifications. KU and LG&E filed revised tariffs in April 2008, under
authority of this Order, which were effective in May 2008.

Other Regulatory Matters

Storm Restoration. In January 2009, a significant winter ice storm passed through KU’s service territory
causing approximately 199,000 customer outages, followed closely by a severe wind storm in February 2009,
causing approximately 44,000 customer outages. KU currently estimates costs incurred of $66 million of
expenses and $28 million of capital expenditures related to the restoration following the two storms. The
Company expects to seek recovery of these costs from the Kentucky Commission.

Utility Competition in Virginia. The Commonwealth of Virginia passed the Virginia Electric Utility
Restructuring Act in 1999. This act gave customers the ability to choose their electric supplier and capped
electric rates through December 2010. KU subsequently received a legislative exemption from the customer
choice requirements of this law. In April 2007, however, the Virginia General Assembly amended the Virginia
Electric Utility Restructuring Act, thereby terminating this competitive market and commencing re-regulation of
utility rates. The new act ended the cap on rates at the end of 2008. Pursuant to this legislation, the Virginia
Commission adopted regulations revising the rules governing utility rate increase applications. As of January
2009, a hybrid model of regulation is being applied in Virginia. Under this model, utility rates are reviewed
every two years. KU’s exemption from the requirements of the Virginia Electric Utility Restructuring Act in
1999, however, discharges KU from the requirements of the new hybrid model of regulation. In lieu of
submitting an annual information filing, KU has the option of requesting a change in base rates to recover
prudently incurred costs by filing a traditional base rate case. KU is also subject to other utility regulations in
Virginia, including, but not limited to, the recovery of prudently incurred fuel costs through an annual fuel
factor charge and the submission of integrated resource plans.

Regional Reliability Council. KU has changed its regional reliability council membership from the Reliability
First Corporation to the SERC, effective January 1, 2007. Regional reliability councils are industry consortiums
that promote, coordinate and ensure the reliability of the bulk electric supply systems in North America.

TC2 CCN Application and Transmission Matters. A CCN application for construction of the new base-load,
coal fired unit known as TC2, which will be jointly owned by KU and LG&E, together with the IMEA. and the
IMPA, was approved by the Kentucky Commission in November 2005.

CCN applications for two transmission lines associated with the TC2 unit were approved by the Kentucky
Commission in September 2005 and May 2006. All regulatory approvals and rights of way for one transmission
line have been obtained.

The CCN for the remaining line has been challenged by certain Hardin County, Kentucky property owners. In
August 2006, KU and LG&E obtained a successful dismissal of the challenge at the Franklin County circuit
court, which ruling was reversed by the Kentucky Court of Appeals in December 2007, and the proceeding
reinstated. The matter is currently before the Kentucky Supreme Court on a motion for discretionary review
filed by KU and LG&E in May 2008. The motion, which seeks reversal of the appellate court decision and
reinstatement of the circuit court dismissal of the challenge has not yet been ruled upon.
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Completion of the transmission lines are also subject to standard construction permit, environmental
authorization and real property or easement acquisition procedures and certain Hardin County landowners have
raised challenges to such a transmission line in some of these forums as well. During 2008, KU and LG&E
obtained various successful rulings at the Hardin County circuit court establishing their condemnation and
easement rights. In August 2008, the landowners appealed such rulings to the Kentucky Court of Appeals and
received a stay preventing KU and LG&E access to the properties during the appeal. KU and LG&E have
petitioned the appellate court to lift the stay and otherwise sustain the lower court ruling, but such matter has not
yet been ruled upon. In a separate proceeding, certain Hardin County landowners have also challenged the same
transmission line in federal district court in Louisville, Kentucky, claiming that certain National Historic
Preservation Act requirements were not fully complied with by the U.S. Army relating to easements for the line
through Fort Knox. KU and LG&E are cooperating with the U.S. Army in its defense in this case.

KU and LG&E continue to actively engage in settlement negotiations with the Hardin County property owners
involved in the appeals of the condemnation proceedings. During the fourth quarter of 2008, KU and LG&E
entered into settlements with certain Meade County landowners and obtained dismissals of prior litigation they
had brought challenging the same transmission line. KU and LG&E are not currently able to predict the ultimate
outcome and possible effects, if any, on the construction schedule relating to these transmission line approval
and land acquisition proceedings.

Ghent FGD Inquiry. In October 2006, the Kentucky Commission commenced an inquiry into elements of
KU’s planned construction of one of its three new FGDs at the Ghent generating station. The proceeding
requested, and the Company provided, additional information regarding configuration details, expenditures and
the proposed construction sequence applicable to future construction phases of the Ghent FGD project. In
January 2007, the Kentucky Commission issued an Order completing its inquiry in the matter and confirming its
approval of KU’s construction plan. The Order also provided general guidance for jurisdictional utilities
regarding applicable information and data requirements for future CCN applications and subsequent
proceedings.

Market-Based Rate Authority. In July 2006, the FERC issued an Order in KU’s market-based rate proceeding
accepting KU’s further proposal to address certain market power issues the FERC had claimed would arise upon
an exit from the MISO. In particular, the Company received permission to sell power at market-based rates at
the interface of control areas in which it may be deemed to have market power, subject to a restriction that such
power not be collusively re-sold back into such control areas. However, restrictions exist on sales by KU of
power at market-based rates in the KU/LG&E and Big Rivers Electric Corporation control areas. In June 2007,
the FERC issued Order No. 697 implementing certain reforms to market-based rate regulations, including
restrictions similar to those previously in place for KU’s power sales at control area interfaces. In December
2008, the FERC issued Order No. 697-B potentially placing additional restrictions on certain power sales
involving areas where market power is deemed to exist. The Order is subject to 2 FERC rehearing process
during which time the FERC has delayed implementation of the provisions relating to sales at interfaces. The
Company cannot determine its ultimate impact at this time. As a condition of receiving and retaining
market-based rate anthority, KU must comply with applicable affiliate restrictions set forth in the FERC’s
regulation. During September 2008, KU submitted a regular tri-annual update filing under market-based rate
regulations and FERC review proceedings for such filing remain in progress.
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Mandatory Reliability Standards. As a result of the EPAct 2005, certain formerly voluntary reliability
standards became mandatory in June 2007, and authority was delegated to various RRUs by the NERC, which
was authorized by the FERC to enforce compliance with such standards, including promulgating new standards.
Failure to comply with mandatory reliability standards can subject a registered entity to sanctions, including
potential fines of up to $1 million per day, as well as non-monetary penalties, depending upon the circumstances
of the violation. KU is a member of the SERC, which acts as KU’s RRO. During May 2008, the SERC and KU
agreed to a settlement involving penalties totaling less than $1 million related to KU’s February 2008 self-report
concerning possible violations of certain existing mitigation plans relating to reliability standards. The SERC
and KU are currently involved in settlement negotiations concerning a June 2008 self-report by KU relating to
three other standards and an October 2008 self-report of a possible violation relating to an additional standard.
SERC proceedings for these June and October self-reports are in the early stages and therefore the outcome is
unable to be determined. Mandatory reliability standard settlements commonly include other non-penalty
elements, including compliance steps and mitigation plans. Settlements with the SERC proceed to NERC and
FERC review before becoming final. In December 2008, the SERC commenced a routine, periodic audit of KU
and LG&E relating to certain designated reliability standards. This audit was completed during the first quarter
of 2009 with no violations identified. While KU believes itself to be in compliance with the mandatory
reliability standards, the Company cannot predict the outcome of other analyses, including on-going SERC or
other reviews described above.

IRP. Integrated resource planning regulations in Kentucky require major utilities to make triennial IRP filings
with the Kentucky Commission. In April 2008, KU and LG&E filed their 2008 joint IRP with the Kentucky
Commission. The IRP provides historical and projected demand, resource and financial data, and other
operating performance and system information. The AG and the KIUC were granted intervention in the IRP
proceeding. During September 2008, KU and LG&E responded to public comments and they are awaiting the
Kentucky Commission staff report which will close this proceeding. KU and LG&E are not able to predict
further proceedings at this time.

PUHCA 2005. E.ON, KU’s ultimate parent, is a registered holding company under PUHCA 2005. E.ON, its
utility subsidiaries, including KU, and certain of its non-utility subsidiaries, are subject to extensive regulation
by the FERC with respect to numerous matters, including: electric utility facilities and operations, wholesale
sales of power and related transactions, accounting practices, issuances and sales of securities, acquisitions and
sales of utility properties, payments of dividends out of capital and surplus, financial matters and inter-system
sales of non-power goods and services. KU believes that it has adequate authority (including financing
authority) under existing FERC orders and regulations to conduct its business and will seek additional
authorization when necessary.

EPAct 2005. The EPAct 2005 was enacted in August 2005. Among other matters, this comprehensive
legislation contains provisions mandating improved electric reliability standards and performance; granting
enhanced civil penalty authority to the FERC; providing economic and other incentives relating to transmission,
pollution control and renewable generation assets; increasing funding for clean coal generation incentives;
repealing the Public Utility Holding Company Act of 1935; enacting PUHCA 2005 and expanding FERC
jurisdiction over public utility holding companies and related matters via the Federal Power Act and PUHCA
2005.
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In February 2006, the Kentucky Commission initiated an administrative proceeding to consider the requirements
of the EPAct 2005, Subtitle E Section 1252, Smart Metering, which concerns time-based metering and demand
response, and Section 1254, Interconnections. EPAct 2005 requires each state regulatory authority to conduct a
formal investigation and issue a decision on whether or not it is appropriate to implement certain Section 1252,
Smart Metering standards within eighteen months after the enactment of EPAct 2005 and to commence
consideration of Section 1254, Interconnection standards within one year after the enactment of EPAct 2005.
Following a public hearing with all Kentucky jurisdictional electric utilities, in December 2006, the Kentucky
Commission issued an Order in this proceeding indicating that the EPAct 2005 Section 1252, Smart Metering
and Section 1254, Interconnection standards should not be adopted. However, all five Kentucky Commission
jurisdictional utilities are required to file real-time pricing pilot programs for their large commercial and
industrial customers. KU developed a real-time pricing pilot for large industrial and commercial customers and
filed the details of the plan with the Kentucky Commission in April 2007. Data discovery concluded in July
2007, and no parties to the case requested a hearing. In February 2008, the Kentucky Commission issued an
Order approving the real-time pricing pilot program proposed by KU for implementation within approximately
eight months, for its large commercial and industrial customers. The tariff was filed in October 2008, with an
effective date of December 1, 2008. KU will file annual reports on the program within 90 days of each plan
year-end for the 3-year pilot period.

Green Energy Riders. In February 2007, KU and LG&E filed a Joint Application and Testimony for Proposed
Green Energy Riders. The AG and KTUC were granted full intervention. In May 2007, a Kentucky Commission
Order was issued authorizing KU to establish Small and Large Green Energy Riders, allowing customers to
contribute funds to be used for the purchase of renewable energy credits.

Home Energy Assistance Program. In July 2007, KU filed an application with the Kentucky Commission for
the establishment of a new Home Energy Assistance program. During September 2007, the Kentucky
Commission approved the new five-year program as filed, effective in October 2007. The program terminates in
September 2012, and is funded through a $0.10 per month meter charge. Effective February 6, 2009, as a result
of the settlement agreement in the 2008 base rate case, the program is funded through a $0.15 per month meter
charge.

Collection Cycle Revision. As part of the base rate case filed on July 29, 2008, LG&E proposed to change the
due date for customer bill payments from 15 days to 10 days to align its collection cycle with KU. In addition,
KU proposed to include a late payment charge if payment is not received within 15 days from the bill issuance
date to align with LG&E. The settlement agreement approved in the rate case in February 2009, changed the due
date for customer bill payments to 12 days after bill issuance for both KU and LG&E, and KU will implement a
late payment charge if payment is not received within 15 days from the bill issuance date.

Depreciation Study. In December 2007, KU filed a depreciation study with the Kentucky Commission as
required by a previous Order. An adjustment to the depreciation rates is dependent on an order being received
from the Kentucky Commission. In July 2008, KU filed a motion to consolidate the procedural schedule of the
depreciation study with the application for a change in base rates. In August 2008, the Kentucky Commission
issued an Order consolidating the depreciation study with the base rate case proceeding. The settlement
agreement in the rate case established new depreciation rates effective February 2009. KU also filed the
depreciation study with the Virginia Commission, but has not requested formal review and approval of the
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depreciation rates from the Virginia Commission. Such a review will take place either during KU’s next base
rate case in Virginia or when KU makes a formal application to the Virginia Commission for approval of the
proposed rates.

Brownfield Development Rider Tariff. In March 2008, KU received Kentucky Commission approval for a
Brownfield Development Rider, which offers a discounted rate to electric customers who meet certain usage and
location requirements, including taking new service at a brownfield site, as certified by the appropriate
Kentucky state agency. The rider would permit special contracts with such customers which provide for a series
of declining partial rate discounts over an initial five-year period of a longer service arrangement. The tariff is
intended to promote local economic redevelopment and efficient usage of utility resources by aiding potential
reuse of vacant brownfield sites.

Interconnection and Net Metering Guidelines. In May 2008, the Kentucky Commission on its own motion
initiated a proceeding to establish interconnection and net metering guidelines in accordance with amendments
to existing statutory requirements for net metering of electricity. The jurisdictional electric utilities and
intervenors in this case presented proposed interconnection guidelines to the Kentucky Commission in Qctober
2008. In a January 2009 Order, the Kentucky Commission issued the Interconnection and Net Metering
Guidelines — Kentucky that were developed by all parties to the proceeding. KU does not expect any impact as a
result of this Order. KU shall file revised net metenng tariffs and application forms within ninety days of the
Order to comply with the new guidelines.

EISA 2007 Standards. In November 2008, the Kentucky Commission initiated an administrative proceeding
to consider new standards as a result of the Energy Independence and Security Act of 2007 (“EISA 2007”), part
of which amends the Public Utility Regulatory Policies Act of 1978 (“PURPA”). There are four new PURPA
standards and one non-PURPA standard applicable to electric utilities. The proceeding also considers two new
PURPA standards applicable to natural gas utilities. EISA 2007 requires state regulatory commissions and
nonregulated utilities to begin consideration of the rate design and smart grid investments no later than
December 19, 2008 and to complete the consideration by December 19, 2009.

Note 3 - Financial Instruments

The cost and estimated fair values of KU’s non-trading financial instruments as of December 31 follow:

2008 2007
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
(in millions) Value Value Value Value
Long-term debt § 351 § 349 3 333 $ 333
Long-term debt from affiliate $ 1,181 $ 1,117 $ 931 $ 99

The long-term debt valuations reflect prices quoted by dealers. The fair value of the long-term debt from
affiliate is determined using an internal valuation model that discounts the future cash flows of each loan at
current market rates. The current market rates are determined based on quotes from investment banks that are
actively involved in capital markets for utilities and factor in KU’s credit ratings and defanlt risk. The fair
values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, cash surrender value of key man life insurance,
accounts payable and notes payable are substantially the same as their carrying values.
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KU is subject to the risk of fluctuating interest rates in the normal course of business. KU’s policies allow the
interest rate risk to be managed through the use of fixed rate debt, floating rate debt and interest rate swaps. At
December 31, 2008, a 100 basis point change in the benchmark rate on KU’s variable rate debt would impact
pre-tax interest expense by $3 million annually. Although KU’s policies allow for the use of interest rate swaps,
as of December 31, 2008, KU had no interest rate swaps outstanding.

Energy Trading and Risk Management Activities. KU conducts energy trading and risk management
activities to maximize the value of power sales from physical assets it owns. Energy trading activities are
principally forward financial transactions to manage price risk and are accounted for as non-hedging derivatives
on a mark-to-market basis in accordance with SFAS No. 133, as amended.

Energy trading and risk management contracts are valued using prices based on active trades on the
Intercontinental Exchange (“ICE”). In the absence of a traded price, midpoints of the best bids and offers will be
the primary determinants of valuation. When sufficient trading activity is unavailable, other inputs can include
prices quoted by brokers or observable inputs other than quoted prices, such as one-sided bids or offers, as of
the balance sheet date. Using these valuation methodologies, these contracts are considered level 2 based on
SFAS No. 157 measurement criteria. Quotes are verified quarterly using an independent pricing source of actual
transactions. Quotes for combined off-peak and weekend timeframes are allocated between the two timeframes
based on their historical proportional ratios to the integrated cost. No other adjustments are made to the forward
prices.

No changes to valuation techniques for energy trading and risk management activities occurred during 2008 or
2007. Changes in market pricing, interest rate and volatility assumptions were made during both years. All
contracts outstanding at December 31, 2008 and 2007, had a maturity of less than one year and were considered
to be in a liquid market.

KU maintains policies intended to minimize credit risk and revalues credit exposures daily to monitor
compliance with those policies. At December 31, 2008, 100% of the trading and risk management commitments
were with counterparties rated BBB-/Baa3 equivalent or better. KU has reserved against counterparty credit risk
based on the counterparty’s credit rating and applying historical default rates within varying credit ratings over
time provided by S&P or Moody’s. At December 31, 2008 and 2007, counterparty credit reserves were less than
$1 million.

KU manages the price volatility of its forecasted electric wholesale sales with the sales of market-traded electric
forward contracts. Hedge accounting treatment has not been elected for these transactions, and therefore gains
and losses are shown in the statements of income. Unrealized gains and losses are included in other expense —
net, whereas realized gains and losses are included in operating revenues. Unrealized losses were $1 million and
unrealized gains were less than $1 million in 2008 and 2007, respectively. Realized gains and losses were less
than $1 million in 2008 and 2007.

Effective January 1, 2008, KU adopted the required provisions of SFAS No. 157, excluding the exceptions
related to nonfinancial assets and liabilities, which will be adopted effective January 1, 2009, consistent with
FASRB Staff Position 157-2. KU has classified the applicable financial assets that are accounted for at fair value
into the three levels of the fair value hierarchy, as defined by SFAS No. 157.
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The following table sets forth by level within the fair value hierarchy KU's financial assets that were accounted
for at fair value on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2008. Cash collateral related to the energy trading and
risk management contracts totals less than $1 million, is categorized as restricted cash and is a level 1
measurement based on the funds being held in liquid accounts. Liabilities accounted for at fair value total less
than $1 million and use level 2 measurements. There are no level 3 measurements for this period.

Recurring Fair Value Measurements (in millions) Level 1 Level 2 Total
Financial Assets:
Energy trading and risk management contracts $ - $ 1 $ 1
Total Financial Assets $ - $ 1 $ 1

Note 4 - Concentrations of Credit and Other Risk

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if counterparties failed
to perform as contracted. Concentrations of credit risk (whether on- or off-balance sheet) relate to groups of
customers or counterparties that have similar economic or industry characteristics that would cause their ability
to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic or other conditions.

KU’s customer receivables and revenues arise from deliveries of electricity to approximately 508,000 customers
in over 600 communities and adjacent suburban and rural areas in 77 counties in central, southeastern and
western Kentucky, to approximately 30,000 customers in 5 counties in southwestern Virginia and 5 customers
in Tennessee. For the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, 100% of total revenue was derived from
electric operations. During 2008, KU’s 10 largest customers accounted for less than 10% of electric volumes.

Effective August 1, 2006, KU and its employees represented by the IBEW Local 2100 entered into a new
three-year collective bargaining agreement. The new agreement provides for negotiated increases or changes to
wages, benefits or other provisions and for annual wage re-openers. Wage re-openers were negotiated and
agreed to in July 2007 and July 2008. KU and employees represented by the USWA Local 9447-01 entered into
a three-year collective bargaining agreement in August 2008. The new agreement provides for negotiated
increases or changes to wages, benefits or other provisions and for annual wage re-openers. The employees
represented by these two bargaining units comprise approximately 16% of KU’s workforce at December 31,
2008.

Note 5 - Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans

KU employees benefit from both funded and unfunded non-contributory defined benefit pension plans and other
postretirement benefit plans that together cover employees hired by December 31, 2005. Employees hired after
this date participate in the Retirement Income Account (“RIA”), a defined contribution plan. The Company
makes an annual lump sum contribution to the RIA, based on years of service and a percentage of covered
compensation. The health care plans are contributory with participants’ contributions adjusted annually. KU
uses December 31 as the measurement date for its plans.

Obligations and Funded Status. The following tables provide a reconciliation of the changes in the plans’
benefit obligations and fair value of assets over the two-year period ending December 31, 2008, and a statement
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of the funded status as of December 31 for KU’s sponsored defined benefit plans:

Other Postretirement
Pension Benefits Benefits
(in millions)
2008 2007 2008 2007
Change in benefit obligation
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 284 $ 303 $ 76 $ 88
Service cost 5 6 1 2
Interest cost 18 17 5 5
Benefits paid, net of retiree contributions (18) (19) 3) (5)
Actuarial (gain)/loss and other 17 (23) () -
Benefit obligation at end of year § 306 § 284 $§ 75 $ 90
Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ 264 $ 253 $ 13 $ 12
Actual return on plan assets 61) 17 3) -
Employer contributions - 13 5 6
Benefits paid, net of retiree contributions (18) (19) 3) 5
Administrative expenses and other (2) - - -
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 183 $ 264 $§ 12 $§ 13
Funded status at end of year $ (123) 5 (20) $ (63) $ (77

Amounts Recognized in Statement of Financial Position. The following tables provide the amounts
recognized in the balance sheets and information for plans with benefit obligations in excess of plan assets as of
December 31:

QO ther Postretirement

(in millions) Pension Benefits Benefits

2008 2007 2008 2007
Regulatory assets 5 137 3 37 F o 5 9
Accrued benefit liability (non-current) (123) 20) 63) (63)

Additional year-end information for plans with accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan assets:

Other Postretirement

(n millions) Pension Benefits Benefits

2008 2007 2008 2007
Benefit obligation 3 306 $ 284 $ 75 $ 76
Accumulated benefit o bligation 261 243 - -
Fair value of plan assets 183 264 12 13
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For discussion of the pension and postretirement regulatory assets, see Note 2, Rates and Regulatory

Matters.

Components of Net Periodic Benefit Cost. The following tables provide the components of net periodic
benefit cost for pension and other postretirement benefit plans. The tables include the costs associated with both
KU employees and E.ON U.S. Services’ employees, who are providing services to the utility. The E.ON U.S.
Services’ costs that are allocated to KU are approximately 46% and 45% of E.ON U.S. Services’ total cost for

2008 and 2007, respectively.

(In millons)

Service cost

Interest cost

Expected return on plan
assets

Amortrzation ofprior
service costs

Amortization ofactuarial
loss

Bemnefit costat end of
year

Service cost

Interest cost

Expected return on plan
assets

Amortzation of
transitional obligation

Benefit costat end of
year

Pension Benefits

Servco Serveo
Allbcation Total Allocation Total
KU to KU KU KU to KU KU
2008 2008 2008 2007 2007 2007
$ 6 $ 4 $ 10 5 6 $ 4 $ 10
18 6 24 17 5 22
(21) ) (26) (21) (5) (26)
1 1 2 1 1 2
- - - 2 1 3
4 Y 6 $ 10 hY 5 $ 6 b 11
Other Postretirement Benefits
Servco Servco
Allocation Total Allocation Total
KU to KU KU KU to KU KU
2008 2008 2008 2007 2007 2007
1 1 $ 2 $ 1 3 1 $ 2
5 - 5 5 - 5
(1) - (1) (n - 1)
1 - 1 1 - 1
6 1 3 7 $ 6 $ 1 3 7

The assumptions used in the measurement of KU’s pension benefit obligation are shown in the following table:
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2008 2007
Weighted-average assumptions as of December 31:
Discount rate 6.25% 6.66%
Rate of compensation increase 5.25% 5.25%

The discount rates were determined by the December 29, 2008, Mercer Pension Discount Yield Curve. These
discount rates were then lowered by 2 basis points for the average change in 4 bond indices, Citigroup High
Grade Credit Index AAA/AA 10+ years, Lehman Brothers US AA Long Credit, Merrill Lynch US Corporate
AA-AAA rated 10+ years and Mermll Lynch US Corporate AA rated 15+ years, for the period from December
29, 2008 to December 31, 2008.

The assumptions used in the measurement of KU’s net periodic benefit cost are shown in the following table:

2008 2007
Discount rate 6.66% 5.96%
Expected long-term return on plan assets 8.25% 8.25%
Rate of compensation increase 3.25% 5.25%

To develop the expected long-term rate of return on assets assumption, KU considered the current level of
expected returns on risk free investments (primarily government bonds), the historical level of the risk premium
associated with the other asset classes in which the portfolio is invested and the expectations for future returns
of each asset class. The expected return for each asset class was then weighted based on the target asset
allocation to develop the expected long-term rate of return on assets assumption for the portfolio.

The following describes the effects on pension benefits by changing the major actuarial assumptions discussed
above:

e A 1% change in the assumed discount rate could have an approximate $31 million positive or
negative impact to the 2008 accumulated benefit obligation and an approximate $42 million
positive or negative impact to the 2008 projected benefit obligation.

» A 25 basis point change in the expected rate of return on assets would have an approximate $1
million positive or negative impact on 2008 pension expense.

Assumed Health care Cost Trend Rates. For measurement purposes, an 8% annual increase in the per capita
cost of covered health care benefits was assumed for 2008. The rate was assumed to decrease gradually to 5%
by 2016 and remain at that level thereafter.

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for the health care plans.
A 1% change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have resulted in an increase or decrease of less than
$1 million on the 2008 total of service and interest costs components and an increase or decrease of $4 million
in year-end 2008 postretirement benefit obligations.

Expected Future Benefit Payments and Medicare Subsidy Receipts. The following list provides the amount
of expected future benefit payments, which reflect expected future service and the estimated gross amount of
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Medicare subsidy receipts:

Other Medicare
Pension  Postretirement Subsidy
(in millions) Benefits Benefits Receipts
2009 3 18 b 7 § 1
2010 18 7 -
2011 17 7 1
2012 17 7
2013 17 7 1
2014-18 94 39

Plan Assets. The following table shows KU’s weighted-average asset allocation by asset category at December
31:

Pension Plans Target Range 2008 2007
Equity securities 45% - 75% 55% 57%
Debt securities 30% - 50% 43 43
Other 0% - 10% 2 -
Totals 100% 100%

The investment policy of the pension plans was developed in conjunction with financial consultants, investment
advisors and legal counsel. The goal of the investment policy is to preserve the capital of the fund and maximize
investment earnings. The return objective is to exceed the benchmark return for the policy index comprised of
the following: Russell 3000 Index, MSCI-EAFE Index, Lehman Aggregate and Lehman U.S. Long
Government/Credit Bond Index in proportions equal to the targeted asset allocation.

Evaluation of performance focuses on a long-term investment time horizon of at least three to five years or a
complete market cycle. The assets of the pension plans are broadly diversified within different asset classes
(equities, fixed income securities and cash equivalents).

To minimize the risk of large losses in a single asset class, no more than 5% of the portfolio will be invested in
the securities of any one issuer with the exclusion of the U.S. government and its agencies. The equity portion of
the fund is diversified among the market’s various subsections to diversify risk, maximize returns and avoid
undue exposure to any single economic sector, industry group or individual security. The equity subsectors
include, but are not limited to, growth, value, small capitalization and international.

In addition, the overall fixed income portfolio may have an average weighted duration, or interest rate
sensitivity which is within +/- 20% of the duration of the overall fixed income benchmark. Foreign bonds in the
aggregate shall not exceed 10% of the total fund. The portfolio may include a limited investment of up to 20%
in below investment grade securities provided that the overall average portfolio quality remains “AA” or better.
The below investment grade securities include, but are not limited to, medium-term notes, corporate debt,
non-dollar and emerging market debt and asset backed securities. The cash investments should be in securities
that either are of short maturities (not to exceed 180 days) or readily marketable with modest risk.
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Derivative securities are permitted only to improve the portfolio’s risk/return profile, to modify the portfolio’s
duration or to reduce transaction costs and must be used in conjunction with underlying physical assets in the
portfolio. Derivative securities that involve speculation, leverage, interest rate anticipation, or any undue risk
whatsoever are not deemed appropriate investments.

The investment objective for the postretirement benefit plan is to provide current income consistent with
stability of principal and liquidity while maintaining a stable net asset value of $1.00 per share. The
postretirement funds are invested in a prime cash money market fund that invests primarily in a portfolio of
short-term, high-quality fixed income securities issued by banks, corporations and the U.S. government.

Contributions. KU made a discretionary contribution to the pension plan of $13 million in January 2007. In
addition, contributions to other postretirement benefit plans of $5 million and $6 million were made in 2008 and
2007, respectively. The amount of future contributions to the pension plan will depend upon the actual return on
plan assets and other factors, but the Company funds its pension obligations in a manner consistent with the
Pension Protection Act of 2006. In 2009, KU anticipates making voluntary contributions to fund Voluntary
Employee Beneficiary Association trusts to match the annual postretirement expense and funding the 401(h)
plan up to the maximum amount allowed by law.

Pension Legislation. The Pension Protection Act of 2006 was enacted in August 2006. New rules regarding
funding of defined benefit plans are generally effective for plan years beginning in 2008. Among other matters,
this comprehensive legislation contains provisions applicable to defined benefit plans which generally (i)
mandate full funding of current liabilities within seven years; (ii) increase tax-deduction levels regarding
contributions; (iii) revise certain actuarial assumptions, such as mortality tables and discount rates; and (iv) raise
federal insurance premiums and other fees for under-funded and distressed plans. The legislation also contains a
number of provisions relating to defined-contribution plans and qualified and non-qualified executive pension
plans and other matters. The Company has monitored developments regarding the Act and has made a number
of elections to comply.

Thrift Savings Plans. KU has a thrift savings plan under section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. Under
the plan, eligible employees may defer and contribute to the plan a portion of current compensation in order to
provide future retirement benefits. KU makes contributions to the plan by matching a portion of the employee
contributions. The costs of this matching were $3 million and $2 million for 2008 and 2007, respectively.

KU also makes contributions to retirement income accounts within its thrift savings plans for certain employees
not covered by its noncontributory defined benefit pension plans. These employees consist mainly of those
hired after December 31, 2005. KU makes these contributions based on years of service and the employees’
wage and salary levels, and it makes them in addition to the matching contributions discussed above. The
amounts contributed by KU under this arrangement equaled less than $1 million in 2008 and in 2007.

Note 6 - Income Taxes

A United States consolidated income tax return is filed by E.ON U.S.’s direct parent, E.ON US Investments
Corp., for each tax period. Each subsidiary of the consolidated tax group, including KU, calculates its separate
income tax for each period. The resulting separate-return tax cost or benefit is paid to or received from the
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parent company or its designee. KU also files income tax returns in various state jurisdictions. While the federal
statute of limitations related to 2005 and later years are open, Revenue Agent Reports for 2005-2007 have been
received from the IRS, effectively closing these years to additional audit adjustments. Adjustments made by the
IRS for the 2005-2006 tax years were recorded in the 2008 financial statements. The tax year 2007 return was
examined under an IRS pilot program named “Compliance Assurance Process” (“CAP”). This program
accelerates the IRS’s review to begin during the year applicable to the return and ends 90 days after the return is
filed. KU had no adjustments for the 2007 filed federal income tax return. The tax year 2008 return is also being
examined under the CAP program.

KU adopted the provisions of FIN 48, dccounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an Interpretation of SFAS
No. 109, effective January 1, 2007. At the date of adoption, KU had less than $1 million of unrecognized tax
benefits, primarily related to federal income taxes. If recognized, the amount of unrecognized tax benefits would
reduce the effective income tax rate. Additions and reductions of uncertain tax positions during 2008 and 2007
were less than $1 million. Possible amounts of uncertain tax positions for KU that may decrease within the next
12 months total less than $1 million and are based on the expiration of the audit periods as defined in the
statutes.

Interest and penalties, if any, are recorded as operating expenses on the income statement and accrued expenses
on the balance sheet. The amount KU recognized as interest expense and interest accrued related to
unrecognized tax benefits was less than §1 million as of December 31, 2008 and 2007. The interest accrued is
based on IRS and Kentucky Department of Revenue large corporate interest rates for underpayment of taxes. At
the date of adoption, KU accrued less than $1 million in interest expense on uncertain tax positions. No
penalties were accrued by KU upon adoption of FIN 48, or through December 31, 2008.

Components of income tax expense are shown in the table below:

(in millions) 2008 2007
Current - federal $ 46 $ 28
- state 10 13
Deferred - federal — net (10) &)
- state — net 3 ¢y
Investment tax credit — deferred 25 43
Amortization of investment tax credit - (1)
Total income tax expense $ 68 $ 77

Current federal income tax expense increased and investment tax credit — deferred decreased primarily due to
claiming $18 million less in investment tax credits in 2008. These investment tax credits are discussed further
below. Current state income tax decreased due to coal credits claimed in 2008. Deferred federal income tax
decreased due to adjusting prior year estimates to actual based on the filed tax return.

In June 2006, KU and LG&E filed a joint application with the U.S. Department of Energy (“DOE”) requesting
certification to be eligible for investment tax credits applicable to the construction of TC2. In November 2006,
the DOE and the IRS announced that KU and LG&E were selected to receive the tax credit. A final IRS
certification required to obtain the investment tax credit was received in August 2007. In September 2007, KU
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received an Order from the Kentucky Commission approving the accounting of the investment tax credit. KU’s
portion of the TC2 tax credit will be approximately $100 million over the construction period and will be
amortized to income over the life of the related property beginning when the facility is placed in service. Based
on eligible construction expenditures incurred, KU recorded investment tax credits of $25 million and $43
million in 2008 and 2007, respectively, decreasing current federal income taxes. In addition, a full depreciation
basis adjustment is required for the amount of the credit. The income tax expense impact of this adjustment will
begin when the facility is placed in service.

In March 2008, certain environmental and preservation groups filed suit in federal court in North Carolina
against the DOE and IRS claiming the investment tax credit program was in violation of certain environmental
laws and demanded relief, including suspension or termination of the program. In August 2008, the plaintiffs
submitted an amended complaint alleging additional claims for relief. In November 2008, the Court dismissed
the suit; however, the plaintiffs filed a motion for reconsideration. The Company is not currently a party to this
proceeding and is not able to predict the ultimate outcome of this matter.

Components of net deferred tax liabilities included in the balance sheets are shown below:

(in millions) 2008 2007
Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciation and other plant-related items § 284 $ 292
Regulatory assets and other 40 40
Total deferred tax liabilities 324 332

Deferred tax assets:

Income taxes due to customers 6 9
Pensions and related benefits 19 17
Liabilities and other 22
Total deferred tax assets 47 49
Net deferred income tax liability $ 277 $ 283
Balance sheet classification
Current assets 3 ) $ @
Non-current liabilities 280 285
Net deferred income tax liability $ 277 $ 283

KU expects to have adequate levels of taxable income to realize its recorded deferred tax assets.

A reconciliation of differences between the statutory 1).S. federal income tax rate and KU’s effective income tax
rate follows:

[FERC FORM NO. 1 (ED. 12-88) Page 123.27 ]




Name of Respondent This Report is: Date of Report |Year/Period of Report

(1) X An Original {Mo, Da, Yr)

Kentucky Utilities Company {2) __ A Resubmission 11 2008/Q4
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2008 2007
Statutory federal income tax rate 35.0% 35.0%
State income taxes, net of federal benefit 2.6 34
Reduction of income tax reserve (0.2) (0.4)
Qualified production activities deduction (1.1) (12)
Dividends received deduction related to EEI investment (4.2) (2.9)
Amortization of investment tax credits ©0.1) 0.4)
Other differences (19 (1.9)
Effective income tax rate 30.1 % 31.6 %

State income taxes, net of federal benefit decreased due to state coal credits received in 2008. KU’s effective
income tax rate also decreased in 2008 as a result of increased dividends from its investment in EEL

Note 7 - Long-Term Debt

As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, long-term debt consists primarily of pollution control bonds and long-term
loans from affiliated companies as summarized below.

Stated Principal
(in millions) Interest Rates Maturities Amounts
Qutstanding at December 31, 2008 Variable — 7.035% 2010-2037 $1,532
Outstanding at December 31, 2007 Variable — 6.33% 2010-2037 51,264

Pollution control series bonds are obligations of KU issued in connection with tax-exempt pollution control
revenue bonds issued by various governmental entities, principally counties in Kentucky. A loan agreement
obligates KU to make debt service payments to the county that equate to the debt service due from the county on
the related pollution control revenue bonds. Until a series of financing transactions was completed during
February 2007, the county’s debt was also secured by an equal amount of KU’s first mortgage bonds that were
pledged to the trustee for the pollution control revenue bonds that match the terms and conditions of the
county’s debt, but require no payment of principal and interest unless the Company defaults on the loan
agreement. Subsequent to February 2007, the loan agreement is an unsecured obligation of KU. Proceeds from
bond issuances for environmental equipment (primarily related to the installation of FGDs) were held in trust
pending expenditure for qualifying assets. At December 31, 2008, and 2007, KU had $9 million and $11 -
million, respectively, of bond proceeds in trust, included in resiricted cash in the balance sheets.

Several of the pollution control bonds are or were insured by monoline bond insurers whose ratings have been
under pressure due to exposures relating to insurance of sub-prime mortgages. At December 31, 2008, KU had
an aggregate $351 million of outstanding pollution control indebtedness, of which $96 million is in the form of
insured auction rate securities wherein interest rates are reset every 35 days via an auction process. Beginning in
late 2007, the interest rates on these insured bonds began to increase due to investor concerns about the
creditworthiness of the bond insurers. In 2008, interest rates have continued to increase, and the Company has
experienced “failed auctions” where there are insufficient bids for the bonds. When there is a failed auction, the
interest rate is set pursuant to a formula stipulated in the indenture which can be as high as 15%. During 2008
and 2007, the average rate on the auction rate bonds was 4.50% and 3.96%, respectively. The instruments
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governing these auction rate bonds permit KU to convert the bonds to other interest rate modes, such as various
short-term variable rates, long-term fixed rates or intermediate-term fixed rates that are reset infrequently. In
2008, the ratings of the following bonds were downgraded due to downgrades of the bond insurers or the
termination of the bond insurance.

Bond Rating

($ m millions) Moody's S&P

Tax Exempt Bond Issues Prncipal 2008 2007 2008 2007
Mercer County 2000 Series A (1) $ 13 Aaa Aaa AA+ AAA
Carroll County 2002 Series C $ 96 A2 Aaa A AAA
Carroll County 2004 Series A (1) $ 50 Aaa Aaa AA+ AAA
Carroll County 2005 Series A (2) $ 13 - Ana - AAA
Carroll County 2005 Series B (2) 3 13 - Aaa - AAA
Carroll County 2006 Series A (2) $ 17 - Aaa - AAA
Carroll County 2006 Series B (1) $ 54 Aaa Aaa AA+ AAA
Carroll County 2006 Series C (2) $ 17 - Aaa - AAA
Carroll County 2007 Series A $ 18 A2 Aaa A AAA
Trimble County 2007 Series A $§ 9 A2 Aaa A AAA
Carroll County 2008 Series A (3) $ 78 Aaa - AA+ -

(1) Bonds restructured in December 2008, and enhanced by letter of credit. Bond insurance terminated upon
restructuring.

(2) Bonds defeased in October 2008. Proceeds combined with new bond allocation of $18 million to create new
bond issue of $78 million without insurance enhancement.

(3) Bond issued in October 2008, without insurance enhancement. Bond restructured in December 2008, and
enhanced by letter of credit.

In February 2008, KU issued a notice to bondholders of its intention to convert the Carroll County 2007 Series
A bond and the Trimble County 2007 Series A bond from the auction rate mode to a fixed interest rate mode, as
permitted under the loan documents. These conversions were completed in April 2008, and the new rates on the
bonds are 5.75% and 6.00%, respectively.

In March 2008, KU issued notices to bondholders of its intention to convert the Carroll County 2006 Series C
bond and the Mercer County 2000 Series A bond from the auction rate mode to a weekly interest rate mode, as
permitted under the loan documents. The Carroll County conversion was completed in April 2008, and the
Mercer County conversion was completed in May 2008. In connection with these conversions, KU purchased
the bonds from the remarketing agent. In October 2008, the Carroll County 2006 Series C bond, along with the
Carroll County 2005 Series A and B and Carroll County 2006 Series A bonds, were defeased.

In June 2008, KU issued notices to bondholders of its intention to convert the Carroll County 2004 Series A
bond from the auction rate mode to a weekly interest rate mode, as permitted under the loan documents. The
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conversion was completed in July 2008. In connection with the conversion, KU purchased the bond from the
remarketing agent.

In November 2008, KU issued notices to bondholders of its intention to convert the Carroll County 2006 Series
B and Carroll County 2008 Series A bonds from the auction rate mode to a weekly interest rate mode, as
permitted under the loan documents. The conversion was completed in December 2008. In connection with the
conversions, the bond insurance policy associated with the bonds was terminated and replaced with letters of
credit.

In December 2008, KU remarketed the Mercer County 2000 Series A and Carroll County 2004 Series A bonds.
In connection with the conversions, the bond insurance policy associated with the bonds was terminated and
replaced with letters of credit.

As of December 31, 2008, KU had no remaining repurchased bonds. KU refinanced and remarketed $63 million
and refinanced $17 million of pollution control bonds that had been previously repurchased by the Company.

All of KU’s first mortgage bonds were released and terminated in February 2007. Only the tax-exempt pollution
control revenue bonds issued by the counties remain. Under the provisions for certain of KU’s variable-rate
pollution control bonds, the bonds are subject to tender for purchase at the option of the holder and to
mandatory tender for purchase upon the occurrence of certain events. The average annualized interest rate for
these bonds during 2008 and 2007 was 1.75% and 3.72%, respectively.

Redemptions and maturities of long-term debt for 2008 and 2007 are summarized below:

(3 in millions) Principal Secured/
Year Description Amount Rate Unsecured  Maturity
2008  Pollution control bonds $ 13 Variable Secured 2035
2008  Pollution control bonds $ 13 Variable Secured 2035
2008  Pollution control bonds § 17 Variable Secured 2036
2008  Pollution control bonds $ 17 Variable Secured 2036
2007  Pollution control bonds $ 54 Variable Secured 2024
2007  First mortgage bonds $ 54 7.92% Secured 2007
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Issuances of long-term debt for 2008 and 2007 are summarized below:

($ in millions) Principal Secured/

Year Description Amount Rate Unsecured  Maturity
2008 Due to Fidelia 75 7.035% Unsecured 2018
2008 Pollution control bonds 78 Variable Unsecured 2032
2008 Due to Fidelia 50 6.16% Unsecured 2018
2008 Due to Fidelia 50 5.645% Unsecured 2018
2008 Due to Fidelia 75 5.85% Unsecured 2023
2007 Pollution control bonds 54 Variable Unsecured 2034
2007 Pollution control bonds 18 Variable Unsecured 2026
2007 Pollution control bonds 9 Variable Unsecured 2037
2007 Due to Fidelia 53 5.69% Unsecured 2022
2007 Due to Fidelia 75 5.86% Unsecured 2037
2007 Due to Fidelia 50 5.98% Unsecured 2017
2007 Due to Fidelia 100 5.96% Unsecured 2028
2007 Due to Fidelia 70 5.71% Unsecured 2019
2007 Due to Fidelia 100 5.45% Unsecured 2014

L IR AR IR = - B I B I B - -

In October 2008, KU issued Carroll County 2008 Series A tax exempt bond in the amount of $78 million. The
new bond matures on February 1, 2032, and bears interest at a variable rate. The new bond refinances four
existing bonds (Carroll County 2005 Series A and C - $13 million each and the Carroll County 2006 Series A
and C - $17 million each), and includes $18 million of new funding. The proceeds from the new funding will
be held in escrow pending incurrence of qualifying expenditures.

In December 2008, KU converted the interest rate mode of the Carroll County 2006 Series B to a weekly mode
from an auction mode. The bond along with the Carroll County 2004 Series A, the Mercer County 2000 Series
A, and the Carroll County 2008 Series A, were issued with the enhancement of a letter of credit.

In February 2007, KU completed a series of financial transactions impacting its periodic reporting requirements.
The $54 million Pollution Control Series 10 bond was refinanced and replaced with a new unsecured
tax-exempt bond of the same amount maturing in 2034. The $53 million Series P bond was defeased and
replaced with an intercompany loan totaling $53 million from Fidelia. In conjunction with the defeasance, the
Company terminated the related interest rate swap. Fidelia also agreed to eliminate the second lien on its two
secured loans. Pursuant to the terms of the remaining tax-exempt bonds, the first mortgage bonds were
cancelled and the underlying lien on substantially all of KU’s assets was released following the completion of
these steps. KU no longer has any secured debt and is no longer subject to periodic reporting under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
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Long-term debt maturities for KU are shown in the following table:

(in millions)

2009 $ -
2010 33
2011 -
2012 50
2013 175
Thereafter 1,274
Total $ 1,532

Note 8 - Notes Payable and Other Short-Term Obligations

KU participates in an intercompany money pool agreement wherein E.ON U.S. and/or LG&E make funds
available to KU at market-based rates (based on highly rated commercial paper issues) up to $400 million.
Details of the balances are as follows:

Total Money Amount Balance Average
(3 in millions) Pool Available Qutstanding Available Interest Rate
December 31, 2008 $ 400 $ 16 $ 384 1.49%
December 31, 2007 $ 400 $ 23 $ 377 4.75%

E.ON U.S. maintains revolving credit facilities totaling $313 million and $150 million at December 31, 2008
and 2007, respectively, to ensure funding availability for the money pool. At December 31, 2008, one facility,
totaling $150 million, is with E.ON North America, Inc., while the remaining line, totaling $163 million, is with
Fidelia; both are affiliated companies. The facility as of December 31, 2007, was with E.ON North America,
Inc. The balances are as follows:

Total Amount Balance Average
(§ in millions) Available Outstanding Available Interest Rate
December 31, 2008 $ 313 $ 299 $§ 14 2.05%
December 31, 2007 $ 150 $ 62 § 88 4.97%

During June 2007, KU entered into a short-term bilateral line of credit totaling $35 million. During the third
quarter of 2007, KU extended the maturity date on this facility to June 2012. There was no outstanding balance
under this facility at December 31, 2008.

The covenants under this revolving line of credit include the following:
e The debt/total capitalization ratio must be less than 70%
s E.ON must own at least 66.667% of voting stock of KU directly or indirectly
e The corporate credit rating of the Company must be at or above BBB- and Baa3 as determined by
S&P and Moody’s
e A limitation on disposing of assets aggregating more than 15% of total assets as of December 31,
2006
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KU was in compliance with these covenants at December 31, 2008.

In October 2008, KU closed on a new $78 million bilateral line of credit which has a 364 day maturity. This
facility was terminated in December 2008 and replaced by four new letter of credit facilities to allow issuance of
letters of credit totaling $198 million to support tax-exempt bonds totaling $195 million. The reimbursement
agreements are identical and contain the following covenants:

e E.ON must own 75% of voting stock of KU directly or indirectly
e A limitation on disposing of assets aggregating more than 20% of total assets as of most recent
quarter-end.

At December 31, 2008, KU had no remaining capacity for letters of credit under these facilities and was in
compliance with these covenants.

Note 9 - Commitments and Contingencies

Operating Leases. KU leases office space, office equipment, plant equipment and vehicles and accounts for
these leases as operating leases. In addition, KU reimburses LG&E for a portion of the lease expense paid by
LG&E for KU’s usage of office space leased by LG&E. Total lease expense was $9 million and $6 million for
2008 and 2007, respectively. The future minimum annual lease payments for operating leases for years
subsequent to December 31, 2008, are shown in the following table:

(in millions)
2009

2010

2011

2012

2013
Thereafter
Total

R
[« QR VS~ SR &, BV e

|

1<%}
(U8 ]
=

|

Owensboro Contract Litigation. In May 2004, the City of Owensboro, Kentucky and OMU commenced a suit
now removed to the U.S. District Court for the Western District of Kentucky, against KU concerning a
long-term power supply contract (the “OMU Agreement”) with KU. The dispute involves interpretational
differences regarding issues under the OMU Agreement, including various payments or charges between KU
and OMU and rights concerning excess power, termination and emissions allowances. The complaint seeks in
excess of $6 million in damages in connection with one of its claims for periods prior to 2004, plus damages in
an unspecified amount for later-occurring periods on that claim and for other claims. OMU has additionally
requested injunctive and other relief, including a declaration that KU is in material breach of the contract. KU
has filed an answer in this proceeding denying the OMU claims and presenting counterclaims and amended such
filing in January 2007, to include further counterclaims alleging additional damages.

In May 2006, OMU issued a notification of its intent to terminate the OMU agreement contract in May 2010,
without cause, absent any earlier relief which may be permitted by the proceeding, pursuant to a July 2005
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summary judgment ruling interpreting the contract termination provisions in OMU’s favor.

In September and October 2008, the court granted rulings on a number of summary judgment petitions in KU’s
favor, including determinations that KU’s interpretation of facilities charge fund payments was accurate; that
KU is the proportionate owner of NOx allowances allocated to the OMU plant by the government; that OMU’s
claims disputing various back-up power charges should be dismissed and that’s KU’s counterclaim based on
operations and maintenance practices should proceed to trial. The summary judgment rulings resulted in the
dismissal of all of OMU’s remaining claims against KU. The trial on KU’s counterclaim occurred during
October and November 2008. During February 2009, the court issued orders on the matters covered at trial,
including (i) awarding KU an aggregate $9 million relating to the cost of NOx allowances charged by OMU to
KU and the price of back-up power purchased by OMU from KU and (ii) denying KU’s claim for damages
based upon sub-par operations and availability of the OMU units. Those rulings, as well as all of the court’s
various prior rulings, including upholding early termination of the contract in spring 2010, remain subject to
post-trial motions and appeal rights.

Sale and Leaseback Transaction. KU is a participant in a sale and leaseback transaction involving its 62%
interest in two jointly owned CTs at KU’s E.W. Brown generating station (Units 6 and 7). Commencing in
December 1999, KU and LG&E entered into a tax-efficient, 18-year lease of the CTs. KU and LG&E have
provided funds to fully defease the lease, and have executed an irrevocable notice to exercise an early purchase
option contained in the lease after 15.5 years. The financial statement treatment of this transaction is no different
than if KU had retained its ownership. The leasing transaction was entered into following receipt of required
state and federal regulatory approvals.

In case of default under the lease, KU is obligated to pay to the lessor its share of certain fees or amounts.
Primary events of default include loss or destruction of the CTs, failure to insure or maintain the CTs and
unwinding of the transaction due to governmental actions. No events of default currently exist with respect to
the lease. Upon any termination of the lease, whether by default or expiration of its term, title to the CTs reverts
jointly to KU and LG&E.

At December 31, 2008, the maximum aggregate amount of default fees or amounts was $9 million, of which
KU would be responsible for 62% (approximately $6 million). KU has made arrangements with E.ON U.S., via
guarantee and regulatory commitment, for E.ON U.S. to pay KU’s full portion of any default fees or amounts.

Letter of Credit. KU has provided letters of credit totaling $198 million supporting bonds of $195 million and
a letter of credit totaling less than $1 million to support certain obligations related to workers’ compensation.

Purchased Power. KU has purchased power arrangements with OMU and OVEC. Under the OMU agreement,
which is presently expected to end in May 2010, KU purchases all of the output of an approximately 400-Mw
coal-fired generating station not required by OMU. The amount of purchased power available to KU during
2009-2010, which is expected to be approximately 5% of KU’s total Kwh native load energy requirements, is
dependent upon a number of factors including the OMU units’ availability, maintenance schedules, fuel costs
and OMU requirements. Payments are based on the total costs of the station allocated per terms of the OMU
agreement. Included in the total costs is KU’s proportionate share of debt service requirements on $228 million
of OMU bonds outstanding at December 31, 2008. The debt service is allocated to KU based on its annual
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allocated share of capacity, which averaged approximately 41% in 2008. KU does not guarantee the OMU
bonds, or any requirements therein, in the event of default by OMU.

KU has a contract for purchased power with OVEC, terminating in 2026, for various Mw capacities. KU has an
investment of 2.5% ownership in OVEC’s common stock, which is accounted for on the cost method of
accounting. KU’s share of OVEC’s output is 2.5%, approximately 55 Mw of generation capacity. Future
obligations for power purchases are shown in the following table:

(in millions)

2009 $ 26
2010 17
2011 10
2012 10
2013 10
Thereafter 155
Total $ 228

Coal and Gas Purchase Obligations. KU has contracts to purchase coal and natural gas transportation. Future
obligations are shown in the following table:

(in millions)

2009 $ 442
2010 387
2011 363
2012 217
2013 59
Thereafter _~(a)
Total $ 1,468

(a) Obligations after 2013 are indexed to future market prices and will not be included above until prices are set
using the contracted methodology.

Construction Program. KU had $123 million of commitments in connection with its construction program at
December 31, 2008.

In June 2006, KU and L.G&E entered into a construction contract regarding the TC2 project. The contract is
generally in the form of a lump-sum, turnkey agreement for the design, engineering, procurement, construction,
commissioning, testing and delivery of the project, according to designated specifications, terms and conditions.
The contract price and its components are subject to a number of potential adjustments which may serve to
increase or decrease the ultimate construction price paid or payable to the contractor. The contract also contains
standard representations, covenants, indemnities, termination and other provisions for arrangements of this type,
including termination for convenience or for cause rights. The parties have commenced certain negotiations
relating to potential construction cost increases due to higher labor and per diem costs above an established
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baseline, and certain safety and compliance costs resulting from a change in law. KU’s share of additional costs
from inception of the contract through the expected project completion in 2010 may be approximately $25
million.

TC2 Air Permit. The Sierra Club and other environmental groups filed a petition challenging the air permit
issued for the TC2 baseload generating unit which was issued by the KDAQ in November 2005. The filing of
the challenge did not stay the permit, so the Company was free to proceed with construction during the
pendency of the action. In June 2007, the state hearing officer assigned to the matter recommended upholding
the air permit with minor revisions. In September 2007, the Secretary of the Kentucky Environmental and
Public Protection Cabinet issued a final Order approving the hearing officer’s recommendation and upholding
the permit. In September 2007, KU administratively applied for a permit revision to reflect minor design
changes. In October 2007, the environmental groups submitted comments objecting to the draft permit revisions
and, in part, attempting to reassert general objections to the generating unit. In January 2008, the KDAQ issued
a final permit revision. The environmental groups did not appeal the final Order upholding the permit or file a
petition challenging the permit revision by the applicable deadlines. However, in October 2007, the
environmental groups filed a lawsuit in federal court seeking an order for the EPA to grant or deny their pending
petition for the EPA to “veto” the state air permit and in April 2008, they filed a petition seeking veto of the
permit revision. In September 2008, the EPA issued an Order denying nine of eleven claims alleged in one of
the petitions, but finding deficiencies in two areas of the permit. The KDAQ revised the permit to address the
issues identified in the EPA’s Order, although the Sierra Club subsequently submitted comments objecting to
the revisions. Although the Company does not expect material changes in the permit as a result of the various
petitions, the EPA has yet to rule on several additional claims. The Company is currently unable to determine
the final outcome of this matter or the impact of an unfavorable determination upon the Company’s financial
condition or results of operations.

Mine Safety Compliance Costs. In March 2006, the Mine Safety and Health Administration enacted
Emergency Temporary Standards regulations and has issued additional regulations as the result of the passage of
the Mine Improvement and New Emergency Response Act of 2006, which was signed into law in June 2006. At
the state level, Kentucky and other states that supply coal to KU, have passed new mine safety legislation. These
pieces of legislation require all underground coal mines to implement new safety measures and install new
safety equipment. Under the terms of some of the coal contracts KU has in place, provisions are made to allow
for price adjustments for compliance costs resulting from new or amended laws or regulations. KU has begun to
receive information from the mines it contracts with regarding price adjustments related to these compliance
costs and has hired a consultant to review all supplier claims for validity and reasonableness. At this time KU
has not been notified of claims by all mines and is reviewing those claims it has received. An adjustment will be
made to the value of the coal inventory once the amount is determinable, however, the amount cannot be
estimated at this time. The Company expects to recover these costs through the FAC.

Environmental Matters. KU’s operations are subject to a number of environmental laws and regulations in
each of the jurisdictions in which it operates, governing, among other things, air emissions, wastewater
discharges, the use, handling and disposal of hazardous substances and wastes, soil and groundwater
contamination and employee health and safety.
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Clean Air Act Requirements. The Clean Air Act establishes a comprehensive set of programs aimed at
protecting and improving air quality in the United States by, among other things, controlling stationary sources
of air emissions such as power plants. While the general regulatory framework for these programs is established
at the federal level, most of the programs are implemented and administered by the states under the oversight of
the EPA. The key Clean Air Act programs relevant to KU’s business operations are described below.

Ambient Air Quality. The Clean Air Act requires the EPA to periodically review the available scientific data for
six criteria pollutants and establish concentration levels in the ambient air sufficient to protect the public health
and welfare with an extra margin for safety. These concentration levels are known as NAAQS. Each state must
identify “nonattainment areas” within its boundaries that fail to comply with the NAAQS and develop a SIP to
bring such nonattainment areas into compliance. If a state fails to develop an adequate plan, the EPA must
develop and implement a plan. As the EPA increases the stringency of the NAAQS through its periodic reviews,
the attainment status of various areas may change, thereby triggering additional emission reduction obligations
under revised SIPs aimed to achieve attainment.

In 1997, the EPA established new NAAQS for ozone and fine particulates that required additional reductions in
SO9 and NOx emissions from power plants. In 1998, the EPA issued its final “NOx SIP Call” rule requiring

reductions in NOx emissions of approximately 85% from 1990 levels in order to mitigate ozone transport from
the midwestern U.S. to the northeastern U.S. To implement the new federal requirements, Kentucky amended its
SIP in 2002 to require electric generating units to reduce their NOx emissions to 0.15 pounds weight per
MMBtu on a company-wide basis. In 2005, the EPA issued the CAIR which required additional SO, emission

reductions of 70% and NOx emission reductions of 65% from 2003 levels. The CAIR provided for a two-phase
cap and trade program, with initial reductions of NOx and SOy emissions due by 2009 and 2010, respectively,

and final reductions due by 2015. In 2006, Kentucky proposed to amend its SIP to adopt state requirements
similar to those under the federal CAIR. Depending on the level of action determined necessary to bring local
nonattainment areas into compliance with the new ozone and fine particulate standards, KU’s power plants are
potentially subject to additional reductions in SO and NOx emissions. In March 2008, the EPA issued a

revised NAAQS for ozone, which contains a more stringent standard than that contained in the previous
regulation. At present, KU is unable to determine what, if any, additional requirements may be imposed to
achieve compliance with the new ozone standard.

In July 2008, a federal appeals court issued a ruling finding deficiencies in the CAIR and vacating it. In
December 2008, the Court amended its previous Order, directing the EPA to promulgate a new regulation, but
leaving the CAIR in the interim. Depending upon the course of such matters, the CAIR could be superseded by
new or revised NOx or SO regulations with different or more stringent requirements and SIPs which

incorporate CAIR requirements could be subject to revision. KU is also reviewing aspects of its compliance

plan relating to the CAIR, including scheduled or contracted pollution control construction programs. Finally, as

discussed below, the remand of the CAIR results in some uncertainty with respect to certain other EPA or state

programs and proceedings and KU’s and LG&E’s compliance plans relating thereto, due to the interconnection

of the CAIR and CAIR-associated steps with such associated programs. At present, KU is not able to predict the

outcomes of the legal and regulatory proceedings related to the CAIR and whether such outcomes could have a
aaterial effect on the Company’s financial or operational conditions.
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Hazardous Air Pollutants. As provided in the 1990 amendments to the Clean Air Act, the EPA investigated
hazardous air pollutant emissions from electric utilities and submitted a report to Congress identifying mercury
emissions from coal-fired power plants as warranting further study. In 2005, the EPA issued the CAMR
establishing mercury standards for new power plants and requiring all states to issue new SIPs including
mercury requirements for existing power plants. The EPA issued a model rule which provides for a two-phase
cap and trade program with initial reductions due by 2010 and final reductions due by 2018. The CAMR
provided for reductions of 70% from 2003 levels. The EPA closely integrated the CAMR and CAIR programs
to ensure that the 2010 mercury reduction targets would be achieved as a “co-benefit” of the controls installed
for purposes of compliance with the CAIR.

In February 2008, a federal appellate court issued a decision vacating the CAMR. The EPA has announced that
it intends to promulgate a new rule to replace the CAMR. Depending on the final outcome of the rulemaking,
the CAMR could be replaced by new mercury reduction rules with different or more stringent requirements.
Kentucky has also repealed its corresponding state mercury regulations. At present, KU is not able to predict the
outcomes of the legal and regulatory proceedings related to the CAMR and whether such outcomes could have a
material effect on the Company’s financial or operational conditions.

Acid Rain Program. The 1990 amendments to the Clean Air Act imposed a two-phased cap and trade program
to reduce SO emissions from power plants that were thought to contribute to “acid rain” conditions in the

northeastern U.S. The 1990 amendments also contained requirements for power plants to reduce NOx emissions
through the use of available combustion controls.

Regional Haze. The Clean Air Act also includes visibility goals for certain federally designated areas, including
national parks, and requires states to submit SIPs that will demonstrate reasonable progress toward preventing
future impairment and remedying any existing impairment of visibility in those areas. In 2005, the EPA issued
its CAVR detailing how the Clean Air Act’s BART requirements will be applied to facilities, including power
plants, built between 1962 and 1974 that emit certain levels of visibility impairing pollutants. Under the final
rule, as the CAIR provided for more visibility improvement than BART, states are allowed to substitute CAIR
requirements in their regional haze SIPs in lieu of controls that would otherwise be required by BART. The final
rule has been challenged in the courts. Additionally, because the regional haze SIPs incorporate certain CAIR
requirements, the remand of CAIR could potentially impact regional haze SIPs. See “Ambient Air Quality”
above for a discussion of CAIR-related uncertainties.

Installation of Pollution Controls. Many of the programs under the Clean Air Act utilize cap and trade
mechanisms that require a company to hold sufficient emissions allowances to cover its authorized emissions on
a company-wide basis and do not require installation of pollution controls on every generating unit. Under cap
and trade programs, companies are free to focus their pollution control efforts on plants where such controls are
particularly efficient and utilize the resulting emission allowances for smaller plants where such controls are not
cost effective. KU met its Phase I SO2 requirements primarily through installation of FGD equipment on Ghent

Unit 1. KU's strategy for its Phase Il SO7 requirements, which commenced in 2000, includes the installation of

additional FGD equipment, as well as using accumulated emission allowances and fuel switching to defer
certain additional capital expenditures. In order to achieve the NOx emission reductions and associated
obligations, KU installed additional NOx controls, including SCR technology, during the 2000 to 2008 time
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period at a cost of $221 million. In 2001, the Kentucky Commission granted approval to recover the costs
incurred by KU for these projects through the environmental surcharge mechanism. Such monthly recovery is
subject to periodic review by the Kentucky Commission.

In order to achieve mandated emissions reductions, KU expects to incur additional capital expenditures totaling
approximately $720 million during the 2009 through 2011 time period for pollution controls including FGD and
SCR equipment, and additional operating and maintenance costs in operating such controls. In 2005, the
Kentucky Commission granted approval to recover the costs incurred by the Company for these projects through
the ECR mechanism. Such monthly recovery is subject to periodic review by the Kentucky Commission. KU
believes its costs in reducing SO9, NOx and mercury emissions to be comparable to those of similarly situated

utilities with like generation assets. KU’s compliance plans are subject to many factors including developments
in the emission allowance and fuels markets, future legislative and regulatory enactments, legal proceedings and
advances in clean air technology. KU will continue to monitor these developments to ensure that its
environmental obligations are met in the most efficient and cost-effective manner. See “Ambient Air Quality”
above for a discussion of CAIR-related uncertainties.

Potential GHG Controls. In 2005, the Kyoto Protocol for reducing GHG emissions took effect, obligating 37
industrialized countries to undertake substantial reductions in GHG emissions. The U.S. has not ratified the
Kyoto Protocol and there are currently no mandatory GHG emission reduction requirements at the federal level.
Legislation mandating GHG reductions has been introduced in the Congress, but no federal legislation has been
enacted to date. In the absence of a program at the federal level, various states have adopted their own GHG
emission reduction programs. Such programs have been adopted in various states including 11 northeastern U.S.
states and the District of Columbia under the Regional GHG Initiative program and California. Substantial
efforts to pass federal GHG legislation are on-~going. In April 2007, the U.S. Supreme Court ruled that the EPA
has the authority to regulate GHG under the Clean Air Act. KU is monitoring on-going efforts to enact GHG
reduction requirements at the state and federal level and is assessing potential impacts of such programs and
strategies to mitigate those impacts. KU is also monitoring on-going regulatory proceedings including the EPA’s
advanced notice of proposed rulemaking for regulation of GHGs under the existing authority of the Clean Air
Act and proposed rules governing carbon sequestration. The new administration has announced its intention to
exercise its existing authority under the Clean Air Act to achieve reductions in GHG emissions. KU is unable to
predict whether mandatory GHG reduction requirements will ultimately be enacted. As a Company with
significant coal-fired generating assets, KU could be substantially impacted by programs requiring mandatory
reductions in GHG emissions, although the precise impact on the operations of KU, including the reduction
targets and deadlines that would be applicable, cannot be determined prior to the enactment of such programs.

Brown New Source Review Litigation. In April 2006, the EPA issued an NOV alleging that KU had violated
certain provisions of the Clean Air Act's new source review rules relating to work performed in 1997, 0on a
boiler and turbine at KU’s E.W. Brown generating station. In December 2006, the EPA issued a second NOV
alleging the Company had exceeded heat input values in violation of the air permit for the unit. In March 2007,
the Department of Justice filed a complaint in federal court in Kentucky alleging the same violations specified
in the prior NOVs. The complaint sought civil penalties, including potential per-day fines, remedial measures
and injunctive relief. In April 2007, KU filed an answer in the civil suit denying the allegations. In July 2007,
the court entered a schedule providing for a July 2009 date for trial. In December 2008, the Company reached a

|FERC FORM NO. 1 (ED. 12-88) Page 123.39 |




Name of Respondent This Report is: Date of Report |Year/Period of Report

(1) X An Original (Mo, Da, YT)

Kentucky Utilities Company (2) __ A Resubmission ! 2008/Q4
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

tentative settlement with the government resolving all outstanding claims. The proposed consent decree
provides for payment of a $1 million civil penalty; funding of $3 million in environmental mitigation projects;
surrender of 53,000 excess SO9 allowances; surrender of excess NOx allowances estimated at 650 allowances

annually for eight years; installation of an FGD by December 31, 2010; installation of an SCR by December 31,
2012; and compliance with specified emission limits and operational restrictions. In February 2009, the
proposed consent decree was lodged with the Court. In March 2009, the Court issued a consent decree
approving the settlement.

Section 114 Requests. In August 2007, the EPA issued administrative information requests under Section 114 of
the Clean Air Act requesting new source review-related data regarding certain projects undertaken at LG&E’s
Mill Creek 4 and Trimble County 1 generating units and KU’s Ghent 2 generating unit. KU and L.G&E have
complied with the information requests and are not able to predict further proceedings in this matter at this time.

Ghent Opacity NOV. In September 2007, the EPA issued an NOV alleging that KU had violated certain
provisions of the Clean Air Act’s operating rules relating to opacity during June and July of 2007 at Units 1 and
3 of KU’s Ghent generating station. The parties have met on this matter and KU has received no further
communications from the EPA. KU is not able to estimate the outcome or potential effects of these matters,
including whether substantial fines, penalties or remedial measures may result.

General Environmental Proceedings. From time to time, KU appears before the EPA, various state or local
regulatory agencies and state and federal courts regarding matters involving compliance with applicable
environmental laws and regulations. Such matters include remediation activities for elevated PCB levels at
existing properties, liability under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability
Act for cleanup at various off-site waste sites and claims regarding GHG emissions from K1’s generating
stations. Based on analysis to date, the resolution of these matters is not expected to have a material impact on
the operations of KU.

Note 10 - Jointly Owned Electric Utility Plant

KU and LG&E have begun construction of TC2, a jointly owned unit at the Trimble County site. KU
and LG&E own undivided 60.75% and 14.25% interests, respectively, in TC2. Of the remaining 25% of
TC2, IMEA owns a 12.12% undivided interest and IMPA owns a 12.88% undivided interest. Each
company is responsible for its proportionate share of capital cost during construction, and fuel, operation
and maintenance cost when TC2 begins operation, which is expected to occur in 2010. In June 2008,
LG&E transferred assets related to TC2 with a net book value of $10 million to KU.
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TC2

LG&E KU IMPA IMEA Total
Ownership interest 14.25% 60.75% 12.88% 12.12% 100%
Mw capacity 107 455 97 91 750
(in millions)
KU’s 60.75% ownership: LG&E’s 14.25% ownership:
Cost $ 560 Cost $ 136
Accumulated depreciation - Accumulated depreciation 2
Net book value $ 560 Net book value $ 134

KU LG&E

Construction work in progress $550 $132

(included in above)
KU and LG&E jointly own the following CT's and related equipment:

($ innillions) KU LGSE Total
® ® ®
® Net ® N @  Ne
Mv (9 Dgr Bok Mwv  (§) Depe Book  Mw  (9) Depre Bock
Ownership Percertage~~ Capacty  Cost  cision  Vabe Capacity Cost ciaion Vahe  Capacty Cost  cition Vale
KU476,1LGRES3% () 129 53 (12) 41 146 62 (15 47 275 115 27 88
KUG62%, LGRE38%(b) 190 82 (14 6 18 51 ® 43 38 133 @ 11
KU71% 1LGRE2%(c) 228 80 (18) 62 92 32 © 26 320 112 (24) 88
KUG% LGRE3T6(d) 44 137 (@) 16 286 79 (12 67 640 216 (33) 183
KU71% LG&E2%%(€) na 9 @ 7 a 3 o 2 na 12 G 9
(a) Comprised of Paddy’s Run 13 and E.W. Brown 5. In addition to the above jointly owned utility plant, there
is an inlet air cooling system attributable to unit 5 and units 8-11 at the E.W. Brown facility. This inlet air
cooling system is not jointly owned, however, it is used to increase production on the units to which it
relates, resulting in an additional 88 Mw of capacity for KU.
(b) Comprised of units 6 and 7 at the E.W. Brown facility.
(c) Comprised of units 5 and 6 at the Trimble County facility.
(d) Comprised of CT Substation 7-10 and units 7, 8, 9 and 10 at the Trimble County facility.
(e) Comprised of CT Substation 5 and 6 and CT Pipeline at the Trimble County facility.

Both KU’s and LG&E’s participating share of direct expenses of the jointly owned plants is included in the
corresponding operating expenses on its respective income statement (e.g., fuel, maintenance of plant, other
operating expense).

Note 11 - Related Party Transactions

KU, subsidiaries of E.ON U.S. and subsidiaries of E.ON engage in related party transactions. Transactions
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between KU and E.ON U.S. subsidiaries are eliminated upon consolidation of E.ON U.S. Transactions between
KU and E.ON subsidiaries are eliminated upon consolidation of E.ON. These transactions are generally
performed at cost and are in accordance with the FERC regulations under PUHCA 2005 and the applicable
Kentucky Commission and Virginia Commission regulations. The significant related party transactions are
disclosed below.

Electric Purchases

KU and LG&E purchase energy from each other in order to effectively manage the load of their retail and
wholesale customers. These sales and purchases are included in the statements of income as operating revenues
and purchased power operating expense. KU intercompany electric revenues and purchased power expense for
the years ended December 31, were as follows:

(in millions) 2008 2007

Electric operating revenues from LG&E $§ 80 $ 46

Purchased power from LG&E 109 93
Interest Charges

See Note 8, Notes Payable and Other Short-Term Obligations, for details of intercompany borrowing
arrangements. Intercompany agreements do not require interest payments for receivables related to services
provided when settled within 30 days.

KU’s intercompany interest income and expense for the years ended December 31, were as follows:

(in millions) 2008 2007
Interest on money pool loans $8 2 § 6
Interest on Fidelia loans 56 35

Other Intercompany Billings

E.ON U.S. Services provides KU with a variety of centralized administrative, management and support services.
These charges include payroll taxes paid by E.ON U.S. Services on behalf of KU, labor and burdens of E.ON
U.S. Services employees performing services for KU, coal purchases and other vouchers paid by E.ON U.S.
Services on behalf of KU. The cost of these services is directly charged to K'U, or for general costs which cannot
be directly attributed, charged based on predetermined allocation factors, including the following ratios: number
of customers, total assets, revenues, number of employees and other statistical information. These costs are
charged on an actual cost basis.

In addition, KU and LG&E provide services to each other and to E.ON U.S. Services. Billings between KU and
LG&E relate to labor and overheads associated with union employees performing work for the other utility,
charges related to jointly-owned generating units and other miscellaneous charges. Billings from KU to E.ON
U.S. Services include cash received by E.ON U.S. Services on behalf of KU, primarily tax settlements, and
other payments made by KU on behalf of other non-regulated businesses which are reimbursed through E.ON
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U.S. Services.

Intercompany billings to and from KU for the years ended December 31, were as follows:

(in millions) 2008 2007
E.ON U.S. Services billings to KU $ 227 $ 488
KU billings to LG&E 75 6
LG&E billings to KU 5 12
KU billings to E.ON U.S. Services 3 26

In June 2008, LG&E transferred assets related to TC2 with a net book value of $10 million to KU.

In March, June, September and December 2008, KU received capital contributions from its common
shareholder, E.ON U.S., in the amounts of $25 million, $50 million, $50 million and $20 million, respectively.

In September and December 2007, KU received capital contributions from its shareholder, E.ON U.S. in the
amount of $55 million and $20 million, respectively.

Note 12 — Subsequent Events

On January 13, 2009, KU, the AG, KTUC and all other parties to the rate case filed a settlement agreement with
the Kentucky Commission. Under the terms of the settlement agreement, KU’s base electric rates will decrease
by $9 million annually. An Order approving the settlement was received on February 5, 2009. The new rates
were implemented effective February 6, 2009. However, in connection with the application and effective date of
the new rates, the VDT surcredit and merger surcredit, respectively, terminated, which will amount in increased
revenues of approximately $16 million annually.

On January 27 and 28, 2009, a significant winter ice storm passed through KU’s service territory causing
approximately 199,000 customer outages, followed closely by a severe wind storm on February 11, 2009,
causing approximately 44,000 customer outages. KU currently estimates costs incurred of $66 million of
expenses and $28 million of capital expenditures related to the restoration following the two storms. The
Company expects to seek recovery of these costs from the Kentucky Commission.

On February 19, 2009, the court issued post-trial orders in the litigation between KU and OMU, which orders
awarded KU an aggregate $9 million related to disputed NOx allowance and back-up power pricing provisions,
but denied a KU claim for damages relating to the availability of the OMU units. The orders are subject to
certain appeal and other procedural rights prior to becoming final.

On March 17, 2009, the Court issued a consent decree approving the settlement in the Brown New Source
Review litigation.

On March 19, 2009, the EPA issued an NOV alleging that KU violated certain provisions of the Clean Air Act's
rules governing new source review and prevention of significant deterioration by installing FGD and SCR
controls at its Ghent generating station without assessing potential increased sulfuric acid mist emissions. KU
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contends that the work in question, as pollution control projects, was exempt from the requirements cited by the
EPA. The Company is currently unable to determine the final outcome of this matter or the impact of an
unfavorable determination upon the Company's financial position or results of operations.

Note 13 — Notes to Statement of Cash Flows

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information

(in millions) 2008
Cash paid during the period for:

Income taxes $ 50
Interest on borrowed money 13
Interest to affiliated companies on borrowed money 53

2007

$38
15
30
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FOR DEPRECIATION, AMORTIZATION AND DEPLETION

Report in Column (¢) the amount for electric function, in column (d} the amount for gas function, in column {e), {f), and (g) report other (specify) and in

column (f) common function.

Total Company for the

LS;E Classification Current Year/Quarter Ended El(e:)lnc
’ (@) )
1] Utility Plant
2}In Service b A
3|Piant in Service (Classified) 3,898,708,617 3,898,708,617,
4 |Property Under Capital Leases
5| Plant Purchased or Sold
6| Completed Construction not Classified 437,171,600 437,171,600
7 | Experimental Plant Unclassified
8|Total (3 thru 7) 4,435,880,217 4,435,880,217
9{Leased to Others
10| Held for Future Use 10,137,562 10,137,562
11 Construction Work in Progress 1,176,440,172 1,176,440,172
12| Acquisition Adjusiments
13| Total Utility Plant {8 thru 12) 5,622,457 951 5,622,457,951
14} Accum Prov for Depr, Amort, & Depl 2,052,492,161 2,052,492,161
151 Net Utility Plant (13 less 14) 3,569,965,790 3,569,965,790
16| Detail of Accum Prov for Depr, Amort & Dept
17 }in Service:
18 | Depreciation 2,030,308,196 2,030,308,196
19]Amort & Dep! of Producing Nat Gas Land/Land Right : i
20| Amort of Underground Storage Land/Land Rights ; 3
21| Amort of Other Utility Plant 22,052,248 22,052,248,
22| Total In Service (18 thru 21) 2,052,360,444 2,052,360,444
23|lL.eased to Others e o W
24 | Depreciation
25| Amortization and Depletion
26| Total Leased to Others (24 & 25)
27 {Held for Future Use Tl e
28| Depreciation 131,71 131,717
28] Amortization
30| Tota!l Held for Future Use (28 & 29) 131,717 131,717,
31]Abandonment of Leases (Natural Gas)
32} Amort of Plant Acquisition Adj
33| Total Accum Prov (equals 14) (22,26,30,31,32) 2,052,492,164 2,052,492,161
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Gas

{d)

Other (Specify)

(&)

Other (Specify)

U]

Other (Specify)

(9)

Common ,
Line
No.
(D]

—
cmmﬂmmaw}l\:-&

11

12

13
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ELECTRIC PLANT IN SERVICE {Account 101, 102, 103 and 106)
1. Report below the original cost of electric plant in service according to the prescribed accounts.
2. in addition to Account 101, Electric Plant in Service (Classified), this page and the next include Account 102, Electric Plant Purchased or Sold;
Account 103, Experimental Electric Plant Unclassified; and Account 106, Compteted Construction Not Classified-Electric.
3. Include in column (c) or (d), as appropriate, carrections of additions and retirements for the current or preceding year.
4, For revisions to the amount of initial asset retirement costs capitalized, included by primary plant account, increases in column (c) additions and
reductions in column (e) adjustments.
5. Enclose in parentheses credit adjustments of plant accounts to indicate the negative effect of such accounts.
6. Classify Account 106 according to prescribed accounts, on an estimated basis if necessary, and include the entries in column (c). Alsc to be included
in column (c) are entries for reversals of tentative distributions of prior year reported in calumn (b), Likewise, if the respondent has a significant amount
of plant retirements which have not been classified to primary accounts at the end of the year, include in column (d) a tentative distribution of such
retirements, on an estimated basis, with appropriate contra entry to the account for accumulated depreciation provision. Include also in column (d)
Line Account . Balance Additions
No. Beginning of Year
(a) (b) (c)
111, INTANGIBLE PLANT Ry
2 1(301) Organization 44,456
31(302) Franchises and Consents 83,453
4 1{303) Miscellaneous Intangible Plant 24,585,145 3,165,472
5| TOTAL Intangible Plant (Enter Total of lines 2, 3, and 4) 24,723,054 3,165,472
6 |2. PRODUCTION PLANT
7 1A. Steam Production Plant
81(310) Land and Land Righls 10,874,264
91{311) Structures and lmprovements 172,830,576 1,906,668
10 | (312) Boiler Plant Equipment 1,157,891,864 329,238,053
11 1(313) Engines and Engine-Driven Generators .
12 | (314) Turbogenerator Units 209,431,756 15,051,497
13 {(315) Accessory Electric Equipment 94,292,264 4,042,316
14 | (316) Misc. Power Plant Equipment 23,624,053 130,243
15 |{317) Asset Retirement Costs for Steam Production 9,249,179
16 | TOTAL Steam Production Plant (Enter Total of lines 8 thru 15) 1,678,193,956 350,368,777,
17 | B. Nuclear Production Plant : :
18 {(320) Land and Land Rights
19| (321) Structures and improvements
20 | (322) Reactor Piant Equipment
21 1(323) Turbogenerator Units
22 |(324) Accessory Electric Equipment
23 1(325) Misc. Power Plant Equipment
24 {(326) Asset Retirement Costs for Nuclear Produclion
25 I TOTAL Nuclear Production Plant (Enter Tolal of lines 18 thru 24)
26 | C. Hydraulic Production Plant ;
27 |(330) Land and Land Rights 879,312
28 {(331) Structures and Improvements 453,196 11,732
29 1(332) Reservoirs, Dams, and Waterways 9,025,249 842,094
30 {(333) Water Wheels, Turbines, and Generators 377,497 62,159
31 }{334) Accessory Electric Equipment 85,383
32 1(335) Misc. Power PLant Equipment 101,512
33 1(336) Roads, Railroads, and Bridges 46,976
34 |(337) Asset Retirement Costs for Hydraulic Production 4,970
35 | TOTAL Hydraulic Production Plant (Enter Total of lines 27 thru 34) 10,974,095
36 | D. Other Production Plant
37 |(340) Land and Land Rights 294,924
381(341) Structures and Improvements 35,982,154
39 [(342) Fuel Holders, Products, and Accessories 21,085,015
40 | (343) Prime Movers 344,638,939 7,807,366
41 |(344) Generators 59,334,14, 7455
42 1(345) Accessory Electric Equipment 30,957,013 8,817
43 | (346) Misc. Power Plant Equipment 5,227,549
44 1(347) Asset Retirement Costs for Other Production 70,990
45 | TOTAL Other Prod. Plant (Enter Total of lines 37 thru 44) 497,590,726 7,914,728
46 | TOTAL Prod. Plant (Enter Total of lines 16, 25, 35, and 45) 2,186,758,777 359,199,490
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ELECTRIC PLANT IN SERVICE {Account 101, 102, 103 and 106) (Continued)
distributions of these tentative classifications in columns (¢) and (d}, including the reversals of the prior years tentative account distributions of these
amounts. Careful observance of the above instructions and the texts of Accounts 101 and 106 will avoid serious omissions of the reported amount of
respondent’s plant actually in service at end of year.
7. Show in columin (f) reclassifications or transfers within ulility plant accounts. Include also in column (f) the additions or reductions of primary account
classifications arising from distribution of amounts initially recorded in Account 102, include in column (e) the amounts with respect to accumulated
provision for depreciation, acquisition adjustments, etc., and show in column {f) only the offset to the debits or credits distributed in column (f) to primary
account classifications.
8. For Account 399, state the nature and use of plant included in this account and if substantial in amount submit a supplementary statement showing
subaccount classification of such plant conforming to the requirement of these pages.
9. For each amount comprising the reported balance and changes in Account 102, state the property purchased or sold, name of vendor or purchase,
and date of transaction. If proposed journal entries have been filed with the Commission as required by the Uniform Systemn of Accounts, give also date
Retirements Adjustments Transfers Balance at Line
@ © e ggyreer No.
1
44,456 2
83,453 3
27,760,617 4
27,888,526 5
6
7
10,874,264 8
89,209 174,648,035 9
1,602,275 1,485,527 ,642 10
11
3,477,445 221,005,808 12
975 98,333,605 13
15,404 23,738,892 14
9,249,179 15
5,185,308 2,023,377, 425 16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
i 26
879,312 27
464,928 28
44,162 9,823,181 29
3,022 436,634 30
85,383 31
101,512 32
46,976 33
4,970 34
47,184 11,842 896 35
g ; 36
294,924 37
35,982,154 38
21,085,015 39
2,244,287 350,302,018 40
59,332,687 41
30,965,830 42
5,227,549 43
70,990 44
2,244,287 503,261,167 45
7,476,779 2,538,481,488 46
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Line Account Balance Additions
No. Beginning of Year
(a) (b) {c)

47 13. TRANSMISSION PLANT i : e
48 | (350) Land and Land Rights 24 574,118 990,800
49 ] (352) Structures and improvements 8,383,208 5,247,332
50 | (353) Station Equipment 190,399,734 8,230,776
51 | (354) Towers and Fixtures 63,279,466
52 | (355) Poles and Fixtures 99,664,171 1,981,767
53 |{356) Overhead Conductors and Devices 132,389,750 796,340
54 1(357) Underground Conduit 448,760
55 |(358) Underground Conductors and Devices 1,114,762
56 | (359) Roads and Trails
57 1(359.1) Asset Retirement Costs for Transmission Plant 11,027
58 | TOTAL Transmission Plant (Enter Total of lines 48 thru 57) 520,264,9
59 |4. DISTRIBUTION PLANT i A
60 |(360) Land and Land Rights 3,494,818
61 ](361) Structures and Improvements 5,058,913 156,669,
62 ](362) Station Equipment 103,404,415 7,620,061
63 | (363) Storage Battery Equipment
64 | (364) Poles, Towers, and Fixtures 197,916,777 49,998,602
65 | {365) Overhead Conductors and Devices 185,080,180 39,362,248
66 | (366) Underground Conduit 1,546,234 197,312
67 | {367) Underground Conductors and Devices 72,833,558 24,121,790
68 | (368) Line Transformers 248,465,276 9,715428
69 | (369) Services 83,122,059 31,373,686
70 |(370) Meiers 65,364,852 45,006
71 |(371) Installations on Customer Premises 18,282,872 1,721
72 1(372) Leased Property on Customer Premises
73 {(373) Street Lighting and Signat Systems 53,642,796 22,499,781
74 |(374) Asset Retirement Costs for Distribution Plant 18,610

75 | TOTAL Distribution Plant (Enter Total of lines 60 thru 74) 1,038,231,360 185,147,186
76 15. REGIONAL TRANSMISSION AND MARKET OPERATION PLANT ‘ gl R
77 1{380) Land and Land Righis

78 {(381) Structures and Improvements

79 | (382) Computer Hardware

80 | (383) Computer Software

81 | (384) Communication Equipment

82 |(385) Miscellaneous Regional Transmission and Market Operation Plant
83 {(386) Asset Retirement Costs for Regional Transmission and Market Oper
84 | TOTAL Transmission and Market Operation Plant (Total fines 77 thru 83)
85 |6. GENERAL PLANT

86 }(389) Land and Land Rights 2,575,972
87 | (390) Structures and Improvements 30,276,265 4,799,093
88 ] (391) Office Furniture and Equipment 18,966,210 3,253,866
89 | (392) Transportation Equipment 18,955,799 12,992
90 [ (393) Stores Equipment 735,053
91 1{394) Tools, Shop and Garage Equipment 5,473,497 103,167
92 | (395) Laboratory Equipment 3,160,383
93 | (396) Power Operated Equiprnent 270,943
94 | (397) Communication Equipment 17,194 612 2,908,983,
95 1{398) Miscellaneous Equipment 373,591
96 | SUBTOTAL (Enter Total of lines 86 thru 95) 97,982,325 11,078,101

97 1(399) Other Tangible Property

98 |({399.1) Asset Retirement Costs for General Plant

99 | TOTAL General Plant (Enter Total of lines 96, 97 and 98) 97,982,325 11,078,101
100 | TOTAL (Accounts 101 and 106) 3,867,960,512 575,837,264
101 | (102) Electric Plant Purchased {See Instr. 8)
102 | {Less) (102) Electric Plant Sold (See Instr. 8)
103 | ¢103) Experimental Plant Unclassified
104 | TOTAL Electric Plant in Service {(Enter Total of lines 100 thru 103) 3,867,960,512 575,837,264
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ELECTRIC PLANT IN SERVICE (Account 101, 102, 103 and 106) {Continued)

Retirements Adjustments Transfers Balance at Line
End ?f Year No.
a)
; K% 47
-482 597 25,082,321 48
13,630,540 49
26,835 -15,045 198,588,630 50
-47,830 63,231,636 51
59,868 -4,123,522 97,462,528 52
150,704 -3,494,170 129,541,216 53
448,760 54
-3,033 1,111,729 55
56
11,027 57
237,427 -8,166,197 529,108,387 58
] ; 59
482,597 4,032,296 60
5,215,582 61
216 111,024,260 62
63
17,166 3,821,322 251,719,535 64
43,383 3,862,278 228,261,323 65
1,743,546 66
96,955,348 67
140,396 258,040,309 68
114,485,745 89
65,400,858 70
18,284,593 71
72
2,020 76,140,557 73
18,610 74
203,181 8,166,197 1,231,341,562 75
HR Ll 76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
! L1 85
2,575,897 86
172 35,075,186 87
22,220,076 88
18,968,791 89
735,053 a0
5,576,664 91
3,160,383 92
270,943 93
20,103,595 84
373,591 a5
172 109,060,254 96
97
98
172 109,060,254 99
7,917,559 4,435,880,217 100
101
102
103
7,917,559 4,435,880,217 104
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FOOTNOTE DATA

I[Schedule Page: 204 _Line No.: 41

Column: c

Sales tax adjustment resulted in a negative addition.
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ELECTRIGC PLANT HELD FOR FUTURE USE (Account 105)

1. Report separately each property held for future use at end of the year having an ariginal cost of $250,000 or more. Group other iterns of property held
for future use.

2. For property having an original cost of $250,000 or more previously used in utility operations, now held for future use, give in column (a), in addition to
other required information, the date that utility use of such property was discontinued, and the date the original cost was transferred to Account 105.

Line Description and Location Date Ori%i_nall\ly lnclutded Date Ex;zﬁ%ggd Sto be used ésaéanfc$ at
is Accoun in Utility Service nd of Year
() ()

No. Of Proi)erty in Tl
(a

)

Land and Rights:

21| Other Property:
22| Trimble County Cooling Tower (hyperbolic) - Utility

23 use temporarily discontinued March 2008 06/30/2008 2010 10,137,562

47 | Total 10,137,562
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CONSTRUCTION WORK IN PROGRESS - - ELECTRIC (Account 107)

1. Report below descriptions and balances at end of year of projects in process of construction (107)

2. Show items relating to "research, development, and demonstration® projects last, under a caption Research, Development, and Demonstrating (see

Account 107 of the Uniforr System of Accounts)
3. Minor projects (5% of the Balance End of the Year for Account 107 or $100,000, whichever is less) may be grouped.

Line Description of Project Construction work in progress -
No. Electric (Account 107}
{a) (0)

1| STEAM PRODUCTION MAJOR
2| TC2-KU 396,423,467
3| BROWN 1,2, 3FGD 233,726,240
4 | TC2 AIR QUALITY CONTROL SYSTEMS KU 152,293,728
5 | KU SOX PROGRAM - GHENT 2 FGD SYSTEM 140,838,104
6 | BROWN ASH POND EXPANSION PHASE 1 18,186,020
7 { GH3 FGD 6,453,203
8 | GHENT 1 CONTROLS MODERNIZATION 5,186,779
9 | GHENT 4 CONTROLS MODERNIZATION 4,960,348
10 | GH2 CT CELL REBUILD 3,511,494
11 | BR 2 REHEAT INLET & OUTLET HEADER 3,170,091
12 | GHENT 2 CONTROLS MODERNIZATION 3,141,868
13 | SO3 SORBENT INJECTION 2,565,236
14 | GHENT $02 COMMON 1,872,738
15 | GHENT SPILL PREVENTION CONTAINMENT CONTROL COMPLIANCE MODIFICATIONS 1,445,319
16 | GH4 FGD 1,223,066
17 | GH3 CATALYST LAYER PURCHASE & INSTALLATION 1,142,172
18 | EW. BROWN UNIT 3 SCR CONCEPTUAL ENGINEERING 1,009,718
19 | GHENT ASH POND/LANDFILL 1,008,465
20 } FUEL SUPPLY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 942,508
21 | MERCURY MONITORING KU 941,211
22 | TRIMBLE COUNTY ASH/GYPSUM PONDS 921,539
23 | BR3 COOLING TOWER STORM DAMAGE REPAIRS 813,369
24 | BR1 AIR HEATER BASKET REPLACEMENT 623,093
25 | DEVELOPMENT TYRONE Oll. CONTAINMENT SPCC 527,081
26 | GH4 ASH PIPE REPLACEMENT 436,131
27 | GH1 CT CELL 1-1 REBUILD 426,823
28 | REVISED BR2 TURBINE BLADES 424,297
29 | GH4 CT CELL 4-5 REBUILD 417 311
30 | GH3 CT CELL 3-6 REBUILD 416,234
31 | GH3 CT CELL 3-5 REBUILD 410,849
32 | BR1-1 SBAC REPLACEMENT 387,553
33 | GH DOWNRIVER FLOATING WORK BARGE 359,455
34 | GH MOORING CELL C4 322,819
35 | COAL BARGE UNLOADER BUCKET & CHAIN REPLACEMENT 299,837
36 | DEVELOPMENT HAEFLING OIL CONTAINMENT SPCC 284,598
37 | GHENT CONVEYOR BELT REPLACEMENT 273,117
38 | BR2 PRECIPITATOR PLATE REPLACEMENT 271,161
39 | GH1 ID FAN TRANSFORMER 235,675
40 | TY 480V SWITCHGEAR REPLACEMENT 210,875
41 | MAXIMO LICENSES 186,734
42 | UMS GROUP INVESTMENT EVALUATION MODEL 173,243
431 TOTAL 1,176,440,172
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CONSTRUCTION WORK IN PROGRESS - - ELECTRIC (Account 107)

1. Report below descriptions and batances at end of year of projects in process of construction (107)
2. Show items relating to "research, development, and demonstration” projects tast, under a caption Research, Development, and Demonstrating (see
Account 107 of the Uniform Systemn of Accounis}

3. Minor projects (5% of the Balance End of the Year for Account 107 or $100,000, whichever is less) may be grouped.

Line Description of Project Construction work in progress -
No. Electric (Account 107)
@) )]
1| TY5-4 EL MiL.L CONVERSION 162,615
2 | GH 4 4-2 CIRCULATING COOLING WATER HEAT EXCHANGER 152,237
3 | GH4 GENERATOR REWEDGE 147,129
4 | GH MISCELLANEOUS MOTORS 143,058
5 | BR1 LOWER DEAD AIR SPACE ABATEMENT 135,699
6 | GH2 CT CELL 2-6 REBUILD 129,688
7 } GH2 CT CELL 2-5 REBUILD 129,688
8 | BR3 CONTROL ROOM HVAC DEVELOPMENT 129,654
9| TY3 5-1 EL CONVERSION 128,244
10 { GH MAIN BUILDING ROOF 126,430
11 | GR3 DISTRIBUTED CONTROL SYSTEM UPGRADE 118,927
12 | BR 1-2 SERVICE WATER PUMP REBUILD 117,994
13 | GH2 AUXILIARY CONDENSATE 2-2 RETUBE 116,613
14 | STEAM PRODUCTION MINOR 1,653,380
15
16 | HYDRAULIC POWER MAJOR
17 | DX3 OVERHAUL 1,399,263
18 | DEVELOPMENT DIX CRANE ACCESS ROAD 129,384
19 | HYDRAULIC POWER MINOR 64,994
20
21 | OTHER PRODUCTION MAJOR
22 | BR CT7 A/B CONVERSION - KU 6,391,713
23 | BR CT9 MODIFICATIONS 686,722
24 | BR CT UNDERGROUND PIPE SPCC 627,368
25 | BR CT6 QUENCH NOZZLE REPLACEMENT 154,832
26 | OTHER PRODUCTION MINOR 193,616
27
28 | TRANSMISSION MAJOR
26 | DEVELOPMENT FOR TRIMBLE COUNTY UNIT #2 42,479,239
30 | LOUDEN AVE TO LANSDOWN 69KV MVA TRANSFORMER 4,691,177
31 | N. AMERICAN STAINLESS 345-138 KV450 MVA TRANSFORMER 4,470,709
32 | BR ASH POND EXPANSION - TRANSMISSION LINE RELOCATION 4,195,754
33 | PRIORITY REPLACEMENT TRANSMISSION LINES 3,065,416
34 | SPCC MODIFICATIONS FOR KU 1,605,833
35 | MISCELLANEOUS SUBSTATION PROJECTS - KU 1,433,143
36 | FAWKES 138-89KV, 150MVA 1,354,957
37 | NAS TAP 345KV LINE 1,275,880
38 | PRIORITY TRANSMISSION LINE 1,262,028
39 | STORM DAMAGE TRANSMISSION LINE 1,056,537
40 { GHENT-KENTON 138KV - P2 POLE REPLACEMENT 732,251
41 | GHENT 345KV BREAKER ADDITION 629,508
42 | PARAMETER UPGRADE TRANSMISSION LINE 430,973
43| TOTAL

1,176,440,172
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Name of Respondent This Report Is:

Kentucky Utilities Company @

(1) An Original
A Resubmission

Date of Report
{Mo, Da, Yr)

I

Year/Period of Report
End of 2008/Q4

CONSTRUCTION WORK IN PROGRESS - - ELECTRIC {Account 107)

1. Report below descriptions and balances at end of year of projects in process of construction (107)
2. Show items relating to "research, development, and demonstration” projects last, under a caption Research, Development, and Demonstrating (see
Account 107 of the Uniform System of Accounts)

3. Minor projects (5% of the Balance End of the Year for Account 107 or $100,000, whichever is less) may be grouped.

Line Description of Project Construction work in progress -
No. Electric (Account 107)
(@ (b)
1§ LYNCH TO POCKET 69KV HOLMES MILL 391,664
2 | SHELBYVILLE - SIMPSONVILLE 69KV THERMAL UPGRADE 373,727
3 | CRITICAL SPARE 138/69KV TRANSFORMER 367,705
4 | KU TRANSMISSION BLANKET 310,012
5| K7 PARAMETER UPGRADES TRANSMISSION LINE 295,512
6 | MISCELLANEOUS TRANSMISSION CAPITAL 290,745
7 | HIGHWAY 52 RELOCATION RICHMOND 277,094
8 | INNOVATION DRIVE-SUBSTATION 138KV TAP 269,950
g | HORSECAVE TRANSFORMER SUB 799 RECONDUCTOR TAP TO SUB 611 265,139
10 | UK MEDICAL CENTER CONTROL HOUSE RELOCATION 257,237
11 | REPLACE FAILED HARLAN TRANSFORMER 242,556
12 | LEBANON EAST SUBSTATION 232,036
13 | NEW FACILITIES TRANSMISSION LINE 188,180
14 | REPLACE UNDERRATED 89KV BREAKERS FAWKES SUBSTATION 194,998
15 | TAYLOR CO TRANSFORMER 183,753
16 | GARRARD COUNTY HIGH SCHOOL 179,919
17 | HIGBY MILL UK MEDICAL CENTER SYSTEM PARAMETERS 174,546
18 | DETROIT HARVESTER SECTION OF PARIS-LEXINGTON PLANT 173,262
19 | RECONDUCTOR PARKERS MILL TAP 69KV 167,597
20 | LOUDEN AVENUE HAEFLING 138 KV HIGHWAY RELOCATION 167,563
21 | MILLERSBURG CONTROL HOUSE REPLACEMENT 164,141
22 | NEW FACILITIES TRANSMISSION LINE 2008 161,125
23 | TRANSMISSION LINE RELOCATION KU 133,243
24 | OPEN SYSTEM INTERNATIONAL ENERGY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 127,375
25 | KU REMOTE TERMINAL UNIT PURCHASE 121,012
26 | PURCHASE SPARE TRANSMISSION CIRCUIT BREAKERS 113,776
27 | HARRODSBURG - ADD 69KV BREAKERS FOR CUSTOMER 112,379
28 | DELVINTA 824 CARRIER ADDITION 109,270
29 | TRANSMISSION MINOR 2,257,524
30
31 | DISTRIBUTION MAJOR
32 | PURCHASE PROPERTY FOR INNOVATION DR SUB #428-1 3,853,688
33 | INSTALL LEBANON JUNCTION SUB 1,812,414
34 | W360 LTC REBUILD 1,483,468
35 | NEW BUSINESS SERVICE - /G - SHELYVILLE 1,401,943
36 | PURCHASE OF METERS 1,384,274
37 | STORM PROJECT 1,321,114
38 | NEW ELECTRIC SERVICE - O/H - NORTON 1,304,846
39 | AIR GAS SUBSTATION 1,287,203
40 | NEW ELECTRIC SERVICE - O/H - PINEVILLE 1,180,212
41 | PURCHASE TRANSFORMER 315 1,068,301
42 | PUBLIC WORKS RELOCATION - O/H - LEXINGTON 1,003,728
431 TOTAL 1,176,440,172
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Name of Respondent This Report Is: Date of Report
- 1) An Original (Mo, Da, Yr)
Kentucky Utilittes Company @) A Resubmission /]

Year/Period of Report
End of 2008/Q4

CONSTRUCTION WORK IN PROGRESS - -~ ELECTRIC {Account 107)

1. Report below descriptions and balances at end of year of projects in process of construction {107)

2. Show items relating to “"research, development, and demonstration” projects last, under a caption Research, Development, and Demonstrating (see

Account 107 of the Uniform System of Accounts)
3. Minor projects (5% of the Balance End of the Year for Account 107 or $100,000, whichever is less) may be grouped.

Line Description of Project Construction work in progress -
No. Electric (Account 107)
(a) (]

1 { BRYANT ROAD #3 SUBSTATION & TEMPORARY TRANSFORMER 938,428

2 | ADD TRANSFORMER HORSE CAVE INDUSTRIAL 930,561

31 STORMS 866,977

4 | PURCHASE PROPERTY LEXINGTON EAST AREA SUBSTATION 788,353

5 | KU GENERAL RELIABILITY 782,279

6 | CONSTRUCTION LEBANON EAST SUB 772,068

7 | SCM REPAIR/REPLACE FAILED TRANSFORMERS 760,977

8 | CITY OF BARDSTOWN SUB 749,919

9 | PURCHASE TRANSFORMERS 703,164
10 | PURCHASE 161X69 SPARE TRANSFORMER 693,043
11 ] TROUBLE ORDERS O/H 639,383
12 | ADD TRANSFORMER UNION UNDERWEAR 633,411
13 | DISTRIBUTION RELIABILITY 631,501
14 | REPLACE SHUN PIKE TRANSFORMER 578,775
15 | STAMPING GROUND INSTALL 10 MVA TRANSFORMER 548,358
16 | BELL COUNTY COAL GARMEADA #2 495,746
17 | TROUBLE ORDERS O/H 473,587
18 | NEW BUSINESS RESIDENTIAL 470,092
19 | REPLACE TRANSFORMER 7/14 WOODLAWN 461,610
20 | REPLACE 69/34 TRANSFORMER DORCHESTER 438,507
21 | SCM EARL GREEN RIVER PLANT TRANSFORMER 429,999
22 | PUBLIC WORKS RELOCATION - O/H - ELIZABETHTOWN 428,645
23 | NEW BUSINESS RESIDENTIAL - U/G - LEXINGTON 411,271
24 | ROGERS GAP DISTRIBUTION 406,447
25 | REPAIR/REPLACE DEFECTIVE STREET LIGHTS 386,397
26 | WINTER STORM 374,402
27 | DISTRIBUTION CAPACITORS KU 371,803
28 | PURCHASE TRANSFORMERS 364,539
29 | PURCHASE TRANSFORMERS 349,717
30 | TROUBLE ORDERS 337,618
31 | REPAIR REPLACE DEFECTIVE STREET LIGHTS 332,114
32 | PURCHASE TRANSFORMER 326,048
33 | PUBLIC WORKS RELOCATION - O/H - DANVILLE 306,348
34 | BROWN1, 2, 3FGD 305,969
35 | INSTALL NEW 795 CIRCUIT TO NESTLE PLANT 304,805
36 | CONSTRUCT NEW CIRCUIT FROM BRYANT TEMPORARY SuB 294,965
37 | SUBSTATION ABB TYPE TRANSFORMER REPLACEMENT 291,042
38 | REPLACE TRANSFORMER AT KY STATE HOSPITAL SUB #587 274,679
39 | SCM EARLINGTON SUBSTATION REPLACEMENT (S&C FUSES) 266,224
40 | WINCHESTER WATER WORKS 254,763
41 | NEW BUSINESS COMMERCIAL 251,108
42 | WINDSTREAM TELEPHONE COMPANY POLE REPLACEMENT 249,740
43} TOTAL 1,176,440,172
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Name of Respondent This Report Is:

Kentucky Utilities Company )

(1) An Original

A Resubmission

Date of Report
(Mo, Da, YT)

11

Year/Period of Report
End of 2008/Q4

CONSTRUCTION WORK IN PROGRESS - - ELECTRIC {Account 107)

1. Report below descriptions and balances at end of year of projects in process of construction (107)
2. Show items relating to "research, development, and demonstration” projects last, under a caption Research, Development, and Demonstrating (see
Account 107 of the Uniform System of Accounts)

3. Minor projects (5% of the Balance End of the Year for Account 107 or $100,000, whichever is less) may be grouped.

Line Description of Project Construction work In progress -
No Electric {(Account 107)
) (@) (b)
1 | KU DISTRIBUTION POWER FACTOR CORRECTION 247,660
2 { NEW BUSINESS COMMERCIAL 244,147
3 | NEW BUS INDUSTRIAL - U/G - ELIZABETHTOWN 239,590
4 { OUTAGE MANAGEMENT SYSTEM UPGRADE 238,661
5 { INNOVATION WEST CIRCUIT 237,062
6 | TATES CREEK ROAD HIGHWAY RELOCATION 235,520
7 | REPLACE DEFECTIVE EQUIPMENT - O/H - PINEVILLE 234,199
8 | ELIZABETHTOWN - STORM RESTORATION 232,034
9 [ NEW BUSINESS RESIDENTIAL 230,581
10 | SCM TRANSFORMER REWINDERS 229,670
11 | LONDON - STORM RESTORATION 226,445
12 ] TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT 218,137
13 | KU MOBILE INFRASTRUCTURE 214,118
14 | TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT 211,362
15 | NEW BUSINESS RESIDENTIAL - O/H - LEXINGTON 209,646
16 | TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT 207,204
17 | STRATTON PIKE REBUILD 206,772
18 | INNOVATION - U/G - EXIT CIRCUITS 194,510
19 | UNION UNDERWEAR CIRCUIT WORK 190,563
20 | HIGHWAY RELOCATION KY 1577 189,564
21 | BOGGS LANE 185,147
22 | PURCHASE TRANSFORMERS 178,199
23 | LEXINGTON STORM RESTORATION 177,308
24 | SYSTEM ENHANCEMENTS - EXISTING CUSTOMERS - LEXINGTON 176,958
25 | SHELBYVILLE STORM RESTORATION 176,242
26 | PUBLIC WORKS RELOCATION - O/H - LONDON 169,772
27 | PAYNES DEPOT RD (US62) HIGHWAY 168,552
28 | NEW BUS RESIDENTIAL - O/H - LONDON 167,027
29 | DISTRIBUTION RELIABILITY 166,661
30 | HORSE CAVE RECONDUCTORING 165,066
31 | EARLINGTON STORM RESTORATION 164,483
32 | KU PC & PRINTER INFRASTRUCTURE 164,430
33 | HORSE CAVE INDUSTRIAL SUBSTATION DISTRIBUTION WORK 159,632
34 | SCM REPLACE BREAKERS 167,951
35| TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT 157,617
36 | PURCHASE TRANSFORMERS 157,126
37 | PUBLIC WORKS RELOCATION - O/H - MAYSVILLE 154,691
38 { NEW BUSINESS RESIDENTIAL - O/H - NORTON 152,126
39 | LONDON FAWN VALLEY ESTATES SUBDIVISION U/G SYSTEM 152,049
40 | ADD REGULATORS AT ANDOVER 148,703
41} PURCHASE TRANSFORMERS 148,156
42 | NEW BUSINESS INDUSTRIAL 144,749
431 TOTAL

1,176,440,172

FERC FORM NO. 1 (ED. 12-87)
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Name of Respondent T1his Rep&n l(s) L l?\?te gf R\gp)ort Year/Period of Report
‘ , Da, Yr
Kentucky Utilities Company EZ; = Ar;?e;‘gg:iission (/ 3 Endof  2008/Q4

CONSTRUCTION WORK [N PROGRESS - - ELECTRIC (Account 107)

1. Report below descriptions and balances at end of year of projects in process of construction (107)
2. Show items relating o "research, development, and demonstration” projects last, under a caption Research, Development, and Demonstrating (see
Account 107 of the Uniform System of Accounts)

3. Minor projects (5% of the Balance End of the Year for Account 107 or $100,000, whichever is less) may be grouped.

Line Description of Project Construction work in progress -
No. Electric (Account 107)
(a) (b)
1 | SYSTEM ENHANCEMENTS - NEW CUSTOMERS - RICHMOND 140,938
2 | KU GENERAL RELIABILITY 138,942
3 | NEW DOUBLE CIRCUIT TO CITATION BLVD. 135,394
4 | KU SUBS REMOTE TERMINAL UNIT INSTALLS FOR EKPC METERING 134,851
51 TROUBLE ORDERS 134,605
6 | NEW BUSINESS COMMERCIAL - O/H - LEXINGTON 134,295
7 | BRYANT ROAD #3 EXIT CIRCUIT 133,402
8 | FOURMILE RECONDUCTOR ELECTRIC 131,687
9 | PUBLIC WORKS RELOCATION - O/H - RICHMOND 128,010
10 | DISTRIBUTION RELIABILITY 124,344
11 | PUBLIC WORKS RELOCATION - O/H - NORTON 119,676
12 | KY 519 HIGHWAY RELOCATION 117,757
13 | PUBLIC WORKS RELOCATION - O/H - SHELBYVILLE 116,073
14 | KU STORM WORK 114,997
15 | SCM CENTRAL SPARTA UPGRADE 114,592
16 | NEW BUSINESS SUBDIVISION - U/G - PINEVILLE 113,275
17 | LEXINGTON AREA IMPROVEMENTS 108,407
18 | NEW BUSINESS SERVICE - U/G - LEXINGTON 106,938
19 | RELOCATIONS CUSTOMER REQUEST 104,197
20 | NEW BUSINESS RESIDENTIAL - O/H - EARLINGTON 102,022
21 | WISE CIRCUIT 4642 101,773
22 | SYSTEM ENHANCEMENT - EXISTING CUSTOMERS EARLINGTON 100,763
23 | PURCHASE TRANSFORMERS 100,641
24 | NEW BUSINESS RESIDENTIAL - O/H - PINEVILLE 100,634
25 | DISTRIBUTION MINOR 4,018,932
26
27 | COMMON MAJOR
28 | SAP FOR CUSTOMER CARE SYSTEM - KU 22,356,920
29 | CUSTOMER CARE SYSTEM - TECHNOLOGY KU 5,957,824
30 | CUSTOMER CARE SYSTEM - CUSTOMER SERVICE KU 4,211,193
31 | LAND MOBILE RADIO SYSTEM BUILDOUT 3,239,664
32 | CUSTOMER CARE SYSTEM - DEVELOPMENT KU 1,226,793
33 | CUSTOMER CARE SYSTEM - KU BUSINESS INTELLIGENCE 716,216
34 | EVA REPLACEMENT PROJEGT 486,066
35 | TIER C REPLACEMENT KU 384,335
36 | EXTEND FIBER TO GREEN RIVER 364,365
37 | NORTH KY BACKBONE RENOVATION 340,494
38 | COMPUTER TELEPHONE INTEGRATION REPLACEMENT KU 267,260
39 { CUSTOMER CARE SYSTEM - CHANGE MANAGEMENT KU 241,834
40 | ORACLE FINANCIAL/MATERIAL APPLICATIONS 11.5.10.2 UPGRADE 204,880
41 | ORACLE | SUPPORT PORTAL 177,579
42 | MISCELLANEQUS KU BUSINESS OFFICE , 150,395
431 TOTAL

1,176,440,172

FERC FORM NO. 1 (ED. 12-87)
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Name of Respondent
Kentucky Utilities Company

This Report Is:
(1) [X]An Original
2) D A Resubmission

Date of Report
(Mo, Da, Yr)

I

End of

Year/Period of Report
2008/Q4

CONSTRUCTION WORK IN PROGRESS - - ELECTRIC {Account 107)

1. Report below descriptions and balances at end of year of projects in process of construction (107)
2. Show items relating to "research, development, and demonstration” projects last, under a caption Research, Development, and Demonstrating (see

Account 107 of the Uniform System of Accounts)

3. Minor projects (5% of the Balance End of the Year for Account 107 or $100,000, whichever is less) may be grouped.

Line Description of Project

P-4
=]

(@

Caonstruction work in progress -
Electric (Account 107)

(b)

AVAYA UPGRADES REMOTE KU SYSTEMS

149,553

DEVELOP KU CAMPUS NETWORK

148,382

KU CARPET AND TILE REPLACEMENT

145,397

ACCESS SWITCH ROTATION

144,707

SERVER HARDWARE REFRESH

142,649

LEXINGTON PURCHASE E-Z HAULER

132,373

BACKUP STRATEGY EXPANSION PROJECT

128,632

KU INTERNAL REQUESTS

122,366

W] BN |G WIN| =

ELIZABETHTOWN STOREROOM PAVING

108,062

NAS NETWORK ATTACHED STORAGE

-
(=)

103,333

SHELBYVILLE STOREROOM PAVING
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431 TOTAL

1,176,440,172
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Name of Respondent 2’1h)is Rep%rt 18 | Dh?te Bf R$port Year/Period of Report
ina , Da,
Kentucky Utilities Company ) DA”Re;‘Sg:nissm (/3 y) End of 2008/Q4

ACCUMULATED PROVI

SION FOR DEPRECIATION OF ELECTRIC UTILITY PLANT (Account 108)

1. Explain in a footnote any important adjustments during year.

2. Explain in a footnote any difference between the amount for book cost of plant retired, Line 11, column (c), and that reported for
electric plant in service, pages 204-207, column 9d), excluding retirements of non-depreciable property.

3. The provisions of Account 108 in the Uniform System of accounts require that retirements of depreciable plant be recorded when
such plant is removed from service. If the respondent has a significant amount of plant retired at year end which has not been recorded
and/or classified to the various reserve functional classifications, make preliminary closing entries to tentatively functionalize the book
cost of the plant retired. In addition, include all costs included in retirement work in progress at year end in the appropriate functional

classifications.

4. Show separately interest credits under a sinking fund or similar method of depreciation accounting.

Section A. Balances and Changes During Year

5 e s T | CorEanm R’ | Leseel e Ot
(2) (b) (©) (d) ()
1{ Balance Beginning of Year 1,914,631,832 1,914,631,932
2} Depreciation Provisions for Year, Charged to S : : AT
3] (403) Depreciation Expense 130,780,795 130,780,795
41 (403.1) Depreciation Expense for Asset 334,214 334,214
Retirement Costs
5] (413) Exp. of Elec. Pit. Leas. to Others
6! Transportation Expenses-Clearing 47,924
7{ Other Clearing Accounts
8] Other Accounts (Specify, details in footnote): 120,346
9| Fuel Stock 798,145 798,145
10| TOTAL Deprec. Prov for Year (Enter Total of 131,840,732 131,708,015 131,717
lines 3 thru 9)
11} Net Charges for Plant Retired: :
12} Book Cost of Plant Retired 7,917,559 7,917,559
13| Cost of Removal 7,152,447 7,162,447
14} Salvage (Credit) 1,042,194 1,042,194
15| TOTAL Net Chrgs. for Plant Ret. (Enter Total 14,027,812 14,027,812
of lines 12 thru 14)
16| Other Debit or Cr. Items (Describe, details in -2,004,939
footnote):
17
18} Book Cost or Asset Retirement Costs Retired
19} Balance End of Year (Enter Totals of lines 1, 2,030,439,913 2,030,308,196 131,717
10, 15, 16, and 18)
Section B. Balances at End of Year According to Functional Classification
20} Steam Production 978,507,043 978,375,326 131,717
21} Nuclear Production
22| Hydraulic Production-Conventional 8,216,730 8,216,730
23| Hydraulic Production-Pumped Storage
24| Other Production 131,156,517 131,156,517
25 Transmission 324,822 455 324,822,455
26 Distribution 534,181,429 534,181,429
27] Regional Transmission and Market Operation
28} General 53,555,739 53,555,739
29| TOTAL (Enter Totat of lines 20 thru 28) 2,030,439,913 2,030,308,196 131,717
FERC FORM NO. 1 (REV. 12-05) Page 219



Name of Respondent This Report is: Date of Report | Year/Period of Report
(1) X An Original (Mo, Da, Y1)
Kentucky Utilities Company (2) __ A Resubmission N 2008/Q4
FOOTNOTE DATA

[Schedule Page: 219 Line No.: 8 Column: ¢
BAcerual for Cost of Removal and ARO Parent assets (FERC 254 and 403)
ISchedule Page: 219  Line No.: 8 Column: d

Depreciation reserve for Plant Held for Future Use - Trimble County Coocling Tower
(hyperbolic)

ISchedule Page: 219 _ Line No.: 16 Column: ¢

Customer payments related to construction projects $(5,886,825)
Net effect of transfers between accounts 107 and 108 3,881,886
Total $(2,004,939)

[FERC FORM NO. 1 (ED. 12-87) Page 450.1 |
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Name of Respondent
Kentucky Utilities Company

This Report 1s:
(1) [X]An Original

2) DA Resubmission

Date of Report
{Mo, Da, Yr)

I

Year/Period of Report

MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES

1. For Account 154, report the amount of plant materials and operating suppfies under the primary functional classifications as indicated in column (a);
estimates of amounts by function are acceptable. In column (d), designate the department or departments which use the class of material.

2. Give an explanation of important inventory adjustments during the year (in a footnote) showing general classes of material and supplies and the
various accounts (operating expenses, clearing accounts, plant, etc.) affected debited or credited. Show separately debit or credits to stores expense
clearing, if applicable.

Line
No.

Account

(a)

Balance

Beginning of Year

{b)

Balance
End of Year

(0)

Departrnent or
Departments which
Use Material
(d)

Fuel Stock (Account 151)

41,770,628

72,708,035

Electric

Fuel Stock Expenses Undistributed (Account 152)

Residuals and Extracted Products (Account 153)

Plant Materials and Operating Supplies (Account 154)

Assigned to - Construction (Estimated)

Assigned to - Operations and Maintenance

Production Plant (Estimated)

17,778,066

19,657,311

Electric

Transmission Plant {(Estimated)

2,910,358

3,098,200

Electric

wlol~Njalalasjw]n] -~

Distribution Plant (Estimated)

6,681,602

6,805,178

Electric

oy
(=4

Regional Transmission and Market Operation Plant
(Estimated)

1"

Assigned to - Other (provide detalls in footnote)

12

TOTAL Account 154 (Enter Tofal of lines 5 thru 11)

27,370,026

29,561,689

13

Merchandise {Accaunt 155)

14

Other Materials and Supplies (Account 156)

15

Nuclear Materials Held for Sale {Account 157) (Not
applic to Gas Util)

16

Stores Expense Undistributed (Account 163)

6,454,808

6,202,308

Electric

17

18

19

20

TOTAL Materials and Supplies (Per Balance Sheet)

75,595,462

108,472,032

FERC FORM NO. 1 (REV. 12-05)

Page 227




Name of Respondent
Kentucky Utilities Company

This Report Is: Date of Report
(1) An Original (Mo, Da, Y1)
(2) DA Resubrmission /1

Year/Period of Report
End of 2008/Q4

Allowances (Accounts 158.1 and 158.2)

succeeding years in columns (j)-(k).

1. Report below the particulars (details) calied for concerning allowances.
2. Report all acquisitions of allowances at cost.

3. Report allowances in accordance with a weighted average cost allocation method and other accounting as prescribed by General
Instruction No. 21 in the Uniform System of Accounts.
4. Report the allowances transactions by the period they are first eligible for use: the current year’s allowances in columns (b)-(c),
allowances for the three succeeding years in columns (d)-(i), starting with the following year, and allowances for the remaining

5. Reporton line 4 the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) issued allowances. Report withheld portions Lines 36-40.

32 | Net Sales Proceeds{Assoc. Co.)

Line Allowances Inventory Current Year 2009
No. (Account 158.1) Amt. No.
(a)
1| Balance-Beginning of Year
2
3 | Acquired During Year:
4| Issued (Less Withheld Allow)
5| Returned by EPA
6
7
8 | Purchases/Transfers:
9 502.00 311,495
[0 5] i 66,968.00 3,867
11 | Adjusiment fo final 2007 32.00,
12
13
14
15| Total 67,502.00, 315,362
16 Bt ; :
17 | Relinquished During Year: ;
18| Charges to Account 509 161,221.00 619,818 o
19| Other: Vi :
20 | Charges to 549/158 B 8,988.00 T 419 B -
211 Cost of Sales/Transfers: ; !
e 2 oo s bl s A
23 { Adjustment fo final 2007 171.00
24
25
26
27
28| Total 391.00 3,600
29| Balance-End of Year 4,622.00 74,419 105,184.00
30 : X 7t
311 Sales:

33| Net Sales Proceeds (Other)

34| Gains

35| Losses

Allowances Withheld (Acct 158.2)

41

42} Sales:

43 | Net Sales Proceeds (Assoc. Co.)

36 | Balance-Beginning of Year 1,109.00 1,109.00,
37 | Add: Withheld by EPA

38| Deduct: Returned by EPA

39 | Cost of Sales 1,109.00

40 | Balance-End of Year 1,108.00

44 } Net Sales Proceeds (Other) 1,109.00 432,455
451 Gains
46| Losses

FERC FORM NO. 1 (ED. 12-95) Page 228



Name of Respondent (T%is Re| OA?1 l(s) | Dwalte Bf R\e;p)ort Year/Period of Report
- rigina o, Da, Yr
Kentucky Utilities Company @ [lARe pmission ( ) Endof  2008/Q4

Allowances (Accounts 158.1 and 158.2) {(Continued)

6. Report on Lines 5 allowances returned by the EPA. Report on Line 38 the EPA's sales of the withheld allowances. Report on Lines
43-46 the net sales proceeds and gains/losses resulting from the EPA’s sale or auction of the withheld allowances.

7. Report on Lines 8-14 the names of vendors/transferors of allowances acquire and identify associated companies (See "associated
company” under "Definitions™ in the Uniform System of Accounts).
8. Report on Lines 22 - 27 the name of purchasers/ transferees of allowances disposed of an identify associated companies.
9. Report the net costs and benefits of hedging transactions on a separate line under purchases/transfers and sales/transfers.
10. Report on Lines 32-35 and 43-46 the net sales proceeds and gains or losses from allowance sales.

i

2010 2011 Future Years Totals Line
No. Amt, No. Amt. No. Amt. No. Amt. No.
() [0) 0 {k)

11433/00) 1
; ;i : 2|

3

) 77,535.00, 77,535.00 o 4

5
.
-

a

502.00 311499 9

66,968.00 3,867 10

32.00 1

12

13

14

67,502.00 315,367 15

= = ‘i'g

,’ : 17

“ 161,221.00 619,818 18

19|
" - T 3,088.00] 419 20|

2 3 21]

i 3 T 20000 3600 22
171.00 23

24

25

26

27

351.00 3,600 28

99,376.00) 99,376.0 2,158,968.00 2,467,526.00 74,419 28

32|

33

34

35)

"1,106.50 1,106.50 54,218.50 58,649.50 36)
2,213.00 2.213.00 37

38

1,106.50 2.216.50 39

1,106.50 1,106.50) 55,325.00 58,647.00 40
5 0 41

42|

2 : e it )

1,108.50 150,652 2,215.50 583,107 44

45

46
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Name of Respondent This Report is: Date of Report | Year/Period of Report
{1) X An Original (Mg, Da, Yr)
Kentucky Utilities Company (2) __ A Resubmission /1 2008/Q4
FOOTNOTE DATA

[Schedule Page: 228 Line No.: 1 Column: b

The beginning balance allowance amount is composed of 97,723 SO2 allowances and 9,997

Ozone Season NOx allowances.

ISchedule Page: 228 Line No.: 1 Column: c

The beginning balance allowance dollars is composed entirely of the value of $02

allowances.

ISchedule Page: 228 Line No.: 1 __Column: d

|

The beginning balance allowance amount is composed of 83,343 SO2 allowances, 6,683 Ozone
Season NOx allowances and 15,158 Annual NOx allowances.

ISchedule Page: 228  Line No.: 1 Column: f

!

The beginning balance allowance amount is composed of 77,535 S02 allowances, 6,683 Ozone
Season NOx allowances and 15,158 Annual NOx allowances.

ISchedule Page: 228 Line No.: 1__Column: h

|

The beginning balance allowance amount is composed of 77,535 S02 allowances, 6,683 Ozone
Season NOx allowances and 15,158 Annual NOx allowances.

[Schedule Page: 228 _Line No.: 1___Column: j

]

The beginning balance allowance amount is composed of 2,015,910 SO2 allowances, 20,049

Ozone Season NOx allowances and 45,474 Annual NOx allowances.

\Schedule Page: 228 Line No.: 1 __ Column: |

The beginning balance allowance amount is composed of 2,352,046 SO2 allowances, 50,095

Ozone Season NOx allowances and 90,948 Annual NOx allowances.

ISchedule Page: 228 Line No.: 1 Column: m

The beginning balance allowance dollars is composed entirely of the value of S02

allowances.
ISchedule Page: 228 Line No.: 9 Column: a ]
Purchases:

No. Cost
Merrill Lynch Commodities NBP 111 $ 70,485
Holcim US Inc 100 61,000
Birchwood Power Facility 30 18,300
Lockport Cogeneration Facility 100 63,500
Bayonne Plant Holding, LLC 36 21,960
Aventine Renewable Energy, Inc 125 76,250
Total 502 $311,495

ISchedule Page: 228 _Line No.: 10 Column: a

Kentucky Utilities Company and Louisville Gas & Electric Company are both owned by E.ON

U.s. LLC.

iSchedule Page: 228  Line No.: 22 Column: a

Kentucky Utilities Company and Louisville Gas & Electric Company are both owned by E.ON

U.S. LLC.
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Name of Respondent
Kentucky Utilities Company

This Report Is:
(1) [_X_]An Original
2) DA Resubmission /1

Date of Report
(Mo, Da, Y1)

End of

Year/Period of Report
2008/Q4

oY

THER REGULATORY ASSETS (Account 182.3)

by classes.

3. For Regulatory Assets being amortized, show period of amortization.

1. Report below the particulars (details) called for conceming other regulatary assets, including rate order docket number, if applicable.
2. Minor items (5% of the Balance in Account 182.3 at end of period, or amounts less than $50,000 which ever is less), may be grouped

Line
No.

Description and Purpose of
Other Regulatory Assets

{a)

Balance at
Beginning of
Current
Quarter/Year

(b) (o) (d)

Debits

" Whritten off During | _ Wi